WEICHAI
HE o

e &g Stock code:2338.HK

2020 | vl

Interim Report

o B TIR I EIIR A Sl

WEICHAI POWER CO. . .LTD.




Contents  H &%

Corporate Information 2 A=&E#
Financial Summary 6 Bii&iE
Chairman’s Statement 7 X EiR&E
Management Discussion and Analysis 14 EIEE & imE DT
Auditors’ Review Report 23  FERH®RE
Reviewed Financial Statements [mE=EIl T
Consolidated Balance Sheet 24 AEHEERBER
Consolidated Income Statement 27 S0 FE R
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity 29 B REREE R
Consolidated Cash Flow Statement 31 afEenEx
Company Balance Sheet 33 REIBEBER
Company Income Statement 35 REIMER
Company Statement of Changes in Equity 36 RERREREER
Company Cash Flow Statement 37 ANEFREEMER
Notes to Financial Statements 39 B 75 R 2 BT =
Supplemental Information AR

Schedule of Extraordinary Profit and Loss 284  JE& H Bz AR

2
=

BX

Return on Net Assets (“RONA") and Earnings Per Share (“EPS") 285 FEE WS R AR U

Other Information 286 E fthi & #}



02  Weichai Power Co., Ltd. %8 HIRHERAT

Corporate Information

Directors

Executive Directors

Tan Xuguang (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Zhang Quan (Executive President)

Xu Xinyu

Sun Shaojun (Executive President)

Yuan Hongming (Executive President)

Yan Jianbo (Executive President)

Non-executive Directors

Zhang Liangfu (appointed on 29 June 2020)
Jiang Kui

Gordon Riske

Michael Martin Macht

Wang Yuepu (resigned on 26 March 2020)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Li Hongwu

Wen Daocai

Jiang Yan (appointed on 29 June 2020)

Yu Zhuoping (appointed on 29 June 2020)
Zhao Huifang (appointed on 29 June 2020)
Zhang Zhong (retired on 29 June 2020)
Wang Gongyong (retired on 29 June 2020)
Ning Xiangdong (retired on 29 June 2020)

Supervisors
Lu Wenwu
Ma Changhai

Wu Hongwei

Company Secretary and Chief Financial Officer

Kwong Kwan Tong (CPA, FCCA, ACMA)

Secretary to the Board
Wang Li

o

HITES
BIEN(EFRFEEHTE)
R R(BTTAEE)

¥ E

BOE(BTTEE)
REB(HTTAEE)

BRI (HTTHREL)

FHITES
RRER-ZF-ZFFNAZFNHEF)
I =

Gordon Riske

Michael Martin Macht
FTRER-ZFB-FF=ZH_1TNAFE)

BAFHITES

FHE

EEA

B EBERZ=ZFZZFFNAZFNHEE)

REF(R=ZF-ZZFFHAZFT/NLHALE)

WEF(RZFEZFFAZ—FNALE)

5k BRZFE-FENH-FNHRE)
B(RZFE-ZFFENHZFNHRE)

ﬁﬁ%(ﬁ/‘_g_yﬁ—t/\ﬁ +HEE)

Hid
B3R
G

RAE

O3 ) b o R i 5

BIE=E (CPA, FCCA, ACMA)

R E

E



Corporate Information (Continued)
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Corporate Information (Continued)
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Corporate Information (Continued)
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Financial Summary B 5 WE

. Revenue amounted to approximately RMB94,495 million, an increase of o &I A A ARKI4 495FHET - +FH
approximately 4.0%. #14.0% -

. Net profit attributable to the shareholders of the parent amountedto o BEBREBRARKRENZFINENAEARE

i —

approximately RMB4,680 million, a decrease of approximately 11.5%. 4,680E BT * WMAHIN1.5% o

. Basic earnings per share was approximately RMBO0.59, a decrease of o HREXEFNLAEARK059T W4
approximately 11.5%. 11.5% °

(Important notice: This report is published in Chinese and English versions. In case of  (EEIRF @ ARE D RIAPEFIH o 0P EXHE
inconsistency, the Chinese version shall prevail.) fAIZR - BARRAE )
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Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board, | would like to present the reviewed interim results of
the Company for the six months’ period ended 30 June 2020.

L.

Review of Operating Conditions

In the first half of 2020, facing the severe challenges brought by
the outbreak of the novel coronavirus (“COVID-19"), coupled with
the complicated and ever-changing environment domestically and
abroad, the Chinese government has implemented various measures
to prevent and control the spread of COVID-19 and facilitate economic
developments. China has been achieving impressive strategic results in
containing COVID-19, leading to a steady recovery in the economy. In
the first half of the year, the gross domestic product reached RMB45.7
trillion, representing a year-on-year decrease of 1.6%. From a quarterly
perspective, the gross domestic product decreased by 6.8% in the first
quarter and grew by 3.2% in the second quarter compared to the
corresponding periods last year.

During the Period, the Company implemented precise strategies and
scientific planning to overcome the adverse impacts brought by COVID-19
and to seize the opportunity of economic recovery, leading to a growth in
domestic operation, rapid growth in new business formats and increase

BRRR -
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Chairman’s Statement (Continued)

in the number of orders of the intelligent logistics business despite the
adversity, all of which highlighted the strength of our diversified business
structure and significantly enhanced our risk resistance capabilities.
In the first half of the year, the Company’s revenue increased by
approximately 4.0% compared with that in the corresponding period
of 2019 to approximately RMB94,495 million. Net profit attributable to
shareholders of the listed company was approximately R\MB4,680 million,
representing a decrease of approximately 11.5% compared with that in
the corresponding period of 2019. Basic earnings per share was RMB0.59,
representing a decrease of approximately 11.5% compared with that in
the corresponding period of 2019.

1. Power System Business

The Company upheld an innovation-driven approach and
accelerated the escalation of products mix to high-end. To create
a new generation high-end platform “N+H+M", sales amount of
new products such as WP3N, WP8 and WP10H increased rapidly;
we have completed the upgrade and development of the full series
of road-going China VI and non-road-going China IV products to
firmly secure our leading position amidst the new round of emission
standards upgrade, and achieved simultaneous growth in both
traditional products and emerging strategic products. Leveraging
the globally coordinated research and development (R&D) platform,
we made strenuous efforts in achieving breakthroughs in core
technologies, and our product competitiveness was significantly
strengthened by continuously optimising engines and performance
strengths of parts and components, lowering costs and fuel
consumption and light-weighting. The Company adhered to the
customer-oriented approach and focused precisely on various
segment markets. We achieved all-round breakthroughs in strategic
markets such as energy and electric power, industrial equipment
and excavators, and continuously developed advantageous markets
such as heavy-duty trucks, passenger vehicles and construction
machineries to strengthen our competitive advantages in the
industry. The Company was committed to creating synergy by
combining its resources and speeding up the integration of the
industrial chain. With engines as our principal axis, the Company
achieved rapid breakthroughs in core technology of three major
powertrain systems, namely, commercial vehicles, construction
machineries and agricultural equipment, and took full advantage of
systematic matching of its products, thereby creating competitive
advantage of differentiation. The wholesale market testing phase
for the second generation of AMT powertrain products has been
completed, and “WP6H+Linde Hydraulics” powertrain became the
first domestic self-developed powertrain solution for excavators.

o ()
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Chairman’s Statement (Continued) F (AR

During the Period, the Company’s powertrain business hit another
record high. Sales volume of engines increased year-on-year by
19.2% to 470,000 units; sales volume of gear boxes increased
year-on-year by 4.0% to 605,000; sales volume of axles increased
year-on-year by 16.5% to 534,000. In addition, our strategic high-
end products continued to develop, with sales revenue of large-
diameter engines of RMB420 million, representing a year-on-year
growth of 30.4%; and sales revenue of high-end hydraulic products
of RMB230 million, representing a year-on-year growth of 30.3%.

Complete Vehicles and Machineries Business
Upholding a strategy driven by complete vehicles and machineries,
the Company sped up the innovation-driven strategy and industrial
chain structural upgrade, and further enhanced its comprehensive
competitiveness. Shaanxi Heavy-duty Motor Company Limited (P&
FEAREAFRAF]), a controlling subsidiary, made efforts in
production and operation, market breakthrough and products
innovation, and achieved stable growth with a total heavy-duty
trucks sales of 88,000 units, representing a year-on-year growth of
2.1%. We seized the market share with full understanding of the
needs of the industry. In the tractor economic market, port tractor
market, and sand and gravel transportation market, we continued
to rank the top. We overcame the impact of COVID-19 overseas
effectively and recorded a year-on-year growth in cooperative
export as well as a rapid expansion in high-end markets such as
Central and South America and the Asia-Pacific. By effectively
combining innovation chain and industrial chain, we gained a
leading advantage. We accelerated the exploration of effective
combination of management of customers’ demand with the
internet throughout the life cycle of trucks, and introduced
innovative models of cooperation with major customers and
platform customers on an ongoing basis, proactively forming a new
business format. Following the completion of the development
of model M3000S vehicles and technological reserves of model
M5000 vehicles and further upgrade of complete vehicles in terms
of smoothness and braking performance, the core performance
indicators of our new-generation products led the industry.
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Chairman’s Statement (Continued)
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Intelligent Logistics Business
KION Group AG (“KION"), an overseas controlling subsidiary,
is a globally leading supplier in the area of intralogistics which

assists factories, warehouses and distribution centres to optimise
their resources flow and information flow through the design,
establishment and improvement of logistics solutions in over a
hundred countries and regions around the world. Dematic Group
is a globally leading automated logistics expert, with its products
meeting the comprehensive needs in areas of intelligent supply
chain and automated solutions. Under the influence of COVID-19,
sales revenue of the intelligent logistics segment was EUR3.93
billion in the first half of 2020, representing a decrease of 10.0%
as compared to the corresponding period last year. Nevertheless,
total order value amounted to EUR4.40 billion, representing an
increase of 4.8% as compared to the corresponding period last
year. In particular, order value of supply chain solutions amounted
to EUR1.74 billion, representing an increase of 57.3% as compared
to the corresponding period last year.
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Chairman’s Statement (Continued)

II.

4. New Business Format, New Energy and New

Technology

Guided by future-oriented strategies, the Company actively
facilitated the promotion of re-engineering of industrial chain and
upgrade of value chain as well as new business format, new energy
and new technology. The Company focused on key technologies to
take lead in the development of the industry. Strategic restructure
of Germany-based ARADEX AG and Austria-based VDS allowed the
Company to effectively overcome the weakness in key technologies
of motor control system of new energy powertrain and CVT power
system in agricultural equipment in China. The Company established
the world’s largest manufacturing base of engines powered by
hydrogen-fueled batteries, and the production line with production
capacity of 20,000 units/sets of fuel-battery powered engines
and stack has commenced formal operation. With the support
of the new generation of information technology, the Company
sped up the pace of digital transformation. With customers as the
centre and digital technology as the medium, the Company served
and empowered our business and sped up the pace of digital
transformation. We accelerated the construction of Concentric
Cloud and provided uniform infrastructure facilities of cloud-based
information services to respond to business needs quickly. We
have been continuously optimising our supply chain business and
empowering upstream and downstream suppliers and customers,
so as to achieve highly-efficient synergy in the industry chain and
enhance the consistency in product quality.

Dividends and Capitalisation of Reserve

On 29 June 2020, the Company’s 2019 profit distribution proposal
was considered and approved at the Company’s 2019 annual general
meeting. Based on the 7,933,873,895 shares eligible for distribution
as at 31 December 2019, the Company distributed to all shareholders
a cash dividend of RMB1.36 (including tax) for every 10 shares held,
without any capitalisation of reserve.

On 27 August 2020, under the authority granted by the shareholders
of the Company, the Board considered and approved the distribution to
all shareholders of a cash dividend of RMB1.50 (including tax) for every

3

Interim Report 2020 FHEAZRE

EFF
UH&}

4. FERL - FER - HA
53
NEI AR RERE BIES - ik
HEXBBENEEEAL
¥R R MEEEMRMG
B BEMERI - 3lETER
B BREEEERESR - Bit
FIEk s By - B FOE P B A 37 A
BB B ERITH REMEE
HENVTB D EFNBERENE
R BRERGAEMBE M
@Hé%%ﬁ%f@ 20,0008 E &
TR E BB R EHEAE
,‘&Ei&é BT U —REE
BiiAZE  MRBEFLER -
NEE AR SRl AR
B ORBEL - WXL M
BFEER - IRRALERRE
REHF—ERIEERERY
RRBEEEE R  FHEHEEM
FEEERENL  BMeE L ThERE
AREE  BEREEEES AW
FRAEREE B

Jit B % A 4 i 3 i A

7202096 A29H © KA R2019F E &
HEAFRKSEZBB2019FEFBSE
HE - KARAFILA2019F12831HWMIIRE
A ¥ HB7,933,873,895 AEE - MFE
BREFIOREERSLAFARE1.36
T(EH)  TEHRATESEEA -

MN2020F8A27H  AATEEER
BERERE FZBBUARAKRE
7,933,873,895 AEZ - M EKRRE

11



12 Weichai Power Co., Ltd

HRBORHAERDE

Chairman’s Statement (Continued)

I1I.

10 shares held, based on the total number of shares of the Company of
7,933,873,895 shares, without any capitalisation of reserve. Please refer
to the further announcement issued by the Company for details on the
closure of registers of members in determining the shareholders who are
eligible for the 2020 interim dividend.

Development Outlook and Prospects

Looking to the second half of 2020, under the impact of COVID-19
outbreak around the globe, uncertainties arise due to the hindered
industry and supply chain cycles, shrinking international trading and
investment, and severely restricted export, resulting in severe global
economic downturn. Considering both domestic and international
situation, it is generally believed that the economy of China in the
second half of 2020 will still have to face a greater downward
pressure. Nevertheless, with the impact of a new “dual circulation”
development model comprising both new and traditional infrastructure
projects, greater effort in environmental governance, more stringent
policies against overloading as well as acceleration of elimination and
replacement of China Ill trucks, it is estimated that there is still a large
room for growth in the industry, which will bring opportunities for
the high-quality development of the Company’s domestic business.
Meanwhile, as automated logistics becomes a new trend and market
demands for forklift trucks recovered, the Company’s intelligent logistics
business is expected to see a restorative growth.

By adhering to the principle of aiming at customer satisfaction, focusing
on segment markets, speeding up the pace of technology innovation
and optimising the operating eco-system, the Company is determined to
accomplish its full-year goals.

Focusing on the sales target of million units of engines, the Company
will seize opportunities in market expansion. Adhering to the customer
demand-oriented approach, the Company will seize the development
opportunity in the post-pandemic era, make great efforts to improve
product offerings, steadfastly capture the market and secure the orders.
We will focus on road-going and non-road-going segment markets
and the development pattern of the industry, make a good planning of
products for the “14th Five-Year Plan” and build a precise and scientific
product structure. Leveraging the terminal digital analysis platform,
we will conduct data-mining analysis of the growing markets and key
markets, push ahead with the enhancement of marketing capability
during all processes, along the entire value chain and throughout the
lifecycle, with an aim to develop key customers and products and
achieve breakthroughs in segment markets precisely. The Company
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Chairman’s Statement (Continued)

IV.

will continue the innovation-driven approach, and speed up the
transformation and upgrade of products. Through coordinating global
R&D resources, and optimising a new four-in-one innovation system
consisting of “self-developed innovation+ open innovation+ professional
innovation+ basic-research innovation”, the Company will expedite the
construction of a new energy complete vehicle platform and a power
system platform in order to bring highly-efficient synergy in the new
energy business. We will speed up our efforts in achieving breakthroughs
in key technologies of high-end hydraulic pumps and motor, and
advanced hydraulic powertrain control in order to systematically upgrade
the performance of our products. We will also optimise a forward
engineering process for automatic electric control system, accelerate
research on common key technologies of engine electric control, new
energy electric control, powertrain electric control and smart network,
to develop products with our own self-developed core technologies
and market competitiveness. Furthermore, we will strengthen the R&D,
production and supply of core components including fuel system,
pressure charging system and post-processing system while maintaining
the stability of the supply chain. We will step up on constructing an
eco-system for innovation and achieve a new height in business and
entrepreneurship. On the basis of new landscape, new technologies and
new demands, the Company will strive to do our best in the top-level
design for the management of an innovation eco-system and enhance
the integration of industry-university-research innovation chain to build
a pool for innovative resources. We will step up the organisational
reform of the R&D system and establish a multi-level incentive system
with results-sharing and upfront incentives to encourage innovation.
We will strengthen the talent-pool building, create innovative culture
and atmosphere, introduce high-level talents domestically and abroad to
build a team of international talents with a reasonable mix of different
age groups and a scientific medium-to-high level hierarchy. We will also
improve the honour system for employees to achieve mutual growth
and development of our employees and of the Company, thereby fully
enhancing the core competitiveness of the Company.

Appreciation

Last but not least, | would like to express my sincere appreciation to
all our shareholders, the general public and our customers for their
care and support, as well as to all of our staff for their hard work and
dedication!

Tan Xuguang

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 27 August 2020
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The Directors are pleased to present a management discussion and analysis of
the results of operations of the Group for the six months ended 30 June 2020

(the “Period”) as follows:

I. Industry Analysis
The Company is one of the vehicle and equipment manufacturing
conglomerates in the PRC with the best comprehensive strengths. It is
a leading company in the markets of powertrain, complete vehicles and
machines, hydraulic controlling parts and automotive electronics and parts
and components and is equipped with the most comprehensive supply
chain of engines, gear boxes and axles, and offers related aftersales
market services. Meanwhile, with the Group's leading advantages in
intelligent logistics, it could provide the most comprehensive logistics

solutions to its customers.

1. Commercial Vehicles and Construction
Machinery Industries
In the first half of 2020, facing the severe situation of the COVID-19
pandemic, the industry and supply chain cycles have been
significantly affected, and international trading has been shrinking,
resulting in an unprecedented hit on the global economy. The
Chinese government implemented effective measures to prevent
and control the spread of COVID-19 and to resume economic
development. With the rapid resumption of operation and
production, the domestic economic growth turned from negative
to positive in the second quarter, indicating a steady recovery in the
economy. In the first half of the year, the gross domestic product
of the PRC reached RMB45.7 trillion, representing a year-on-year
decrease of 1.6%. From a quarterly perspective, the gross domestic
product decreased by 6.8% in the first quarter and grew by 3.2%
in the second quarter compared to the corresponding periods last

year.

Benefitting from the favourable factors such as continuous progress
made in containing COVID-19, there have been signs of recovery
in the domestic economy. Affected by factors including the
advancement of fixed assets investment and new infrastructure
projects, upgrade of emission standards and rising demand
for vehicle replacement, the domestic commercial vehicles and

construction machinery industries operated at a high level.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

2. Forklift Truck and Supply Chain Solutions
Industry
During the Period, the International Monetary Fund estimated a
contraction of approximately 4.9% in global economy in the year
2020 due to the restrictive measures implemented by countries in
response to COVID-19, which also caused a direct impact on the
demand for industrial forklift trucks. Orders for industrial forklift
trucks in the first half of 2020 decreased to approximately 706,400
units from approximately 759,500 units in the same period last
year, representing a year-on-year decrease of approximately 7.0%.
In particular, Central and South America, Middle East and Africa,
West Europe and East Europe saw a relatively significant drop of
approximately 20.7%, 18.9%, 16.9% and 12.9%, respectively,
as compared with the corresponding period last year, while Asia
Pacific was the only region which recorded a slight growth. The
supply chain solutions industry was affected by the global economic

downturn, resulting in weak investment market sentiment.

II. The Group’s Business
An analysis of the Group’s business segments is set out in Note XIV.2 to
the consolidated financial statements. The following is an overview of the

operating conditions of the major products of the Group:

1. Powertrain, Complete Vehicles and Machines
and Key Components
The Group has the most comprehensive powertrain system
covering engines, gear boxes and axles. With the advantages of
the globally coordinated R&D platform, the Company enhanced
its core technologies and capitalised on the synergistic effect of
the industry chain. In the first half of 2020, the Company sold a
total of approximately 470,000 units of engines and approximately
605,000 units of gear boxes, representing a year-on-year increase
of approximately 19.2% and approximately 4.0% as compared
with approximately 394,000 units and approximately 582,000 units,
respectively, in the corresponding period last year. The engines
segment contributed approximately RMB22,372 million to the
Group's sales revenue during the Period, representing an increase
of approximately 18.0% from approximately RMB 18,963 million for

the corresponding period last year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued) B B e B AT (%)

During the Period, Shaanxi Heavy-duty Motor Company Limited
(BRPEEAFE B R A F]), a controlling subsidiary of the Group,
effectively mitigated the impacts of COVID-19, took advantage
of the economic recovery, and seized the market share with full
understanding of the needs of the industry. During the Period, the
Group's aggregate sales of heavy-duty truck engines amounted to
approximately 88,000 units, representing a year-on-year growth of

approximately 2.1%.

Intelligent Logistics

During the Period, the industrial forklift trucks key markets of the
Group were severely affected by the COVID-19 outbreak. Sales
order for forklift trucks decreased from approximately 109,000 units
in the corresponding period last year to approximately 89,000 units,
representing a year-on-year decrease of approximately 18.5%. The
total value of order intake for the first half of the year decreased
by approximately 13.9% to EUR2,655 million, and the total value
of order intake of supply chain solutions recorded a year-on-year
increase of approximately 57.3% to EUR1,744 million due to big-
ticket orders received from e-commerce customers. Intelligent
logistics services contributed approximately RMB30,082 million to
the Group’s sales revenue during the Period, representing a year-

on-year decrease of approximately 8.2%.

III. Financial Review

The Group's Results of Operations

a. Revenue
In the first half of 2020, the Group’s revenue amounted to
approximately RMB94,495 million, representing an increase
of approximately RMB3,633 million or approximately 4.0%
from approximately RMB90,862 million in the corresponding
period in 2019. Largely benefitting from the effective
prevention and control against the spread of COVID-19
across the country, there have been signs of gradual recovery
of the economy. With favourable government policies, the
domestic commercial vehicles and construction machinery
industries maintained positive growth and revenue from
the provision of intelligent logistics supply chain solutions
remained stable. Revenue from principal operations increased
by approximately 2.2% from approximately RMB89,130
million in the corresponding period last year to approximately
RMB91,070 million for the Period.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

Profit from Principal Operations

During the Period, the Group generated profit from principal
operations in the amount of approximately RMB18,231
million, representing a decrease of approximately RMB1,335
million or 6.8% from approximately RMB19,566 million
recorded in the corresponding period in 2019. This was
mainly attributable to the restrictive measures adopted by
various countries in Europe and the United States to control
the spread of COVID-19 which led to a decrease in the
revenue from intelligent logistics business. The Group strictly
controlled the costs during the Period to maintain a stable
profit margin from principal operations at approximately
20.0%.

Distribution and Selling Expenses

During the Period, the distribution and selling expenses
amounted to approximately RMB5,313 million, representing
a decrease of approximately RMB57 million or 1.1% from
approximately RMB5,370 million in the corresponding period
of 2019. The decrease of distribution and selling expenses
was primarily attributable to a decrease in both the after-sales
and repair fees and the costs of freight and packaging. With
the effective control over the total expenses, the distribution
and selling expenses as a percentage of revenue decreased
to approximately 5.6% during the Period from approximately

5.9% during the corresponding period last year.

General and Administrative Expenses

General and administrative expenses increased by
approximately RMB116 million or 3.5% from approximately
RMB3,281 million in the corresponding period of 2019 to
approximately RMB3,397 million in the Period. During the
Period, the overall expenses were under effective control.
The general and administrative expenses as a percentage
of revenue was maintained at the same level as in the

corresponding period last year at approximately 3.6%.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued) BRI o B AT (A

Earnings Before Interest and Tax (EBIT)

During the Period, the Group’s EBIT was approximately
RMB7,293 million, representing a decrease of approximately
RMB1,655 million or 18.5% from approximately RMB8,948
million in the corresponding period last year. The decrease in
EBIT was primarily attributable to the influence of COVID-19,
leading to a decrease in the profit contributed by the
intelligent logistics business during the Period. However,
the Group maintained an optimistic outlook for the future
prospects and increased its investment in research and
development, bringing down EBIT margin of the Group from
approximately 9.8% in the corresponding period of 2019 to
approximately 7.7% in the Period.

Finance Expenses

Finance expenses increased by approximately 17.6%
to approximately RMB166 million in the Period from
approximately RMB141 million in the corresponding period
of 2019. This was mainly attributable to exchange gains and

losses and the increase in handling fees on bank loans.

Income Tax Expenses

The Group’s income tax expenses decreased by 31.2% from
approximately RMB1,458 million in the corresponding period
in 2019 to approximately RMB1,003 million in the Period,
which was mainly attributable to the decrease in offshore
profits. During the Period, the Group's average effective tax
rate was at approximately 15.0%, representing a decrease
of 2.5 percentage points from approximately 17.5% in the

corresponding period last year.

Net Profit and Net Profit Margin

The Group’s net profit for the Period was approximately
RMB5,702 million, representing a decrease of approximately
RMB1,191 million or 17.3% from approximately RMB6,893
million in the corresponding period of last year. Net profit
margin for the Period was approximately 6.0%, which
decreased by 1.6 percentage points from approximately 7.6%
in the corresponding period of last year. This was primarily
attributable to the influence of COVID-19 on the revenue
from the intelligent logistics business, the decrease in profit
contribution and the increase in research and development

expenses.

BT AT E(EBIT)

R - A% B2 F AT F B
HEBANRBT7203HE T '
ZFERBNNARKS948H
BLRLHARKE1,65588
JL 3K 18.5% ° B & A1 A R
LEBRPANEIREF S A
RIEVE  BREMTREBRNE
BRUALD - BEEEHAKAR
BRELE  THBEERANAR
A EAREESBATFEEAR
- NFREANL9.8% T
PREAREANDT. 7% °

MBEH

B ERA T —NEREN
HMARB 1M BETEMER
HENHARB 166 8T -
EMH17.6% - TBERAME
REEMRITERFEE LN
FTEg -

Frigti & R
AEEMRGHEAH-_ZT—A
FREOHARE1,4588
BELRIERBEONODAR
1,003 BT - Rt TE
31.2% * FZRZBINFER
DR E  c RAMBEARKEED
FHERBERLN/15.0% @ T
EFREBIL17.5% k2. 5(E
ERaE K

FF 8 KOS AE =

RAEIRE - AREEFFEO R
AR5 TNZEETT © bEF
RN AREE893E & T
WAOHARE1,191HE LK
17.3% ° RABEFFBE XL
76.0% - HEFREAT7.6%
LbE - TRR1.6EE DB - £2
XEBETESREYREBRA
AR E & BUR A 7038 i 2 B

R & -



Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

Liquidity and Cash Flow

During the Period, the Group generated net operating cash
flows of approximately RMB4,036 million and cash inflow
from financing activities of approximately RMB18,912
million. A portion of such proceeds was applied to repaying
debts, acquiring 100% equity interest in Digital Applications
International Limited (total consideration amounting to
approximately EUR110 million) and paying for the acquisition
of property, plant and equipment for the expansion of
the Group’s business. As of 30 June 2020, the Group’'s
gearing ratio (interest-bearing debts/(interest-bearing debts

+ shareholders’ equity)) was approximately 30.5% (31

December 2019: approximately 29.9%).

2. Financial Position
a. Assets and Liabilities

As at 30 June 2020, the Group had total assets
of approximately RMB260,978 million, of which
approximately RMB145,162 million were current
assets. As at 30 June 2020, the Group had cash and
cash equivalents of approximately RMB45,769 million
(as at 31 December 2019: approximately RMB48,818
million). On the same date, the Group’s total liabilities
amounted to approximately RMB186,919 million, of
which approximately RMB123,926 million were current

liabilities. The current ratio was approximately 1.17x (as

at 31 December 2019: 1.20x).
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued) B B e B AT (%)

Capital Structure

As at 30 June 2020, the Group had total equity of
approximately RMB74,059 million, of which approximately
RMB48,707 million was attributable to equity holders
of the Company and the balance was minority interests.
Interest attributable to minority interest holders included
the perpetual capital securities in the principal amount of
US$775 million issued in September 2017. The borrowings
of the Group as at 30 June 2020 amounted to approximately
RMB32,506 million, which included bonds of approximately
RMB 13,331 million and bank borrowings of approximately
RMB19,175 million. The bank borrowings included
approximately RMB4,977 million of fixed interest rate bank
borrowings and approximately RMB 14,198 million of floating
interest rate bank borrowings. Borrowings repayable on
demand or within a period not exceeding one year were
approximately RMB8,882 million; borrowings repayable
within a period of more than one year but not exceeding
two years were approximately RMB3,052 million; borrowings
repayable within a period of more than two years but not
exceeding five years were approximately RMB6,668 million;
and borrowings repayable within a period of more than five
years were approximately RMB573 million. Other than Euro
denominated borrowings, USD-denominated borrowings and
GBP-denominated borrowings equivalent to approximately
RMB 14,057 million, RMB1,635 million and RMB242 million
respectively, the borrowings are Renminbi-denominated
borrowings. The revenue of the Group is mainly in Renminbi
and Euro. To prevent exchange rate risk arising from the
fluctuation of the USD exchange rate, contracts have been
entered into with financial institutions to swap the USD400
million USD-denominated bonds issued in September 2015
and the USD775 million USD-denominated perpetual capital
securities issued in September 2017 to Euro, and thus the
Group does not consider the currency risk facing its future
general cash outflow significant. As a policy, the Group
manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will
be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the
return to shareholders through the optimisation of the debts
and equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy remains
unchanged from prior years.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

Pledge of Assets

As at 30 June 2020, cash and cash equivalents, notes
receivable, receivable financing and accounts receivable
of approximately RMB20,915 million (as at 31 December
2019: RMB22,897 million) were pledged to banks to secure
the Group’s notes payable, letter of guarantee and letter of
credit, etc. issued by banks. The pledged bank deposits carry
prevailing bank interest rates. The pledge will be released
upon the settlement of the relevant bank borrowings. The
fair value of the bank deposits as at the balance sheet date
was approximately the same as the carrying amount. Certain
other assets were also pledged by the Group to secure the

Group's borrowings.

Contingencies

As at 30 June 2020, the Group provided certain distributors
and agents bank guarantee amounting to approximately
RMB3,853 million (as at 31 December 2019: approximately
RMB2,643 million) to secure their obtaining and use of

banking facilities.

As at 30 June 2020, the Group provided guarantee for joint
liabilities in respect of failure of the leasee under finance lease
to settle instalment payments plus interest. Risk exposure in
respect of possible guarantee for joint liabilities amounted to
approximately RMB3,377 million (as at 31 December 2019:
approximately RMB2,734 million).
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

Commitments

As at 30 June 2020, the Group had capital commitments of
approximately RMB3,369 million (as at 31 December 2019:
approximately RMB3,088 million), principally for the capital
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expenditure in respect of acquisition of property, plant and +-A=1+—8H: : HARE
equipment. The capital expenditure will be financed by 3,088E&L) FERZEEY
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i o
3. Other Financial Information 3. HitBIBER
a. Employees 3

As at 30 June 2020, the Group had approximately 82,900
employees (including approximately 35,600 employees of
KION). During the Period, the Group had paid remuneration
of approximately RMB13,292 million. The emolument policy
of the employees of the Group is set up by the remuneration
committee of the Company (the “Remuneration Committee”)

on the basis of their merits, qualifications and competence.

Maijor Investment, Acquisition and Disposal
The Group did not have any major investment, acquisition or

disposal during the Period.

Subsequent Events

On 27 August 2020, under the authority granted by the
shareholders of the Company, the Board considered and
approved the distribution to all shareholders of cash dividend
of RMB1.50 (including tax) for every 10 shares held, based on
the total number of shares of the Company of 7,933,873,895

shares, without any capitalisation of reserve.
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Auditors” Review Report

Deloitte

Deloitte Shi Bao (Yue) Zi (20) No. R00052
To the Shareholders of Weichai Power Co., Ltd.:

We have reviewed the accompanying interim financial statements of Weichai
Power Co., Ltd. ("Weichai Power”) which comprise the consolidated and
company balance sheets as at 30 June 2020, the consolidated and company
income statements, consolidated and company statement of changes in equity
and consolidated and company cash flow statement for the period from 1
January to 30 June 2020 and notes to the financial statements (“interim financial
statements”). The management of Weichai Power Co., Ltd. is responsible for the
preparation of these interim financial statements. Our responsibility is to issue
our review report on these interim financial statements based on our review.

We conducted our review in accordance with the Review Standard for Chinese
Certified Public Accountants No. 2101 Review of Financial Statements. The
standard requires us to plan and conduct a review to obtain limited assurance as
to whether the interim financial statements are free from material misstatement.
A review is limited primarily to inquiries of company personnel and performing
analytical procedures on the data. A review provides less assurance than an
audit. We have not performed an audit. Accordingly, we do not express an audit
opinion.

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention that causes us to
believe that the interim financial statements are not prepared in accordance
with the requirement in Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises — No. 32
Interim Financial Reporting in any material respect, or do not fairly reflect the
consolidated and company financial position of Weichai Power as at 30 June
2020 and the consolidated and company operating results and consolidated and
company cash flow of Weichai Power for the period from 1 January to 30 June
2020 in any material respect.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu Certified Public Accountants LLP
Shanghai, PRC

Chinese Certified Public Accountant:
Xie Yanfeng

Chinese Certified Public Accountant:
Wang Lixin

27 August 2020
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24 \Neichai Power Co., Ltd.  #SeE HIRDAR AT

Consolidated Balance Sheet

30 June 2020 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

aHEER

[tem Note V

EH MR

Current assets mENEE
Cash and cash equivalents B¥®ES 1
Financial assets held for trading R MEE 2
Notes receivable FE W AR 3
Accounts receivable JFE W BR R 4
Receivable financing FE WO I Bl & 5
Prepayments TETFRIE 6
Other receivables H th & U R 7
Inventories EASY 8
Contract assets EREE 9
Assets held for sale REREEE
Non-current assets due within one year —FRNEEMIETRBEE 10
Other current assets Himeh&EeE 11

Total current assets MEEESET

Non-current assets EMEBEE
Long-term receivables £ B FE R 12
Long-term equity investments REIRERE 13
Investment in other equity instruments HivigEzm TRKE 14
Other non-current financial assets HindERmB & E 15
Investment property HEEEHE 16
Fixed assets EEEE 17
Construction in progress EEIR 18
Right-of-use assets EREEE 19
Intangible assets EREE 20
Development expenditure R H 21
Goodwill GRS 22
Long-term prepaid expenses REGHER 23
Deferred tax assets RIEFTISEE
Other non-current assets HinIEns & E 24

Total non-current assets FERBEEST

Total assets

BERF

30 June 2020
202056 A30H

45,768,528,852.10
9,828,239,349.19
24,914,347,693.33
18,489,989,589.65
10,123,170,313.68
1,497,168,713.45
1,051,983,586.45
27,121,565,052.48
1,433,954,955.40
24,237,289.50
2,908,662,804.00
1,999,656,314.65

145,161,504,513.88

8,934,200,406.00
4,655,222,866.64
2,219,446,189.31
799,120,774.21
524,588,227.30
29,054,957,601.86
4,978,032,002.20
8,465,660,936.47
24,159,013,345.72
52,257,467.22
24,959,309,685.61
298,496,123.89
6,121,565,021.33
594,282,413.03

115,816,153,060.79

260,977,657,574.67

H R

202096 HA30H (A RB#T)

31 December 2019
2019412 A31H

48,817,622,206.26
4,451,059,463.07
15,920,141,988.31
14,285,262,297.09
10,537,909,983.71
996,710,182.20
681,601,186.05
24,717,700,810.03
1,174,036,594.50
24,237,289.50
2,658,043,734.50
1,920,759,332.58

126,185,085,067.80

8,447,617,640.00
4,711,144,533.01
2,103,129,675.18
636,502,629.08
537,298,133.13
26,318,667,724.94
5,408,666,017.06
9,109,528,185.30
23,435,580,132.59
139,500,519.38
23,822,520,317.99
254,367,462.55
5,034,346,014.96
687,720,493.20

110,646,589,478.37

236,831,674,546.17




Consolidated Balance Sheet (Continued)

30 June 2020 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

ltem
B H

Note V
{hEEal

Interim Report 2020 FH#isRsE 25

A EEAMRE (H)

202096 308 (A E#T)

30 June 2020
20206 A30H

25 5,343,021,199.19
26 100,032,983.46
27 18,418,671,023.25
28 45,693,992,410.06
29 14,372,968,816.29
30 5,212,592,567.82
31 3,025,221,176.48
32 8,786,003,912.52
33 13,845,295,365.10
34 9,128,329,173.06

123,926,128,627.23

35 10,293,702,983.83
36 10,500,328,131.06
37 8,165,071,486.35
38 5,758,723,302.94
39 12,727,823,351.82
40 297,994,531.42
41 4,506,981,930.86

5,548,439,722.75
42 5,193,926,584.04

Current liabilities mEBE
Short-term loans REHEIER
Financial liabilities held for trading RBEEMEE
Notes payable FE &
Accounts payable FE T BR R
Contract liabilities ER&E
Payroll payable JE A<F 58 5 B
Taxes payable R B
Other payables H M fE 3R
Non-current liabilities due within one year —FREHNIERDEE
Other current liabilities HimghaE

Total current liabilities mBAESS

Non-current liabilities ERBEE
Long-term borrowings REMER
Bonds payable ERES
Lease liabilities HEBRE
Long-term payables REAET AR
Long-term payroll payable = B e A< B T 357 B
Accruals and provisions TEEtAE
Deferred income IR Y e
Deferred tax liabilities BEFRGRAE
Other non-current liabilities HinIEnsasE

Total non-current liabilities FRBDEEES

62,992,992,025.07

Total liabilities

BEAG

186,919,120,652.30

31 December 2019
2019412 A831H

2,014,692,401.39
131,920,754.38
22,446,404,536.58
36,748,503,682.85
10,654,453,360.19
5,588,996,060.47
2,064,584,764.70
6,511,002,642.85
12,998,360,887.57
6,717,853,612.80

105,876,772,703.78

11,373,657,990.58
10,295,279,995.18
8,943,580,095.61
4,658,205,937.06
11,667,005,084.73
315,667,957.84
4,608,566,796.01
5,406,314,269.55
3,911,898,285.35

61,180,176,411.91

167,056,949,115.69
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Consolidated Balance Sheet (Continued)
30 June 2020 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

AHEEAMER ()
202096 HA30H (A RB#T)

Note V 30 June 2020 31 December 2019
MsER 202056 H30H 2019512 A31H

[tem

EH

Shareholders’ equity AR R
Share capital & 2
Capital reserve BARNIE
Other comprehensive income HiiRa e
Special reserve BIEGFE
Surplus reserve g YN
Retained earnings Ko B F

43 7,933,873,895.00 7,933,873,895.00
44 118,432,762.35 118,896,726.65
45 (GO ERPEPAEN S (1,278,030,636.58)
46 216,213,776.56 193,099,471.45
47 973,728,220.76 973,728,220.76
48 CORZYN RV 37,282,373,385.43

Total equity attributable to the shareholders of (B AE R FIRE S

CEWAVER TN ERS 45,223,941,062.71
49 VETEN WL Rt 24,550,784,367.77

VENVSHLISESRPPICYAN 69,774,725,430.48

the parent ot
Minority interests DB AT B RE RS
Total shareholders’ equity B ERS A s
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity BEMEEE S

VLYYV YLV 236,831,674,546.17

The notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

The financial statements on pages 24 to 283 have been signed by:

Legal representative: Principal in charge of accounting:
EEREKA FEGHIEEBEA
Tan Xuguang Kwong Kwan Tong

E Y5 BEE

B it A BA A 3R R A ALK R 2

FLABEEFE283E MM BIREA THNATEASF
£ :

Head of accounting department:

BEIRBEEA

Li Xia
8
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& O HE %

2020F1H1HZ6H30H 15 (A EET)

Consolidated Income Statement

1 January to 30 June 2020 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

Incurred during Incurred in

[tem Note V this period previous period
HH iozahal AEAE AR TH B A
. Revenue — EEWA 50 | eEBREEEETOEERCRS  90,862,496,520.48
Less: Cost of sales R 50 | SeERp e e 71,101,142,453.13
Taxes and surcharges B & 51 432,628,178.50 375,020,413.27
Distribution and selling expenses HEEBH 52 5,312,502,799.91 5,369,736,377.62
General and administrative expenses EEEA 53 3,397,396,172.54 3,281,155,705.90
Research & development expenses WEER 54 2,582,307,532.57 2,397,741,836.26
Finance expenses 5 E A 55 166,195,298.85 141,342,571.21

Incl:  Interest expenses He: FEER 55 587,977,422.15 596,873,003.86
Interest income PSRN 55 619,198,001.23 479,664,629.04

Add: Other income m: EAablas 56 139,144,077.13 90,120,492.57
Investment income BE W= 57 271,836,921.75 372,698,501.34

Incl: investment income from associates Hr - S E A
and joint ventures AL EY

RE W 144,700,622.61 123,724,757.92

Profit or loss on change of fair value NABEEEHER 58 129,675,563.76 25,507,034.78
Impairment loss of credit ERREERK 59 (358,619,232.21) (184,177,256.14)
Impairment loss of assets BEREERXKX 60 (199,053,610.17) (267,253,210.66)

Gain on disposal of assets BEREWS 26,894,701.14 43,971,693.24

Il Operating profit Z EENE 6,623,764,350.48 8,277,224,418.22
Add: Non-operating income s ZEIMRA 61 126,832,763.37 103,809,834.47
Less: Non-operating expenses W BT 62 46,006,159.00 30,391,826.11

lll. Total profit = FHRzE 6,704,590,954.85 8,350,642,426.58
Less: Income tax expenses B TR E R 63 1,002,756,749.99 1,457,822,120.44

IV. Net profit 7 %A E 5,701,834,204.86 6,892,820,306.14

(I) Breakdown by continuity of operations

1. Net profit from continuing operations

(—) BEERHEEHE
1. REEEET

(I) Breakdown by attributable interests
1. Net profit attributable to shareholders
of the parent

2. Minority interests

(=) BB HERBI R
1. FERE QA

P SR 5% I8

2. PERRER

5,701,834,204.86

4,680,231,806.93
1,021,602,397.93

6,892,820,306.14

5,287,488,377.89
1,605,331,928.25




28  Weichai Power Co., Ltd.

Consolidated Income Statement (Continued)

HRBORHAERDE

1 January to 30 June 2020 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

ltem
B H

Note V
MR

A BEFE R ()
2020F1H1HZ6H30H 1B (A EET)

Incurred during

this period
AHAEB AR

V. Net other comprehensive income after tax f

Net other comprehensive income attributable

to shareholders of the parent after tax

(I) Those other comprehensive income not to

be reclassified into profit or loss

1. Changes arising from re-measuring of

defined benefit plan

2. Other comprehensive income not to be

reclassified into profit or loss using the

equity method

3. Change in fair value of investment in other

equity instruments

HibdR & Wi F
55BN & A B IR R 89 H Atb
FERRMTEER
BEoEEBER

2. BRZETT
B E fth 4R

B ®
b
il
il
Bl

3. EMENTARE
AR EERD

(331,312,309.12)

45 (99,048,575.45)

(165,032,896.28)

11,509,465.23

103,773,209.63

(Il Those other comprehensive income to be

reclassified into profit or loss

1. Other comprehensive income to be

reclassified into profit or loss using the

equity method

2. Cashflow hedging reserve

3. Exchange differences on foreign currency

translation

(Z) BESEEERZED
HAibsr & W

AT A EEZRD
HAh#r & Was

2. ReEREEHES
3. INEHIERRITE
EH

2,185,414.02
51,933,276.56

(103,417,044.61)

Net other comprehensive income attributable

to minority interests after tax

FERNDBERNEM
FEWRMBTRIFE

(232,263,733.67)

5,370,521,895.74

4,581,183,231.48

789,338,664.26

VI. Total comprehensive income N irA B
Total comprehensive income attributable to HFENE A RRRD
the shareholders of the parent AW EE
Total comprehensive income attributable to Em% RS R H
minority interests bRe W A EE
VII. Earnings per share + BRI 64

(I) Basic earnings per share

(I) Diluted earnings per share

(—) EXRFRKE
(=) BESRKE

Incurred in
previous period
L HAgE AR

(219,817,816.20)

138,288,663.93

(359,829,984.29)

(104,627.70)

404,196,316.01

(4,361,463.39)
35,466,883.63

62,921,539.67

(358,106,480.13)

6,673,002,489.94

5,425,777,041.82

1,247,225,448.12

0.67
0.67
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity & 1% PROME 4 5 B R

1 January to 30 June 2020 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2020F 1 A1HZE6A30HIEHFE (AR T)
Incurred during this period
KHREE
Equity attributable to shareholders of the parent
SENSNARRER
Other
Share Gapital ~ comprehensive Spedial Surplus Retained Minority Total
Item Note capital reserve income reserve reserve earnings Subtotal interests equity
B8 i B EA0R AbASUE EVEH R FARAE Mt SEEREE  RREESH
1. At beginning of period - FEEN4E 7933,873,895.00 1188%6,72665  (1,278,03063658)  193,099471.45 97372822076 3728237338543 A5203941,06271  24,550,784367.77  69,774,72543048
1. Movements n curent priod o REARESEE
() Total comprehensive income () GAhasE (99,048,575.45) 468023180693 458118323148 78933866426 5,370,521,895.74
(I njction and reduction (Z) RREAREO BR
1. Captlinfcton from shareholders 1. RERARL 13380763457 133,887,63457
2. Amountofshare-based payment 2 REKHHA X
taken o owners' equiy ReREnLE - 1,566,518.32 1.566,518.32 191463350 3,481,15182
3. Acquition of minorty inerests n 3 EEFME V4
subsidiaries DERERE il (3,597,542.29) (41,529,369.29) (45,126,911.58) (37,860,471.35) (82.987,388.93)
4, Repurchase and tranfer f s 4 FRAEEREZERR
shares by subsidiaies 1,190,694.41 1,190,694.41 1455,293.17 2,645,987.58
5. Others 5 Ef 376,365.26 376,365.26 46307503 500711549
(1 Proft appropriaion (=) HBoE
1. Disrbution toshareholders 1. HRRHAR vig
148 (1,079,006,849.72)  (1,079,006,849.72) - (1,079,006,849.72)
2. Distrbution to hodersof L HPRAEGERIA
ofher equiy instumentsof KRENAR
subsidiaries (101,776596.36)  (101,776,59.36)
(V) Specialresene (m) 2EGR
1. Appropriaton during the priod 1. KEER Vo
46 4197037873 47971037873 2551398943 13,484,368.16
2. Used durig the piod 1. THpER Vi6
hil) (24.856,073.62) (24.856,073.62) (16,589,752.84) (81,445,826.40)

Il At end of period = FEERAE 193387389500 11843276235  (137707921203) 2621377636 97372822076  A0BA206897335 4870723841599 2535129850638  74,058,536,922.37
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity (Continued)

HRBORHAERDE

1 January to 30 June 2020 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

o F I ROME 4 58 B R (AR

2020F1H1HZ6H30H 1B (A EET)

Incurred in previous period

LHREE
Equity attributable to shareholders of the parent
BENSLARRER
Other
Share Captal Less: comprehensive Special Surplus Retained Minority Total
Item Note capital reserve  Treasury shares income reserve reserve earnings Subtotal interests equity
i it i ER0R HOEER  EfESUE BERE BROR FARRE Nt JERREE  BREESH
I, At beginning of period - FHENRE 799723855600 11369943276 49991121721 (1,58400637744)  155,056,854.10 67428339060 3232497519229 3918133583111 22,783,820,73831  61,965,156,569.42
1. Movements n current period RELRRYSE
() Total comprehensive income (-] pehage o S - 13828866393 o - 528748837789 SATTT0418) 124722544812 6,673,002,489.94
(1) Injection and reduction (Z) RRRAHES &R
1. Capital nection from shareholdes 1. RERAEE - - - - - - - - U059 9138057097
2. Amount o share-based payment aken 1 ROEREARE X
foounes equy BANSE 1- - B - - - . SIS 1IN0 26103101
3. Cancelaton f reasry shares 3 EEEENERR
Tepurchased (63364,661.00) - (a99.911,217.21) = - (436,546,556.21) - - - -
4. Others 4 Ef = 227654311 = = = 2 = 2276543.1 218,457 5,058,984.68
(1) Proft appropriztion (=) HEAR
1. Disrbuton toshereholders 1. HRENAR Vg
fil) = = = = = - (L201484,690,60) (2221,484690.60)  (591,306,14830) (2.812790,83890)
2. Distrbution to hlders of other equiy 1 BPhEEbES
insuments of subsires TEREENAR = = > - - - - - (oSN (9965494221
(V) Speci eserve (B)2BEE
1. Agpropriation during the perod 1. ABER Vdb
146 = = = - S50 2 - SSI705172 18,822,88093 13,339,93265
2. Used durig the priod 1 KHER Vg
146 = = = - B1ateA33) = - BoteA33N) (1131263173 (4320907204)
II. Atend of period = AEERNE 193387389500 17,17757982 - (LUSTITTI3SY) ATTESTATIS! 23173683440 3539097887958 4241170694680 23449,226978.72 6586093392552




Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

1 January to 30 June 2020 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

Interim Report 2020 FHEAZRE

/\ 1 v2s Bl
EHBEESRER
2020F1H1HZ6H30H 15 (A EET)

Incurred during Incurred in
[tem Note V this period previous period
EH i AERERE s A
. CASHFLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES ~ —  R&EEELH
ReEne
Cash received from sales of goods or rendering HEmMm  REEHE
of services 2R E & 77,144,590,755.47 70,256,466,506.08
Refunds of taxes W B0 5 B R R 154,073,579.79 334,432,136.02
Other cash received relating to operating Y B H A AT E B
activities BEMNRSE 65 703,473,184.51 905,243,651.00
Subtotal of cash inflows from operating activities BESTHIN S RmANET 78,002,137,519.77 71,496,142,293.10
Cash paid for goods and services HERL BEXSH
TRHRE 52,771,668,915.78 44,009,086,409.54
Cash paid to and on behalf of TRGEBIURABT
employees THERE 13,277,623,744.32 13,199,506,398.82
Cash paid for all types of taxes TRHEEHE 3,737,555,657.38 3,986,344,352.81
Other cash paid relating to operating R E i BRLAR R B
activities BHENRE 65 4,179,440,711.52 4,874,759,144.25
Subtotal of cash outflows from operating EEEER S RN At
activities 73,966,289,029.00 66,069,696,305.42
Net cash flows from operating REEEEEM
activities Ren8 ¥R 66 4,035,848,490.77 5,426,445,987 .68
Il. CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES - REEFHEAHN
Rene
Cash received from sale of investments W EEEWEIHIR S 9,751,992,122.53 7,317,876,585.00
Cash received from return on investments BERE W IR H
Re 100,212,406.78 164,279,265.41
Net cash received from disposal of fixed assets, REBTEE  EF
intangible assets and other long-term assets BEMEMRBEE
WEEH ¢ 58 42,669,880.12 28,761,295.22
Other cash received relating to investing W B H B2 45 R E)
activities BENERS 330,612,707.58 6,718,716.30

REBDHREMANG
BRETEE BV

Subtotal of cash inflows from investing activities 10,225,487,117.01 7,517,635,861.93

Cash paid for acquisition of fixed assets,

intangible assets and other long-term assets BEMEMRE
BEXMNHR S 2,965,029,597.87 2,419,040,870.86
Cash paid for acquisition of investments REZAHHAE 15,859,971,710.55 11,317,960,726.11
Net cash paid for acquisition of subsidiaries and BEFARIREMEE

BUX MRS FE 66
REBDDHRE MM /NG

RERBELN
Ren&3H

other business units 803,532,290.74 -

Subtotal of cash outflows from investing activities 19,628,533,599.16 13,737,001,596.97

Net cash flows from investing activities

(9,403,046,482.15)

(6,219,365,735.04)
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HRBORHAERDE

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement (Continued)

1 January to 30 June 2020 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

EE AR ER ()

2020F1H1HZ6H30H 1B (A EET)

Incurred during

[tem Note V this period
EH fizh RERERE
Il CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES = SEEHELEN
Rene
Cash received from capital contributions WU E W BB & 106,090,633.91
Incl: Cash received by subsidiaries from capital Hep: FREIRKDE
contributions of minority shareholders PR IR & W E
IR 106,090,633.91
Cash received from borrowings HGETKINES 18,686,603,445.21
Other cash received relating to financing W HMmEAEETES
activities FHNRE 119,185,404.24
Subtotal of cash inflows from financing activities EBTHBETRANET 18,911,879,483.36
Cash repayments of borrowings EEEEINNRSE 15,149,868,431.77
Cash paid for distribution of dividends or profits HERF - FEKER
and for interest expenses FEXZRMES 665,844,276.19
Incl: Cash paid to minority shareholders for Hep: FRRIR 4
distribution of dividends or profits by DEIRFEH
subsidiaries BRFI -~ FE 316,220,541.43
Other cash paid relating to financing S EMEEEEE)
activities BFHENRE 65 1,012,757,177.68
Subtotal of cash outflows from financing EEFTHELRM
activities N 16,828,469,885.64
Net cash flows from financing EERHEED
activities RemeFE 2,083,409,597.72
IV.  EFFECT OF CHANGES IN EXCHANGE RATEON P« [EXR&FHLEIH &
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS kReEENNTE (47,830,401.62)
V. NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH AND T RekBReEEY
CASH EQUIVALENTS % OBl ) 51 (3,331,618,795.28)
Add: Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of m: BYReRBeE
period BMaE 42,285,584,925.16
VI.  CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF N BHRBReRAEE
PERIOD BYshEE 66 38,953,966,129.88

Incurred in
previous period

LEABAR

102,593,389.77

102,593,389.77
15,447,418,433.60

58,956,621.40

15,608,968,444.77

12,840,238,759.74

1,247,867,955.77

926,121,881.02

520,462,094.40

14,608,568,809.91

1,000,399,634.86

33,459,332.68

240,939,220.18

34,379,938,275.41

34,620,877,495.59
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Company Balance Sheet NAEEEAER
30 June 2020 20206 H30H
RMB
AR®T
[tem Note XV 30 June 2020 31 December 2019
A BisE -+ PR ZEN=E 20194612 A31H
Current assets mENEE
Cash and cash equivalents H¥ES® PPAETIS s P G 27,276,378,348.59
Notes receivable FERE R 1 PERVZWEL KL 19,031,065,273.37
Accounts receivable JFE W B R 2 3,483,287,412.94 961,224,481.20
Prepayments CARENE] 252,844,874.59 252,912,459.06
Other receivables H A WK 3 423,142,603.81 495,183,938.26
Inventories TE 2,313,432,530.64 3,442,624,138.43
Other current assets Ht R EE - 320,293,618.85
Total current assets REEESE SYANPE TP R 51,779,682,257.76
Non-current assets ERBNEE
Long-term equity investments RHERERE 4 LY RS (VP XV 15,588,308,928.23
Investment in other equity instruments EiEZTAKRE 174,920,200.00 191,620,200.00
Other non-current financial assets HEMIEnemEE 48,744,000.00 48,744,000.00
Investment property RE M B E IRICEVIIII LI 1,098,873,377.18
Fixed assets BT &E 3,807,501,405.29 3,006,064,048.78
Construction in progress FETRE 2,106,098,201.17 2,277,083,525.08
Intangible assets BVEE 782,659,398.65 512,203,369.80
Goodwill e 341,073,643.76 341,073,643.76
Deferred tax assets BEFRBIRERE 1,402,747,652.41 910,637,045.17
Other non-current assets HIERsEE 2,806,676,762.50 2,484,556,774.12
Total non-current assets EREEESE ke evkt el 26,459,164,912.12

Total assets

BEAF

RN MY Ip kIl /8,238,847,169.88
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Company Balance Sheet (Continued) AR EEAMRR (M)
30 June 2020 20206 H30H
RMB
AR BT
[tem Note XV 30 June 2020 31 December 2019
El= MsE+ R B iR s =i 2019412 A31H
Current liabilities MEAE
Notes payable T EiR 11,174,765,588.81 13,815,739,112.99
Accounts payable e BR 3R RIS RE ] 12,497,803,183.14
Contract liabilities SRAE 4,956,861,730.34 2,571,680,421.94
Payroll payable JE ST B T 37 M 756,035,761.87 985,532,575.51
Taxes payable BB 864,670,692.83 155,032,778.30
Other payables o e 3R 3,195,977,400.67 2,147,054,763.30
Other current liabilities HEmnsas 1,915,025,169.16 1,674,274,867.54
Total current liabilities REHBES SRS EN VLN 33,847,117,702.72
Non-current liabilities ERBEE
Long-term payables REIER 6,860,643.94 5,513,797.98
Long term payroll payable 5 HA P A B T 53,634,317.34 24,734,049.15
Deferred income IR E W = 911,829,722.38 906,196,708.93
Total non-current liabilities ERBEESF 972,324,683.66 936,444,556.06
Total liabilities BERE EERTARLY RPN 34,783,562,258.78
Shareholders’ equity MR A
Share capital A% X 7,933,873,895.00 7,933,873,895.00
Capital reserve YN 695,679,231.81 695,679,231.81
Other comprehensive income Hipza s (162,522,149.65) (119,983,030.10)
Special reserve HIFFHE 106,276,983.42 94,899,845.80
Surplus reserve BHAE 3,607,357,154.34 3,607,357,154.34
Retained earnings 5 B A VR EENLNEM 31,243,457,814.25
Total shareholders’ equity REREREF Ry MRV 43,455,284,911.10

Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity B EMB RS BT SRV CN L EWIM 73,238,847,169.88




Company Income Statement

1 January to 30 June 2020
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I 7R 2

2020F 1 H1HZ6A30H 15

Incurred during

RMB
AR T
Incurred in

previous period

EHIZARR

[tem Note XV this period
HHE MsE+h AHAR A
. Revenue — EERA 5 28,549,475,904.20
Less: Cost of sales o R 22,028,328,311.24
Taxes and surcharges & KMt 164,650,122.59
Distribution and selling expenses SHEEH 472,713,585.15
General and administrative expenses EIEEH 417,765,528.79
Research & development expenses s 1,016,381,743.73
Finance expenses B8R (168,515,258.61)
Incl: Interest expenses He o FEEA
Interest income B U A 173,754,591.04
Add: Other income s HAb e 84,267,920.62
Investment income & W 586,862,228.07
Incl: Investment income from Hep o HEEHE
associates and joint mae &gt
ventures ¥miRE
Was VOREERETR
Impairment loss of credit ERAREERK (72,494,053.03)
Impairment loss of assets BEMEEXLX (2,039,052.28)
Gain/(loss) on disposal of assets EERE
Wes, (18%) 2,162,165.20
Il.  Operating profit — EERE 5,216,911,079.89
Add: Non-operating income hn o B FEINEA 26,800,887.28
Less: Non-operating expenses o BEIINETH 1,279,984.31
lll. Total profit = MBeE 5,242,431,982.86
Less: Income tax expenses o TSR E A 600,449,881.46
IV. Net profit M SFFE 4,641,982,101.40
(I) Breakdown by continuity of operations (—) REEREES 1
1. Net profit from continuing 1. BFELEF
operations e 4,641,982,101.40
V. Net other comprehensive income after tax T ~H b4z & ST 12
TR EA (42,539,119.55)
(I) Those other comprehensive income notto  (—) TEEEDBEEZ
be reclassified into profit or loss HE iR S W
1. Change in fair value of investment 1. EfhE=TA
in other equity instruments KERAR
BEEE (42,539,119.55)
VI. Total comprehensive income N hRA W g 4,599,442,981.85

24,408,563,211.01
17,599,138,838.21
153,054,486.06
687,984,414.93
545,444,978.25
1,063,328,580.45
(110,962,502.64)

117,309,188.63
39,487,227.95
610,885,819.43

60,137,591.48
(34,505,077.42)
(5,423,751.68)

(3,500,499.47)

5,077,518,134.56
5,988,231.28
233,048.58

5,083,273,317.26
616,701,382.41

4,466,571,934.85

4,466,571,934.85

6,541,384.92

6,541,384.92

4,473,113,319.77
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Company Statement of Changes in Equity 2> Al i PROME # 58 H)) 3%

1 January to 30 June 2020 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

202041 51HE6H30H 1F 5 (A E#T)

Incurred during this period
AHRLE
Other
Share Capital comprehensive Spedial Surplus Retained
Item Note V capital reserve income reserve reserve earnings Total equity
bt M k& LN EfGauE SRR EROR RAEAE REEHET
. Atbeginning of period - FEHNRE 7933,873,895.00 695,679,231.81 (119,983,030.10) 9489984580 360735715434 3124345781425 4345528491110
Il Movements in current period o REEHEDLE
) Total comprehensive income () GauRsE (42,539,119.55) 4641982,10140  4,599,442,981.85
(I} Injection and reduction of (2) RERARFSER
share capital
(i) Profit appropriation (Z) FEAE
1. Distribution to shareholders 1. HRRHAE 48 (1,079,006,849.72)  (1,079,006,849.72)
(V) Spedl reserve (m) =Rk
1. Appropriation during the 1. KEER
period 15,234,619.62 15,234,619.62
2. Used during the period 2. T5ER (3,857,482.00) (3,857,482.00)
Il Atend of period = FEHRRE 7933,873,895.00 695,679,231.81 (162,522,149.65) 10627698342 360735715434 3480643306593  46,987,098,180.85
Incurred in previous period
HREE
Other
Share Capital Less: comprefensive Special Surplus Retained
Item Note V capital Teserve Treasury shares income resenve reserve earnings Total equity
B WL e EIN HoERR  EbBANE 2ERR BHAE AORNE  RRESA
. Atbeginning of period - KHBN8E 7,997,238556.00  1,084,612,950.62 49991121721 (47,258,130.00) TA867.86457 281111572219 27,897980,48361  39,318,646,229.78
I Movements in curtent period Z FEgERESEE
) Total comprehensive income (=) GehssE - - - 6,541,38492 - - 44665719385 447311331977
(I Ijection and reduction (2) BREAMBOER
1. Acquistion of subsidiares by way of 1. RRAKTAR
absorption - 4761283740 - - - 60,250,045.79 133,120,628.25 240,983,511.44
2. Cancellation of treasury shares 2. HEEEERR
repurchased (63364661000 (436,546,556.21)  (499911,217.21) - - - - -
(i) Profit appropriation (2) MELR
1. Appropriaton to surpls resenve 1. ROBRLNE = = = = = = = =
2. Distrbution to shareholders 2. HERNAR 48 - - - - - - (2221,484,690,60)  (2,221,484,690.60)
(V) Specil resenve (m) =EREE
1. Apropriation during the period 1. RERR - - - - 1354580 - - 1321545580
2. Used during the period 2. KEER - - - - (3907,693.41) - - (3907,693.41)
I At end of period = FHNREE 7,933,873,895.00 695,679,231.81 = (40,716,745.08) 8417562696  2871365767.98  30.276,188,3%6.11  41,820,566,132.78




Company Cash Flow Statement

1 January to 30 June 2020 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

Item
1BH
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2020F1H1HZ6H30H 15 (A EET)

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Cash received from sales of goods
or rendering of services
Refunds of taxes
Other cash received relating to operating activities

RERBHELN
Reng

HEMM  RHESH
BB S

W B M BRI

WE Bt B RS
BHENRE

Subtotal of cash inflows from operating activities

REFEHREMANG

Cash paid for goods and services

BREAm  BREH

THEORE
Cash paid to and on behalf of employees TREBIURS
BIXNWRE
Cash paid for all types of taxes TRMEERE
Other cash paid relating to operating activities S E A B R B
FHENRE
Subtotal of cash outflows from operating activities RETER ST Nat
Net cash flows from operating activities RETHEENRS
TEFE
Il CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES REZHEEN
BREenE

Cash received from sale of investments
Cash received from return on investments

Net cash received from disposal of fixed assets, intangible

assets and other long-term assets

Other cash received relating to investing activities

Y ml B U B R &

BERERE R
B

REBETEE B

BENMAMRHEERD

MR FR
W E b B E RS
BRNRE

Subtotal of cash inflows from investing activities

REBBHRASMANG

Cash paid for acquisition of fixed assets, intangible assets

BRETEE B

and other long-term assets AEMHMRIEE

THERE

Cash paid for acquisition of investments RESZMHRE

Other cash paid relating to investing activities S EM KSR
EHENRE

Subtotal of cash outflows from investing activities BEZEHR LMD &t

Net cash flows from investing activities RETBDEENE S
e

Incurred during
this period
FHRER

21,427,765,023.50
4,358,780.04

298,405,420.11
21,730,529,223.65

20,666,914,413.27

1,027,043,884.25
1,539,148,213.68

807,402,722.45
24,040,509,233.65

(2,309,980,010.00)

275,575,906.91

1,986,400.00

277,562,306.91

1,375,331,490.56
412,518,858.22

322,119,988.38
2,109,970,337.16

(1,832,408,030.25)

Incurred in
previous period

LEBALR

21,137,451,128.56

532,788,731.62

21,670,239,860.18

17,428,443,912.89

1,046,134,778.25
2,013,438,002.68

521,051,494.84

21,009,068,188.66

661,171,671.52

876,585.00

644,004,020.43

8,653,514.00

241,783,376.18

895,317,495.61

988,932,508.43
395,890,181.29

1,384,822,689.72

(489,505,194.11)
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Company Cash Flow Statement (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2020 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

AFBERER ()

2020F1H1HZ6H30H 1B (A EET)

Item
1BH
. CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES = BEEHELEM
BeRE
Cash paid for distribution of dividends or AR~ M EA RS
profits and for interest expenses XHERe
Subtotal of cash outflows from financing activities BELBRS MM/
Net cash flows from financing activities EEEHELEM
REeEREFHE
IV.  EFFECT OF CHANGES IN EXCHANGE RATE m- EXEgFHHRE R
ON CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS ReEEINTE
V. NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH AND i BeRBReFEYF
CASH EQUIVALENTS (B4 )3
Add: Cash and cash equivalents at m:ETRe R
beginning of period ReSEYHE
VI.  CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT N BHERBEER
END OF PERIOD ReEEMHE

Incurred during
this period
FHRAER

38,762,115.42
38,762,115.42

(38,762,115.42)

101,358.76

(4,181,048,796.91)

26,404,688,200.32

22,223,639,403.41

Incurred in
previous period

ik g

(27,322.50)

171,639,154.91

19,074,554,698.78

19,246,193,853.69




Notes to Financial Statements

1 January to 30 June 2020

L.

Corporate Background
Weichai Power Co., Ltd. (the “Company”) is a joint stock company limited

by shares incorporated in Weifang, Shandong on 23 December 2002.

The RMB ordinary A shares and overseas listed foreign H shares issued by
the Company were listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange and The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, respectively. The registered address of
the Company’s headquarters is 197, Section A, Fu Shou East Street, High
Technology Industrial Development Zone, Weifang, Shandong Province.
The Company operates in the transportation equipment manufacturing
industry. The major scope of operations of the Company and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) covers: design, development, production, sale,
repair, import and export of engines and auxiliary products, automobile,
automobile axle and components, gear boxes and components and other
automobile components, hydraulic pumps, hydraulic motors, hydraulic
valves, gears and gear transmission devices, ancillary casting and casting
products of hydraulic components, internal combustion engines, new
energy powertrain systems and ancillary products; technical consultation
and technical services; leasing of self-owned houses; sale of steel; business
management service; forklift trucks production, warehousing technology
and supply chain solution services. For the aforesaid scope of operation,
operating permit(s) should be held for those operations requiring

administrative permission.

Weichai Group Holdings Limited and Shandong Heavy Industry Group
Co., Ltd., established in the PRC, are the parent company and ultimate

holding company of the Group respectively.

These company and consolidated interim financial statements of the
Company were approved by the board of directors of the Company on 27
August 2020.

The consolidation scope of consolidated financial statements is determined

on the basis of control. Please refer to Note VI for changes this period.

Interim Report 2020 FHEAERE

$F 785 4 o BT AR

20201 H1HZ26H30H 1-HifE

— A E A P

HEBNBRHERAB (A TEHEBIAA
AR —XKMN2002F 12 A238FILEE
MM IR AR AR o

RRABFETARE EBRAREEI £
MONERHIRE 2 B ERYNEFZZ M
ERBMARZMERAB LT - RABGE
it 4t ik 27 7 LU SR & M T = 3 B i EE 3
HRBVBREI197RKF - ARAMBITE
REBEHRERER - ARBRTAA
(ATHmBEIAEE]) TELLHES
BYRNMEEER  AE - AEERRET
B REERERTAFAREMIRE
TEt - RER - REFE  RERBM
EHNEHEDHEE  RETHHBSEMT
MEBEm ~ NIRH - FREIRE B R
REEEMMET - BE - £E - #HE
e ERD  RITEAMBEMRE 8
BEFEEHRE  @mMHE  CEEERY
NEAE  RERMRHEERRTTRER
o A EREEEY RITHEF A MR

2% y Ak
B -

ZA/NCTEEDRSFNCIRITE= 3 231 FNCTRE NS i
TR ERZEREBARARMILE
ETKEBRAR -

RRARH AR RE G M B HRRMN2020

FSA27TAEKANRIESSHE -

B PTG IRR B A G 5 Bl AR 6l 5 A T A
E AN BR2RMER -

39



40 Weichai Power Co., Ltd. S8 HIRHERA T

5 i 2 M 5 (48
2020F 14 1HZ6H30H 1 5iE

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2020

II. Preparation basis of the financial statements . ~Bf % #t 3% 0Y 57 R L i

Preparation basis

These interim financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises — No. 32 Interim Financial
Reporting issued by the Ministry of Finance (the “MOF”). In addition,
the Group also disclosed relevant financial information in accordance
with relevant disclosure requirements of Compilation Rules No. 15 for
Information Disclosure by Companies Offering Securities to the Public —
General Requirements for Financial Reporting (2014 Revision) and the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong

Kong Limited.

These interim financial statements include selected explanatory notes,
which are provided for easy understanding of the Group's important
events and transactions leading to its financial position and change of
results of operations since the financial statements for the year 2019.
These selected notes do not include all information and disclosures
required under the Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises for a
full set of financial statements. As such, these statements shall be read in

conjunction with the financial statements of the Group for the year 2019.

Continuing operations

The interim financial statements are presented on a going concern basis.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2020

II.

Preparation basis of the financial statements
(Continued)

Basis of book-keeping and principle of
measurement

The Group adopts the accrual basis as the basis of book-keeping in
accounting. Other than certain financial instruments, these financial
statements have been prepared at historical costs. A disposal group held-
for-sale is carried at the lower of carrying amount or the net value of
fair value less selling expenses. If the assets are impaired, corresponding

provisions for impairment shall be made according to relevant provisions.

Under historical cost method, the amount of assets was measured at the
fair value of cash or cash equivalents or consideration paid at the time
of purchase. Liabilities were measured at the amount of money or assets
due to the current obligations actually received, or a present obligation
of the contract amount, or the measurement of cash or cash equivalents
in accordance with daily activities to repay the liabilities of the amount

expected to be paid.

The fair value refers to the amount, at which both willing parties engaged
to an orderly transaction who are familiar with the condition sell their
assets or transfer their liabilities. Whether the fair value is observable or
measured by valuation techniques, the measurement and disclosure of the

fair value in these financial statements were all based on it.

For financial assets with transaction prices as the fair value upon initial
recognition and a valuation technique that unobservable inputs are to be
used to measure fair value in subsequent periods, the valuation technique
is calibrated so that the results of the valuation technique equals to the

transaction price.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2020

II.

I1I.

Preparation basis of the financial statements
(Continued)

Basis of book-keeping and principle of
measurement (Continued)

Fair value measurements are categorized into three levels based on the
degree to which the inputs of the fair value measurements are observable
and the significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its
entirety, which are described as follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the

measurement date.

. Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within
Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly
or indirectly.

° Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates

Accounting policies and accounting estimates are formulated based on
the actual characteristics of production and operation. These are reflected
in the identification of leases, provision for credit losses in respect of
receivables, classification of fixed assets and depreciation estimation,
classification of intangible assets and long-term pre-paid expenses and
estimation of amortization.

1. Accounting period
The accounting year of the Group is from 1 January to 31 December
of each calendar year. The accounting period for these interim
financial statements is from 1 January to 30 June.

2. Business cycle
Business cycle refers to the period from the purchase of assets used
for processing to the realization of cash and cash equivalents. The
business cycle of the Group is twelve months.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2020

III. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)

3.

Functional currency

Renminbi (RMB) was the currency used in the major economic
environment in which the Company and its domestic subsidiaries
operate the business. The Company and its domestic subsidiaries
used RMB as their functional currencies. The Company’s overseas
subsidiaries may determine their own functional currencies based on
the currency used in the major economic environment in which they
operate the business. In preparation of these financial statements,

the Company adopted RMB as the functional currency.

The accounting treatment of business
combinations involving enterprises under
common control and business combinations
involving enterprises not under common
control

Business combinations include business combinations involving
enterprises under common control and business combinations

involving enterprises not under common control.

4.1 Business combinations involving enterprises under
common control
A business combination involving enterprises under common
control is a business combination in which all of the
combining enterprises are ultimately controlled by the same
party or parties both before and after the combination, and

that control is not transitory.

Assets and liabilities that are obtained in a business
combination shall be measured at the carrying amounts on
the financial statements of the acquiree as at the combination
date. The difference between the carrying amount of the net
assets obtained by the acquirer and the carrying amount of
the consideration paid for the combination (or the aggregate
face value of shares issued as consideration) shall be adjusted
to share premium under capital reserve. If the capital reserve
is not sufficient to absorb the difference, any excess shall be

adjusted against retained earnings.

Costs that are directly attributable to the combination are

charged to profit or loss when incurred.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2020

III. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)

4.

The accounting treatment of business
combinations involving enterprises under
common control and business combinations
involving enterprises not under common
control (Continued)

4.2 Business combinations involving enterprises not

under common control and goodwill

A business combination involving enterprises not under
common control is a business combination in which all of the
combining enterprises are not ultimately controlled by the

same party or parties before and after the combination.

Combination cost refers to the fair value of assets paid,
liabilities incurred or assumed and equity instruments issued
by the acquirer for acquiring control of the acquiree. For
business combinations of enterprises not under common
control achieved in stages through multiple transactions, the
combination cost shall be the sum of the consideration paid
on the date of acquisition and the fair value, as at the date of
acquisition, of the equity interests in the acquiree held prior

to the date of acquisition.

The fees paid to intermediaries including audit, legal services,
appraisal and so forth and other related administrative
expenses incurred by the acquirer for the business
combination are charged to profit or loss for the current

period when incurred.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2020

III. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)

4.

The accounting treatment of business

combinations involving enterprises under

common control and business combinations

involving enterprises not under common

control (Continued)

4.2 Business combinations involving enterprises not
under common control and goodwill (Continued)
The identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities of
acquiree qualifying for the conditions of recognition acquired
by the acquirer in the business combination are measured
at fair value on the date of acquisition. When the business
combination contract provides that, upon the occurrence of
multiple future contingencies, the acquirer shall require the
return of consideration paid for the business combination,
such contingent consideration as set out in the contract
shall be recognised as an asset by the Group as a part of
the aggregate consideration transferred in the business
combination, and be included in the cost of combination
at the fair value at the date of acquisition. Within twelve
months after the acquisition, if the contingent consideration
needs to be adjusted as new or further evidences are
obtained in respect of circumstances existed as of the
date of acquisition, the amount previously included in the
goodwill shall be adjusted. A change in or adjustment to the
contingent consideration under other circumstances shall
be measured in accordance with Accounting Standards for
Business Enterprises No. 22 — Recognition and Measurement
of Financial Instruments and Accounting Standards for
Business Enterprises No. 13 — Contingencies. Any change or

adjustment is included in profit or loss for the current period.
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HRBORHAERDE

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2020

III. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)

4.

The accounting treatment of business
combinations involving enterprises under
common control and business combinations
involving enterprises not under common
control (Continued)

4.2 Business combinations involving enterprises not

under common control and goodwill (Continued)

Where the combination cost is larger than the portion of
fair value of net identifiable assets of acquiree acquired
in the business combination, the difference is recognized
as goodwill as an asset, and initially measured at cost. For
those with combination cost lower than the portion of fair
value of net identifiable assets of acquiree acquired in the
business combination, re-verification is first carried out on
the measurement of the fair value of all identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities as well as the combination
cost. For those with combination cost lower than the portion
of fair value of net identifiable assets of acquiree acquired
in the business combination after re-verification, they are

charged to profit or loss for the current period.

If either the fair values of identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities acquired in a combination or the cost of
business combination can be determined only provisionally
by the end of the period in which the business combination
was effected, the acquirer recognizes and measures the
combination using those provisional values. Any adjustments
to those provisional values within 12 months after the
acquisition date are treated as if they had been recognized

and measured on the acquisition date.

Goodwill arising from the business combination shall be
recognized separately in the consolidated financial statements

and measured at cost less accumulated impairment losses.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2020

III. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)

5.

Basis for preparation of consolidated financial
statements

The consolidation scope of consolidated financial statements is
determined on the basis of control. Control refers to the power of
an investor over an investee, and exposure, or rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the investee, and the ability to
use its power over the investee to affect the amount of its returns.
Once the relevant facts and situation which alters the elements that

define control change, the Group shall perform re-evaluation.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses control

of the subsidiary.

For a subsidiary acquired through a business combination not
involving enterprises under common control, the operating results
and cash flows from the date of acquisition (the date when the
control is obtained) are included in the consolidated income

statement and consolidated cash flow statement, as appropriate.

No matter when the business combination occurs in the reporting
period, subsidiaries acquired through a business combination
involving enterprises under common control or the party being
absorbed under merger by absorption are included in the Group's
scope of consolidation as if they had been included in the scope
of consolidation from the date when they first came under the
common control of the ultimate controlling party. Their operating
results and cash flows from the beginning of the earliest reporting
period or from the date when they first came under the common
control of the ultimate controlling party are included in the
consolidated income statement and consolidated cash flow

statement, as appropriate.

The significant accounting policies and accounting periods adopted
by the subsidiaries are determined based on the uniform accounting

policies and accounting periods set out by the Company.

The effect of all intra-group transactions between the Company and
its subsidiaries and among subsidiaries on the consolidated financial

statements is eliminated on consolidation.
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48 Weichai Power Co., Ltd. S8 HIRHBERA T

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2020

III. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)

5.

Basis for preparation of consolidated financial
statements (Continued)

The portion of subsidiaries’ equity that is not attributable to the
Company is treated as minority interests and presented as “minority
interests” in the consolidated balance sheet within shareholders’
equity. The portion of net profits or losses of subsidiaries
attributable to minority interests is presented as “minority interests”
in the consolidated income statement below the “net profit” line

item.

Where the amount of losses of a subsidiary attributable to the
minority shareholders exceeds their share of the opening balance
of owner’s equity of the subsidiary, the excess shall be allocated

against minority interests.

Acquisition of minority interests or disposal of interest in a
subsidiary that does not result in the loss of control over the
subsidiary is accounted for as an equity transaction. The carrying
amounts of the interests attributable to the parent and minority
interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative
interests in the subsidiary. The difference between the amount by
which the minority interests are adjusted and the fair value of the
consideration paid or received is adjusted to capital reserve. If the
capital reserve is not sufficient to absorb the difference, the excess is

adjusted against retained earnings.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2020

III. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)

6.

Classification of joint arrangements and
accounting treatments for joint operations
Joint arrangements include joint operations and joint ventures. The
classification is determined by considering the structure, legal form
and contract terms of the arrangement according to the rights
and obligations of the joint parties in the joint arrangements. A
joint operation refers to the arrangement whereby the parties have
rights to the assets and obligations for the liabilities relating to the
arrangement. A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the
parties only have rights to the net assets of the joint arrangement.

The Group adopts equity method for computing the investments
in joint ventures. For details, see Note Ill. 13.3.2 Long-term equity
investment calculated by equity method

The following items should be recognized by the Group in relation
to its sole and shared ownerships in the joint operation: solely held
assets, as well as jointly held assets according to its share; solely
assumed liabilities, as well as jointly assumed liabilities according to
its share; income derived from its entitled share of production of
the joint operation; income derived from the sales of production of
the joint operation according to its share; solely incurred expenses,
as well as expenses incurred by the joint operation according to its
share. Assets, liabilities, income and expenses related to the joint
operation are computed according to requirements applicable to
specific assets, liabilities, income and expenses.

If the Group invests or sells assets, etc. to the joint operation (except
when the assets constitute business), the part pertaining to other
participants in the joint operation among the profit or loss due to
the transaction will be recognized only before the assets are sold
to a third party by the joint operation. Where asset impairment
losses are incurred in respect of assets invested or sold, the Group
recognizes the losses in full amount.

If the Group purchases assets, etc. from the joint operation (except
when the assets constitute business), the part pertaining to other
participants in the joint operation among the profit or loss due to
the transaction will be recognized only before the assets are sold to
a third party. Where asset impairment losses are incurred in respect
of assets purchased, the Group recognizes the losses to the extent
of its share.
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50  Weichai Power Co., Ltd.

HRBORHAERDE

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2020

III. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)

Recognition criteria for cash and cash

equivalents

Cash comprises the Group’s cash on hand and deposits that can

7.

be readily withdrawn on demand. Cash equivalents are short-term

(usually mature within 3 months from the date of acquisition),

highly liquid investments held by the Group, that are readily

convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an

insignificant risk of changes in value.

Foreign currency operations and foreign
currency translation

8.1

Foreign currency operations

Foreign currency transactions are recorded, on initial
recognition, in the functional currency, by applying to the
foreign currency amount the spot exchange rate prevailing
on the transaction dates. On the balance sheet date, foreign
currency monetary items are translated into Renminbi using
the spot exchange rate prevailing on the balance sheet date.
Exchange differences arising from the difference between
the spot exchange rate on that day and on the date of initial
recognition or the previous balance sheet date are taken to
profit or loss in the current period except for the following:
(1) The exchange difference in respect of special borrowings
denominated in foreign currencies that meet the criteria for
capitalization are capitalized during the capitalization period as
a cost under the relevant assets; (2) The exchange difference
in respect of hedging instruments used for hedging for
avoiding foreign exchange rate risks is accounted for using
hedge accounting; (3) For monetary items classified as at
fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI),
exchange difference arising from the change in other gross
carrying amounts other than amortized costs is taken to other
comprehensive income.

Non-monetary foreign currency items measured at historical
cost shall still be measured at the amount in the functional
currency translated at the spot exchange rate prevailing on
the transaction date. Non-monetary foreign currency items
measured at fair value are translated at the spot exchange
rate prevailing at the date on which the fair values are
determined. The difference between the amount in the
functional currency after translation and the amount in the
original functional currency is accounted for as fair value
change (inclusive of exchange rate change) and is taken to
profit or loss for the current period or recognized as other
comprehensive income.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2020

III. Significant Accounting Policies and = & % & 51 B R & & 51 4 5t

Accounting Estimates (Continued) (74)
8. Foreign currency operations and foreign 8. HMEKBMIIMBFERITE
currency translation (Continued) (&)

8.2 INEMIEHRRITE

8.2 Translation of foreign currency financial statements

To prepare the consolidated financial statement, the financial
statements denominated in foreign currency of a foreign
operation are translated to RMB in compliance with the
following requirements: all assets and liabilities on the balance
sheet are translated at the spot exchange rate prevailing
at the balance sheet date; all equity items are translated at
the spot exchange rates at the dates on which such items
arose; income and expenses and profit appropriation items
in the income statement are translated at the spot exchange
rate at the date of transaction; all exchange differences of
assets, liabilities and shareholders’ equity resulting from the
translation are recognized as other comprehensive income

and taken to shareholders’ equity.

Foreign currency cash flows and the cash flows of foreign
subsidiaries are translated using the spot exchange rate
as of the date on which the cash flows occur. The effect
of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents is
presented separately as an adjustment item under “effect of
changes in exchange rate on cash and cash equivalents” in

the cash flow statement.

The opening balances of the year/period and prior
year's/period’s figures are presented according to the translated

amounts of the financial statements of the prior year/period.

When control over the Group’s foreign operation is lost
due to the disposal of ownership interests of foreign
operation or partial disposal of equity investment or
other reasons, exchange differences of foreign currency
statements attributable to the shareholders of the parent
company related to such foreign operation and presented
under shareholder’s equity item in the balance sheet are all

transferred to profit or loss for the current period.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2020

III. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)

8.

g

Foreign currency operations and foreign

currency translation (Continued)

8.2 Translation of foreign currency financial statements
(Continued)
In partial disposal of the equity investment or other reasons
that lead to the reduction of the proportion of interests
in foreign operation but there is no loss of control over
such foreign operations, the difference of foreign currency
translation related to the part of foreign operation disposal
will be attributed to minority interests and will not be taken
to profit or loss for the current period. In partial disposal of
equity interest in an overseas associate or joint venture, the
foreign currency translation difference related to the foreign
operation shall be taken to profit or loss for the current
period according to the proportion of the disposal of the

foreign operation.

Financial instruments
The Group recognizes a financial asset or a financial liability when
it becomes a party to the contractual provisions of a financial

instrument.

Where financial assets are purchased or sold in a regular way, assets
to be received and liabilities to be borne for it are recognized on the
date of transaction, or sold assets are derecognized on the date of

transaction.

The financial assets and financial liabilities were initially recognized
at fair value. For the financial assets and financial liabilities
measured at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) for the current
period, related transaction expenses are directly taken to the profit
or loss for the current period; for other types of financial assets
and financial liabilities, related transaction expenses are included
in the initial recognized amount. For accounts receivable excluding
significant financing components or regardless of financing
components of contracts less than one year initially recognised
based on Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises No.14-
Revenue (“Standard on Revenue”), they are initially measured at

transaction price defined based on the Standard on Revenue.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2020

III. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)

9.

Financial instruments (Continued)

Effective interest method is the method that is used in the
calculation of the amortized cost of a financial asset or a financial
liability and in the allocation and recognition of the interest income

or interest expense over the accounting periods.

Effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash flows through the expected life of the financial asset or
financial liability to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset
or to the amortized cost of a financial liability. When calculating
the effective interest rate, the Group shall estimate the expected
cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of the financial
assets or liabilities (for example, early repayment, extension, call and

similar options) but shall not consider the expected credit losses.

Amortized cost of a financial asset or financial liability is the amount
at which the financial asset or financial liability is measured at initial
recognition minus the principal repayments, plus or minus the
cumulative amortization using the effective interest method of any
difference between that initial amount and the maturity amount

and, for financial assets, adjusted for any loss allowance.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2020

III. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)
9. Financial instruments (Continued)

9.1

Classification and measurement of financial assets
After initial recognition, the Group shall measure different
types of financial assets at amortized cost, FVTOCI or FVTPL.

If the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding
and the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is achieved by collecting contractual cash flows, the
Group shall classify the financial asset into a financial asset
measured at amortized cost. Such financial assets mainly
include: cash and cash equivalents, notes receivable, accounts
receivable, other receivables and long-term receivables, etc.

If the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding
and the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is to collect contractual cash flows and sell such
financial assets, the Group shall classify the financial asset
into a financial asset at FVTOCI. Such financial assets primarily
include receivable financing.

Financial assets at FVTPL include financial assets classified
as at FVTPL and those designated as at FVTPL which are
presented in held-for-trading financial assets. Those due over
one year and expected to be held for over one year since
the balance sheet date are presented in other non-current
financial assets.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2020

III. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)
9. Financial instruments (Continued)
9.1 Classification and measurement of financial assets
(Continued)

A financial asset which does not satisfy the criteria
for a financial asset classified as being measured at
amortized cost or a financial asset at FVTOCI shall be
classified as a financial asset at FVTPL.

At initial recognition, the Group may irrevocably
designate a financial asset as measured at FVTPL if
doing so eliminates or significantly reduces accounting
mismatch (expected credit losses).

On initial recognition, the Group may, based on a individual
financial asset, irrevocably designate a non-trading equity

instrument investment which is non-contingent consideration
and recognized in business combination not involving
enterprises under common control as financial asset
measured at FVTOCI. Such financial assets are presented as
investment in other equity instruments.

The Group’s purpose of holding the financial assets is for
trading if one of the following conditions is satisfied:

The Group'’s purpose of holding the relevant financial
assets is primarily for recent sale.

The relevant financial assets are, on initial recognition,
a part of the centrally-managed identifiable financial
instrument portfolio, and objective evidence indicates
that short-term profit model exists in the near future.

The relevant financial assets are derivative instruments.
However, derivatives that meet the definition of
financial guarantee contracts and those designated as
effective hedging instruments are excluded.
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56  Weichai Power Co., Ltd.

HRBORHAERDE

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2020

III. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)
9. Financial instruments (Continued)
9.1 Classification and measurement of financial assets
(Continued)

9.1.1

Financial assets at amortised cost

The financial asset at amortized cost is subsequently
measured at amortized cost using the effective interest
method. Gain or loss arising from derecognition,
impairment or amortization is recognized in profit or

loss.

The Group recognizes interest income on financial
assets measured at amortized cost using the effective
interest method. The Group calculates interest income
based on the gross carrying amount of financial
assets multiplied by the actual interest rate, unless the
financial assets become credit-impaired financial assets
in subsequent reporting period. For those financial
assets, the Group shall apply the credit-adjusted
effective interest rate to the amortized cost of the
financial asset in subsequent reporting period. If the
financial assets no longer has credit impairment during
the subsequent period as a result of an improvement
in its credit risk, and this improvement may be linked
to an event that occurred after the application of the
above regulations, the Group calculates interest income
based on the gross carrying amount of financial assets

multiplied by the actual interest rate.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2020

III. Significant Accounting Policies and = & % & 51 B R & & 51 14 5t

Accounting Estimates (Continued) (%)
9. Financial instruments (Continued) 9. WM TIA(E)
9.1 Classification and measurement of financial assets 9.1 TREEMNHDEHGE
(Continued) (%)

9.1.2 Financial assets classified as at FVTOC! 912 U AR EEFTEARE

Impairment gains or losses on a financial asset classified
as at FVTOCI and the interest income calculated using
the effective interest method and exchange gains and
losses shall be recognized in profit or loss. Except for
them, changes in fair value of such financial assets shall
be recognized in other comprehensive income. The
amount of such financial asset recognized in profit or
loss of each period is equal to the amount deemed as
measured at amortized cost all the time and recognized
in profit or loss of each period. When the financial
asset is derecognized, the cumulative gain or loss
previously recognized in other comprehensive income is
transferred from other comprehensive income to profit

or loss.
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58  Weichai Power Co., Ltd.

HRBORHAERDE

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2020

III. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)

9. Financia

| instruments (Continued)

9.1 C(lassification and measurement of financial assets
(Continued)

9.1.2

9.1.3

Financial assets classified as at FVTOC! (Continued)

After designating a non-trading equity instrument
investment as a financial asset at FVTOCI, the changes
in fair value of such financial assets are recognized
in other comprehensive income. When the financial
asset is derecognized, the cumulative gain or loss
previously recognized in other comprehensive income
are transferred from other comprehensive income to
retained earnings. During the period that the Group
holds these non-trading equity instrument investments,
the Group has established the right of collecting
dividends, whose economic benefit will probably flow
into the Group, and the amount of the dividends can
be reliably measured, then the Group will recognize

dividend income in profit or loss.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets at FVTPL shall be subsequently
measured at fair value. Gains or losses from change in
fair value and dividends and interest income related
to such financial assets shall be recognized in profit or

loss.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2020

III. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)
9. Financial instruments (Continued)

9.2

Impairment of financial instruments and other items
The Group shall recognise a loss allowance for expected
credit losses on financial assets at amortized cost, financial
assets classified as FVTOCI, a lease receivable, contract assets
and financial guarantee contracts that are not designated as
financial liabilities at FVTPL.

The Group makes a loss allowance against amount of lifetime
expected credit losses of the receivables and contract assets
arising from transactions adopting Standard on Revenue
and the lease receivables arising from transactions adopting
Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises No. 21 —

Leases.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2020

III. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)
9. Financial instruments (Continued)

9.2

Impairment of financial instruments and other items
(Continued)

For other financial instruments, at the balance sheet date,
the Group assesses changes in credit risk of relevant financial
instruments since initial recognition. If the credit risk of the
above financial instruments has increased significantly since
initial recognition, the Group measures loss allowance based
on the amount of lifetime expected credit losses; if credit risk
of the financial instrument has not increased significantly
since initial recognition, the Group recognises loss allowance
based on 12-month expected credit losses of the financial
instrument. Increase in or reversal of credit loss allowance is
included in profit or loss as loss/gain on impairment. Except
financial assets classified as at FVTOCI, allowance for credit
losses decreases the carrying amount of the financial assets.
For financial assets at FVTOCI, the Group recognises credit
loss allowance in other comprehensive income and does not
decrease the carrying amount of such financial assets in the

balance sheet.

The Group measures loss allowance at the full lifetime
expected credit losses of the financial instruments in the
previous accounting period. However, at the balance sheet
date, for the above financial instruments, if significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition no longer
applies, the Group measures loss allowance for the financial
instrument at 12-month expected credit losses at the balance
sheet date for the current period. Relevant reversal of loss
allowance is included in profit or loss for the current period as

gain on impairment.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2020

III. Significant Accounting Policies and = & % & 51 B R & & 51 14 5t
Accounting Estimates (Continued) (%)
9. Financial instruments (Continued) 9. &R IA(HE)
9.2 Impairment of financial instruments and other items 92 @MIAKHMIERRE
(Continued) (%)

M=

9.2.1 Significant increases in credit risk 9.2.1 IR B EZE LM

The Group assesses whether or not the credit risk
of the relevant financial instruments has increased
significantly since the initial recognition at each balance
sheet date. While determining whether the credit risk
has significantly increased since initial recognition,
the Group takes into account the reasonable and
substantiated information that is accessible without
exerting unnecessary cost or effort, including qualitative
and quantitative analysis based on the historical data
of the Group, external credit risk rating, and forward-
looking information. Based on the single financial
instrument or the combination of financial instruments
with similar characteristics of credit risk, the Group
compares the risk of default of financial instruments
on the balance sheet date with that on the initial
recognition date in order to figure out the changes
of default risk in the expected lifetime of financial
instruments. For financial guarantee contracts, the
date that the Group becomes a party to the irrevocable
commitment is considered to be the date of initial
recognition in the application of criteria related to the

financial instrument for impairment.
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62 Weichai Power Co., Ltd.

HRBORHAERDE

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2020

III. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)

9. Financia
9.2 Impa

| instruments (Continued)
irment of financial instruments and other items

(Continued)

9.2.1

Significant increases in credit risk (Continued)

Criteria for judging significant increases in credit risk

When triggering one or more of the following
guantitative and qualitative criteria, the Group believes
that the credit risk of financial instruments has

increased significantly:

o Quantitative criteria are primarily that the
probability of default of the remaining duration
of the reporting date rises by more than a certain

proportion compared with the initial recognition

o Qualitative criteria primarily include major
adverse changes in the debtor’s business or
financial position, the debtor’s internal credit
rating is actually lowered or is expected to be

lowered, etc.

At the balance date, the Group assumes that credit
risk of the financial instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition if the Group
determines that the financial instrument is only exposed
to lower credit risk. If the risk of default of a financial
instrument is low, the borrower is highly capable of
meeting its contract cash flow obligations in the short
term, and the financial instrument is considered to have
a lower credit risk even if there is an adverse change
in the economic situation and operating environment
over a longer period of time, but it may not necessarily
reduce the borrower’s performance of its contract cash

obligations.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

1 January to 30 June 2020

III. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)
9. Financial instruments (Continued)
9.2 Impairment of financial instruments and other items
(Continued)

9.2.2 Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more

events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated

future cash flows of that financial asset have occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired include

observable data about the following events:

Significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
debtor;

A breach of contract by the debtor, such as a
default or delinquency in interest or principal

payments;

The creditor, for economic or contracted reasons
relating to the debtor’s financial difficulty,
granting to the debtor a concession which
will not otherwise be granted in any other

circumstances;

[t becoming probable that the debtor will enter

bankruptcy or other financial reorganizations;

The disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties of

the issuer or the debtor.
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64  \Weichai Power Co., Ltd.

HRBORHAERDE

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2020

III. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)
9. Financial instruments (Continued)
9.2 Impairment of financial instruments and other items
(Continued)

9.2.3

Recognition of expected credit losses

The Group assesses the expected credit losses of
financial instruments based on individual and group
basis. The Group recognises the credit loss on
receivables, lease receivables, contract assets, etc., of
significant amount and insignificant amount but with
special credit risk on an individual asset basis, and
otherwise recognises credit loss of relevant financial
instruments on a group basis. The Group considers
the credit risk characteristics of different customers
and evaluates the expected credit losses of accounts
receivable on the basis of groupings by age, by quality
of credit history and by overdue age. The Group
considers various credit risk characteristics including
instrument type, credit risk ratings, collateral type,
date of initial recognition, remaining term to maturity,
industry, geographical location of the debtor and the

value of collateral relative to the financial asset, etc.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2020

III. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)
9. Financial instruments (Continued)
9.2 Impairment of financial instruments and other items
(Continued)

9.2.3 Recognition of expected credit losses (Continued)

The Group determines expected credit losses of
relevant financial instruments using the following

methods:

o For financial assets, a credit loss is the present
value of the difference between the contractual
cash flows that are due to the Group under
the contract and the cash flows that the Group

expects to receive.

o For lease receivables, a credit loss is the present
value of the difference between the contractual
cash flows that are due to the Group under
the contract and the cash flows that the Group

expects to receive.

o For a financial guarantee contract, credit loss
is the present value of difference between the
expected payments to reimburse the holder for a
credit loss that it incurs less any amounts that the
Group expects to receive from the holder, the

debtor or any other party.

Interim Report 2020 FHEAZRE

S S R MY AT (A

20201 H1HZ26H30H 1-HifE

= 2 BOR K| atk A w

(%)

J

9. €I EAE(E)
92 4RI ANEMIBEBERKE

(&)

923 Bz FIE 4k B ETE

(&)

REBILRTHN I AMHEE
HE R I ANTEHEA

B

BREMEE 5
RBRXAAEERE
WAL A FRIR 2R
B B8 B W EH IR
TREZHEERN
HIE -

HREE R
ERBEARAEE
fEWE ) & RE
w8 HL TR B W ER Y
RenEzEEa
HIR{E

BRMBERSE
Al EREXBX
SERZERTE
ABEMERBX
) E i RS A B 3R
FTRE  BEAR
SEEHAZAR
FAAN BEBHEAX
E {7 £t 75 4 X R
SR EEENR
B e

65



66  Weichai Power Co., Ltd.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2020

III. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)

9. Financia

| instruments (Continued)

9.2 Impairment of financial instruments and other items
(Continued)

9.2.3

9.2.4

Recognition of expected credit losses (Continued)

o For credit-impaired financial assets at the balance
sheet date, credit loss is the difference between
the gross carrying amount of financial assets and
the present value of expected future cash flows

discounted at original effective interest rate.

The Group’s measurement of expected credit losses of
financial instruments reflects factors including unbiased
probability weighted average amount recognised by
assessing a series of possible results, time value of
money, reasonable and supportable information related
to historical events, current condition and forecast
of future economic position that is available without

undue cost or effort at the balance sheet date.

Write-off of financial assets

The Group shall directly reduce the gross carrying
amount of a financial asset when the Group has no
reasonable expectations of recovering a financial
asset in its entirety or a portion thereof. A write-off
constitutes a derecognition of the relevant financial

asset.

I 2% BT (4
2020F 14 1HZ6H30H 1 5iE

= 2 HBOR K| atk A wt

ERTHR(E)
92 SRIANEMIBBERKE

923 Bz AIE 4k B HEE

(&)

e HREERMBEXRHA
EEAEERRMERN
TREE - FRA
ARZEMEER

TH #4728 B 17 R B R
MR YT R B 5 R
KAESREMNRE
ZERER

AEEFESRMTARES
ERBRNTERBRNE
=B8R BEFE—RT
AJ BE Y A5 SR T e OE O £ 1
BEmMEFHeE 5%
REEE: REERER
BEAN h T ZE RN
RAEE DA EZHE
FBEEIR - BRI
R R RAR B ST A B &
BERAKENER

9.2.4 Filw g & E

EAEBETBAERNS
MEEARRSREERN
2HRBoWEE - B
LR & B & B RO AR E
o ERERERERS
BEEMK LR



Interim Report 2020 s 67

5 i 2 M 5 (48
20201 H1HZ26H30H 1-HifE

III. Significant Accounting Policies and = & % & 51 B R & & 51 14 5t
Accounting Estimates (Continued) (%)
9. Financial instruments (Continued) 9. €M T A(E)
9.3 Transfer of financial assets 93 THEENHEE

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2020

J

The Group shall derecognise a financial asset when one of
the following conditions are satisfied: (1) the contractual
rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire, (2)
the financial asset has been transferred and substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset is
transferred to the transferee; or (3) although the financial asset
has been transferred, the Group neither transfers nor retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the
financial asset but has not retained control of the financial

asset.

If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of a financial asset, and it
retains control of the financial asset, the Group will recognize
the financial asset to the extent of its continuing involvement
in the transferred financial asset and recognize an associated
liability. Relevant liabilities are measured using the following

methods:

° If the transferred financial asset is measured at
amortized cost, the carrying amount of relevant
liabilities is the carrying amount of continuing
involvement in the transferred financial asset less the
amortized cost of the rights retained by the Group (if
the Group retains rights for the transfer of the financial
asset) plus the amortized cost of the obligations
undertaken by the Group (if the Group undertakes
relevant obligations for the transfer of the financial
asset), and the relevant liabilities are not designated as
financial liabilities at FVTPL.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2020

III. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)
9. Financial instruments (Continued)
9.3 Transfer of financial assets (Continued)

o If the transferred financial asset is measured at fair
value, the carrying amount of relevant liabilities is the
carrying amount of continuing involvement in the
transferred financial asset less the fair value of the
rights retained by the Group (if the Group retains rights
for the transfer of the financial asset) plus the fair value
of the obligations undertaken by the Group (if the
Group undertakes relevant obligations for the transfer
of the financial asset), and the fair value of the rights

and liabilities is measured on a stand-alone basis.

For a transfer of a financial asset in its entirety that satisfies
the derecognition criteria, for financial assets classified
as at amortized cost and financial assets at FVTOCI, the
difference between the carrying amount of the financial
asset transferred and the sum of the consideration received
from the transfer and accumulated amount of the fair value
changes originally taken to other comprehensive income
corresponding to the derecognized part shall be taken to
profit or loss for the current period. Where the financial
asset to be transferred by the Group is a non-trading equity
instrument investment designated as at FVTOCI, accumulated
gains or losses previously taken to other comprehensive
income are transferred out from other comprehensive income

and taken to retained earnings.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2020

III. Significant Accounting Policies and = & % &t B & & & 5114 5t
Accounting Estimates (Continued) (%)
9. Financial instruments (Continued) 9. €M I A(H&)

9.3 Transfer of financial assets (Continued) 93 SREEMNHEE(E)

For a part of transfer of a financial asset that satisfies
the derecognition criteria, the carrying amount of the
transferred financial asset is allocated between the part
that is derecognized and the part that is continuously
involved, based on the respective fair values of those parts
on transfer date. The difference between the sum of the
consideration received for the part of the derecognition and
the accumulated amount of the fair value changes originally
taken to other comprehensive income corresponding to the
derecognized part and the carrying amount on the date of
derecognition for the derecognized part shall be taken to
profit and loss for the current period. Where the financial
asset to be transferred by the Group is a non-trading equity
instrument investment designated as at FVTOCI, accumulated
gains or losses previously taken to other comprehensive
income are transferred out from other comprehensive income

and taken to retained earnings.

For a transfer of a financial asset in its entirety that does not
satisfy the derecognition criteria, the Group will continuously
recognize the transferred financial asset in its entirety.
Considerations received should be recognized as a financial
liability.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2020

III. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)
9. Financial instruments (Continued)

9.4 Classification of financial liabilities and equity

instruments

Financial instruments or their constituent parts issued by

the Group are classified into financial liabilities or equity

instruments on initial recognition on the basis of the

substance of the contractual arrangements and the economic

nature but not only its legal form, together with the definition

of financial liability and equity instruments.

9.4.1 Classification and measurement of financial liabilities
On initial recognition, financial liabilities are classified
into financial liabilities at FVTPL and other financial

liabilities.

9.4.1.1 Financial liabilities at FVTPL

Financial liabilities at FVTPL consist of financial
liabilities held for trading (including derivative
instruments of financial liabilities) and those
designated as at FVTPL. Financial liabilities at
FVTPL are presented as held-for-trading financial
liabilities or other non-current liabilities according

to their liquidity.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2020

III. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)
9. Financial instruments (Continued)
9.4 Classification of financial liabilities and equity
instruments (Continued)
9.4.1 Classification and measurement of financial liabilities
(Continued)
9.4.1.1 Financial liabilities at FVTPL (Continued)

If one of the following conditions is met for
a financial liability, it suggests that the Group

recognises financial liability held-for-trading:

o The purpose of undertaking the relevant
financial liability is mainly for the purpose

of repurchasing in the near future.

o The relevant financial liability is, upon initial
recognition, a combination of identifiable
financial instruments that are centrally
managed and there is objective evidence
that the Company has recently adopted

short-term profit-making methods.

° The relevant financial liability is a derivative
instrument, except for derivatives that
qualify for financial guarantee contracts
and derivatives that are designated as

effective hedging instruments.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

1 January to 30 June 2020

III. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)
9. Financial instruments (Continued)

9.4 Classification of financial liabilities and equity

instruments (Continued)

9.4.1 Classification and measurement of financial liabilities

(Continued)
9.4.1.1 Financial liabilities at FVTPL (Continued)

The Group designates a financial liability as FVTPL
on initial recognition when the financial liability
satisfies one of the following criteria: (1) such
designation eliminates or significantly reduces
accounting mismatch; (2) The financial liability
forms part of a group of financial liabilities or a
group of financial assets and financial liabilities,
which is managed and its performance is
evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance
with the documented risk management
or investment strategy of the Group, and
information about the grouping is reported to
key management personnel on that basis; (3) The
qualified hybrid financial instrument combines

financial liability with embedded derivatives.

Held-for-trading financial liabilities are
subsequently measured at fair value, and any
gains or losses arising from changes in fair value
and any dividend or interest income earned on
the financial liabilities are recognised in profit or

loss.
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III. Significant Accounting Policies and = & % & 51 B R & & 51 14 5t

Accounting Estimates (Continued) (%)
9. Financial instruments (Continued) 9. R IE(H&)
9.4 Classification of financial liabilities and equity 9.4 TRIBEMEZTAEND
instruments (Continued) fB(E)
9.4.1 Classification and measurement of financial liabilities 941 R ABEH S HEREE
(Continued) (%)

9.4.1.1 Financial liabilities at FVTPL (Continued) 9411 LA REEER

HEBHAEEAE

mHERMAaE(E)

For the financial liabilities designated as FVTPL, HRWEEETRARD
changes in fair value arising from changes in the nRBEGFEEEE
Group’s own credit risk are included in other Bt AEHEZEN
comprehensive incomes and other changes TRAE - Zeom
in fair value recognised in profit and loss. BERAEER S
Upon derecognition of the financial liabilities, EARREES| -
cumulative changes in fair value arising from MAREBEZES
changes in the own credit risk previously AE iR A W=

recognised in other comprehensive income are HthAn BELZSH
transferred and included in retained earnings. FFAEBER - %
Dividends or interest incomes earned on the THMAERIEER

financial liabilities are recognised in profit or loss.
If the impact of the change in credit risk of such
financial liability dealt with in the above way
would create or enlarge an accounting mismatch
in profit or loss, the Group shall present all gains
or losses on that liability (including the effects of
changes in the credit risk of that liability) in profit

or loss.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

1 January to 30 June 2020

III. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)
9. Financial instruments (Continued)
9.4 Classification of financial liabilities and equity
instruments (Continued)
9.4.1 Classification and measurement of financial liabilities

(Continued)
9412 Other financial liabilities

The Group shall classify all financial liabilities
as subsequently measured at amortised cost,
except for financial liabilities, financial guarantee
contracts that arise when a transfer of a financial
asset does not qualify for derecognition or when
the continuing involvement approach applies,
and gains or losses arising from derecognition or
amortisation are recognised in profit or loss for
the period.

When the contractual cash flows are changed
due to the renegotiation or modification of
the contract made between the Group and
the counterparty and the renegotiation or
modification does not result in the derecognition
of the financial liability that is subsequently
measured at amortised cost, the Group shall
recalculate the carrying amount of the financial
liability and shall recognised related gains or
losses in profit or loss. The carrying amount of
the financial liability shall be recalculated as the
present value of the renegotiated or modified
contractual cash flows that are discounted at the
financial liability’s original effective interest rate.
Any costs or fees incurred adjust the carrying
amount of the modified financial liability and
are amortised over the remaining term of the
modified financial liability.
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Accounting Estimates (Continued) (78
9. Financial instruments (Continued) 9. ﬁ'ﬂlfﬂ("‘ﬁ) o
9.4 Classification of financial liabilities and equity 9.4 ZRAFEMNERLRNS

(B
instruments (Continued) 041 SBBEH SRS
9.4.1 Classification and measurement of financial liabilities (4#)

(Continued) 9412 Hive b B E (&)
94.12 Other financial liabilities (Continued) 94121 BIISHER A R
94121 Financial guarantee contracts MEERE R
A financial guarantee contract is a contract REEBRTEE

that requires the issuer to make specified F&AZ|H 8k
payments to reimburse the holder of the RREVHE
contract for a loss it incurs because a REMERKT
specified debtor fails to make payment B GEREME
when due in accordance with the original FERE - EE
or modified terms of a debt instrument. THARASRXZE
Subsequent to initial recognition, LHAREBAE
financial guarantee contracts that are not EMRES
designated as financial liabilities at FVTPL, HMHAR o 8
or arise when a transfer of a financial asset RABRIET
does not qualify for derecognition or when BUAAREE
the continuing involvement approach, FEAHEH
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recognised less cumulative amortisation ERTREE
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2020

III. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)
9. Financial instruments (Continued)

9.4 Classification of financial liabilities and equity

instruments (Continued)

9.4.2 Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises a financial liability (or part of

it) when the underlying present obligation (or part of it)

is discharged. An agreement between the Group (the

debtor) and the creditor to replace the original financial

liability with a new financial liability with substantially

different terms is accounted for as a derecognition of

the original financial liability and the recognition of a

new financial liability.

When the Group derecognises a financial liability or
a part of it, it recognises the difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability (or part of the
financial liability) derecognised and the consideration
paid (including any non-cash assets transferred or new

financial liabilities assumed) in profit or loss.
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III. Significant Accounting Policies and = & % & 51 B R & & 51 14 5t

Accounting Estimates (Continued) (%)
9. Financial instruments (Continued) 9. R IE(H&)
9.4 Classification of financial liabilities and equity 9.4 TRIBEMEZTAEND
instruments (Continued) H(E)
9.4.3 Equity instruments 943 EmTA
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences Hm T AZIREERER

a residual interest in the assets of the Group after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued
(including refinanced), repurchased, sold or cancelled
by the Group are recognised as changes of equity.
Changes of fair value of equity instruments is not
recognised by the Group. Transaction costs related to

equity transactions are deducted from equity.

The Group recognises the distribution to holders of the
equity instruments as distribution of profits. Dividends

paid do not affect total amount of shareholders’ equity.

The Group is entitled to extend the term of the
perpetual bonds issued by the subsidiaries of the
Company for an indefinite number of times. The Group
is also entitled to defer payment of coupon interest
on its perpetual bonds. The Group is not contractually
obliged to pay cash or other financial assets. The
perpetual bonds are classified as equity instruments
and presented as minority interests in the consolidated

financial statements.

AEEEMBRMAERER
MEETNRSERNS
Rl - REHRZT(EHR
&) B hENEH
B TRERERNEE
BEIE o NEE TR E R
TEMAAREEES - &
REMEZHHEENRHE
PR R 2 R HRL -

AEEHESTARES
M 7 B F & FUR 2 B R
2 BRORERMN TR
WL RE S A RE o

HRARRFRARETH
KEE AEEERTR
REEH - YRKBEER
EAE - AEBAREL
XY AREYESRE
BxNReIEMERHE
B ROKEESBAER
TH  AEAGHFRKRTT
BB R A



78  Weichai Power Co., Ltd.

HRBORHAERDE

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2020

III. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)
9. Financial instruments (Continued)

9.5

9.6

Derivatives and embedded derivatives

Derivatives include forward foreign exchange contracts,
cross currency swap and interest rate swap instruments,
etc. Derivatives are initially measured at fair value at the
date when the derivative contracts are entered into and are

subsequently re-measured at fair value.

For hybrid contract constituted by embedded derivatives
and host contract, if the host contract is a financial asset,
the embedded derivative is not separated from the hybrid
contract, and the hybrid contract shall be taken as a whole
to which the accounting standards on the classification of

financial assets apply.

Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities

Where the Group has a legal right that is currently
enforceable to set off the recognised financial assets and
financial liabilities, and intends either to settle on a net basis,
or to realize the financial asset and settle the financial liability
simultaneously, a financial asset and a financial liability shall
be offset and the net amount is presented in the balance
sheet. Except for the above circumstances, financial assets
and financial liabilities shall be presented separately in the

balance sheet and shall not be offset.

10. Receivable financing

For notes and accounts payables classified at FVTOCI with a maturity

of less than one year (inclusive) are included in receivable financing.

Please refer to Note II1.9 for the related accounting policies.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2020

III. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)
11. Inventories

1.1

Classification of inventories

The Group’s inventories mainly include raw materials,
finished goods, materials under entrusted processing, self-
made semi-finished goods and work-in-progress and second-
hand forklift trucks etc. Inventories are initially carried at cost.
Cost of inventories comprises all costs of purchase, costs of

conversion and other costs.

11.2 Calculation of cost of inventories transferred out

11.3

The actual cost of inventories transferred out is assigned by
using weighted average method, first-in-first-out method or

specific identification method.

Basis for determining net realisable value of inventories

At the balance sheet date, inventories are measured at the
lower of cost or net realizable value; provisions for inventory
write-down are made on the excess of its cost over the net

realizable value.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the
sale and relevant taxes. Recognition of the net realizable
value is based on the verified evidences and considers the
purpose of holding inventories and the effect of post balance

sheet events.

Provision for decline in value of other inventories is made
based on the excess of cost of inventory over its net realisable

value on an item-by-item basis.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2020

III. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)

11.

12.

Inventories (Continued)

11.3 Basis for determining net realisable value of inventories
(Continued)
Following a provision for impairment of inventories is made, if
factors that previously resulted in the provision for decline in
value of inventories no longer exist, so that the net realizable
value is higher than the carrying amount, the amount of
the write-down is reversed. The amount of the reversal is

recognized in profit or loss for the current period.

11.4 Inventory system

The Groups adopts perpetual inventory system.

11.5 Amortisation method of low-value consumables
Low-value consumables are amortised in full when received

for use.

Assets held-for-sale

A non-current asset or disposal group shall be classified as held
for sale if its carrying amount will be recovered principally through
a sale transaction (inclusive of non-monetary asset swap with

commercial substance) rather than continuous use.

A non-current asset or disposal group classified as held for sale
must also satisfy the following conditions: (1) according to the
practice of disposing of this type of assets or disposal groups in a
similar transaction, a non-current asset or disposal group is available
for immediate sale in its present condition; (2) the sale will likely
occur as the Group has made a resolution in respect of a disposal
plan and obtained a firm purchase commitment from a buyer, and

the sale is expected to be completed within one year.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2020

III. Significant Accounting Policies and = & % & 51 B R & & 51 14 5t
Accounting Estimates (Continued) (%)

12. Assets held-for-sale (Continued) 12. BESEEE(H)

The Group measures the non-current assets or disposal groups
classified as held for sale at the lower of their carrying amount and
fair value less costs to sell. Where the carrying amount is higher
than the net amount of fair value less costs to sell, carrying amount
should be reduced to the net amount of fair value less costs to sell,
and such reduction is recognised in impairment loss of assets and
included in profit or loss for the period. Meanwhile, provision for
impairment of held-for-sale assets are made. When there is increase
in the net amount of fair value of non-current assets held for sale
less costs to sell at the balance sheet date, the original deduction
should be reversed in impairment loss of assets recognised after the
classification of held-for-sale category, and the reversed amount is
include in profit or loss for the period, except for the impairment

loss of assets recognised before classified as held for sale.

Non-current assets or disposal groups classified as held-for-sale are
not depreciated or amortized. Interest and other costs of liabilities in

disposal groups classified as held for sale continue to be recognised.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2020

III. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)
13. Long-term equity investments
13.1 Basis for determining joint control and significant
influence
Control exists when the investor has power over the
investee; is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and has the ability to use its
power over the investee to affect its returns. Joint control is
the contractually agreed sharing of control over an economic
activity, and exists only when decisions relating to the
activity require the unanimous consent of the parties sharing
control. Significant influence is the power to participate in
the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee
but is not control or joint control over those policies. When
determining whether an investor is able to exercise control or
significant influence over an investee, the effect of potential
voting rights of the investee (for example, warrants and
convertible debts) held by the investors or other parties that

are currently exercisable or convertible shall be considered.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2020

III. Significant Accounting Policies and = & % & 51 B R & & 51 14 5t
Accounting Estimates (Continued) (%)

13. Long-term equity investments (Continued) 13. REARERE (&)
13.2 Determination of initial investment cost 13.2 )16 1% & B AN B T F

For a long-term equity investment acquired through a
business combination involving enterprises under common
control, the initial investment cost of the long-term equity
investment is the attributable share of the carrying amount
of the shareholders’ equity of the acquiree on the date of
combination in the consolidated financial statements of
the ultimate controlling party. The difference between the
initial investment cost and the carrying amount of cash
paid, non-cash assets transferred and liabilities assumed
adjusted to capital reserve. If the balance of capital reserve
is not sufficient, any excess is adjusted to retained earnings.
For issuing equity securities as consideration, the initial
investment cost of the long-term equity investment is the
attributable share of the carrying amount of the shareholders’
equity of the combining party on the date of combination
in the consolidated financial statements of the ultimate
controlling party. The aggregate face values of the shares are
accounted for share capital. The difference between the initial
investment cost and the aggregate face values of the shares
issued is adjusted to capital reserve. If the capital reserve is
insufficient to be written down, the retained earnings shall be

adjusted.

As for the long-term equity investment acquired through
business combinations involving enterprises not under
common control, the initial investment cost of the long-term
equity investment shall be taken as the merger cost on the

acquisition date.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2020

III. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)
13. Long-term equity investments (Continued)
13.2 Determination of initial investment cost (Continued)
The intermediary fees such as auditing, legal services,
appraisal and consultation and other related administrative
expenses incurred by the combining party or the acquirer for
business combination shall be taken to profit or loss of the

current period when incurred.

The initial measurement of the long-term equity investment
obtained by means other than the long-term equity
investment formed by business combination shall be
accounted for at cost. Where additional investment results
in significant influence or joint control (but not control) over
the investee, the cost of long-term equity investment is the
sum of the fair value of the original equity investment plus
the additional investment cost determined in accordance with
the Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises No. 22 —

Recognition and Measurement of Financial Instruments.

13.3 Recognition method for subsequent measurement
and profit or loss
13.3.1 Long-term equity investment calculated by cost
method
The Company’s financial statements adopt the cost
method to calculate long-term equity investment in
subsidiaries. Subsidiaries refer to investees which can

be controlled by the Group.

The long-term equity investment calculated by cost
method is measured at the initial investment cost.
Adding or recovering investment adjusts the cost of
long-term equity investment. The current investment
income is recognised according to the cash dividend or

profit declared to be distributed by the investee.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2020

III. Significant Accounting Policies and = & % & 51 B R & & 51 14 5t
Accounting Estimates (Continued) (%)
13. Long-term equity investments (Continued) 13. REARERE (&)
13.3 Recognition method for subsequent measurement 1338 BFHAERERBRTE
and profit or loss (Continued) (&)

M=

1332 HHEmZZE N RBK

13.3.2 Long-term equity investment calculated by equity

method

The Group’s investment in associates and joint
ventures is calculated by equity method. Associates
refer to invested entities to which the Group can exert
a significant influence, and joint ventures are joint
arrangements in which the Group has only the right to

the net assets of the arrangements.

When equity method is adopted, if the initial
investment cost of long-term equity investment is
greater than the fair value share of identifiable net
assets of the invested entity, the initial investment cost
of long-term equity investment shall not be adjusted;
If the initial investment cost is less than the fair value
share of the identifiable net assets of the invested
entity, the difference shall be recorded into the current
profits and losses, and the long-term equity investment

cost shall be adjusted at the same time.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2020

III. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)
13. Long-term equity investments (Continued)
13.3 Recognition method for subsequent measurement
and profit or loss (Continued)

13.3.2

Long-term equity investment calculated by equity
method (Continued)

When equity method is adopted, the investment
income and other comprehensive income shall be
recognised respectively according to the share of
net profit and loss and other comprehensive income
realised by the invested entity, and the carrying amount
of long-term equity investment shall be adjusted at
the same time; the carrying amount of long-term
equity investment shall be reduced accordingly by
calculating the portion to be enjoyed according to the
profit or cash dividend declared by the invested entity;
the carrying amount of long-term equity investment
shall be adjusted and included in the capital reserve
for other changes in the owner’s rights and interests
of the invested entity except net profit or loss, other
comprehensive income and profit distribution. When
recognising the share of the net profit or loss of the
invested entity, the net profit of the invested entity
shall be adjusted and recognised on the basis of the
fair value of the identifiable assets of the invested
entity at the acquisition date. If the accounting
policies and periods adopted by the invested entity are
inconsistent with those of the Company, the financial
statements of the invested entity shall be adjusted in
accordance with the accounting policies and period
of the Company. The investment income and other
comprehensive income shall be recognised accordingly.
For transactions between the Group and associates
or joint ventures, the assets invested or sold do not
constitute business, and the gains and losses of internal
transactions are offset by the shareholding attributable
to the Group. On this basis, the investment gains
and losses are recognised. However, the unrealised
internal transaction losses between the Group and the
invested entity shall not be offset if they belong to the
impairment losses of the transferred assets.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2020

III. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)
13. Long-term equity investments (Continued)
13.3 Recognition method for subsequent measurement
and profit or loss (Continued)
13.3.2 Long-term equity investment calculated by equity
method (Continued)
The Group discontinues recognising its share of net
losses of the investee after the carrying amount of
the long-term equity investment together with any
long-term interests that in substance form part of its
net investment in the invested entity is reduced to
zero. If the Group has incurred obligations to assume
additional losses of the investee, estimated liability is
recognised according to the expected obligation, and
recorded as investment loss for the period. Where net
profits are subsequently made by the invested entity,
the Group resumes recognising its share of those
profits only after its share of the profits exceeds the

share of losses previously not recognised.

13.4 Disposal of long-term equity investment
At the time of the disposal of long-term equity investment,
the difference between its carrying amount and the actual
consideration obtained shall be taken to profit or loss for the
current period. For long-term equity investment calculated by
equity method, the same basis as that adopted in the direct
disposal of assets or liabilities by the invested entity shall be
adopted and the part that would otherwise be taken to other

comprehensive income is accounted for proportionally.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2020

III. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)
14. Investment property

15.

Investment property is property held to earn rentals or for capital
appreciation or both. Investment property includes a land use right

that is leased out and a building that is leased out.

An investment property is measured initially at its cost. If the
economic benefits relating to an investment property will probably
flow in and the cost can be reliably measured, subsequent costs
incurred for the property is included in the cost of the investment
property. Subsequent costs other than that are recognized in profit

or loss for the period in which they are incurred.

The Group uses the cost model for subsequent measurement of its
investment property. Depreciation or amortization is calculated on

the straight-line basis over its useful life, as follows:
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Estimated Estimated net Annual
useful lives residual depreciation
(years) value rate (%) rate (%)
T EA TEEHEE
ltem IHH s (F) EE(%) FIEER(%)
Land use rights + b AR 48.5-50 0 2.00-2.06
Houses and buildings EEEEY 14.5-30 0-5 3.17-6.90
Fixed assets 15. BEEE

Fixed assets represent the tangible assets held for production or
supply of goods or services, rental or for administrative purposes
with useful lives over one accounting year. A fixed asset is
recognized only when the economic benefits associated with the
asset will probably flow to the Group and the cost of the asset can
be measured reliably. Fixed assets are initially measured at cost.

If the economic benefits relating to a fixed asset will probably flow
in and the cost can be reliably measured, subsequent expenditure
incurred for a fixed asset shall be included in the cost of the fixed
asset, and the carrying amount of the component of the fixed asset
that is replaced shall be derecognized. Subsequent expenditure
other than that shall be recognized in profit or loss for the period in
which they are incurred.
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III. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)
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15. Fixed assets (Continued) 15. EEEE(&E)
Other than fixed assets arising from the use and appropriation of RERARINLZE2EEBEXNETE
safety funds, special reserve offset against the cost of fixed assets, BE - IRBHKE T & E 8K A R R
and equivalent amounts of accumulated depreciation recognized; HIEFE  WHERERSENETIT
the straight line method or double-declining balance method is B2 AEBBETEEMTERA
adopted for the depreciation of fixed assets of the Group. HEEAREGSHRBRRB AR -
The expected useful lives, net residual value rates and annual SHEFTEAENTBTERSESD BB
depreciation rates of fixed assets are presented as follows: BEREEFERD RWOT :
Estimated Estimated net Annual
useful lives residual depreciation
(years) value rate (%) rate (%)
iCEREd] TR FE FEXR
ltem EHH s (F) BEE(%) (%)
Land ownership T+ i FT A Indefinite
fEEAR 0 0
Houses and buildings EEEEY 10-50 0-5 1.90-10.00
Machinery and equipment HES R 3-15 0-5 6.33-33.33
Electronic equipment BTRE 2-15 0-5 6.33-50.00
Vehicles EHRE 4-10 0-5 9.50-25.00
Forklift trucks and equipment AR NXERLE
leased out (long-term) (Note) (&8) ) 2-15 0 6.67-50.00
Forklift trucks and equipment AN E RH&E
leased out (short-term) (Note) (52 H) (3%) 2-15 6.67-50.00
Others Hth 2-15 0-5 6.33-50.00

Note: For self-owned fixed assets leased out by the Group as lessor under
operating lease, those leased for a period of not more than 12 months are
presented under forklift trucks and equipment leased out (short-term) and
those leased for a period of more than 1 year are presented under forklift
trucks and equipment leased out (long-term).

The Group reviews the useful life and estimated net residual value
of a fixed asset and the depreciation method applied at least at

each year-end, and makes adjustments if necessary.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2020

III. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)

16.

17.

Construction in progress

The cost of construction in progress is determined according to
the actual expenditure incurred for the construction, including all
necessary construction expenditure incurred during the construction
period, borrowing costs that shall be capitalized before the
construction gets ready for its intended use and other relevant
expenses. No provision is made for construction in progress. A
construction in progress is transferred to fixed asset when the asset is

ready for its intended use.

Contract asset and liability

Contracts with customers will be presented in the Group’s balance
sheet as a contract liability or a contract asset, depending on the
relationship between the Group’s performance and the customer’s

payment.

17.1 Contract asset
Contract assets refer to the Group’s right to receive
consideration for the transfer of goods to its customers,
which depends on factors other than the passage of time.
The Group’s unconditional (i.e., depending only on the
passage of time) right to collect consideration from customers

is shown separately as receivables.

The Group’s method for determining and accounting for
expected credit losses which are related to contract assets are
detailed in Note II1.9.

17.2 Contract liability
A contract liability is presented in the balance sheet where an
amount of consideration has been received or is receivable by
the Group prior to the Group performing by transferring the

related good or service to the customer.

The Group offsets the contract assets and contract liabilities
under the same contract and presents them on the balance

sheet as a net amount.

I 2% BT (4
2020F 14 1HZ6H30H 1 5iE

= 2 HBOR K| atk A wt
(%)

16.

17.

HEEIR

ERTRRARERTE HHEE -
BREEZHRELENESELETIEX
o TA2 5% B FEE AJ (6 IR AR A A R
TERMEMERER N R EMERE
RE - EETENRFTE - EET
TR E R TAE Al AR R A B E

EREERSREAAE
AEBRBETEOESRESNK
ZEMBEEAEERERTIIRAM
BERARAE -

1716REE

ARBEEALEBECARFPE
B G AERERY B
FIl B3 R EUR A B R s
ZHOMEMEE - £EBEES
H9 AU (B - BBURR R
TR ) 6% 5 U HR B 0 B ) 4
B WRIEDR

AEBBEREENAYRER
BANEESEREFEETN
EHAME= 9

17.26R&E1%E
AEEBE R R EKE S HE
MERNEFEER DN ESE
RERBEINTR  WEEAE
R Y P T 2 BT B IR B9 3K
I8 o

AEBEKR—-—ARTHERE
EMaRAGEHEEEERNLF
BRI ©



Interim Report 2020 s 91

5 i 2 M 5 (48
20201 H1HZ26H30H 1-HifE

= I 2 BOR K| at Al wt
(%)

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2020

III. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)

18. Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are interest and other costs incurred by the Group
in connection with the borrowing of the funds. Borrowing costs
include interest, amortization of discounts or premiums related
to borrowings, ancillary costs incurred in connection with the
arrangement of borrowings, and exchange differences arising from

foreign currency borrowings.

The borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of a qualifying asset are capitalized. The
amounts of other borrowing costs incurred are recognized as an
expense in the period in which they are incurred. Qualifying assets
are assets (fixed assets, investment property and inventories, etc.)
that necessarily take a substantial period of time for acquisition,
construction or production to get ready for their intended use or

sale.

The capitalization of borrowing costs commences only when all of

the following conditions are satisfied:

(1) expenditures for the asset are being incurred,;

(2)  borrowing costs are being incurred;

(3) activities relating to the acquisition, construction or
production of the asset that are necessary to prepare the asset

for its intended use or sale have commenced.

Capitalization of borrowing costs ceases when the qualifying asset
being acquired, constructed or produced becomes ready for its
intended use or sale. Any borrowing costs subsequently incurred are

recognized as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2020

III. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)
18. Borrowing costs (Continued)

During the capitalization period, the amount of interest to be

capitalized for each accounting period shall be determined as

follows:

)

where funds are borrowed for a specific purpose, the amount
of interest to be capitalized is the actual interest expense
incurred on that borrowing for the period less any bank
interest earned form depositing the borrowed funds or any
investment income on the temporary investment of those

funds.

where funds are borrowed for a general purpose, the amount
of interest to be capitalized on such borrowings is determined
by applying a weighted average interest rate to the weighted
average of the excess amounts of accumulated expenditure
on the asset over and above the amounts of specific-purpose

borrowings.

Capitalization of borrowing costs is suspended during periods in

which the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying

asset is interrupted by activities other than those necessary to

prepare the asset for its intended use or sale, when the interruption

is for a continuous period of more than 3 months. Borrowing costs

incurred during these periods are recognized as an expense for the

current period until the acquisition, construction or production is

resumed.

5 i 2 M 5 (48
2020F 14 1HZ6H30H 1 5iE

= 2 HBOR K| atk A wt

(%)

18. ERER(E)
EENMCEBRERN - BB
BERESE BB ERTE -

(M

Ha

EFERAEMERZLENN
BEBR  BREELHENTRHN
BWASE K E W R RO REE

TE °

HRN-—RER  RERAE
EXHBBREFMERBLOINE
E 32 N SE 18 BOR LA P45 A
—MRAE A N F B R R Gt E
HEE o

BEXRLGEHENEEEREZRHEL

ERiET  BEREINRETEANL
EAHEREUNENERF ZIMIELE
B BdhEREEEBEE3IEA

B -

ERERERNERNL - £

HRBRANEREREZSER « 5
AEHELD B EENBEREL
ERBEHMRES -



Interim Report 2020 FHEAZRE

5 i 2 M 5 (48
20201 H1HZ26H30H 1-HifE

ENRY: S g i vl
(748)
19. BILEE
PIEFEEFERE  FH

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2020

III. Significant Accounting Policies and Accounting
Estimates (Continued)
19. Intangible assets
19.1 Valuation method, useful life, impairment test for

intangible assets

An intangible asset shall be recognized only when it is
probable that the economic benefit associated with the
asset will flow to the Group and the cost of the asset can
be measured reliably. Intangible assets are measured initially
at cost. However, intangible assets acquired in a business
combination with a fair value that can be measured reliably
are recognized separately as intangible assets and initially

measured at the fair value.

The useful life of an intangible asset is determined according
to the period over which it is expected to generate economic
benefits for the Group. An intangible asset is regarded as
having an indefinite useful life when there is no foreseeable
limit to the period over which the asset is expected to

generate economic benefits for the Group.

The expected useful lives of the intangible assets are as

=0 RERH

BREEEEREGRANER
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[tem Expected useful lives (years)
HH T RSE®(F)
Patents ¥R 3] 3-20
Trademark rights PEAZE A 10 /indefinite NHEE
License R 3-15
Land use rights + b {55 R A 30-50
Orders on hand EFETE 1-25
Customer relationship EEBRE 2-17
Software ;i 2-10
Others Hi 3-10
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2020

III. Significant Accounting Policies and Accounting
Estimates (Continued)
19. Intangible assets (Continued)
19.1 Valuation method, useful life, impairment test for
intangible assets (Continued)
Land use rights that are acquired by the Group are generally
accounted for as intangible assets. Buildings, such as plants
that are developed and constructed by the Group, and
relevant land use rights and buildings, are accounted for as
intangible assets and fixed assets, respectively. Payments
for the land and buildings acquired are allocated between
the land use rights and the buildings; if they cannot be
reasonably allocated, all of the land use rights and buildings

are accounted for as fixed assets.

An intangible asset with a finite useful life is amortized using
the straight-line method over its useful life. For an intangible
asset with a finite useful life, the Group reviews the useful
life and amortization method at least at each year-end and

makes adjustment if necessary.

An intangible asset with an indefinite useful life is tested for
impairment at least once every year, irrespective of whether
there is any indication that the asset may be impaired. This
category of intangible assets will not be amortized and will
be reviewed every accounting period based on its useful life.
If evidence indicates that its useful life is limited, the asset will
be accounted for in accordance to the policy for intangible

asset with definite useful life stated above.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2020

III. Significant Accounting Policies and Accounting
Estimates (Continued)
19. Intangible assets (Continued)
19.2 Expenditure on an internal research and development
Expenditure on the research phase is recognized in profit or

loss for the period in which it is incurred.

Expenditure in the development phase is recognised as
intangible asset when the following criteria are met.
Expenditure on the development phase which cannot met all
of the following conditions are recognized in current profit or

loss:

(1) the technical feasibility of completing the intangible

asset so that it will be available for use or sale;

(2)  the intention to complete the intangible asset and use

or sell it;

(3)  how the intangible asset will generate probable future
economic benefits. Among other things, the Group can
demonstrate the existence of a market for the output
of the intangible asset or the intangible asset itself
or, if it is to be used internally, the usefulness of the

intangible asset;

(4)  the availability of adequate technical, financial and
other resources to complete the development and the

ability to use or sell the intangible asset; and

(5) its ability to measure reliably the expenditure
attributable to the intangible asset during its

development.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2020

III. Significant Accounting Policies and Accounting
Estimates (Continued)
19. Intangible assets (Continued)
19.2 Expenditure on an internal research and development
(Continued)
If the expenditures cannot be distinguished between research
phase and development phase, the Company recognizes
all expenditures into current profit or loss. The cost of the
internally developed intangible assets only include the total
expenditures incurred from the point of time at which the
conditions for capitalisation are met until the intangible assets
are ready for intended use. No adjustment is made to the
costs already expensed in the profit or loss incurred by the
identical intangible asset before it satisfies the conditions for

capitalisation in the development phase.

20. Impairment of assets
The Group determines the impairment of assets, other than the
impairment of inventories, deferred income taxes, financial assets,
contract assets and assets classified as held-for-sale, using the

following methods:

The Group assesses at the balance sheet date whether there is any
indication that an asset may be impaired. If any indication exists
that an asset may be impaired, the Group estimates the recoverable
amount of the asset and performs test for impairment. Goodwill
arising from a business combination and an intangible asset with an
indefinite useful life are tested for impairment at least at each year-
end, irrespective of whether there is any indication that the asset
may be impaired. Intangible assets that have not been ready for

intended use are tested for impairment each year.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2020

III. Significant Accounting Policies and Accounting
Estimates (Continued)
20. Impairment of assets (Continued)

The recoverable amount of an asset is the higher of its fair value less
costs to sell and the present value of the future cash flow expected
to be derived from the asset. The Group estimates the recoverable
amount on an individual basis. If it is not possible to estimate the
recoverable amount of the individual asset, the Group determines
the recoverable amount of the asset group to which the asset
belongs. Identification of an asset group is based on whether major
cash inflows generated by the asset group are largely independent

of the cash inflows from other assets or asset groups.

When the recoverable amount of an asset or asset group is less
than its carrying amount, the carrying amount is reduced to the
recoverable amount. The reduction in carrying amount is recognized
in profit or loss for the current period. A provision for impairment of

the asset is recognized accordingly.

For the purpose of impairment testing, the carrying amount of
goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated from the
acquisition date on a reasonable basis, to each of the related asset
groups; if it is impossible to allocate to the related asset groups,
it is allocated to each of the related sets of asset groups. Each of
the related asset groups or sets of asset groups is an asset group
or set of asset group that is able to benefit from the synergies of
the business combination and shall not be larger than a reportable

segment determined by the Group.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2020

III. Significant Accounting Policies and Accounting
Estimates (Continued)
20. Impairment of assets (Continued)
In testing an asset group or a set of asset groups to which goodwill
has been allocated for impairment, if there is any indication of
impairment, the Group firstly tests the asset group or set of
asset groups excluding the amount of goodwill allocated for
impairment, determines the recoverable amount and recognizes
any impairment loss. After that, the Group tests the asset group or
set of asset groups including goodwill for impairment, whereby the
carrying amount of the related asset group or set of asset groups
is compared to its recoverable amount. If the carrying amount of
the asset group or set of asset groups is higher than its recoverable
amount, the amount of the impairment loss firstly reduces the
carrying amount of the goodwill allocated to the asset group or
set of asset groups, and then reduce the carrying amount of other
assets (other than the goodwill) within the asset group or set of asset

groups, pro-rata on the basis of the carrying amount of each asset.

Once the above impairment loss of assets is recognized, it cannot

be reversed in subsequent accounting periods.
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II. Significant Accounting Policies and Accounting = - % & 5 B & & & 51 6 5

J

Estimates (Continued) (%)
21. Long-term prepaid expenses 2. REISEER
Long-term prepaid expenses are amortized using straight-line REGFHEBERERAER RSN - #H
method with amortization period as follows: AR -
Amortization period
[tem (years)
EgE BHEE ()
Industrial mould fee THEEAES 1-5
Industrial equipment fee T zEESE 5
Expenditure on improvement of fixed assets HMABREEERR T The shorter of useful life and lease term
leased in RS mEAEHE
22. Payroll 22. BT HE
22.1 Accounting treatment for short-term remuneration 22V EHEMN G RIES A
Short-term remuneration actually incurred during the AEEERITRHEEHRED
accounting period in which the staff members provide SEHME - BERZEAEH
services are recognized as liability and taken to the profit and FMERABE Wit AEH
loss for the current period or the costs of the relevant asset. BadBEEENE - A&
The Group recognises the amount of employee benefits that BENBIENE  EEERE
actually occurred and charged to profit or loss for the current ERBEERZEEBTASH
period or cost of relevant assets. Employee benefits are non- BRdHEEEXRN - BITR
monetary benefits measured at fair value. FERFEEBEMERME - LR

DA BENE -
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) FR 5 R BT 5T (48)
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II. Significant Accounting Policies and Accounting = - % & 5 B & & & 51 16 5t
Estimates (Continued) (%)
22. Payroll (Continued) 22. BT HM (&)

22.1 Accounting treatment for short-term remuneration RIAERFM T ERE LA
(Continued) (%)
During the accounting period in which employees render PiNE=S Iﬁ’jﬂﬁkl%{%ﬁ’j f{%ﬁ
service, medical insurance, work-related injury insurance, B -IERBE £ERR
maternity insurance and other social security contributions Zit & R Lg”lﬂl FERAES -
and housing provident fund paid by the Group, as well as URAEEZRBTEFRINIE

labour union funds and employees’ education expenses
extracted by requirement are taken into account in
determining the amount of staff remuneration based on

the required accrual basis and proportions and in turn the

RENMBIHEKE EBRT
BAKBERHERS NS H
B RIBREMNFHRER MG
R PIG EREEARENR T H

corresponding liabilities, which are charged to profit or loss <% MRAEEE X5t
for the current period or cost of relevant assets. AEHEESIEEEEKR -
22.2 Accounting treatment for post-employment benefits R2EBErEENNETRES
A
Post-employment benefits are classified into defined BREEN S BARTIREM
contribution plans and defined benefit plans. SRR E X wat &l o

22.2.1 Defined contribution plan 221 REWEFZ
In the accounting period in which employees render AREFBEB T AERER
services, the amount payable under the defined B estHE - BRER

ERFAEFENEAT
THRERARE  LAtA

contribution plan is recognised as liability and charged

to profit or loss for the current period or cost of

relevant assets. EMEENEEEER
N o

The employees of the Group participate in pension AEBNEE T2 IHEH

insurance and unemployment insurance administered BREENSZREBAE

by local governments, as well as annuity plan. The EREB B2NTLERF

& - HEXHAERERE
AEBEEKRANLE B

o

relevant expenditure is recognized, when incurred, in

the costs of relevant assets or the profit or loss for the

JS

current period.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) Wb 15 ¥ 25 BT 5E (48
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II. Significant Accounting Policies and Accounting = - % & 5 B & & & 51 6 5
Estimates (Continued) (748)
22. Payroll (Continued) 22. BT 5™ (&)
22.2 Accounting treatment for post-employment benefits D2BBERNN ST RIES
(Continued) = (&)

2222 Defined benefit plan 2222 BRE?

The benefit obligation under defined benefit plan
based on the formula determined by projected unit
credit method would be vested to the service period of
the staff and charged to current profit or loss or cost
of relevant assets. Some overseas subsidiaries of the
Group operate defined benefit pension plans, under
which contributions shall be made to a separately-

administered fund.

The service costs and the net interest on the net
liabilities or net assets under the defined benefit plan
would be taken to the current profit or loss or cost of
relevant assets. The changes generated from the re-
measurement of the net liabilities or net assets under
the defined benefit plan (including actuarial gains or
losses, return on assets under the plan, less the amount
included in the net interest on net liabilities or net assets
under defined benefit plan, changes under the effect
of maximum assets, less the amount included in the
net interest on net liabilities or net assets under defined
benefit plans) would be taken to other comprehensive

income.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2020

III. Significant Accounting Policies and Accounting
Estimates (Continued)
22. Payroll (Continued)
22.2 Accounting treatment for post-employment benefits
(Continued)

2222

Defined benefit plan (Continued)

Net interest is calculated by multiplying the net liabilities
or net assets under the defined benefit plan with the
discount rate. Changes in the net obligations under the
defined benefit plan are recognized under cost of sales,
selling expenses, general and administrative expenses,
research & development expenses and finance expenses
in the income statement. Costs of services include costs
of services for the current period, costs of services for
previous periods, and gains or losses on settlement.
Net interest includes interest income accrued upon
assets under the plan, interest expenses incurred due
to obligations under the plan, and interest under the

effect of maximum assets.

22.3 Accounting treatment for severance benefits

Where the Group provides severance benefits to its

employees, payroll payable arising from such severance

benefits are recognized on the earlier of the following dates

and included in profit or loss for the current period: when

the Group is unable to unilaterally withdraw the severance

benefits provided under its plan to terminate working

relationship with employees or redundancy plan; or when the

Group recognizes costs or expenses relating to reorganization

involving the payment of severance benefits.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2020

III. Significant Accounting Policies and Accounting
Estimates (Continued)
22. Payroll (Continued)

22.4 Other long-term staff benefits

For other long-term staff benefits, the items conforming

to the conditions of defined contribution plan are treated

according to the requirements in the defined contribution

plans, whereas the rest are recognised and measured as net

liabilities or net assets under other long-term staff benefits

according to the defined benefit plan. At the end of reporting

period, staff costs under other long-term staff benefits are

recognised as three components, namely service cost, net

interest on net liabilities or net assets under other long-term

staff benefits and changes upon re-measurement of net

liabilities or assets under other long-term staff benefits. The

total net amount of these items is included in profit or loss

for the current period or the cost of relevant assets.

23. Accruals and provisions
Except for contingent consideration transferred and contingent
liability assumed in business combinations involving entities not
under common control, the Group recognizes an obligation related
to a contingency as a provision when all of the following conditions

are satisfied:

(1)  the obligation is a present obligation of the Group;

(2) it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits from the
Group will be required to settle the obligation;

(3)  the amount of the obligation can be measured reliably.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2020

III. Significant Accounting Policies and Accounting
Estimates (Continued)

23.

24,

Accruals and provisions (Continued)

A provision is initially measured at the best estimate of the
expenditure required to settle the related present obligation,
with comprehensive consideration of factors such as the risks,
uncertainty and time value of money relating to a contingency. The
carrying amount of a provision is reviewed at the balance sheet
date. If there is clear evidence that the carrying amount does not
reflect the current best estimate, the carrying amount is adjusted to

the best estimate.

A contingent liability recognized in a business combination from
the acquiree is initially measured at its fair value. Subsequently, it is
measured at the higher of the amount that would be recognized for
provisions above; and the amount initially recognized less, when
appropriate, cumulative amortization recognized in accordance with

the principle of revenue recognition.

Share-based payments

Share-based payments can be distinguished into equity-settled
share-based payments and cash-settled share-based payments.
Equity-settled share-based payments are transactions of the Group
settled through the payment of shares or other equity instruments

in consideration for receiving services.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2020

III. Significant Accounting Policies and Accounting
Estimates (Continued)

24,

Share-based payments (Continued)

Equity-settled share-based payments made in exchange for
services rendered by employees are measured at the fair value of
equity instruments granted to employees. Instruments which are
vested immediately upon the grant are charged to relevant costs
or expenses at the fair value on the date of grant and the capital
reserve is credited accordingly. Equity instruments of subsidiaries
granted to employees of subsidiaries are taken to minority interests
in the consolidated financial statements. Instruments of which
vesting is conditional upon completion of services or fulfillment
of performance conditions are measured by recognizing services
rendered during the period in relevant costs or expenses and
crediting the capital reserve accordingly at the fair value on the date
of grant according to the best estimates conducted by the Group
at each balance sheet date during the pending period based on
subsequent information such as latest updates on the change in the
number of entitled employees and whether performance conditions
have been fulfilled, and etc. Equity instruments of subsidiaries
granted to employees of subsidiaries are taken to minority interests

in the consolidated financial statements.

No cost or expense is recognized for awards that do not ultimately
vest, except where vesting is conditional upon a market or non-
vesting condition, which are treated as vesting irrespective of
whether or not the market or non-vesting condition is satisfied,

provided that all non-market conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled share-based payment are
modified, as a minimum, services obtained are recognized as if the
terms had not been modified. In addition, an expense is recognized
for any modification which increases the total fair value of the

instrument granted, or is otherwise beneficial to the employee.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2020

III. Significant Accounting Policies and Accounting
Estimates (Continued)
24. Share-based payments (Continued)
Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if it
had vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense not
yet recognized for the award is recognized immediately. Where
employees or other parties are permitted to choose to fulfill non-
vesting conditions but have not fulfilled during the pending period,
equity-settled share-based payments are deemed cancelled.
However, if a new award is substituted for the cancelled award, and
designated as a replacement award on the date that it is granted,
the new awards are treated as if they were a modification of the

original award.

A cash-settled share-based payment shall be measured in
accordance with the fair value of liability calculated and confirmed
based on the shares or other equity instruments undertaken by the
Group. If the right may be exercised immediately after the grant,
the fair value of the liability undertaken by the enterprise shall, on
the date of the grant, be included in the relevant costs or expenses,
and the liabilities shall be increased accordingly. If the right may
not be exercised until services are completed or until the specified
performance conditions are met during the vesting period, the
services obtained in the current period shall, based on the best
estimate of the information about the exercisable right, be included
in the relevant costs or expenses at the fair value of the liability
undertaken by the enterprise, and the liabilities shall be increased
accordingly. On each balance sheet date prior to settlement of
the relevant liabilities and on the settlement date, the fair value of
the liability is re-measured and any change of fair value is taken to

profit or loss for the current period.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2020

II. Significant Accounting Policies and Accounting = - % & 5 B & & & 51 6 5
Estimates (Continued) (748)
25. Revenue 25. A

The Group recognises revenue based on the transaction price
allocated to such performance obligation when a performance

|u

obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the goods or services
underlying the particular performance obligation is transferred to
the customer. A performance obligation represents the commitment
that a good or service that is distinct shall be transferred by the
Group to the customer. Transaction price refers to the amount
of consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled in
exchange of transferring goods or services to a customer, excluding
the amount received on behalf of third parties and the amount that

the Group expects to return to a customer.

It is a performance obligation satisfied during a period of time if
one of the following conditions is met: (1) the customer obtains and
consumes economic benefits provided by the Group’s performance
as the Group performs; (2) the customer is able to control goods
in progress during the Group's performance; (3) goods generated
during the Group’s performance have no alternative use, and
the Group is entitled to payments for performance completed to
date. Otherwise, the Group will recognise revenue at the point in
time when the customer obtains control of the relevant goods or

services.

The Group adopts the input method to determine performance
schedules, namely according to the Group’s input into the
performance of contractual obligations. When the performance
progress cannot be determined, the Group is expected to be
reimbursed for the costs already incurred and recognize the revenue
based on the costs already incurred until the performance progress

can be reasonably determined.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2020

III. Significant Accounting Policies and Accounting
Estimates (Continued)
25. Revenue (Continued)
If there are two or more of performance obligations included in
the contract, at the contract inception, the Group allocates the
transaction price to each single performance obligation based on
the relative proportion of stand-alone selling prices of goods or
services promised in single performance obligation. However, if
there is conclusive evidence indicating that the contract discount
or variable consideration is only relative with one or more (not the
whole) performance obligations in the contract, the Group will
allocate the contract discount or variable consideration to relative
one or more performance obligations. Stand-alone selling price is
a price at which the Group would sell goods or services separately
to a customer. The stand-alone selling price cannot be observed
directly, the Group estimates the stand-alone selling price through
comprehensive consideration of all reasonably acquired relative

information and maximum use of observable inputs.

Variable consideration

Where variable consideration exists in the Group’s contracts, the
best estimate of variable consideration is arrived at using either
an expected value or most likely outcome method. Transaction
price comprising the variable consideration does not exceed the
amount that it is highly probable that there will not be a significant
reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognized when
the uncertainty is resolved. On each balance sheet date, the Group
re-estimates the amount of variable consideration that should be

included in the transaction price.

Consideration payable to customers

Where consideration payable to customers exists in a contract, it is
set off against transaction price and is applied against revenue for
the current period at the later of the point at which the relevant
revenue is recognized and the point of payment of (or commitment
to pay) consideration to customers, unless the consideration payable

is for obtaining other distinct goods or services from the customers.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2020

II. Significant Accounting Policies and Accounting = - % & 5 B & & & 51 6 5
Estimates (Continued) (748)
25. Revenue (Continued) 25. WA (&)

Sales with quality assurance terms attached

For sales with quality assurance terms, if the quality assurance
provides a separate service to the customer other than ensuring
that the goods or services sold meet the pre-determined standards,
the quality assurance constitutes a single performance obligation.
Otherwise, the Group will account for the quality assurance
obligation in accordance with the Accounting Standards for

Business Enterprises No. 13 — Contingencies.

A principal/an agent

The Group determines whether it is a principal or an agent at the
time of the transaction based on whether it owns the control of
the goods or services before the transfer of such goods or services
to the customer. Where the Group is in control of that good or
service prior to transferring the same to a customer, the Group
is a principal, and revenue shall be recognized based on the
total consideration received or receivable. Otherwise, the Group
is an agent, and revenue shall be recognized at the amount of
commissions or service charges expected to be entitled to collect,
and such amount shall be determined based on net amount of total
consideration received or receivable less amounts payable to other
related parties, or based on the pre-determined commissions or

proportions.

Except for the income arising from contracts with customers,
income of the Group includes interest income and lease income
from daily operating activities. For details of relevant accounting

policies, please refer to Note Ill. 9 and Note IIl. 28.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2020

III. Significant Accounting Policies and Accounting
Estimates (Continued)

26.

Government grants

Government grant is recognized when the Group can comply with
the conditions attached to it and it can be received. Government
grant is classified as asset-related government grant and income-
related government grant. Government grant for purchasing,
building or otherwise forming long-term assets is recognized as
one related to assets. Otherwise it is recognized as one related to

income.

If a government grant is in the form of a transfer of monetary asset,
it is measured at the amount received or receivable. If a government
grant is in the form of a transfer of non-monetary asset, it is
measured at fair value; if fair value is not reliably determinable, it is

measured at a nominal amount.

An asset-related government grant is recognized as deferred
income and recognized in profit or loss by stages over the useful life
of the related assets in a reasonable and systematic way. However,
a government grant measured at a nominal amount is recognized
directly in profit or loss for the current period. A government grant
related to income is accounted for as follows: if the grant is a
compensation for related costs expenses or losses to be incurred
in subsequent periods, the grant is recognized as deferred income,
and recognized in profit or loss over the periods in which the related
costs are recognized; if the grant is a compensation for related costs
expenses or losses already incurred, it is recognized immediately in

profit or loss for the current period.

Government grant related to daily operations is recognized in
other income. Government grant not related to daily operations is

recognized in non-operating income.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2020

III. Significant Accounting Policies and Accounting
Estimates (Continued)

27.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax is
recognized as income or an expense in profit or loss for the current
period, except that it is a goodwill adjustment arising from business
combination, or transactions or events recognized directly in
shareholders’ equity or other comprehensive income, in which case
they are recognized in shareholders’ equity or other comprehensive

income.

The Group measures a current tax asset or liability arising from
the current and prior period based on the amount of income tax
expected to be paid by the Group or returned by tax authority

calculated by related tax laws.

For temporary differences at the balance sheet date between the
tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts, and
temporary differences between the carrying amounts and the
tax bases of items, the tax bases of which can be determined for
tax purposes, but which have not been recognized as assets and
liabilities according to the tax laws, deferred taxes are provided using
the liability method.

A deferred tax liability is recognized for all taxable temporary

differences, except:

(1)  where the taxable temporary differences arise from the
initial recognition of goodwill, or the initial recognition of an
asset or liability in a transaction which contains both of the
following characteristics: the transaction is not a business
combination; and at the time of the transaction, it affects

neither accounting profit nor taxable profit or deductible loss.

(2) in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates,
where the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences
can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary

differences will not be reversed in the foreseeable future.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2020

III. Significant Accounting Policies and Accounting

Estimates (Continued)
27. Income tax (Continued)

A deferred tax asset is recognized for deductible temporary
differences, carryforward of deductible tax losses from prior years
and tax credits, to the extent that it is probable that future taxable
profit will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences, and deductible tax losses and tax credits can be utilized,

except:

(1) where the deductible temporary differences arises from a
transaction that is not a business combination and, at the
time of the transaction, neither the accounting profit nor

taxable profit or deductible loss is affected.

(2)  in respect of the deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates,
a deferred tax asset is only recognized to the extent that it
is probable that the temporary differences will be reversed
in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences can be

utilized in the future.

At the balance sheet date, deferred tax assets and liabilities are
measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period
when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, according to the
requirements of tax laws. The measurement of deferred tax assets
and deferred tax liabilities reflects the tax consequences that would
follow from the manner in which the Group expects at the balance

sheet date, to recover the assets or settle the liabilities.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2020

III. Significant Accounting Policies and Accounting
Estimates (Continued)

27.

28.

Income tax (Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available in future
periods to allow the deferred tax assets to be utilized. Deferred tax
assets previously written down are reversed to the extent that it has
become probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to

allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities presented on a
net basis are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities on a net basis and
the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same

taxation authority.

Leases
A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right
to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in

exchange for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified on or after the date of initial
application, the Group assesses whether a contract is or contains
a lease at inception/modification date. Such contract will not be
reassessed unless the terms and conditions of the contract are

subsequently changed.
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HRBORHAERDE

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

1 January to 30 June 2020

III. Significant Accounting Policies and Accounting
Estimates (Continued)
28. Leases (Continued)
28.1 The Group as lessee

28.1.1 Right-of-use assets

Except for short-term leases and leases of low value
assets, the Group recognises right-of-use assets at the
commencement date of the lease (i.e. the date on
which the leased asset is made available by the lessor
for the Group’s use. The right-of-use asset is initially

measured at cost. This cost includes:

the initial measurement amount of the lease

liabilities;

any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, less the relevant amount
of any lease incentives received (where lease

incentives are available);

any initial direct costs incurred by the Group;

an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group
in dismantling and removing the underlying
assets, restoring the site on which it is located or
restoring the underlying asset to the condition
required by the terms and conditions of the

lease.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2020

III. Significant Accounting Policies and Accounting
Estimates (Continued)
28. Leases (Continued)
28.1 The Group as lessee (Continued)

28.1.1

28.1.2

Right-of-use assets (Continued)

The Group made provisions for depreciation of right-
of-use assets in accordance with the depreciation
requirements under the Accounting Standards for
Business Enterprises No. 4 — Fixed Assets. Right-of-
use assets in which the Group is reasonably certain
to obtain ownership of the underlying leased assets
at the end of the lease term is depreciated over the
remaining useful life. Otherwise, right-of-use assets are
depreciated over the shorter of its remaining useful life

and the lease term.

The Group determines whether impairment has
occurred in the right-of-use asset and accounts for the
recognised impairment losses according to Accounting
Standards for Business Enterprises No. 8 — Assets

Impairment.

Lease liabilities

Except for share-term leases and leases of low value
assets, at the commencement date of a lease, the
Group initially measures the lease liability at the present
value of lease payments that are unpaid at that date.
In calculating the present value of lease payments, the
Group uses the interest rate implicit in the lease as
discount rate. If the interest rate implicit in the lease is
not readily determinable, the incremental borrowing

rate will be adopted as discount rate.
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116  Weichai Power Co., Ltd.

HRBORHAERDE

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

1 January to 30 June 2020

III. Significant Accounting Policies and Accounting
Estimates (Continued)
28. Leases (Continued)
28.1 The Group as lessee (Continued)
28.1.2 Lease liabilities (Continued)

Lease payment refers to the amount paid by the Group
to the lessor relating to the right to use an underlying

asset during the lease term, including:

fixed payments and in-substance fixed payments
less the relevant amount of any lease incentives

(where lease incentives are available);

variable lease payments that depend on an index

or a rate;

the exercise price of a purchase option

reasonably certain to be exercised by the Group;

payments of penalties for terminating a lease, if
the lease term reflects the Group exercising the

option to terminate;

amounts expected to be paid by the Group

under residual value guarantees.
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III. Significant Accounting Policies and Accounting = I % & 5t B %K & & 51 6 5t
Estimates (Continued) (%)
28. Leases (Continued) 28. HE(8H\)
28.1 The Group as lessee (Continued) 28 1 AEEERAMAE)
2812 Lease liabilities (Continued) 2812 HEBE (&)

Variable lease payments that depend on an index or
a ratio, are initially measured using the index or rate
at the commencement date of a lease. Variable lease
payments that are not included in the measurement
of the lease liability are recognised in profit or loss or

related asset costs when incurred.

Upon commencement of the lease term, the Group
calculates the interest expense of the lease liabilities for
each period of the lease term based on a fixed periodic
interest rate, and recognized in profit or loss for the

current period or the costs of the relevant asset.

After the commencement date of the lease, the
Group re-measures the lease liabilities and adjusts
the corresponding right-of-use asset in the following

circumstances:

o the lease term has changed or there is a change
in the assessment of exercise of a purchase
option, in which case the Group re-measures
the lease liabilities by discounting the present
value of revised lease payments using a revised

discount rate;

o the expected lease payments under a guaranteed
residual value or the index or rate determining
the lease payments change, in which cases
the Group re-measures the lease liabilities by
discounting the present value of revised lease

payments using the original discount rate.
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III. Significant Accounting Policies and Accounting
Estimates (Continued)
28. Leases (Continued)
28.1 The Group as lessee (Continued)

2813

2814

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group elects not to recognize the right-of-use
assets and lease liabilities for short-term leases and
low-value asset leases of vehicles, machinery and
equipment and office buildings. Short-term leases are
leases with a lease term of 12 months or less from the
commencement date and do not contain a purchase
option. A lease of low value asset refers to a single
lease asset which, when new, is of low value. Lease
payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value
assets are recognised in profit or loss or the cost of
underlying assets on a straight-line basis over the lease

term.

Lease modifications
If the lease changes and meets the following
conditions, the Group will account for the lease

modification as a separate lease:

o the lease modification increases the scope of
the lease by adding the right to use one or more

leased assets;

o the consideration increases by an amount
commensurate with the stand-alone price for the
increase in scope and any adjustments to that
stand-alone price to reflect the circumstances of

the particular contract.
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II. Significant Accounting Policies and Accounting = - % & 5t B & & & 51 6 5t
Estimates (Continued) (%)
28. Leases (Continued) 28. HE(8H\)
28.1 The Group as lessee (Continued) 28 1 AREBEAFEREA(E)
28.1.4 Lease modifications (Continued) 14 FHEZF (&)

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as a
separate lease, the Group re-allocates the consideration
in the revised contract, re-determines the lease term
and re-measures the lease liability by discounting the
present value of the revised lease payments using a
revised discount rate at the effective date of the lease

modification.

If the lease change results in a reduction in the scope
of lease or the term of lease, the Group reduces
the carrying amount of the right-of-use assets and
recognises the related gains or losses on the partly
or fully terminated lease in the current profit or loss.
If other lease changes result in the re-measurement
of the lease liability, the Group adjusts the carrying

amount of the right-of-use assets accordingly.
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III. Significant Accounting Policies and Accounting
Estimates (Continued)
28. Leases (Continued)
28.2 The Group as lessor

2821

2822

Separating components of a lease

For a contract that contains lease and non-lease
components, the Group shall allocate the consideration
of the contract by applying Accounting Standards for
Business Enterprises No.14 — Revenue in respect of
allocation of transaction price, on the basis of their

respective stand-alone selling prices.

Classification of leases

Leases that substantially transfer all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of assets are
accounted for as finance leases; otherwise, it is an

operating lease.

28221 The Group records operating leasing business as
a lessor
The Group recognises lease payments from
operating leases as lease income on a straight-
line basis in different periods over the lease term.
The Group capitalises initial direct costs incurred
in relation to an operating lease and apportions
such amount over the lease term on the same
basis as that used for lease income. Such amount
will be taken to profit or loss for the current

period by stages.

The Group recognises any variable lease
payments relating to operating lease not included
in the lease payments as income, in profit or loss

for the current period as incurred.
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II. Significant Accounting Policies and Accounting = - % & 5t B & & & 51 6 5t
Estimates (Continued) (%)
28. Leases (Continued) 28. HE(8H\)

282 AR EERBHEANE)
2822 ME 74 (#E)

28.2 The Group as lessor (Continued)

28.2.2 Classification of leases (Continued)

28222 The Group records finance leasing business as a BLLAEEIEALEA
lessor EREm A E X
On the commencement date of the lease, the RESHMABA -
Group adopts the net lease investment as the AEBNBRERE
recorded value of the financial lease receivables FEEREREE

and derecognises the finance lease assets.
The net lease investment is the sum of the
unguaranteed residual value and the present
value of outstanding lease payments at the
commencement date of the lease which are
discounted using the interest rate implicit in the

lease.

Lease payments refer to the amount that the
Group should collect from the lessee for the
purpose of transferring the leased assets during

the lease term, including:

o fixed payments and in-substance fixed
payments required to be paid by lessee,
less any lease incentives (where lease

incentives are available);

3 variable lease payments that depend on an

index or a rate;
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2020

II1.

Significant Accounting Policies and Accounting
Estimates (Continued)
28. Leases (Continued)
28.2 The Group as lessor (Continued)
28.2.2 Classification of leases (Continued)
28222 The Group records finance leasing business as a

lessor (Continued)

o the exercise price of a purchase option
reasonably certain to be exercised by the

lessee;

o payments for exercising the option to
terminate the lease, if the lease term
reflects that the lessee will exercise an

option to terminate the lease;

° any residual value guarantees provided to
the Group by the lessee, a party related to
the lessee and an independent third party
that is financially capable of discharging

the obligations under the guarantee.
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1 January to 30 June 2020

III. Significant Accounting Policies and Accounting
Estimates (Continued)
28. Leases (Continued)
28.2 The Group as lessor (Continued)
28.2.2 Classification of leases (Continued)
28222 The Group records finance leasing business as a

lessor (Continued)

Variable lease payments that are not included in
the measurement of net lease investments are
recognized in profit or loss for the current period

as incurred.

Interest income in each period during the lease
term are calculated and recognized by the Group

using the fixed periodic rate of interest.

2823 Lease modifications
The Group accounts for a modification to an operating
lease as a new lease from the effective date of the
modification, considering any prepaid or accrued lease
payments relating to the original lease as part of the

lease payments for the new lease.

If the finance lease changes and meets the following
conditions, the Group accounts for a lease modification

as a separate lease:

o the modification expands the scope of the lease
by increasing the right to use one or more leased

assets;

o the consideration increases by an amount
commensurate with the stand-alone price for the
increase in scope and any adjustments to that
stand-alone price to reflect the circumstances of

the particular contract.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

1 January to 30 June 2020

III. Significant Accounting Policies and Accounting
Estimates (Continued)
28. Leases (Continued)
28.2 The Group as lessor (Continued)

28.23 Lease modifications (Continued)

If the modification of the finance lease is not accounted
for as a separate lease, the Group will account for the

lease modification in the following cases:

If the lease is classified as an operating lease
when the modification becomes effective at
the commencement date, the Group begins
accounting for the lease modification as a new
lease from the effective date of the modification
and uses the net lease investment before the
effective date of the lease modification as the

carrying value of the leased asset;

If the modification is effective at the
commencement date and the lease is classified
as a finance lease, the Group accounts for such
modification in accordance with the Accounting
Standards for Business Enterprises No. 22 —
Recognition and Measurement of Financial
Instruments in respect of the modification or re-

negotiation of contracts.
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Estimates (Continued) (%)
28. Leases (Continued) 28. HE (&)
28.2 The Group as lessor (Continued) 282 R EBEA LA (E)

2824 Sale and leaseback transaction 2824 EEHBIX S

The Group as a seller and lessee

The Group determines whether the asset transfer in
the sale and leaseback transaction constitutes a sale
in accordance with Accounting Standards for Business
Enterprises No.14 — Revenue. If the transfer of assets
is not a sale, the Group continues to recognize the
transferred assets and recognizes a financial liability in
equal amount to the transfer income, and accounts for
the financial liabilities in accordance with Accounting
Standards for Business Enterprises No. 22 — Recognition
and Measurement of Financial Instruments. Where the
transfer of assets is a sale, the Group measures the
right-of-use assets formed by the sale and leaseback
based on the portion of the original asset’s book value
that is related to the use rights obtained from the
leaseback, and only recognizes the relevant gains or

loss that relates to the rights transferred to the lessor.
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II. Significant Accounting Policies and Accounting = - % & 5 B & & & 51 16 5
Estimates (Continued) (74)
29. Hedge accounting 29. EMEE

29.1 Basis of hedge accounting and accounting treatment 291 KAEHETNKIEES

To manage the risk exposure caused by specific risks such
as foreign exchange risk and interest rate risk, the Group
has designated certain financial instruments as hedging
instruments for hedging. The Group applies hedging
accounting for a hedge that satisfies the prescribed
conditions. Hedging activities of the Group include fair value
hedges and cash flow hedges. For the hedges for foreign
exchange risk with firm commitment, the Group treated them

as cash flow hedges.

For the purpose of hedge accounting, the Group’s hedging is

classified as follows:

(1) Fair value hedges refer to the hedging against the risk
of fair value change in respect of definite commitments
which are not yet recognized (other than exchange rate

risks) of assets and liabilities already recognized.

(2)  Cash flow hedges refer to the hedging against the
exposure to variability in cash flows that is either
attributable to a particular risk associated with a
recognized asset or liability or a highly probable
forecast transaction, or a foreign currency risk in an

unrecognized firm commitment.
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II. Significant Accounting Policies and Accounting = & % & 51 B R & & 5 1 5t
Estimates (Continued) (%)
29. Hedge accounting (Continued) 29. EHiEsH (&)
29.1 Basis of hedge accounting and accounting treatment VINEHAEPRENKEES

(Continued)
Hedges which meet the strict criteria for hedge accounting

are accounted for as follows:

Fair value hedges
The Group’s fair value hedge is a hedge against interest
rate risk (risk of fair value change) of the fixed rate debt

instruments.

Gains or losses arising from a hedging instrument are
recognized in profit or loss for the current period. Gains or
losses in respect of the hedged item attributable to hedged
risk are recognized in profit or loss and the carrying amount
of the hedged item that is not measured at fair value is

adjusted.

For fair value hedge relating to debt instruments carried at
amortized cost, the carrying amount of the hedged items is
adjusted and amortized to profit or loss over the remaining
term of the hedge using the effective interest rate method.
Amortization begins on the date of adjustment but no later
than the point when the hedged item ceases to be adjusted

for hedging gains and losses.

Where the hedged items are firm commitments not yet
recognized, upon designation of the hedging relationship, the
accumulated change in fair value arising from the hedging
risk of the firm commitments are recognized as an asset or
a liability, and related gains and losses are taken to profit or
loss for the current period. When the Group obtains assets
or undertakes liabilities by performing firm commitments,
the initial recognised amount of the assets or liabilities is
adjusted to include the accumulated change in fair value of

the recognised hedged items.
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III. Significant Accounting Policies and Accounting
Estimates (Continued)
29. Hedge accounting (Continued)
29.1 Basis of hedge accounting and accounting treatment

(Continued)

Cash flow hedges

The Group's cash flow hedge include hedges of the expected
sales/procurements, foreign currency financial instruments,
foreign exchange risk on firm commitments and interest rate
risk of variable rate debt instruments (exposure to variability

in cash flows).

The effective portion of the gain or loss on the hedging
instrument is recognized in other comprehensive income,

while the ineffective portion is recognized in profit or loss.

If the expected transaction being hedged is subsequently
recognized as non-financial assets or non-financial liabilities,
or when the expected transaction of non-financial assets or
non-financial liabilities becomes the firm commitment under
applicable fair value hedges, the amount of cashflow hedging
reserve originally recognized in other comprehensive income
is transferred out and taken to the initial recognized amount
of that asset or liability item. For other cashflow hedges,
during the same period in which the expected cashflow being
hedged affects profit or loss, for example when the expected
sale occurs, the cashflow hedging reserve recognized in other
comprehensive income is transferred out and taken to profit

or loss for the current period.

When the Group no longer applies hedging accounting
to cashflow hedges, if the future cashflow being hedged
is still expected to occur, the amount previously taken to
other comprehensive income is not transferred out until the
expected transaction actually occurs or the firm commitment
is performed; if the future cashflow being hedged is no
longer expected to occur, the accumulated amount of
cashflow hedging reserve shall be transferred out from other
comprehensive income and taken to profit or loss for the

current period.
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II. Significant Accounting Policies and Accounting = - % & 5 B & & & 51 6 5
Estimates (Continued) (%)
29. Hedge accounting (Continued) 29. EHiEsH (&)
29.2 Effective evaluation of hedging 292 EHRE MR 0%

At the inception of a hedge relationship, the Group
formally designates and documents the hedge relationship
to which the Group wishes to apply hedge accounting,
the risk management objective and the risk management
strategy. The documentation includes identification of
the hedging instrument, the hedged item, the nature of
the risk being hedged and how the Group will assess the
hedging instrument’s effectiveness in offsetting the exposure
to changes in the hedged item’s fair value or cash flows
attributable to the hedged risk. Besides, the Group assesses
on an ongoing basis whether such hedging relationships
are complying with the hedge effectiveness requirements
as at the commencement date and in subsequent periods.
The Group recognises that the hedging relationships meet
hedge effectiveness requirements when they meet all of the

following requirements:

° There is an economic relationship between the hedged

item and the hedging instrument.

. The effect of credit risk does not dominate the value

changes that result from that economic relationship.

3 The hedge ratio of the hedging relationship is the same
as that resulting from the quantity of the hedged item
that the Group actually hedges and the quantity of the
hedging instrument that the Group actually uses to

hedge that quantity of hedged item.
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III. Significant Accounting Policies and Accounting
Estimates (Continued)
29. Hedge accounting (Continued)
29.2 Effective evaluation of hedging (Continued)

If a hedging relationship ceases to meet the hedge
effectiveness requirement relating to the hedge ratio but
the risk management objective for that designated hedging
relationship remains the same, the Group rebalances the
hedging relationship and adjusts the quantity of the hedged
items or hedging instruments having existed in the hedging
relationship to make the hedge ratio conform to the hedge

effectiveness requirement again.

If the hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated or
exercised (with the exception of rollover of the hedging
strategic component or unfulfilled replacement), if its
objective of risk management changes, so that the
hedge relationship no longer satisfies the objective of risk
management, or if the hedge no longer fulfills the other
conditions under the accounting requirement of a hedge, the

Group will cease the adoption of such hedge accounting.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2020

III. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)

30.

31.

32.

Profit appropriation
Interim and final cash dividends of the Company are recognized as

liabilities upon approval by shareholders in general meeting.

Safety funds

Safety funds provided for as required were included in cost of
product or the current profit and loss, and credited in special
reserve. And the funds are treated separately depending on
whether fixed assets are resulted when being used: funds related
to expenditure is offset against special reserve directly while those
forming fixed assets will consolidate expenditure incurred and
recognized as fixed assets when such assets are ready for their
intended use, at the same time offsetting equivalent amounts in the
special reserve and recognizing equivalent amounts of accumulated

depreciation.

Segment reporting

The Group identifies operating segments based on the internal
organization structure, managerial requirements and internal
reporting system, identifies reportable segments based on operating

segments and discloses segment information by operating segment.

An operating segment is a component of the Group that meets all

the following conditions:

(1) it engages in business activities from which it may earn

revenues and incur expenses;

(2) its operating results are regularly reviewed by the Company’s
management to make decisions about resources to be

allocated to the segment and assess its performance;

(3) the Group is able to obtain relevant accounting information
such as its financial position, operating results and cash flows

of such segment.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2020

III. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)

32.

33.

Segment reporting (Continued)
If two or more segments have similar economic characteristics and
meet certain conditions, then they can be aggregated into a single

operating segment.

Significant accounting judgments and
estimates

The preparation of the financial statements requires management
to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that will affect the
reported amounts and disclosure of revenue, expenses, assets and
liabilities, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities at the balance
sheet date. However, uncertainty about these estimates and
assumptions could result in outcomes that could require a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities

affected in the future.

33.1 Judgments
In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgments which have
significant effect on the amounts recognized in the financial

statements.

Confirmation of functional currency

Since the Company owns a number of overseas subsidiaries,
associates and branch organizations, when recognizing
its functional currency, multiple factors are taken into
consideration to recognize the major economic environment
of their operating locations. Under circumstances with
multiple factors and no obvious functional currency, the
Group uses judgment to confirm its functional currency. Such
judgment is the best to reflect economic influence of the

underlying transactions, events and environment.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2020

III. Significant Accounting Policies and = & % & 51 B R & & 51 14 5t
Accounting Estimates (Continued) (%)
33. Significant accounting judgments and 33. EAEFTHE MG (E)
estimates (Continued)

33.1 Judgments (Continued) 33.1 HET (&)

Sale and leaseback sub-leases

Leasing of forklift trucks is the principal business of KION
GROUP AG (“KION"), which includes 3 categories: direct
leasing, sale and leaseback sub-leases and indirect leasing.
To fund leases, industrial forklift trucks are generally sold
by KION and its subsidiaries (“KION Group”) to finance
partners. The industrial forklift trucks are then leased back
to companies under KION Group (head leases), which sub-
lease them to external end customers (described below as
"sale and leaseback sub-leases”). These head leases generally
have a term of four to five years. Taking into account the
fact that the finance partners can only lease the industrial
forklift trucks to KION Group, at rental rate determined based
on transfer income plus an agreed rate of return, and the
leased assets are to be owned by KION Group upon expiry
of the term of the head leases, the management of the
Group considers that under the sale and leaseback sub-leases
arrangements, the control over the respective leased assets
incidental to the head leases are retained by KION Group, the
asset transfer is not considered as a sale. As such, the Group
continues to recognize the transferred assets and at the same
time recognizes a financial liability that corresponds to the

amount of the transfer income.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2020

III. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)
33. Significant accounting judgments and
estimates (Continued)
33.1 Judgments (Continued)

Indirect leasing arrangement

KION Group sells industrial forklift trucks to finance partners,
who then lease them to external end customers (abbreviated
below as “indirect leasing”). Taking into account the contract
terms and historical commercial practice, KION Group
repurchases from finance partners the transferred industrial
forklift trucks at agreed prices or market prices when the term
of indirect leasing expires, the management of the Group
considers that KION Group still maintain control over the
corresponding leased-out assets, and asset transfer under the
indirect leasing arrangement is not considered a sale. As such,
the Group continues to recognize the transferred assets, and
the present value of the Group’s obligations to repurchase is
recognized as a liability. The difference between the transfer
income and such liability is accounted for in accordance
with Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises No. 21 —

Leases.
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III. Significant Accounting Policies and = & % & 51 B R & & 51 14 5t
Accounting Estimates (Continued) (%)
33. Significant accounting judgments and 33. EAEFTHE MG (E)
estimates (Continued)

33.1 Judgments (Continued) 33.1H & (&)

Indirect leasing arrangement (Continued)

Method of ascertaining of performance progress for contracts
(only applicable to situations where control is transferred
within a period of time)

The input method is adopted by the Group to ascertain
the progress of performance of contracts. In ascertaining
performance progress, products for which control is not
yet transferred to customers are deducted. Specifically, the
performance costs actually incurred on a cumulative basis
as a percentage of estimated total costs is used to ascertain
progress of performance. Performance costs actually
incurred on a cumulative basis include direct and indirect
costs incurred by the Group in the course of fulfilling its
performance obligations, but does not include costs that are
not proportional to the performance progress of the Group,
such as costs of products or materials not yet installed, used
or consumed. The Group considers that contract prices
are ascertained on the basis of performance costs, and the
adjusted costs actually incurred as a percentage of expected
total costs can essentially reflect truly the performance

progress of the Group.

As the period of validity of such contracts is relatively long
and may span over a number of accounting periods, the
Group shall review and revise budget as the duration of the
contracts continues, and adjust the amount of recognized

revenue accordingly.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2020

III. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)
33. Significant accounting judgments and
estimates (Continued)
33.1 Judgments (Continued)

Business model

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition
depends on the business model of the Group’s management
of financial assets. In judging the business model, the Group
considers corporate appraisal, methods of reporting the
results of financial assets to key management members, risks
affecting the results of financial assets and its management,
as well as the methods of remunerating relevant business
managers and so forth. In assessing whether the objective is
to collect contractual cash flows, the Group needs to analyze
and judge the reasons for disposing of the financial assets
before maturity, time, frequency and value of the financial

assets and so forth.

Contractual cash flow characteristics

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition
depends on the contractual cash flow characteristics of the
financial assets. When it is necessary to judge whether the
contractual cash flow is only the payment of the principal and
the interest based on the outstanding principal, including the
assessment of the correction of the time value of money, it
is necessary to judge whether there is a significant difference
compared with the benchmark cash flow. For financial
assets with early repayment features, it is necessary to judge
whether the fair value of the early repayment features is

minimal.

FR 5 R BT 5T (48)
2020F 14 1HZ6H30H 1 5iE

= E}@
33. EAEH MBI A GE ()

at BOSR B 1 wt A Wt

33.1HET (&)

EBEEA
CREENVIAERRN DR
BARAEBERSRMEED
%ﬁ@ﬁ’&%%%ﬁﬁﬁ
CAEEEEBRAENE
ﬂﬁ%&%@AEﬁ%@ﬂﬁ
EXEN TR FHESREE
XEORBEEERTANUR
HEZEBERABRBSRID
FTRE - EFFERE AREE
RRERELBER  KEH
FEHIRMEAEIHAFIAN L
ERA - KRH - BARNEES
HEIT DM HIET o

BRIE T REF#

CREERVIEERARNSE
HUR R %ﬂﬁEmAﬂﬁ%m
ERE FEHEHSRBRR
Emmﬁﬁﬂ$éﬂuﬁﬁﬁ
AERERONBOZMNE -
BEEHEREREAENELESE
TRMER - FEH G EEER
EREMLELREEAERES
2 HESRNEFFENE
BEE  HEHEREAERS
BHARBEREIITNE -

\
/



Interim Report 2020 s 137

5 i 2 M 5 (48
20201 H1HZ26H30H 1-HifE

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2020

III. Significant Accounting Policies and = & % & 51 B R & & 51 14 5t
Accounting Estimates (Continued) (%)
33. Significant accounting judgments and 33. EAEFTHE MG (E)
estimates (Continued)
33.2 Estimation uncertainty

33. 2 fhETM N E 1T

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the balance sheet date,
that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment
to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the

future accounting periods, are discussed below.

Impairment of accounts receivable and contract assets

The Group uses the expected credit loss model to assess
the impairment of accounts receivable and contract assets.
The application of the expected credit loss model requires
significant judgments and estimations, and all reasonable
and evidenced information, including forward-looking
information, should be considered. In making such judgments
and estimations, the Group infers the expected changes in
the debtor’s credit risk based on the historical repayment
data in combination with economic policies, macroeconomic

indicators, and industry risks.

Provision for losses in respect of accounts receivable and
contract assets is measured at the amount of the lifetime
expected credit losses. Regarding the accounts receivable and
contract assets for which impairment matrix is applied (on a
group basis) to determine credit losses, the Group relies on
common risk profiles to classify them into different groups.
Such common risk profiles include ages, overdue ages, credit
risk rating and so forth. Regarding receivables and contract
assets which are individually significant or are individually
insignificant but have special credit risks, impairment testing is

conducted individually.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2020

III. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)
33. Significant accounting judgments and
estimates (Continued)
33.2 Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Impairment of accounts receivable and contract assets
(Continued)

Where the result of re-estimation is different from the
existing estimation, the difference will affect the profit of the
period of changes in estimates and the carrying amount of

the accounts receivable and contract assets.

Impairment of non-current assets other than financial
assets (other than goodwill and trademarks with indefinite
useful life)

At the balance sheet date, the Company makes its judgment
as to whether there is any evidence indicating potential
impairment of non-current assets other than financial assets.
Intangible assets with indefinite useful life shall be tested
for impairment when there is any indication of impairment
in addition to the annual impairment testing. Other non-
current assets other than financial assets shall be tested
for impairment if there is any evidence indicating that their
carrying amount cannot be recovered. When the carrying
amount of an asset or asset groups is higher than the
recoverable amount, which is the higher of the net amount
of its fair value less costs of disposal and the present value of
the future cash flows expected to be derived from the asset,
it indicates impairment. The net amount of the fair value less
costs of disposal is determined by making reference to the
price in a sale agreement in an arm’s length transaction or
the observable market price less the incremental costs directly
attributable to such assets disposal. In projecting the present
value of future cashflow, the management is required to
estimate the projected future cashflow of the asset or asset
group and select an appropriate discount rate for determining

the present value of future cashflow.
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Accounting Estimates (Continued) (%)

33. Significant accounting judgments and 33. ERGF A& (&)
estimates (Continued)
33.2 Estimation uncertainty (Continued) 33.2hETA A REE M ()

Impairment of goodwill and trademarks with indefinite
useful life

The Group determines whether goodwill and trademarks with
indefinite useful life are impaired at least on an annual basis.
This requires an estimation of the recoverable amount of the
asset group or group of asset groups including the goodwill
and trademarks. Estimating the recoverable amount requires
the Group to make an estimate of the expected future cash
flows from the asset group or group of asset groups and also
to choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the

present value of those cash flows.

Defined benefit plans

The management of the Group recognizes net liabilities
under defined benefit plans based on calculating model
of the present value of the defined benefit obligations less
fair value of the assets under the plan. The present value of
defined benefit obligations comprises of various assumptions,
including term of benefits and discount rate. Inconsistency
between the future events and such assumptions may subject
the net liabilities under defined benefit plans on the balance

sheet date to material adjustment.

Fair value

Certain assets and liabilities of the Group are measured at fair
value on the financial statements. The aforesaid measurement
is on the basis of some assumptions. Fair value may differ

significantly if future events deviate from such assumptions.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2020

III. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)
33. Significant accounting judgments and
estimates (Continued)
33.2 Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all unused deductible
temporary differences and deductible losses to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against
which the deductible temporary differences and deductible
losses can be utilized. Significant management judgment is
required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that
can be recognized, based upon the likely timing and level
of future taxable profit together with future tax planning

strategies.

Provision for decline in value of inventories

Provision for decline in value of inventories is recognized
on the basis of the net realizable value of inventories. The
management’s judgments and estimates are required for
determining the net realizable value of inventories on the
basis of clear evidence, taking into consideration of purpose
of holding the inventories, effect of subsequent events and
other factors. The difference between the actual outcome
and original estimate will affect the carrying amount of
inventories and provision or reversal of decline in value of

inventories during the estimated revision period.
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J

III. Significant Accounting Policies and = & % & 51 B R & & 51 14 5t

Accounting Estimates (Continued) (%)

33. Significant accounting judgments and 33. ERGFHEM&E (&)
estimates (Continued)
33.2 Estimation uncertainty (Continued) 33.2fhETA A REE M ()

Recognition of accruals and provisions related to quality
warranty of products

The Group estimates the obligation related to quality
warranty of guaranteed products based on contractual
terms, current knowledge and historical experience. The
Group reasonably estimates maintenance fee charge and
makes relevant provision based on all relevant data including
historical data on and current situation of maintenance,

product upgrade and market changes.

Estimated useful lives of fixed assets and intangible assets

The Group reviews the estimated useful lives of fixed assets
and intangible assets at least once at the end of the year.
Estimated useful lives are determined by the management
based on historical experience of similar assets and expected
technological advancement. Corresponding adjustment to
depreciation and amortization expenses for future periods will

be made in case of substantial changes in previous estimates.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2020

III. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)
33. Significant accounting judgments and
estimates (Continued)
33.2 Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Limitations on the estimation of variable consideration

In estimating variable consideration, the Group considers all
such information as shall be reasonably obtained, including
historical data, current data and projected data, thereby
estimating the amount of possible consideration and the
probability to the extent of such quantities as shall be
reasonable. If it is estimated that multiple outcomes are
possible for the contracts, the Group estimates the amount of
variable consideration based on the expected value approach.
If it is estimated that only two outcomes are possible, the
variable consideration is arrived at using the most likely
outcome method. Variable consideration is included in the
transaction price to the extent it is highly probable that there
will not be a significant reversal in the amount of cumulative
revenue recognized when the uncertainty is resolved. In
assessing whether it is highly probable that there will not be
a significant reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue
recognized when the uncertainty relevant to the variable
consideration is resolved, the Group also considers the
possibility of reversal of income and the ratio of reversed
amount. On each balance sheet date, the Group re-assesses
the amount of variable consideration, including re-assessing
whether the estimation of variable consideration is limited, to
reflect the circumstance as at the end of the reporting period

as well as changes during the reporting period.

FR 5 R BT 5T (48)
2020F 14 1HZ6H30H 1 5iE
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) F B i R BT (48
1 January to 30 June 2020 2020F 1 H1HZ6A30H 17
IV. Taxation g~ IE
1. Major categories of taxes and respective tax 1. TEHERHE
rates
Value-added tax (VAT) — For the Group’s PRC subsidiaries, output VAT is calculated by applying
HER 13%, 9% and 6% to the taxable income for normal taxpayers, but the

Group may pay it after deducting deductible input VAT for the current
period.
AEBBRAFRR —RATAREHRBWANI3% - 9% - 6% HIHL X
FTHEEEN > WENEKRERAAFENNERNBRNZRTHBEE
B o

—  The basis of computation and applicable rate of VAT primarily applicable to
major overseas subsidiaries of the Group are set out below:
REBBIINFRAIEEZFEROIBENA KR BERTEIROT

Basis of computation Applicable country Tax rate
FT B AR B BRER B=
Amount of taxable added-value Germany 19%
JEATIIGE R 2

Value-added tax rates applicable in other countries follow the tax
laws and regulations in force in the respective countries.
HtBRIGERT X ERBE MBI ERERET -

City maintenance and construction tax — Itis levied at 7% or 5% on the actual turnover taxes paid.

W 4 R R RERBMAERERAT % H5%H8 -
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

1 January to 30 June 2020

IV. Taxation (Continued)

FR 5 R BT 5T (48)
2020F 14 1HZ6H30H 1 5iE

g A E ()

1.  Major categories of taxes and respective tax 1. FEBERBE(E)

rates (Continued)

Education surcharge

HREBK M

Local education surcharge

#7352 E B 0

Corporate income tax
TSR

It is levied at 3% on the actual turnover taxes paid.

HERBMRRERA3 % -

It is levied at 2% on the actual turnover taxes paid.

RERBARRERN2 %4 -

It is levied at 15% or 25% on the taxable profit, except that for overseas
subsidiaries, it is levied at the statutory tax rate of the countries or regions
in which the subsidiaries operate.

REINFRABIREMERR - #HREEEHR RN - CEMEHIR
FERTBL TS RERI15% 3K 25% 51

The basis of computation and applicable rate of corporate income tax
primarily applicable to major overseas subsidiaries of the Group are set out
below:
AEBFNFEFRAEEEANBEMRSHETRE BB R X5
AT

Basis of computation Applicable country Tax rate
Bk BABEX H=
Amount of taxable income Germany 30.73%
JEWATL PTG HE 1=
Amount of taxable income United States 21.00%
FE ML P15 5E of America

EH

Income tax rates applicable in other countries follow the tax laws and
regulations in force in the respective countries.
HMBRMIGHH R EBRBE MBI ERERETE

Certain oversea subsidiaries enjoy tax benefits pursuant to the local tax
policies.
RELBINFARIRBEMHRBRRZHRES -



Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2020

IV. Taxation (Continued)

2.

Tax benefits

Preferential corporate income tax for the Company

The Company was recognized as a high-tech enterprise on 27
November 2008. The Company continued to be recognized as
a high-tech enterprise in 2017 and is therefore entitled to enjoy
a preferential income tax rate of 15% from 2017 to 2019. The
Company is expected to continue to enjoy a 15% preferential tax

rate for corporate income tax in 2020.

Preferential corporate income tax for the domestic
subsidiaries of the Company

Shaanxi Heavy-duty Motor Co., Ltd., Shaanxi Fast Gear Co., Ltd.,
Baoji Fast Gear Co., Ltd., Zhuzhou Gear Co., Ltd., Zhuzhou Torch
Machinery Manufacturing Co., Ltd., Weichai Power Yangzhou Diesel
Engine Co., Ltd., Weichai Power Freshen Air Technology Co., Ltd.,
Baudouin (Weifang) Power Co., Ltd. and Linde Hydraulics (China)
Co., Ltd. were recognized as high-tech enterprises in 2017 and are
therefore entitled to enjoy a preferential income tax rate of 15%
from 2017 to 2019. The Group expected that the abovementioned
companies will continue to enjoy a 15% preferential tax rate for

corporate income tax in 2020.

Shaanxi Hande Axle Co., (“Hande Axle”), Hande Axle (Zhuzhou)
Gear Co., Ltd., Xi'an Fast Auto Drive Co., Ltd., Zhuzhou Torch
Sparkplugs Co., Ltd., Weichai (Chongging) Automotive Co., Ltd.
and Tianjin Tsintel Technology Company Limited were recognized as
high-tech enterprises in 2018 and are therefore entitled to enjoy a

preferential income tax rate of 15% from 2018 to 2020.
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5 i 2 M 5 (48
20201 H1HZ26H30H 1-HifE

g A IE (%)

2.

HWER
RAGIEEFAEHES
RAFIFR2008F 11 A27 B RE A
BT 2017 F AR A #HE
BBEAMRMEERE - 820174
FE2019F ZXF15% M FTISFLE BT
& o KARFEFTR2020F Al Ak #%2
15% M BB RMMNDEREH -

RRARRAFRAIBEMSEH
B=

PREEATEFRAA - BREE LT
HWAEREMCAR  BELTHEE
WAEREELF - HKNERERET
AE > R MER R REERE
DA BB DB MNEREBRE T
NE] - HEBNERFEREERA
7 iR CE5) 8 H AR A R
ERE(FE)BERARINR2017FRE
BEFRENEERE - B2017F &
2019 EZ15%FMEHEREMRE o
AEBB LA AR KR 2020F 3 7]
IR 15% B EM B NDEMSE
B o

ET

PRPEEEBER AR (LA TRE =
EEB])  EEERKEM BEHRE
RAR - ARETRHAEEHERAD
Al RN ANENIEEBREER
B MK (EER)RBARARMKE
BEREAERAAN2018FEAER
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2020

IV. Taxation (Continued)

2.

Tax benefits (Continued)

Weichai Power (Weifang) Reconstruction Co., Ltd. was recognized
as a high-tech enterprise in 2019 and is therefore entitled to enjoy

a preferential income tax rate of 15% from 2019 to 2021.

Pursuant to the requirement of Cai Shui [2019] No. 13, Shaanxi
Fast Automotive Components Import and Export Company Limited,
Weichai Digital Technology Co., Ltd., Weifang Weichai Intelligent
Technology Co., Ltd. (M@ E e B AR AF]), Weichai
(Weifang) Venture Capital Co., Ltd. (#2E (#5) Bl EBRA
7)) and Weifang Internal Combustion Engine Quality Inspection
Center Company Limited (437 R E S5 0 AR A F]) may
apply the inclusive tax deduction and exemption policies for small
enterprises and is subject to corporate income tax at the reduced
rate of 20% based on its taxable income which is taken as 25% of

its income.

Pursuant to the requirement of the Notice Concerning Issues on
Taxation Policies Relating to the Thorough Implementation of
China’s Strategy of Western Development (Cai Shui Fa No. [2011]
58) (CBAP R AE e 78 8 K 5 35 B IS 78 A A0 UK BUSR P RE A R AN)D)
promulgated by MOF, the State Administration of Taxation and
the General Administration of Customs dated 27 July 2011, the
following companies have implemented preferential tax policy of

15% for the Western Development:

FR 5 R BT 5T (48)
2020F 14 1HZ6H30H 1 5iE

o B IE (%)

2.

HWEE(E)

LB (M) BREBR QAR
2019F MBR M BRMEERE - 8
2019 22021 FZER15%FTEHE
BWE-

RIEFFL[20191135 MR E + PRI
FELTRAEEHHELOERAAF
HEBTREARAF - BHHEE
BRI BRAR - HECHET)BIER
BHRBRARMMBAT AR E 2REBT
DERARFEBR/ N HMEELT BN

B WORL e B - L PSR IR 25% &1
ANERTHATISHEE - ¥ 20% B9 T E &

MEEMEN -

BB E  BERWBEES - BEE
E2011F7/827 885 3[2011]58
S SCCRE R R A B B 78 B K B 3 B
BTN R ER BRI TE
THARZEZAIBAFEIS%HIH
WEBBE :



Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2020

IV. Taxation (Continued)

2.

Tax benefits (Continued)

Shaanxi Heavy-duty Motor Co., Ltd., Hande Axle, Shaanxi Jinding
Casting Co., Ltd., Shaanxi Automobile Xinjiang Motor Co., Ltd,
Shaanxi Fast Gear Co., Ltd., Xi‘an Fast Auto Drive Co., Ltd., Baoji
Fast Gear Co., Ltd., Fast Eaton (Xi'an) Power Transmission System
Co., Ltd. and Fast Eaton (Baoji) Light-duty Transmission Co., Ltd. (%
THHATE (B B RBEREAERT).

Pursuant to the requirement of the Announcement concerning the
Cancellation of 22 Matters of Approvals About Non-administrative
Permissions to be Sought for Taxation Issues numbered 58 of 2015
issued by the State Administration of Taxation on 18 August 2015,
for those companies entitled to the preferential tax treatment at
15% under the western development strategy of China, only filing
is required instead of approval. All the aforesaid companies have
passed the examination of 2019 Taxation Filing as scheduled, and
are expected to continue to be entitled to the preferential tax
treatment under the western development strategy of China in
2020.

Interim Report 2020 FHEAERE

5 i 2 M 5 (48
20201 H1HZ26H30H 1-HifE

g A E (7))

2.

B EE (&)
PRAEEIEFRAGF - EEERF -
PRALRBEERAF - BRTHENR
BEERAF  REEALHERBRE
EFAR ARELHAEEPERE
TR HEZIREREREEIR
A ATHEFEAR) B NEH RS
EREERARAMELHFFE(EE)E
WERBBRAMERAR °

BIE2015F8 A 18HERMIKER A
£2015F F585 XCER A MEEUH
W22 B IET AT AT B FIED
NEVNRE  EXAHKRFAE15%
WBBEEBRRNRAR TR EEF
REHBE LAY ERE TR
2019F TS HEE T 1E - 18HI2020
FNHBESEIATAFERWES
BURE B o
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2020

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial
Statements
1. Cash and cash equivalents

RS i 26 BT 5 (48
2020F 14 1HZ6H30H 1 5iE

h GO B R I H R

1. E¥ES

RMB
AR

30 June 2020 31 December 2019
20206 H30H 2019412 A31H

12,789,391.16 2,828,793.63
38,901,565,551.25 42,237,896,644.63
6,854,173,909.69 6,576,896,768.00

[tem

HA

Cash at bank EFRe
Bank deposits H|ITIFR
Other cash and cash equivalents HithEEES
Total &&F

45,768,528,852.10 48,817,622,206.26

As at 30 June 2020, cash and cash equivalents of the Group with
title restrictions amounted to RMB6,814,562,722.22 (31 December
2019: RMB6,532,037,281.10), please refer to Note V.67.

As at 30 June 2020, the Group held cash and cash
equivalents of RMB2,465,245,384.16 (31 December 2019:
RMB1,596,661,092.24), which were deposited overseas.

M 2020 6 30 R © &% & Fr
ERIBRINEBEESRARARE
6,814,562,722.227t(20194F12 A31
B : AR#%6,532,037,281.107T) -
SFRMEER 67

M2020F 6 308 @ A& B F K
REBINNEEESTAEARKE S
2,465,245,384.1675(20194E12 A 31
H:#Té AR A1,596,661,092.24

JL) °



Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2020

Statements (Continued)
2.

[tem

EH

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial

Financial assets held for trading

Interim Report 2020 FHEAZRE

S5 R WA R (A

20201 81HZ26H30H 1F 7R

hoA OB AR EHIEA

H H kR
(%)
2. REMEWMEE
RMB
AE# T

30 June 2020

Classified as financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss

DERARAEEFELALEES

FFAEHIEENERMEE
Incl.: Other debt investments HE - HEBTAKE
Forward foreign exchange RHASME S 4
contracts
Structured deposits
Other derivative financial assets HEiTESREE
Total A
Notes receivable
Classification of notes receivable
ltem
5 H
Bank acceptance bills RITANESE

24,914,347,693.33

31 December 2019
20206 H30H 2019412 A31H

150,669,886.00

37,576,924.00

120,609,150.00 73,270,312.50
9,556,960,313.19 4,339,954,315.07

257,911.50

9,828,239,349.19 4,451,059,463.07

EWERE
e RIE D18

RMB

ARET
30 June 2020

31 December 2019
20206 A30H

2019412 A31H

15,920,141,988.31
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2020

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial
Statements (Continued)

3.

Notes receivable (Continued)
Notes receivable pledged by the Group as at period end

[tem
BH

RS i 26 BT 5 (48
20201 81HZ6H30H 1F 5

h A O B B R 3 B H H R
(%)
3. BWERE(E)
R A S B B E I R

RMB
ARBT

30 June 2020
20206 A30H

31 December 2019
2019412 A831H

Bank acceptance bills HRITHEH ER

11,218,574,135.51 12,147,538,825.61

Notes receivable endorsed or discounted by the Group as
at period end and not yet expired as at the balance sheet
date

30 June 2020
202056 H30H

Derecognized Not derecognized

KILER

Bank acceptance bills BIEGEZ

As at 30 June 2020, the Group had not transferred any notes
into accounts receivable due to issuers’ failure in performance (31
December 2019: Nil).

The Group considered that the credit rating of the bank
acceptance bills was relatively high and there was no
significant credit risk. Therefore, no provision for losses

was made.

32,795,397.41

HRAEECSEHHAEHE
EERBXRARAKRIBNEL

Rz

RMB
ARET

31 December 2019
2019124311
Derecognized

RIEHER

Not derecognized

REIEBR AR TR

3,658,307,945.85 =

MR2020F6A30H ' AEBERLE
NEE B4 TS R A e R T
=42 (2019%12A318 : &) -

A& B R A AN RITESERY
A RTEMFRES - FEEER
rERAR - EHLRR AR -
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) RS i R B 5 (48
1 January to 30 June 2020 2020%F 1 A1HZ6H30H 1R

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial #. ~& f I % it & £ IH H 5 #

Statements (Continued) (%)

4. Accounts receivable 4. BRI
The Group trades with its customers primarily on credit terms, REFEEFENE SBEIUEAR
and generally requires prepayments or cash on delivery for new SRE  B—RERKFELERNRK
customers. Credit period for credit customers is generally one to REEEENRARNET  BRERFN
twelve months. Accounts receivable is non-interest bearing. ERBEBEEA1Z12EA - BIWER

W B -

An aging analysis based on invoice dates is presented as follows: BIEFEAR  RRERHE
RMB
AR®T
Age 30 June 2020 31 December 2019
BRER 20206 B30H 201912 A31H
Within 1 year 1R 17,742,834,679.88 14,360,458,470.45
110 2 years 15826 1,482,763,712.04 504,740,712.30
2 to 3 years 2FEE3F 244,587,111.12 115,039,514.56
Over 3 years 3FEME 1,025,246,367.39 965,456,525.01
Total at original amount REAGT 20,495,431,870.43 15,945,695,222.32
Less: Provision for credit loss in respect & : JE Ug BR 30 (5 R 18 ok 4
of accounts receivable 2,005,442,280.78 1,660,432,925.23
Total at net amount SFEAE (EW RSN 14,285,262,297.09
Disclosure by category of provision for credit losses: RIERABAHRAEDERE
RMB
AR® T
30 June 2020 31 December 2019
2020564308 20198128318
Grosscarrying ~ Proportion Provisionfor  Percentage (Gross carrying Proportion Provision for Percentage
[tem amount (%) credit losses (%) amount (%) credit losses (%)
it Fil7
L REGE $ (%) ERBA%R A (%) BHAHE $6(%) ERBKER L6(%)

Items assessed for expected credit losses ~ BEFERDER
individually Bk 2,407,788,034.69 1,380,449,029.31 2,728,834,722.55 n 1,215,508,645.54 4454
Hems assessed for expected creditlosses ~ RfEREREHAA
by group with distinctive crdit risk TEEBERRR
characteristics 18,087,643,835.74 624,993,251.47 X 13,216,860,499.77 8289 444,924.279.69 337

Total A 20,495,431,87043 2,005,442,280.78 } 15,945,695,222.32 10000 1660432,925.3 1041
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2020

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial

Statements (Continued)

4. Accounts receivable (Continued)

As at 30 June 2020, accounts receivable assessed for expected

credit losses individually are presented as follows:

Customers

'F

Customer 1
EP1
Customer 2
EF2
Customer 3
EF3
Customer 4
P4
Customer 5
EPF5
Customer 6
EF6
Customer 7
EF7
Customer 8
P8
Customer 9
EF9

Customer 10

P10
Others

Hity

Total

At

Gross carrying

amount

SR ERER

874,252,769.81

111,878,808.83

75,871,191.17

56,927,140.00

49,159,575.31

45,430,890.58

40,516,068.59

37,449,568.86

32,989,886.43

32,556,007.92

1,050,756,127.19

2,407,788,034.69

S5 i R WA (A

20201 81HZ6H30H 1F 5

(

4

Provision for

credit losses

FEREAER

335,792,800.00

111,878,808.83

75,871,191.17

56,927,140.00

49,159,575.31

44,531,086.13

40,516,068.59

37,449,568.86

32,989,886.43

32,556,007.92

562,776,896.07

1,380,449,029.31

* ‘ﬁ%ﬁtﬂjiﬁiﬁﬁiglﬁﬁﬁi%
. BWRRR (&)

MR2020F6 A30H - AEBEHETIGE
FEHEREANERERBAOT

Percentage
(%)
HE3:4!]
(%)

38.41

100.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

98.02

100.00

100.00

100.00

RMB
AR

Reasons

ATRE

Bad repayment ability
HEEENE

Bad repayment ability
HEEENE

Bad repayment ability
EEENZE

Long credit age
RERIR

Bad repayment ability
EEENZE

Long credit age

R

Bad repayment ability
HEELZE
Liquidation
ARERES

Assets have been

preserved
MEEEH

Long credit age
RERER

Long credit age etc.

RERE




Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

1 January to 30 June 2020

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial
Statements (Continued)

4. Accounts receivable (Continued)

Interim Report 2020 FHEAZRE

RS i 2 BT 5 (48
20201 81HZ26H30H 1F 7R

As at 30 June 2020, the Group's accounts receivable for which

credit losses are provided for using aging analysis are presented as

follows:

Age

AR R

Within 1 year 1F AR
1 to 2 years 182F
2 to 3 years 2E3F
3 to 4 years 3E4F
4 t0 5 years 454
Over 5 years S5F A E

Total

£t

Carrying
amount
estimated

to be in default
fhat HEEQ
Y BRI BR B

7,734,268,796.00
295,610,214.90
94,209,056.66
19,994,899.79
37,349,052.44
213,866,406.42

8,395,298,426.21

G ORI B AR R IEH H R R
(%)
4. BWRRFR(E)

M2020FE6A30H  REBFEBER
DHTERT R (5 FB 1B AR ZE 18 1 FE IR X

‘R

30 June 2020
20206 A30H

Expected credit

loss rate (%)
EHEA
BRE(%)

2.88
15.15
27.64
70.43
99.17

100.00

6.65

RMB
ARBTT

Lifetime
expected
credit loss
EEFES
EHERBXL

222,587,034.28
44,777,993.50
26,041,143.49
14,082,404.22
37,039,987.34
213,866,406.43

558,394,969.26
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2020

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial

Statements (Continued)
Accounts receivable (Continued)

As at 30 June 2020, the Group's accounts receivable for which

4,

RS i 26 BT 5 (48
20201 81HZ6H30H 1F 5

credit losses are provided for using overdue ages as credit risk

characteristics are presented as follows:

Overdue age

BERE

Not yet overdue or overdue 7k %0 Bf =t 780 H
for less than 90 days NRI0K

Overdue for more than BHI KRR 90K
90 days but less than B/ 180K
180 days

Overdue for more than BEIRN 180K
180 days

Total &a&t

Carrying

amount
estimated

to be in default
Rt BEEN
HY BR 1 8RR

7,985,084,715.18

295,159,331.82

182,213,825.49

8,462,457,872.49

As at 30 June 2020, provisions for credit losses for the Group's

accounts receivable with good credit history are presented as

follows:

Item

HH

Accounts receivable with
good credit history

ERREEEN
Y RIEA S

Carrying
amount
estimated

to be in default
fhEtBEED
HY BR TH 87 28

1,229,887,537.04

En ~ﬁ§;ﬁjﬁiﬁﬁigiﬁﬁ§i*§
4, BRI ()

R2020F6 308 @ AEBEFEAB
BREEAEARREBEGIREREX

R ) R R BR SRS

30 June 2020
20206 HA30H

Expected credit
loss rate (%)
BEER
BRE(%)

AT

RMB
ARET

Lifetime
expected
credit loss
EEFED
FEHEREBX

24,516,856.37

8,353,009.09

13,930,710.10

46,800,575.56

R2020F6A308  AEBZARH
BHENEWRRBASHRERABLE

wmEBERANT

30 June 2020
20206 H30H

Expected credit

loss rate (%)
EHEH
BRE(%)

RMB
ARET

Lifetime
expected
credit loss
EEFED
FHEREBX

19,797,706.65



Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2020

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial
Statements (Continued)
4,

Accounts receivable (Continued)
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20201 H1HZ26H30H 1-HifE

B DR B AR R IEH H RE R

(%)

4.

As at 30 June 2020, the top five balances in respect of accounts
receivable had a sum of closing balance of RMB2,373,748,289.42
(31 December 2019: RMB2,435,489,389.61), accounting
for 11.58% (31 December 2019: 15.27%) of the total of

closing balance of accounts receivable. The closing balance in

respect of credit losses provided for the top five amounted to
RMB344,970,942.75 (31 December 2019: RMB258,392,423.15).

PE W BR K (&)

202066 A30H - BERMALH
EWRRAAREERESGHAAR
#2,373,748,289.42 5L (20194 12
A31H : AR#2,435,489,389.61
L) GRS RREMRES S
H R B A11.58% (2019412 A
318 :15.27%) ' A AR AEEETIR
WERABXERERRBREBEAARE
344,970,942.757C (20194 12 A 31
A : AK#258,392,423.157T) °

Movements in provision for credit losses: ERBLREEEHER
RMB
ARET
Lifetime Lifetime
expected expected
credit loss credit loss
(without (with
impairment impairment
Provision for credit losses of credit) of credit) Total
BEFES BEGFERS
FEHERE R TEEfE A1E X
(R#E (BE#4E
ERBREE EARE) ERRE) A&t
Balance as at 31 December 2019412 831H
2019 FREE 1,005,615,663.38 654,817,261.85 1,660,432,925.23
Balance as at 31 December 2019412 A831H
2019 in the current period FRREFE AN HA
— Transferred to receivables . UNEE -
with impairment of credit VERIE] = = =
— Reversal of receivables — @O R4
without impairment pERIE]
of credit - = =
Provision for the period AREIEHR 172,125,307.75 182,823,111.67 354,948,419.42
Reversal during the period 7K B & (o] (3,664,440.05) = (3,664,440.05)
Written-off or transferred N EAAZ £ sl B 8
out during the period - (3,263,212.99) (3,263,212.99)
Adjustment for exchange M 5, 2= FE A #
differences (2,143,247.57) (868,163.26) (3,011,410.83)
Balance as at 30 June 2020 2020F 6 A30 R #4%8 1,171,933,283.51 833,508,997.27  2,005,442,280.78

As at 30 June 2020, the carrying amount of the restricted accounts
receivable of the Group amounted to RMB51,057,178.92 (31
December 2019: RMB25,442,865.48), please refer to Note V.67.

M202056 A308 - AEBFAE
ZERFHEMEFRESREAAR
#51,057,178.927C (2019412 A 31
H: AR#25442,865.487T) @ =f
AR 67
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

1 January to 30 June 2020

5.

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial
Statements (Continued)

Receivable financing

S5 i R WA (A

20201 81HZ6H30H 1F 5

Ho A OF B ek E EIHH

(%)
5. BIWRERE
Classification of receivable financing JEWRIARLE 7 88
RMB
AR #T
[tem 30 June 2020 31 December 2019
ER 202066 H30H 201912 A31H
Bank acceptance bills at fair value AR EBEFE/RT
AR ESR 10,064,002,894.85 10,388,865,839.45
Commercial acceptance bills LAREBESGEMRE
at fair value AR ESR 59,167,418.83 149,044,144.26
Total &5t 10,123,170,313.68 10,537,909,983.71
Receivable financing pledged by the Group as at period
end

HIRAKEE G R KRR
BmE

RMB
AR#T

[tem 30 June 2020 31 December 2019

15 H 202056 A30H 2019412 A31H

Bank acceptance bills at fair value AR EESERT
G fE R 2,830,447,026.53 4,084,326,054.81
Commercial acceptance bills AR BEFENEE
at fair value AH EE
Total A&F

107,205,123.12

2,830,447,026.53

4,191,531,177.93




Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2020

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial

Statements (Continued)

5.

Receivable financing (Continued)

Receivable financing endorsed or discounted by the
Group as at period end and not yet expired as at the
balance sheet date

Bank acceptance bills

at fair value BOELER
Commerdial acceptance bills NRREBEFEN

at fair value BEANEEZ
Total CH
Prepayments

An aging analysis of prepayments is presented as follows:

RS i 2 BT 5 (48
20201 81HZ26H30H 1F 7R

(%)

Interim Report 2020 FHEAZRE

G ORI B AR R IEH H R R

5. BUWHRERE (&)

AR E

30 June 2020
202056 A30H

Derecognized Not derecognized

RIERR REILER

18,041,301,675.38

18,041,301,675.38

HRAEECSEHHBREHE
EERBRARKRIHMNEK

6. FEMNFIEA

30 June 2020
2020%6H30AH
Proportion
Amount %

&8 LBl %

Age

Rl

Within 1 year 1EAR
110 2 years 1826
2 to 3 years 2E3F
Over 3 years 3FHE

1,392,087,301.92 92.98
86,616,598.29 5.79
12,295,616.46 0.82

6,169,196.78 0.41

Total

1,497,168,713.45 100.00

RMB
AR T
31 December 2019
2019%12A31H
Derecognized  Not derecognized
RICHER R FHER
19,777,138,744.81 -
21,357,250.00 -
19,798,495,994.81 -
A RIERERESTT

RMB
AR#T

31 December 2019

2019412 A31H
Proportion
Amount %
G- L 31 %
903,965,694.27 90.69
80,508,116.62 8.08
5,471,376.03 0.55
6,764,995.28 0.68
996,710,182.20 100.00
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

1 January to 30 June 2020

HRBORHAERDE

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial

Statements (Continued)
6. Prepayments (Continued)

Description of the ages of prepayments: Prepayments with ages

over 1 year represent primarily those outstanding amounts prepaid

to suppliers for raw materials.

As at 30 June 2020, there was no significant prepayments with an

age of more than one year (31 December 2019: Nil).

As at 30 June 2020, the closing balances of the top 5 prepayments
amounted in aggregate to RMB619,918,509.72 (31 December
2019: RMB191,788,392.61), representing 41.41% (31 December
2019: 19.24%) of the total closing balances of all prepayments at

end.

7. Other receivables
Presented by categories

[tem
ER

RS i 26 BT 5 (48
2020F 14 1HZ6H30H 1 5iE

i B W B
i

6.

Interest receivable
Dividend receivable

Other receivables

Ll
P& Mo B )
Hfth & UK

Total

At

FENREE)

T SORBE B B BT B R BIA
M BORE BRI B K
BB -

R2020F6 A30H » EERE —F LA
FWMEZENAFIAE(2019F12 A 31
H :/%\{ﬁf_g)c

R2020F6 A30H ' #AREAIAEHN
ENRIBENRARABEETRARE
619,918,509.72 7L (2019 12 A 31
H: ARK#%191,788,392.617C) °
HENRBEHRGBEATEHO L
Bl A41.41% (2019412 B 318
19.24%) °

H ftb B WK

DRI

RMB
AR

30 June 2020
20206 H30H

31 December 2019
2019412 A31H

159,714,654.22
3,039,944.92
889,228,987.31

37,912,073.30
5,009,506.00
638,679,606.75

1,051,983,586.45 681,601,186.05




Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2020

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial

Statements (Continued)

7. Other receivables (Continued)

Other receivables are disclosed by ages as follows:

Interim Report 2020 FHEAZRE

S5 R WA R (A

20201 81HZ26H30H 1F 7R

G ORI B AR R IEH H R R

(%)

7. HttEWER(R)
R MR R BRI S TR

30 June 2020
20206 A30H

Age

BREQ

Within 1 year 1FE AR
110 2 years 1824

2 to 3 years 2E3F
Over 3 years 3F LA L
Total at original amount REAGT

842,558,153.38
29,846,560.32
18,881,352.67
45,542,880.79
936,828,947.16

Less: Provision for credit loss in respect

B Bt BGRIERBR

47,599,959.85

of other receivables KA
Total at net amount FEAE

889,228,987.31

Classification of gross carrying amount of other

receivables by nature

Nature
ME

H1
BBl

30 June 2020
20206 AH30H

Corporate lending and payment

R ER R AR

199,801,016.64
142,387,769.32

36,431,068.73
558,209,092.47

on behalf
Deposit e
Reserve fund BERE
Others HAb
Total AEt

936,828,947.16

RMB
ARBTT

31 December 2019
2019412 A831H

579,659,764.25
44,823,004.37
18,762,419.94
37,729,415.71
680,974,604.27

42,294,997.52

638,679,606.75

& Wi 35K R TED R BB R SRR 1

RMB
ARET

31 December 2019
2019412 A831H

139,797,158.66
134,138,181.85

22,258,336.50
384,780,927.26

680,974,604.27
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2020

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial
Statements (Continued)

7.

Other receivables (Continued)

Classification of gross carrying amount of other receivables
by nature (Continued)

Change in the provision for credit losses in respect of other
receivables based on 12-month expected credit losses and lifetime

expected credit losses is as follows:

PR 5 i I R (4)
2020F 14 1HZ6H30H 1 5iE

£ {0 O B A B AR
i

7.

H fth B W K (4]

H & UK B T BR BR AR SRR 1

o EBER(E)

Hip Yz R1218 AFEERE
ARBEFEDERERBRED
ERBREFNESHNT

RMB
AT
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 2 Stage 3
Expected Lifetime Lifetime ~ Financial assets
credit loss expected expected with incurred
for the next credit loss credit loss credit loss
[tem 12 months (individually) (by group) (lifetime) Total
E-RE FRE F=BER
F-MEE BARES BAFES BEEER
KAR128A EHERELX  BHGRBX  AESRAE
ER BEHEREX (BIEE) (Hai) (2EAREH) CH
Balance as at 31 December 2019 2019412 531 H%% 2,401,638.77 - - 39,893,358.75 42,294,997.52
Balance as at 31 December 2019 2019412 A31HH#E
in the current period AR
~ Transferred to Stage 2 -—BAZ-RE - = = = =
- Transferred to Stage 3 —BAF=RR A - _ _ _
Provided for the period KE TR 2,543,316.06 - - 4,848,474.01 7,391,790.07
Reversed during the period RHiE (56,537.23) = = = (56,537.23)
Written off or transferred
out during the period RERHRER = = - (2,069,860.00)  (2,069,860.00)
Adjustment for exchange
difference EREEAR (6.51) = = 39,576.00 39,569.49
Balance as at 30 June 2020 2020F6A30BHE 4,888,411.09 - - 42,711,548.76 47,599,959.85




Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2020

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial
Statements (Continued)
7.

Other receivables (Continued)

As at 30 June 2020, the top 5 other receivables are presented as

follows:

Customers

EF

First £—%
Second E-4
Third £=%
Fourth Euips
Fifth ER%
Total B
Inventories

Classification of inventories

[tem

1BR

Raw materials R

Finished qoods ER&

OEM materials REMTIHA

Self made semi-finished goods  EZ MR K&
and work in progress fER

Second-hand vehicles 3

Total At

Closing balance

BAREGE

90,444,921.00

29,328,324.00

20,746,366.00

16,820,000.00

15,922,000.00

173,261,611.00

Gross carrying
amount

REGE

8,359,097,236.22
15,636,003,562.03
296,351,029.24

3,048,155,318.39
1,007,359,537.71

Interim Report 2020 FHEAZRE

B 5 2 I R (48)
20201 81HZ26H30H 1F 7R

Percentage of

total other

receivables (%)

6 EL At BB W 3K

BES

g

HILL (%)

30 June 2020
2020%6A30A
Provision for
decline in value

HERH

(484,582,991.23)
(493,908,208.84)
(1,784,030.86)

(95,728,105.47)
(149,458,294.71)

28347,026,68359  (1,225,461,631.11)

9.65  Security

Security

Carrying
amount

RERE

7,874,514,244.99
15,142,155,353.19
294,566,998.38

2,952,421,212.92
857,901,243.00

27,121,565,052.48

(%)
7. HtpEWE ()

o~ DR B AR 1 IEH H R R

M20205E6A30H - HibfEW &5

BIREBWT :

RMB
ARET

Closing balance

of provision for

3= iR

deposits Within 1 year
REE k8
deposits Within 1 year
RES k8
Advances Within 1 year
EER 1EUR
Advances Within 1 year
BER k2
Advances Within 1 year
EER 1EUR

credit losses

EREXER
HAREGE

RMB
AR T

31 December 2019

2019812A318
Gross carrying Provision for Carying
amount decling in value amount
BHAE HFRERE BHEE
7315,523,151.17 (424519,817.26)  6,951,003,939.91
15,126,444,367.64 (593,161,870.78)  14,533,282,496.86
302,830,517.00 (3,272,506.74) 299,558,010.26
2,201,616,542.88 (86,019,583.37)  2,115,596,959.51
942,361,803.32 (124,102,399.83) 818,259,403.49
25,948,776,988.01 (1,231,076,177.98)  24,717,700,810.03
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) RS ik R B 5 (48
1 January to 30 June 2020 2020917 1H26H30H 1 7

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial #. ~& f I % it 3% £ I H 51 #

Statements (Continued) (%)
8. Inventories (Continued) 8. FE(H&E)
Provision for decline in value of inventories 1 S (B

RMB
AR #or
Decrease during this period
Charge Adjustment
during for exchange
Item 31 December 2019 this period Reversal Write-off differences 30June 2020
%R 20195128318 KR 1] 1 8 2L 2020567308
Raw materials B 424,519,817.26 91,116,214.87 (26,011,884.16) (12,498,427.41) 74571.210.67 484,582,991.23
Finished goods B 593,161,870.78 160,501,013.94 (60,274,488.84) (200,978 540.65) 1,498353.61 493,908,208.84
OFM materials REMIHHR 3272,506.74 = (1,517,410.65) 5 2893477 1,784,030.86
Self made semi-finished goods BEYKER
and work in progress EER 86,019,583.37 31,593,045.27 (20,354,809.37) (2,44,344.39) 714,630.59 95,728,105.47
Second-hand vehicles “FE 124,102,399.83 30,815,316.49 (8,055,980.53) - 2,596,558.92 149,458 294.71
Total el 1,231,076,177.98 31402559057 (116,214573.55)  (215,721,312.45) 12,295743.56 PR YNNI
9. Contract assets 9. EREE
RMB
AR#T
[tem 30 June 2020 31 December 2019
2 ERE| 20206 A30H 2019%F12A31H
Supply chain solution services (Note) fHEE R IR T ERAE () 1,347,064,888.00 1,122,000,995.50
Others Hib 86,890,067.40 52,035,599.00
Total aaEr 1,433,954,955.40 1,174,036,594.50
Note: the amount in respect of supply chain solution services was the net e BAHEEERFRBREEBENSEAR
amount of receivable from customers after offsetting contract assets and AEBERERBRATRRBER—F
contract liabilities under the same contract under the supply chain solution RTAREEEARBEIREENE
services of the Group. The Group recognized the work performed as a KEFPHFE - AEBEEKERITH
contract asset, and reclassified the contract asset recognized at the point IEERE—BAREE  EERE
of time when it settled the amount with the customer into receivables. FHEBEAENREEERNEREE

ENAERUERAR -



Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2020

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial

Statements (Continued)

10. Non-current assets due within one year

Interim Report 2020 FHEAZRE

S5 R WA R (A

20201 81HZ26H30H 1F 7R

(%)

[tem 30 June 2020
HH 20206 H30H
Finance lease receivables BhEFE EI K Note V.12

MisEHR - 12 2,908,662,804.00

11. Other current assets . EEREBEE

ltem 30 June 2020
A H 20206 A30H
Tax credit BRI 1,071,663,846.32
Prepaid expenses HEER 585,404,502.18
Prepaid corporate income tax A EMFH 225,469,768.97
Others Hi 117,118,197.18
Total &5t 1,999,656,314.65

G ORI B AR R IEH H R R
10. —"FRIYPWERDEE

RMB

AR

31 December 2019
2019412 A31H

2,658,043,734.50

RMB
ARET

31 December 2019
2019412 A831H

1,221,958,350.16
430,654,872.66
237,539,267.85
30,606,841.91

1,920,759,332.58
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HRBORHAERDE

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2020

V.

Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial
Statements (Continued)
12. Long-term receivables

Item

BB

Finance lease receivables ~ BAREEUE

Ind: Fnanceincomenot ~ He : XEHE
yet realized Bl

Sub-total NGt

Less: Finance lease i 2Eh
recelvables classified —FR
a due within HBRRE
one year RERUR

A

Total

Gross carrying

amount

REGE

12,901,007,486.00

(1,058,144,276.00)

11,842,863,210.00

2,908,662,804.00

8,934,200,406.00

30 June 2020
2020%6A308
Provision for
impairment

REER

W % B 5 ()
2020F 1A 1HZE6H30H 1F AR
TG MEHREEEEHA R
(%)
12. REEWR
RMB
AR
31 December 2019
20195124318
Carrying Gross carrying Provision for Carying
amount amount impairment amount
REEE REAE WEEE HHERA
(PRI 12,175,228,180.50 - 12,175,228,180.50
(1,058,144,276.00) YKV R0 - (1,069,566,806.00)
(RZYRIX DA 11,105,661,374.50 - 11,105,661,374.50
2,908,662,804.00 2,658,043,734.50 - 2,658,043,734.50
8,934,200,406.00 8,447,617,640.00 - 8,447,617,640.00




Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

1 January to 30 June 2020

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial
Statements (Continued)
13. Long-term equity investments

Interim Report 2020 FHEAZRE

RS i 2 BT 5 (48
2020F 14 1HZ6H30H 1L EE

(%)

G ORI B AR R IEH H R R

13. REIRERE

RMB
AR
Change during this period
Gains and losses
on investment Other Incl: Closing
Increase in Decrease in under equity comprehensive Declaration of Exchange provision for
Investee entity 31 December 2019 investments investments method income cash dividend (ifferences 30 June 2020 impairment
HisET 58
BREEN 20195128318 EiRE HoRE REBE  EtBRRE  EERERN (5 2020564308 AlEEE
Joint ventures RE0%
Xi'an FC Inteligence Transmission Co,, BREH L5 ES

Lid. (Note ) ARAF(GH) 99,769,145.79 - - B3I - - S 11440231711 -
KAMAZ Weichai LLC FEFREERAA 33,043,28937 8,560,858.22 - - - - S 41,604,147.59 -
Associates BErx
Shanzhong Finance Leasing Co, Ltd. IEBEAEARAR 501,140,526.12 - - 13359,902.87 - - . 514500428.99 =
Shandong Heawy Industry Group LI RE T £ BEH%

Finance Co., Ltd. BRAR 1,073,667,234.79 o = 74,515861.15 = - B 1,148,183,095.94 -
Ballard Power Systems Inc. BAEHNZEARAT 107602098985 - - (#1,1048329) - - VAT 1,052,584,855.36 =
Other associates EfpBets 19750334709 11884104539 (3403830%6.21) 8329651056 (15655569000 (1930613057 2965187439 [LERIEAVILEN  (50,844,09133)
Total At 471114453301 12740190361 (340383056.21)  14,700,62261 (15,655,569.00)  (19,306,13057) LYRY(EIERIIM 4,655,222,866.64 (50,844,091.33)

Note 1: Xi‘an FC Intelligence Transmission Co., Ltd. (“Xi‘an FC") is held as H1: AEBEREAALRERSEEHEARA

to 51% by the Group, and as to 4% and 45% by Shaanxi Fast Gear
Automotive Transmission Co., Ltd. (“Fast Gear Transmission”) and
Caterpillar (China) Investment Co., Ltd (“Caterpillar”) respectively. The
board of directors of Xi'an FC comprises seven directors, three of whom
being nominated by the Group, one being nominated by Fast Gear
Transmission and three being nominated by Caterpillar. According to the
articles of association of Xi‘an FC, important board resolutions require
unanimous approval, and thus Xi'an FC is a joint venture of the Group.

B(AT MR R ])51 % -
AL R BRFEE L T EEE)
SEERAEEARATHEHBOELE
EHDANRFEES(TEDREERA
A(ATEHBEIRERS])  BRES
B RA%MA5% - IR EREEEH
tHREFAK AP =2dAKEZ
Fr —RHRELHEDHERE B4 =
ZHRRERBERE  BEATERR
AERNTE BEREFERZFTEE
ZE2RRAEEE ALAXERE
RAEBEEEDRE -
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

1 January to 30 June 2020

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial
Statements (Continued)
14. Investment in other equity instruments

Investee entity

RS i 26 BT 5 (48
2020F 14 1HZ6H30H 1 5iE

o~ BF B o 3 B

(%)
14 EthERTEAERE

H ke

RMB
AR

30 June 2020 31 December 2019
20206 H30H 201912 A31H

1,897,361,788.33 1,745,234,324.70

A 144,000,000.00 167,200,000.00

178,084,400.98 190,695,350.48

W E B

XCMG Construction Machinery BIEE TRREWRG
Co., Ltd. ERAA

Beigi Foton Motor Co., Ltd. EARBAERNBERA

Others Eh

Total A&t

2,219,446,189.31 2,103,129,675.18

Investment in other equity instruments

Investee entity

HRAEN

Dividend

income
recognized
during this period

KHER
WRARA

Hibm TRARENBR

Fair value Amounts Reason for
changes transferred designation
accrued from other at fair value
to other comprehensive through other

comprehensive income to comprehensive
income  retained eamings income
EREAMN

ArBEHE

ZrA Efta BEEHHA
Abiraks  WGEARR Etiiza
WARBEED hsheE hafRA

RMB
AR
Reason for
transfer

from other
comprehensive
income to
retained eamings
during the period

KRR ER
LN
e RR

XCMG Construction Machinery Co., Ltd.

Beiqi Foton Motor Co,, Ltd.

Others

BISETRERRND .
BRAA

LARRAERRAERAA =

A =

697,821,515.19 - [nvestment
in equity

investments

as strategic

investment

BATERE

RERRE

(50,000,000.00) - Investment
in equity

investments

as strategic

investment

BATERE

REBRE

(19,584,674.93) - [nvestment
in equity

investments

as strategic

investment

EATERE

REERE

Total

628,236,840.26 =
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2020

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial
Statements (Continued)
15. Other non-current financial assets

RMB
AR T
[tem 30 June 2020 31 December 2019
BH 20206 B30H 2019412 A831H
Financial assets at fair value through LAREENEBEEEHTA
profit or loss for the current period EfEENSREE
Other debt investments HitnEBHTAEKE 216,945,211.00 216,168,914.50
Cross currency swap and interest rate A2 X 58 5 i | Fi| &
swap contracts EH]EH 533,431,563.21 371,589,714.58
Contingent consideration from EAHIEYE
business combination 48,744,000.00 48,744,000.00
Total ST 799,120,774.21 636,502,629.08
16. Investment property 16. REMEME
(1) Subsequent measurement under the cost model: (1) HAKRAEXETRETS

RMB
AR#T
Houses and
[tem buildings Land use rights
1HE FEREEY THfE AR
. Gross carrying amount — KRERE
31 December 2019 2019%12A31H 775,056,156.61 66,359,171.84 841,415,328.45
Decrease during the period ANy (501,268.53) - (501,268.53)
30 June 2020 20206 H30H 774,554,888.08 66,359,171.84 840,914,059.92
Il. Accumulated depreciation and = - REHTEFEE
amortization
31 December 2019 201912 A31H 278,291,400.67 12,377,969.98 290,669,370.65
Provision for the period REIGHR 11,672,704.72 666,042.36 12,338,747.08
Decrease during the period ARERE (130,109.78) - (130,109.78)
30 June 2020 20206 A30H 289,833,995.61 13,044,012.34 302,878,007.95
lll. Accumulated impairment = BEOREEE
provision
31 December 2019 and 2019 12A318 K
30 June 2020 20206 A30H 13,447,824.67 13,447,824.67
IV. Carrying amount W BREEE
30 June 2020 20206 H30H YA WYER YR 53,315,159.50 524,588,227.30

31 December 2019

20194128318

483,316,931.27

53,981,201.86

537,298,133.13
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2020

V.

Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial
Statements (Continued)
16. Investment property (Continued)

(2)  Investment properties not obtained title certificates:

As at 30 June 2020, the Group did not have any investment
properties not obtained title certificates (31 December 2019:
Nil).

17. Fixed assets
Presented by categories

RS i 26 BT 5 (48
20201 81HZ6H30H 1F 5

h e BHRkEFEERTE
(&)
16. REMEME (&)
(2) AMZERBFEMNREEEH
EBER
20206 A30H  NEEE
REBSEHMEFMNREEEH
E(2019%128318 : #) -

17. BEEE

DRI

RMB

AR

30 June 2020 31 December 2019
20206 H30H 2019412 A31H

[tem

EH

Fixed Assets AR
Disposal of fixed assets TAESE

29,052,088,072.72 26,315,978,220.47
2,869,529.14 2,689,504.47

Total =

29,054,957,601.86 26,318,667,724.94
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) RS i R B 5 (48
1 January to 30 June 2020 2020%F 1 A1HZ6H30H 1R

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial #. ~& 0F B % it 3% £ EIH H 51 B

Statements (Continued) (%)
17. Fixed assets (Continued) 17. BEEEE(E)
Fixed assets & & EBR
RMB
AR T
Forklift trucks Forklift trucks
Houses, and equipment and equipment
buildings and Machinery and Electronic leased out leased out
[tem [and use rights equipment equipment Vehicles (long-term) (short-term) Others
REEREY BHNRE Bz
&R RiifER BERE 73R EaRR RRE(RE) R (EH) 0]
|, Gross carying amount - KERE
31 December 2019 20198128318 13852,851,195.42  19,183,701,402.61 1,971,158,081.75 451,296,966.50 5,319,670,320.38 4,238,453,466.87 2,157,68751990  47,174,:818,953.43
Increase during the period KHENSE
Addtion BE 44100,718.42 140,442,181.23 21,947,845.08 10,798,626.72 1,944,782,267.60 801,678,86030 151,349,353.21 3,115,099,852.56
Transfer from construction-in- AR IREA
progress 700,364,201.17 1,305,631,368.63 240,21967.94 16,641,557.93 200,631,196.71 2,463,490,292.38
Increase in business BEAMHEN
combintion 19,740,749.11 102,314,838.02 6,488,403.60 324644243 50,268,538.18 182,058,971.34
Intemal reclssffication RBESE - - (9,640,150.07) - - - 9,640,150.07 -
Other transfer ApEA 501,268.53 - = - - - = 501,268.53
Dectease during the period KHE)EE - - - - s - . -
Disposl or refements REAHE (1508790100 (TSAT431TY) (42004074 (20985786  (US686728)  (G00209400 (187705708  (1417.292,14477)
Adjustment for exchange EXzE5E
differences 34,837,836.61 (1,621,934.20) 342,712.62 (107,509.21) (182,073,716.33) (100,108,382.17) 5434,396.00 (243,296,536.68)
30 June 2020 2020564308 14,637,367,179.16  20,554,970,418.56 2,216,298,880.18 464,666,226.51 6,564,852,004.37 4,280,991,851.00 2,556,234,097.01  51,275,380,656.79
I Accumulated depreciation =+ 25t
31 December 2019 20195128318 3,959,350997.75  12,588,119,059.05 1,536,141,521.11 337,501,092.54 59,538,987.60 1,024,605,306.21 859,985,23887  20,365,242,203.13
Increase during the period KNS
Provision it 347,02,227.13 744,800,435.91 89,720332.78 18,756,089.66 204,416,374.08 294,782,461.56 24,219,029.32 1,923,956,950.44
Other transfer UL )N 130,109.78 - - - - - - 130,109.78
Internal classification RHBEAE o - 759,885.86 - - - (759,885.86) =
Dectease during the period AR 2% - - - - - - - -
Disposl or refements EEEE (03530405 (1916525138 (l06BEB5H (655868 (3093605  (I60STBIRI)  QEVSBS)  (T36070814)
Adjustment for exchange E}zERE
differences 3,096,041.16 (3,446,162.66) 254,100.01 (29,562.32) (94,288,755.85) (77,693,50.04) (11,020,853.54) (183,128,698.24)
30 June 2020 2020564308 4,308,844,071.67  13,200308,080.92 1,616,202,156.22 339,711,783.04 116,557,245.25 1,081,120,504.63 1,069,856,015.24  21,732,599,856.97
Il Provison for impaiment =  H{EERE
31 December 2019 20195124318 276,352,941.50 173,117,675.35 7,022,424.16 12880175 2,930,812.50 22,750,920.50 10,694,954.07 493,598,529.83
Provision i - 208,658.57 - S S = 1,033,934.58 1,202,593.15
Disposals or rtirements RENHE - (5,639,950.88) (116.00) (2,76132) - - - (5,642,828.20)
Adjustment for exchange B} =B8R
differences 503,953.50 359,884.40 - S 54,562.50 423,550.50 152,481.42 149443232
30 June 2020 2020564308 276,856,895.00 168,046,267.44 7,022,308.16 726,040.83 2,985,375.00 23,174471.00 11,881,370.07 490,692,721.10
. Caring amount BEEE
30 June 2020 2000%6A308 10,051,666,212.49 7,186,616,070.20 593,074,415.80 124,228,403.04 6,445,309,384.12 3,176,696,875.37 1474496,711.70  29,052,088,072.72

31 December 2019 20195128318 9,617,147,256.17  6,422,464,668.21 427,994,136.48 1306701221 525720052028 3,191,007,240.16  1,287,00732696 26,315,978, 22047
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

1 January to 30 June 2020

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial

Statements (Continued)
17. Fixed assets (Continued)

Fixed assets which are temporarily idle are presented as follows:

Gross

carrying amount

FE

409,913,853.21
210,229,947.19
41,801,109.79
818,489.43

[tem

HE

Houses and buildings and EEREY I
land use rights THFARE

Machinery and equipment  #235%

Electronic equipment B

Vehicles BERE

Total G

662,763,399.62

Carrying amount of fixed assets leased out under operating lease is

presented as follows:

RS i 26 BT 5 (48
20201 81HZ6H30H 1F 5

G OF B AR R IEH H RE R

(%)
17. BEEEE(E)

ERRENBEEENT :

Accumulated
depreciation

R &

110,376,852.26
99,197,842.45
29,672,643.97

Provision for
impairment

HEERE

263,323,717.69
58,314,000.55
6,996,295.86

RMB
ARBTT

Carrying amount

REEE

36,213,283.26
52,718,104.19
5,132,169.96

764,842.72 = 53,646.71

240,012,181.40 328,634,014.10 94,117,204.12

REMBAHBEEEEREEERDT

RMB
AR

30 June 2020
202066 H30H

31 December 2019
2019412 A31H

4,033,017.46
26,838,404.65
802,387.21

6,445,309,384.12

3,176,696,875.37

[tem

pEl=

Electronic equipment BEFRE

Machinery and equipment a2t

Vehicles B R

Forklift trucks and equipment leased out 78 H! ) X &8 & %45 (£ H))
(long-term)

Forklift trucks and equipment leased out 78 i #) X & N =& & (52 87)
(short-term)

Total A&F

259,749.12
36,944,311.17
2,449.49

5,257,200,520.28

3,191,097,240.16

9,653,680,068.81

As at 30 June 2020, fixed assets for which the Group
had not obtained real estate certificates had a carrying
amount of RMB1,540,056,154.93 (31 December 2019:

RMB1,568,776,275.11).

8,485,504,270.22

202064308 « NEREKER
BHMEINETEEREEEAAR
# 1,540,056,154.93 70 (2019 F 12
A31H : AR¥1,568,776,275.11
JL) ©



Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

1 January to 30 June 2020

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial
Statements (Continued)

17.

18.

Fixed assets (Continued)

As at 30 June 2020, net fixed assets of the Group with title
restrictions amounted to RMB606,038,473.12 (31 December
2019: RMB628,507,841.20), please refer to Note V.67. Among
which, the pledge over fixed assets with carrying amount of
RMB288,269,241.97 had yet to be registered.

As at 30 June 2020, in view of the existence of idle fixed assets

and the fact that the recoverable amounts of some fixed assets

were lower than their carrying amount, according to the result

of impairment, provision for impairment in the amount of

RMB1,242,593.15 was made.

Construction in progress

Item

1BF

Transmission project E5ER

Production ine constructon and FEGRRNEER
renovation project

Trial room construction project A FREEREAA

Factory area construction project A BEFEAA

Factory area construction project C BB EHIBEC

Factory area construction project B BERARB

Trial room construction project B FREEREAS

Factory area construction project D RERERD

Materials used in construction IBnE

Others £t

Total At

30 June 2020
2020568308

Gross Provision for

carrying amount

impairment

REHE HEER

802,628,164.36

507,356,622.38 =
489,902,659.96 =
519,672,852.65 (70,611,873.18)
364,714,506.22 -
176,335,297.56 =
101,048,743.08 =
49,947,123.42 =
8,447,325.00 =
2,033,318,253.58 (4,727,672.83)

5,053,371,548.21 (75,339,546.01)
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G ORI B AR R IEH H R R

(%)

17. EEEE (&)

M202046 8308 - AEBEFAE
XERGNETEEFERARKE
606,038,473.127£ (2019 12 A 31
H: AR#628,507,841.2070) * =
BfsEh 67 - HF - REEEA
AR #288,269,241 97 THE T &
B MAPIERIEAER -

M2020F6 A30H ARTFERE
METEEE  ULKBLBETEED
AEEBEENEEEE  RER

BRAASER -

ARBEERBARYE

1,242,593.157C °

18. EEZIRE

RMB
AR T

31 December 2019

2019F128318
Carrying Gross Provision for Carrying
ENGINIESS  carrying amount impairment amount
BEfE RAAE AEERE BEEE
EOXYERTRIG  892,307,327.63 - 89230732763
507,356,622.38  [EEYMARNIEY - 482,213,069.42
LESRTDARRI  272,504,325.35 - 27250432535
LVXVSICTEY YA 507,918,491.72 (70,611.873.18)  437306,61854
364,714506.22  EANASYMIIES - 317,657,204.95
176,335,297.56  EELENEINLIYY) - 36873078447
ORVENZERI I 205,439,387.19 - 205439387.19
(ORTYRPEV YR 136,453,336.98 - 23645333698
8,447,325.00 138,063.63 - 138,063.63
ARSI NER 2,200,643,571.73 (4727,672.83)  2,195,915,893.90
URCTEXEPN VI 5,484,005,563.07 (75,339,546.01)  5,408,666,017.06
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V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial #. ~& 0F b % it 3% £ EIH H 51 B

Statements (Continued) (%)
18. Construction in progress (Continued) 18. EEIRE(HE)
Movement in key construction-in-progress is presented as follows: FEEEIREFHUT -
RMB
AR#® T
Of which
Fixed asset Acual  Accumulated capitalized
Increase transferred costs as amount of amount of
during in during Other Closing a percentage capitalized  interestduring  Source of
Item Budget Opening balance the period the period decrease balance  of budget (%) interest theperiod  funding
AlE) A HE Ao KBRS
&R BE AEm ExdE A HREE 5 ZiteE
Tral oom construction FRTEREAA
project A 1,033,000,000.00 272,504,325.35 292,400,485.61 75,002,151.00 489,902,659.96
Factory area construction BERRIEAC
project C 780,000,000.00 317,657,204.95 188,074,752.03 364,714,506.22
Factory area construction RERR
project B-Phase 3 EEB-=H 723,876,400.00 251,185,433.18 76,008,331.58 225,789,285.78 101,404,478.98 2,091,246.29 185,765.59
Factory area construction HERRFREA-#
project A-relocation g 349,990,000.00 135,889,985.95 95,801,729.78 456,13 203,235,582.73
Transmission project - Light-duty EHEE -8+
and medium-duty truck 270,000,000.00 205,978,937.23 30,146,888.78 236,125,826.01
Transmission project - BEEA-E2
Infrastructure 182,899,000.00 126,870,012.43 3,653,508.83 119,472,776.63 11,050,744.63

Total Ait 3,339,765,400.00  1,310,085,899.09 733,142,997.88 636,795,098.44 1,406,433,798.53 - 2,091,246.29 185,765.59




Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

1 January to 30 June 2020

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial

Statements (Continued)
19. Right-of-use assets

Item
i
I, Gross carying amount - KERE
31 December 2019 20198128318
Increase during the period KN
Decrease during the period KBRS
Adjustment for exchange EXZEAR
differences
30 June 2020 2000563308
I Accumulated depreciation =~ B3t E
31 December 2019 2019812318
Provision it
Decrease during the period 1)
Adjustment for exchange EpzERg
differences
30 June 2020 2020564308
Il Provison for impairment = HERE
31 December 2019 20195124318
Provision it
Decrease during the period R
Adjustment for exchange Epzmiz
differences
30 June 2020 2020564308
N Canying amount n - EEEE
30 June 2020 2020564308
31 December 2019 20195128318

Houses and
buildings

REREEN

4,563,127,219.60
657,256,005.49
(24,121,337.80)

(3,469,863.45)
5,192,792,083 84

2,038,299,453.88
253,127,080.35
(12,457,760.00)

2,532,059.00
2,281,500,833.23

5799,101.01

(441,348.01)
5,357,753.00

2,905,933,497.61
2,519,028,724.1

Machinery and

equipment

BRRA

66,244,178.00
1,899,808.40
(1,019979.10)

1,253,021.70
68,377,029.00

36,936,053.00
4,445,863.10
(872,043.20)

767,912.10
41,277,785.00

27,099,244.00
29,308,125.00

Interim Report 2020 FHEAZRE
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Vehicles

LR

8,916,005.91
49,50330

159,593.43
9,125,162.64

3,319,346.99
1,713,795.05

94,480.72
5,187,622.76

3937,539.88
5,596,718.92

During the period, short-term leasing fees through profit or loss
under the simplified approach amounted to RMB87,456,080.78
while low value asset leasing fee amounted to RMB10,636,607.63.

G ORI B AR R IEH H R R

(%)
19. FERREEE
RMB
AT

Forklift trucks
and equipment

Forklift trucks
and equipment
aftersaleand  after sale and
leaseback leaseback
subleases
(short-term)
L1l
BEANEL
WXERRE

(85) L

subleases
(long-term) Others
EiEm
BEENYE
EL]

(RH)

2859,022.171.70  4,625,208,784.58  1,835,561,920.85
207,543,767.21

(233,676,433.20)

13,958,080,400.64
866,749,084.40
(1,492,405,426.81)

(395,673412.03)  (837,914,264.68)

18,050,713.83
2,481,399,473.50

(3,711,532.67)
3,783,582,987.23

4,229,495.46
1,813,658,750.32

16,511,42830
13,348,935,486.53

485,994,237.34
341,09,278.31
(327,983,811.94)

1,404,459,298.69
465,054,403.16
(680,959,307.51)

871,822,111.44
226,288,928 41
(209,975,544.80)

4,840,830,501.34
1,291,786,348.38
(1,232,248 467.45)

(4,740,779.89)
494365,923.82

(23,125,665.37)
1,165,428,728.97

62,002.23
888,197,497.28

(24,409,991.21)
4,875,958,391.06

1922,612.99 1,721,71400

35,793.01
1,958,406.00

(405,555.00)
1316,159.00

1,987,033,549.68
2,373,027,934.36

2,618,154,258.26
3,220,749,485.89

923,502,847.04
961,817,196.42

8,465,660,936.47
9,109,528,185.30

AEF AE BN EERNE
HHEER A ARYKS7,456,080.78
T REEEEHREERAARKE
10,636,607.637C °
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V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial #. ~& 0F b % it 3% £ EIH H 51 B

Statements (Continued) (#)
20. Intangible assets 20. BB E

Trademark Customer

Item Land use rights Patents rights License Software  Orders on hand relationship Others

LE THERE L BERRE R L4 EFIE EFRA

| Gosamingamownt  — AEEE

31 December 2019 20198128318 1952,236505.25  1,822,168,082.11  7,665296573.01  1,043875447.19  487,03196449 32518901324 1057899206042  7,701,832,82848 31,576,622,474.19
Addition BE 306,596,452.85 4,051,194.96 - 5419,125.63 69,726,015.30 - - 37521980886 761,012,597.60
Transfer to internal R&D REBHEEA - 139305,081.27 - - - 139305,081.27
Increase n business fxafEn

combination 50,843,233.00 3,744,948.91 70,018.93 146,216.73 4182,865.83  366,186,48082 10380348750  528977,251.12
Redlassfication ER ] 9,598,649.81 (4,363,600.56) 30,498,153.70 (34,549,715.75) - - (1,183,487.20) -
Disposals or retrements RESEE - - (450036580 - - (4500,365.80)
Adustment forexchange X ZEER

differences (209,282.59) 1027890206 135420,780.88 12,482,278.04 4,145,250.72 613552298 15888640159 11671900825 44385892193
30 June 2020 200056308 225862367551  2,036,245,14321  7,800,098702.24  1,087,844,657.69 52649973149 33550740205 11,104,064942.83  8296,391,705.89 33,445,275960.91

Accumulated amortzation = E5tEH

31 December 2019 2019128318 33357435472 794.253473.01 26,987,03478 67484310297 170840825.15 14402403400 3512570477.45  1,792,189,709.09  7,449,283011.17
Provision i 24,234,964.53 67,627,666.06 1,367,963.66 80,080,038.50 12,944,871.20 15859,19406 38596375470 44576363264  1,033,842,085.35
Disposals or retirements REFHE - - - (4,500,365.80) - - - - (4,500,365.80)
Adustmentsforexchange B} #EH%

differences (103,244.45) 461772110 (455,186.21) 32133078 108,786.64 302821157 61,257,029.48 3422551806 103,000,173.57
30 June 2020 2000564308 357,706,07480  866,498,866.77 2789981223 75074410645 18389448299 16291143963 395979126163  2272,178859.79  8581,624,904.29

Provsion for impaiment = + AR
31 December 2019 2019127318 32,825,100.00 7,252,784.00 6,228,953.50 1944496400 547,188211.83 7881931750 691,759,330.83
Provision $7 = - - - - - -
Disposals or retirements REARE

Adustments forexchange B 288

diferences 611,10000 135,024.00 115,96350 /00400 0186147 1436750 1287838047
30 June 2020 200565308 BB TRTHB00 69700 1980696800 55737513290 0266500 70463771090
V. Netamyngamount - BEEE
30 June 2020 OCELE I 190091760071 116974627644 T3BT6260001 397N 3362603150 1578899440 658689854630 504392616110 241590133452
31 December 2019 PUCEVGEIIEN 161866215053 102791460910 760548443823 36177956022 30996218584 16172001524 651923337054 583082380189 2343558013259
During the end of the period, the proportion of intangible assets NHEHHE R BEANLHBTKN E
from internal R&D to the remaining amount of intangible assets FEELEREEGENLD A

was 24.84%. 24.84% -



Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2020

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial
Statements (Continued)

20.

Intangible assets (Continued)

As at 30 June 2020, the intangible assets for which the Group had
title restrictions had a carrying amount of RMB346,065,559.45 (31
December 2019: RMB242,181,694.04), for details please refer to
Note V.67.

As at 30 June 2020, the intangible assets for which the Group
had not obtained title certificates had a carrying amount of
RMB70,084,145.21 (31 December 2019: RMB54,320,648.72), for

which the Group was in the process of applying.

Other than the finite useful life of some of the trademarks held
by the subsidiaries of the Company, trademarks of the Group
are renewable every 10 years at minimal cost. The management
of the Group are of the opinion that the Group has both the
intention and ability to renew the trademarks continuously. As
a result, the useful life of the trademarks is considered by the
management of the Group as indefinite because the trademarks are
expected to contribute to the Group’s net cash inflows indefinitely.
The trademarks will not be amortized unless their useful life is
determined to be finite. Instead the trademarks will be tested for
impairment annually and whenever there is an indication that they

may be impaired.

Interim Report 2020 FHEAZRE
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15 {0 O B A B AR
Fi

. EBEEE (&)

202056 A30H - AEEATAHE
XRHNBEEEERAEBERARE
346,065,559.457C (20194 12 A 31
H: AR®242,181,694.047T) @ &
BHizER 670

720206 4308 « AEE AR
ERZFENEVEAEREEEAAR
#70,084,145.2170(20194F 12 A 31
B : AR¥54,320,648.727L) ' #%
ERPEENEREZSETHRES -

BRARRZ TRARIFBENID BIRE
REwERI  AEBEEMEEES
THEABRZEXNAEE R - $EI
ERERR AKREEEAAR
ErEEZEHIR °%EE+EA3?ﬁ§E%quﬂ
KARAEBEERSRAERE - &
it AEEEEERRZSTHEER
S TEE - RIFRSHIENAER
FRERERER - BATSHETH
MR BESEEEREEAN
SRENFERERETRENR -
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BERE  REBEAHAZEZ HE
™

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2020

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial
Statements (Continued)

21. Expenditure on development
Capitalization of expenditure on development starts when
the development stage is reached. Capitalized expenditure on
development of the Group is presented as follows:

RMB
AR®T
Increase in Recognition
internal R&D of intangible
[tem 31 December 2019 expenditure assets  Other changes 30 June 2020
2019% AR £ 2020F
L] 128318 X BNEE Att#5 6A30R
Improvement project on driver's cabin 25 £ 18 B 49,051,325.26 3,134357.25  (52,185,682.51) -
Hydraulics project REER - 28,237,667.00 - 28,237,667.00
Others Hit 90,449,194.12 20,690,004.86  (87,119,398.76) 24,019,800.22
Total At 139,500,519.38 52,062,029.11  (139,305,081.27) 52,257,467.22
22. Goodwill 22. B8
(1) Gross carrying amount of goodwiill (1) EmERERE
RMB
AR T
Increase during this
period due to business
combination
involving entities not Adjustment for
under common Decrease during exchange 30June  Asset
Item 31 December 2019 control this period differences 2020 group unit
A4
019% FE-EHT E 20208
58 128318 LRafEN 6A308
Merger with TAGC SEHENE 531,226,25268 531,226,252.68
Merger with Linde Hydraulcs AHINERE
GmbH & Co. KG ABL% 828,942,374.97 - 15,432,29.79 844,374,671.76
Merger with KION AHKION 6,636,463,936.94 = 123550,061.15  6,760,013,998.09
Merger with Dematic Group AfDematic Group 15,419,317,182.50 554,103,106.80 83,948,554.70  16,057,368,844.00
Merger with Tianjn Tinte ARREEENR
Technology Company Limited BRAF(NTERE
("Tsintel Technology”) [EBRE)) 303417,137.% - - 3BT
Others £ 341,224,832.94 354,199,258.31 5,556,089.87 700,980,181.12
Total B 24,060,591,717.99 908,302,365.11 28,487,00251  25,197,381,085.61
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V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial #. ~& f I % it & £ IH H 5 #

Statements (Continued) (%)
22. Goodwill (Continued) 22. BE (&)
(2)  Provision for impairment of goodwill (2) FEERMEERE
RMB
ARET

[tem 31 December 2019
BR 2019%12A31A

Merger with TAGC AHRNE 238,071,400.00

Balance as at 30 June 2020 mainly represented goodwill
arising from merger with TAGC, Linde Hydraulics GmbH
& Co. KG, KION, Dematic Group and Tsintel Technology.
Goodwill arising from merger would be allocated to asset

group units to test for impairment on an annual basis.

Carrying amount of material goodwill is allocated to the

following asset group units as follows:

° asset group unit A: major automobile components

other than automotive and engines

° asset group unit B: manufacture of hydraulic pumps,
hydraulic motors, hydraulic valves, gears and other

components

° asset group unit C: forklift trucks production,
warehousing technology and supply chain solutions

services

° asset group unit D: Intelligent supply chains and

automation solutions

° asset group unit E: driving assistance system and

automatic driving solutions

Increase during Decrease during

this period this period 30 June 2020
KM EHES 2020%6A30R

238,071,400.00

2020F6 H30H BEHKRBE L £
REFANE - KEBRES R
% « KION * Dematic Group
MEBRBRMEENEE - K
SEBFEHEZZLESH
HENEEAMEAETEER
BRI -

EZBENRESREIEER
EREEHNERMT

o HEMMEAA: RERE
BRI ERTET M

o EBAEMAEB: EERE
R BREFZE BREH
Fl - S AT TRt

e EHEMHMAAC: XE4LE
E - BB R e

RTT IR
o ZEEMMAAD: FREHE
EMBEBCRRG R

s EEMMEA/E: BERmWY
Rk BB EERTT R
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V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial #. ~& f I % it & £ IH H 51 #

Statements (Continued) (%)
22. Goodwill (Continued) 22. BE (&)
(2)  Provision for impairment of goodwill (Continued) (2) EEREEEE)
The carrying amount of material goodwill is allocated to the EEHENEAesBEIREEE
asset group units as follows: EABEERNERAT

RMB
AT
Carrying amount of goodwiill
BENRESHE
30 June 2020 31 December 2019
Asset group units BEMBBE 202056 H30H 2019412 A31H
Asset group unit A BEMABEA 293,154,852.68 293,154,852.68
Asset group unit B BEMAAEB 844,374,671.76 828,942,374.97
Asset group unit C BEMABAC 6,760,013,998.09 6,636,463,936.94
Asset group unit D BEMMAED LY REIE RN  15,419,317,182.50
Asset group unit E BEEMHEAE 303,417,137.96 303,417,137.96
Total = 24,258,329,504.49 23,481,295,485.05
. PA
23. Long-term prepaid expenses 23. RHASHER
RMB
AR T
Increase Amortization

31 December during during Provision for 30 June

ltem 2019 this period this period impairment 2020

2019% 20205

R 128318 RE2 M RHEE BB 6A30H

Industrial mould fee TXiEAE 174,828,296.76 52,403,774.98 (2,513,043.34) 224,719,028.40

Industrial equipment fee THELE 35,688,479.65 14,088,277.87 (5,265,728.44) 44,511,029.08

Expenditure on improvement of T AEEEE
fixed assets leased in HETH 43,850,686.14 6,085,686.84 (20,670,306.57) 29,266,066.41

Total S 254,367,462.55 72,571,739.69 (28,449,078.35) 298,49,123.89




Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2020

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial

Statements (Continued)
24. Other non-current assets

[tem
HEH

Interim Report 2020 FHEAZRE

S5 R WA R (A

20201 81HZ26H30H 1F 7R

G ORI B AR R IEH H R R

(%)

24. EMERBEE

30 June 2020
20206 H30H

Scheme assets under defined benefit plan

REX T B ZsT BB E

360,848,247.00
170,209,372.56
63,224,793.47

594,282,413.03

25. EHEME R

30 June 2020
202066 H30H

40,000,000.00
5,303,021,199.19

Input tax credit to be deducted FREHETER R
Others HAth
Total &t
25. Short-term loans
[tem
EH
Pledged borrowings (Note) HRERGE)
Credit loans ELEEE
Total A&t

5,343,021,199.19

As at 30 June 2020, the above loans carried interest at rates ranging
0.70%~4.25% (31 December 2019: 1.05%~4.35%) per annum.

Note: As at 30 June 2020, among the short-term loans, RMB40,000,000.00 (31
December 2019: RMB20,000,000.00) represented the loan secured by
the pledge of accounts receivable of RMB51,057,178.92 (31 December
2019: RMB25,442,865.48) by Shaanxi Jinding Casting Co., Ltd., a
subsidiary of the Company, to Shandong Heavy Industry Group Finance

Co., Ltd..

RMB

AR

31 December 2019
2019412 A31H

403,740,914.50
152,404,692.00
131,574,886.70

687,720,493.20

RMB
AR

31 December 2019
2019412 A31H

380,000,000.00
1,634,692,401.39

2,014,692,401.39

7H2020FE6H30H @ L& RAEF
R A0.70%~4.25%(2019F12 A31

H :1.05%~4.35%) °

i 20206 A30H - MEERF A
R #40,000,000.007T (2019412 B
318 : AR#20,000,000.007T) &
AARZ FRAAKALEEEAR
ARMLEETIEETHEER QA
E i AR #51,057,178.92 7T FE WL BR
HEB(2019F12A318 : ARK
25,442,865.487T) °
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

1 January to 30 June 2020

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial

Statements (Continued)
26. Financial liability held for trading

[tem
HH

RS i = B 5 (48D
20201 81HZ6H30H 1F 5

Forward foreign exchange contracts

Cross currency swap and interest rate

swap instruments

EHIMNER K
RKNEBEHRENEE®RT A

100,032,983.46

20206 A30H

18,074,140,421.84
344,530,601.41

Total &&F

27. Notes payable
[tem
HAE
Bank acceptance bills RITENIESE
Commercial acceptance bills HEARLIES
Total &t

18,418,671,023.25

As at 30 June 2020, the Group had no outstanding notes payable

which were due (31 December 2019: Nil).

Bin é;ﬁ?ﬁﬁ%*lﬁ%iglﬁ ElER
(%)
26 REGMEMEE

RMB
AR

30 June 2020
20206 H30H

31 December 2019
2019412 A31H

85,151,393.42 100,742,322.60

14,881,590.04 31,178,431.78

131,920,754.38

27. EHEE

RMB

AR T

31 December 2019
2019412 A31H

30 June 2020

22,399,651,927.32
46,752,609.26

22,446,404,536.58

M2020F6 A30H - REBFERHK

EENZH(2019F12A318 -
) o



Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2020

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial
Statements (Continued)

28.

29.

Accounts payable

Interim Report 2020 FHEAZRE

RS i 2 BT 5 (48
20201 81HZ26H30H 1F 7R

ﬁhﬁﬁ%%ﬁ%i%ﬁﬁﬁ%
=]
28. EFERRA

RMB
ARET

30 June 2020 31 December 2019
20206 A30H 2019412 A831H

40,222,970,627.36 33,160,995,390.49
3,687,991,150.05 2,714,553,791.80
1,089,045,847.96 543,361,583.54
693,984,784.69 329,592,917.02

ltem

HAE

Within 3 months 3@ A AR

3 to 6 months 3l A E6MA
6 to 12 months 618 A=1218A
Over 12 months 1218 A LA E
Total A

45,693,992,410.06 36,748,503,682.85

Accounts payable are non-interest bearing, and are generally settled
within three to six months.

As at 30 June 2020, there was no payable which was material and
aged over one year (31 December 2019: Nil).

Contract liabilities

[tem
1HH

BRI E  LBEAE3IE6HE
HWEE -

202056 A30H @ EEREE—F AL
MEZWEMNKIE(2019F12 A31
H:#&E)-

29. EEAE

RMB
ARET

30 June 2020 31 December 2019
20206 H30H 2019412 A831H

Supply chain solutions services (Note) R IR T BRI (5E)

3,442,893,670.00 3,257,672,340.51

10,930,075,146.29 7,396,781,019.68

Construction contracts EiEAR
Sales and other services 85 S E A AR %5
Total A&

14,372,968,816.29 10,654,453,360.19

Note: The contract liabilities associated with the supply chain solutions services
are the balances payable to the customer under the performing contract.
The balance is generated when a specific milestone payment exceeds the
revenue recognized as a result of the input method.

i HEfEERASTERRBEBNERE
BERETTARTENZTFMNHRE -
ERENERENRBBREAER

REVMAR - S EE XA ©
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HRBORHAERDE

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

1 January to 30 June 2020

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial
Statements (Continued)

30. Payroll payable

ltem 31 December 2019
EH 2019%12A318
Short-term remuneration yShEdll 4,869,582,825.95
Post-employment benefits BRERNGGRRE

(defined contribution plan) RB7F:tE) 430,349,431.75
Severance benefits due within 1 year —F A Z|Ei & E R 1EF 181,311,504.27
Cash-settled share-based payment ~ —FRFIHE AR S

due within 1 year BENROXA 43,344,763.00
Other long-term payroll due —FRIHSHHE RS

within 1 year BIFM 64,407,535.50
Total A 5,588,996,060.47

S5 ik SR W R (A

20201 81HZ6H30H 1F 5

G OF B R R IEH H R R

(%)

30. FEASHE T 5N

Increase during

this period
A H 2 i

11,292,577,142.55

1,324,529,647.17
49,085,570.62

27,251,350.00

225,964,019.32

12,919,407,729.66

Decrease during
this period
HED

(11,669,342,283.42)

(1,257,963,499.50)
(107,007,307.57)

(38,425,712.00)

(223,072,419.82)

(13,295,811,222.31)

RMB

AR#®T

30 June 2020
2020F6A30R

4,492,817,685.08

496,915,579.42
123,389,767.32

32,170,401.00

67,299,135.00

5.212,592,567.82

Short-term remuneration is presented as follows:

REFHMT

31 December 2019
2019128318

Salaries, bonuses, allowances

I %5 2HM

and subsidies 8L 3,873,801,176.90
Staff welfare BIRME 23,252,500.93
Social security HeRRE 108,433,625.50
Incl: Medical insurance Hi: BERRE 76,143,515.66
Work injury insurance TERRE 20,295,658.83
Maternity insurance EERRE 1,008,583.73
Supplementary medical insurance BRBERE 10,985,867.28
Housing funds TELES 18,874,214.37
Labor union operating fundsand T @& EMET
employee education costs HELE 640,038,401.52
Other short-term remuneration H 55 H 5 205,182,906.73
Total AR 4,869,582,825.95

Increase during
this period
AHE

9,778,307,446.32
156,181,918.00
813,986,381.74
733,419,551.31
35,499,542.83
580,889.19
44,486,398.41
184,866,108.40

90,492,949.34
268,742,338.75

11,292,577,142.55

Decrease during
this period
THED

(10,366,257,426.02)
(148,898,066.80)
(753,568,322.20)
(678,493,311.22)

(32,478,082.77)
(1,489,721.60)
(41,107,206.61)
(127,115,375.91)

(46,962,652.95)
(226,540,439.54)

(11,669,342,283.42)

RMB
AR

30 June 2020
2020F6H30R

3,285,851,197.20

30,536,352.13
168,851,685.04
131,069,755.75
23,317,118.89
99,751.32
14,365,059.08
76,624,946.86

683,568,697.91
247,384,805.94

4,492,817,685.08



Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

1 January to 30 June 2020

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial

Statements (Continued)
30. Payroll payable (Continued)

31.

Post-employment benefits (defined contribution plan) is presented as

follows:

[tem
|

31

December 2019

20195124318

Basic pension insurance

Unemployment insurance

Contribution to pension fund

344,709,563.41
15,744,653.74
69,895,214.60

Total

430,349,431.75

Taxes payable

Interim Report 2020 FHEAZRE

S5 R WA R (A

20201 81HZ26H30H 1F 7R

G ORI B AR R IEH H R R

(%)

30. BB T &M (48)
BRAEAN (REIREHEMT -

Increase during

Decrease during
this period
AH

this period
KD

993,047,070.04
92,657,175.45
238,825,401.68

(909,722,806.45)
(86,434,123.76)
(261,806,569.29)

1,324,529,647.17  (1,257,963,499.50)

31. EXHE

30 June 2020
202066 H30H

RMB
ARBT

30 June 2020
20206 A30H

428,033,827.00
21,967,705.43
46,914,046.99

496,915,579.42

RMB
AR

31 December 2019
2019412 A31H

1,457,633,445.21
1,094,226,872.40
312,653,294.93
16,645,233.59
15,846,892.72
14,729,771.12
12,188,159.44
11,437,207.95
89,860,299.12

[tem

U=

Corporate income tax EFREH
Value-added tax EER
Individual income tax (EPNZIESE)
Property tax BER
City maintenance and construction tax 4 T 4 & 2 28 Bt
Stamp duty ENFERL
Land use tax T AR
Educational surtax HEBW M
Other taxes E th B 18
Total A&F

977,012,671.16
721,933,236.77
219,970,981.88
11,161,834.32
7,079,202.79
17,347,883.76
9,262,341.18
5,787,532.86
95,029,079.98

3,025,221,176.48

2,064,584,764.70
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V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial #. ~& f I % it & £ IH H 51 #
Statements (Continued) (74)

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2020

32. Other payables

32. HMEMNSR

30 June 2020
20206 H30H

79,054,971.75
1,140,752,247.84
7,566,196,692.93

[tem

EA

Interest payable JE 1 1) B
Dividend payable JE AT A
Other payables H th FE A5 5K
Total a5t

8,786,003,912.52

Interest payable

[tem
HH

FEASFI 2

30 June 2020
202066 H30H

Interest on medium term notes

Interest on borrowings

hHRER S

(EESUNS)

49,122,255.89
29,932,715.86

79,054,971.75

J& A< BRI

30 June 2020
20206 H30H

Total &t

Dividend payable

[tem

]S

Dividend payable on ordinary FEA E AR AR (FE1)

shares (Note 1)
Interest payable on perpetual
bonds (Note 2)

EROXEERS (F£2)

1,079,597,502.31

61,154,745.53

Total

1,140,752,247.84

RMB
AR

31 December 2019
2019412 A31H

86,402,649.03
305,265,323.14
6,119,334,670.68

6,511,002,642.85

RMB

AR T

31 December 2019
2019412 A31H

63,063,074.22
23,339,574.81

86,402,649.03

RMB
ARET

31 December 2019
2019412 A831H

245,005,493.84

60,259,829.30

305,265,323.14
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V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial #. ~& f i % it 3% £ IH H 5 &
Statements (Continued) (%)
32. Other payables (Continued) 32. HttER R (&)

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2020

Other payables H b B 5K
RMB
AR T
Nature 30 June 2020 31 December 2019
(=1 20206 A30H 2019412 A831H
Guarantees and deposits REEMES 3,036,959,462.13 1,983,323,781.13
Technology development expenses HilTF % 459,550,069.00 426,634,376.02

Payables for purchase of construction

and fixed assets

N TRERREEEE
RN

424,814,832.36

263,043,363.50

After-sale expenses and repair and —BNEREES

maintenance expenses 421,151,997.33 405,156,107.97
Sales discount HEYT R 389,580,766.46 563,936,754.18
Commission A& 338,411,174.93 327,229,694.22
Transportation expenses o=y 151,364,571.54 107,004,319.66
Others Hih 2,344,363,819.18 2,043,006,274.00
Total = 7,566,196,692.93 6,119,334,670.68
Note 1: Dividends payable to the shareholders of the parent in the amount of 21 EBNRFPEMNRABRRERERF

AR#1,079,597,502.31 TR EEE
BEBEATBREIERE B ZH
BIRETE -

RMB1,079,597,502.31 has been distributed during the period from
the balance sheet date to the date on which the issue of these financial
statements was approved.

Note 2: As stipulated in relevant agreements of Weichai International Hong Kong 32 BRBARARZFRAMAEER(FE)
Energy Group Co., Limited, a subsidiary of the Company, coupon interest BEREBARARAMEEBELOE - B
of perpetual bonds in the amount of RMB61,154,745.53 confirmed on 20206 A30HMERHKBEBREE A
30 June 2020 will be distributed to holders of perpetual bonds on 14 R#61,154,745.537C * #2020
September 2020. 9R14BHRKEER/RBHIRE -

MN2020F6 A308 @ EEH —F A
EREZNEMEMNFK(2019F12A8
318 : ) -

As at 30 June 2020, there were no other payables in significant

amount aging over one year (31 December 2019: Nil).
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2020

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial

Statements (Continued)

RS i = B 5 (48D
20201 81HZ6H30H 1F 5

33. Non-current liabilities due within one year

[tem
HH

Long-term payables due within one year
Long-term borrowings due within

one year
Lease liabilities due within one year
Bonds payable due within one year
Other non-current liabilities due within

one year

—F AR HH KRR
—FRIHANRHER

—FRIHNEERRE
—EFRBHR M ES
—FRIMNEMIERBAE

Total

At

Long-term borrowings due within one
year include:

Guaranteed loans (Note V.35
— Notes 2, 4~9, 11)

Credit loans

Mortgage loans (Note V.35
— Notes 13, 14)

Other loans (Note V.35 — Note 15)

Heh  —F QB HIM R B -

REBEEZ(HER - 35
F$24~9+11)

ERAER

ERER (MR ~ 35
13 14)

HEER(MsER ~ 35~ 7£15)

34. Other current liabilities

[tem

EH

Product quality assurance deposit EmEE2RES
Lease borrowings HEBR
Short-term financing HHmE
Others Eth

Total A&F

30 June 2020
20206 H30H

2,697,752,546.87
3,538,896,804.26
2,502,027,038.25

2,830,529,270.72

2,276,089,705.00

13,845,295,365.10

3,022,136,804.26
350,000,000.00

165,760,000.00
1,000,000.00

34, HiRHEE

30 June 2020
20206 A30H

3,590,099,935.86
2,701,927,575.50
2,324,038,808.00

512,262,853.70

9,128,329,173.06

1&%%%%%%%%@5%%
(%)
33. ~FRIHHFERBAE

RMB

AR

31 December 2019
2019412 A31H

1,340,539,689.35
3,300,247,072.58
3,798,393,534.74

2,786,461,065.40

1,772,719,525.50

12,998,360,887.57

2,795,627,072.58
350,000,000.00

153,620,000.00
1,000,000.00

RMB
ARBTT

31 December 2019
2019412 A31H

3,129,123,318.32
3,036,978,252.00

551,752,042.48

6,717,853,612.80
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V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial #. ~& f i % it 3% £ IH H 5 &
Statements (Continued) (%)
35. Long-term borrowings 35. REABRK

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2020

RMB

AR BT
[tem 30 June 2020 31 December 2019
IHH 202096 A30H 2019412 A31H
Guaranteed loans (Notes 1~12) REBEE/BR(GE1~12) 6,768,719,204.72 6,833,296,369.13
Credit loans EREBHR 3,055,507,027.66 3,998,004,870.00
Mortgage loans (Notes 13, 14) HWMEZ(5E1314) 322,476,751.45 395,356,751.45
Other loans (Note 15) HEAn g (3%15) 147,000,000.00 147,000,000.00
Total ST 10,293,702,983.83 11,373,657,990.58

Long-term borrowings are classified according to maturity dates as REERIZIBEESOT -

follows:
RMB
AR T
Maturity 30 June 2020 31 December 2019
2HH 202056 H30H 2019%12A31H
Due within 1 year 14F N B 5 3,538,896,804.26 3,300,247,072.58
Due within 1 to 2 years 152 N ZHF 3,052,695,618.00 2,091,064,663.00
Due within 2 to 5 years 25|54 A 51| H] 6,668,007,365.83 8,888,193,327.58
Due over 5 years 5 573,000,000.00 394,400,000.00
Sub-total /INEF 13,832,599,788.09 14,673,905,063.16

Less: Long-term borrowings classified as

due within one year

B DR FREHN

RHEME R

3,538,896,804.26

Total

10,293,702,983.83

As at 30 June 2020, the above loans carried interest at rates ranging
from 1.00% to 5.05% (31 December 2019: 0.53% to 5.05%) per

annum.

3,300,247,072.58

11,373,657,990.58

72020568308 it & R A E A
R 51.00%~5.05% (2019412 A 31
H :0.53%~5.05%) °
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2020

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial
Statements (Continued)
35. Long-term borrowings (Continued)

Note 1:

Note 2:

Note 3:

Note 4:

As at 30 June 2020, an amount of EUR353,000,000.00 equivalent to
RMB2,810,233,000.00 under long term borrowings (31 December 2019:
RMB2,758,871,500.00) was loan(s) provided to Weichai Power (Hong
Kong) International Development Co., Ltd., a subsidiary of the Company,
from China Development Bank, for which the Company provided
guarantee for joint liabilities. The long term borrowings will mature on
15 October 2024.

As at 30 June 2020, an amount of EUR263,500,000.00 equivalent to
RMB2,097,723,500.00 under long term borrowings (31 December
2019: RMB2,059,384,250.00) was loan(s) provided to Weichai Power
(Hong Kong) International Development Co., Ltd., a subsidiary of the
Company, from ANZ Singapore, for which the Company provided
guarantee for joint liabilities. The long term borrowings will mature
in stages by 21 November 2022. Among others, an amount of
EUR62,000,000.00 equivalent to RMB493,582,000.00 (31 December
2019: RMB484,561,000.00) will mature within one year.

As at 30 June 2020, an amount of EUR129,000,000.00, equivalent to
RMB1,026,969,000.00 under long term borrowings (31 December 2019:
RMB1,008,199,500.00) was loan(s) provided to Weichai Power (Hong
Kong) International Development Co., Ltd., a subsidiary of the Company,
from Bank Of China (Hong Kong) Limited, for which the Company
provided guarantee for joint liabilities. The long term borrowings will
mature in stages by 28 October 2024. Among others, no amount will
mature within one year.

As at 30 June 2020, an amount of EUR120,000,000.00 equivalent to
RMB955,320,000.00 under long term borrowings (31 December 2019:
RMB937,860,000.00) was loan(s) provided to Weichai Power (Hong
Kong) International Development Co., Ltd., a subsidiary of the Company,
from China Development Bank, for which the Company provided
guarantee for joint liabilities. The loan(s) will mature within one year.

FR 5 R BT 5T (48)
2020F 14 1HZ6H30H 1 5iE

G OF B R R IEH H R R

(%)

35. RMER(R)

ool
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31H : AK#1,008,199,500.007T)
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955,320,000.00 7T (20194 12 A 31
B : AR%937,860,000.007T) &
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BX - HARARHETECRIE
R WAER—FREH -



Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2020

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial
Statements (Continued)
35. Long-term borrowings (Continued)

Note 5:

Note 6:

Note 7:

Note 8:

Note 9:

As at 30 June 2020, an amount of USD98,180,000.00 equivalent to
RMB695,086,644.52 under long term borrowings (31 December 2019:
RMB684,915,000.15) was loan(s) provided to Weichai Power (Hong
Kong) International Development Co., Ltd., a subsidiary of the Company,
from Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited, for which
the Company provided guarantee for joint liabilities. The long term
borrowings will mature in stages by 7 November 2024. Among others,
an amount of USD49,090,000.00 equivalent to RMB347,543,322.26 (31
December 2019: RMB342,457,500.08) will mature within one year.

As at 30 June 2020, an amount of EUR68,629,000.00 equivalent
to RMB546,355,469.00 under long term borrowings (31 December
2019: RMB536,369,949.50) was loan(s) provided to Weichai Power
(Luxembourg) Holding S.a r.l., a subsidiary of the Company, from
Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited, for which the
Company provided guarantee for joint liabilities. The loan(s) will mature
within one year.

As at 30 June 2020, an amount of EUR55,000,000.00 equivalent to
RMB437,855,000.00 under long term borrowings (31 December 2019:
RMB429,852,500.00) was loan(s) provided to Weichai Power (Hong
Kong) International Development Co., Ltd., a subsidiary of the Company,
from China Development Bank, for which the Company provided
guarantee for joint liabilities. The loan(s) will mature within one year (31
December 2019: the amount which will mature within one year is nil).

As at 30 June 2020, an amount of EUR39,000,000.00 equivalent to
RMB310,479,000.00 under long term borrowings (31 December 2019:
RMB332,158,750.00) was loan(s) provided to Weichai Power (Hong
Kong) International Development Co., Ltd., a subsidiary of the Company,
from The Export-import Bank of China, for which the Company
provided guarantee for joint liabilities. The long term borrowings
will mature in stages by 21 June 2023. Among others, an amount of
EUR9,000,000.00 equivalent to RMB71,649,000.00 (31 December 2019:
RMB62,524,000.00) will mature within one year.

As at 30 June 2020, an amount of EUR33,334,000.00 equivalent to
RMB265,371,974.00 under long term borrowings (31 December 2019:
RMB325,648,438.50) was loan(s) provided to Weichai (Germany)
Real Estate GmbH, a subsidiary of the Company, from Bank of China
Frankfurt Branch, for which the Company provided guarantee for joint
liabilities. The long term borrowings will mature in stages by 13 January
2022. Among others, an amount of EUR8,333,000.00 equivalent to
RMB66,339,013.00 (31 December 2019: RMB130,253,123.00) will
mature within one year.
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RARENER  AARARRBES
BEERBER KR —FREIE -

M 2020F6 A308 » KREERSF
B 7T 55,000,000.00 @ #fr& AR
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REABRITAARRARZ FARALES
N(EH) BBRERERARARED
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Bt 7T 39,000,000.00 * T A AR
310,479,000.00 7t ( 2019 & 12 A
318 : AR#®332,158,750.00 7T )
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RAIRENER AR QRREES
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2023F6 A21HAT D HAEE - HA
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B : AR#62,524,000.007T) 7R —
FRPIHE -
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B 7T 33,334,000.00 * & AR
265,371,974.00 7t ( 2019 % 12 A
318 : AR 325648,438.50 7T )
APEBTEEREITAAR A
ZFARKE(ER)EHERERA
RAIREMNER  BAQRREES
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2020

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial
Statements (Continued)
35. Long-term borrowings (Continued)

Note 10:

Note 11:

Note 12:

Note 13:

As at 30 June 2020, an amount of GBP27,767,540.78 equivalent to
RMB241,969,421.46 under long term borrowings (31 December 2019:
RMB254,062,053.56) was loan(s) provided to Weichai Power (Hong
Kong) International Development Co., Ltd., a subsidiary of the Company,
from Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Limited, Luxembourg
Branch, for which the Company provided guarantee for joint liabilities.
The long term borrowings will mature on 2 December 2024.

As at 30 June 2020, an amount of EUR13,000,000.00 equivalent
to RMB103,493,000.00 under long term borrowings (31 December
2019: RMB101,601,500.00) was loan(s) provided to Weichai Power
(Luxembourg) Holding S.a r.l., a subsidiary of the Company, from
Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Limited, for which the
Company provided guarantee for joint liabilities. The loan(s) will mature
within one year.

As at 30 June 2020, an amount of RMB300,000,000.00 under long-
term borrowings (31 December 2019: Nil) was loan(s) provided to
Shaanxi Heavy-duty Motor Co., Ltd., a subsidiary of the Company, from
the Shaanxi branch of The Export-import Bank of China, for which the
Shaanxi branch of the Bank of Communications provided guarantee for
joint liabilities by the pledge of fixed deposit of RMB340,000,000.00 to
the Xi'an Tianshuijing Street branch of the Bank of Communications. The
long-term borrowings will mature in stages by 26 March 2022. Among
others, no amount will mature within one year.

As at 30 June 2020, an amount of RMB468,236,751.45 under long-
term borrowings (31 December 2019: RMB528,976,751.45) was loan
provided to Weichai (Chongging) Automotive Co., Ltd., a subsidiary of
the Company, from the Chongging Branch of China Construction Bank
Corporation and Shandong Heavy Industry Group Finance Co., Ltd.,
and secured by the assets under phase one light-duty vehicle project of
the Company, as stipulated in the loan agreement. As at 30 June 2020,
the assets already invested in the project included fixed assets with a
carrying amount of RMB421,486,216.97 and intangible assets with a
carrying amount of RMB239,474,508.14. The long-term borrowings will
mature in stages by 20 September 2024. Among others, an amount of
RMB145,760,000.00 (31 December 2019: RMB133,620,000.00) will
mature within one year.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2020

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial
Statements (Continued)
35. Long-term borrowings (Continued)

Note 14:

Note 15:

As at 30 June 2020, mortgage loans amounting to RMB20,000,000.00
under long-term borrowings (31 December 2019: RMB20,000,000.00)
were loans provided to Shaanxi Jinding Casting Co., Ltd., a subsidiary
of the Company, from Rural Commercial Bank Corporation Limited
of Qishan County, Shaanxi Province, and secured by machinery and
equipment with a carrying amount of RMB38,627,126.15 (31 December
2019: RMB43,849,214.71) which will be due within one year.

As at 30 June 2020, an amount of RMB148,000,000.00 under long-
term borrowings (31 December 2019: RMB148,000,000.00) was loan(s)
provided to Shaanxi Fast Gear Co., Ltd., a subsidiary of the Company,
from CDB Capital Co., Ltd., and the loan agreed in the loan agreement
were used in medium-duty and light-duty gear boxes and new energy
transmission system projects. This long-term borrowing will mature
in stages by 22 October 2030. Among others, RMB1,000,000.00 (31
December 2019: RMB1,000,000.00) will mature within one year.

36. Bonds payable

ltem
HH
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30 June 2020
20206 H30H

31 December 2019
2019412 A831H

Bonds payable

P (B 55

10,500,328,131.06 10,295,279,995.18
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V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial #. ~& f I % it & £ IH H 51 #
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Statements (Continued) (#)
36. Bonds payable (Continued) 36. EfffE% (&)
As at 30 June 2020, balance of bonds payable are listed as follows: MR2020F6 A308 B EHEEET
AT :
RMB
ARE T
Exchange gains
and losses/
Issued  Accrued interest Fair value adjustment Repaid
Issuing ~~ Bond Atthe beginning during during hedging for exchange during At the end
Item Face value date  period  Issued amount of period this period this period adjustments  Amortization differences this period of period
EjBE
B8 BE BffRE BAHER EfiEa | BnE KRG ABHRAE  QAEBEEER FEERY EizEER ABRE BRHE &

Medum-emnote  RHE% 736734400000 21 February 2017 Notel 7,344,731,380.00 7,885,581,857.50 44,764,547.46 2,296,899.50  142,859,603.00 8,030,738,360.00
WITE2AE i

Medumtemnote 828 1,504,120,000.00 June 2018 Tyears 1,500,359,700.00 1,469,407,517.18 TOSSE194T  9E4697790 2102470 31,573860.22 1,510,838,580.00
018567 1%

Medum-emnote  HHZ% 906,834,800.00 April 2019 Tyears 90525442400  940,290,62050 5,340,720.76 93433206 17,526,3850 958,751,191.06
019544 75

Total i 9,778,298,800.00 9,750,345,484.00 10,295,279,995.18 58,060,947.69 9,646,977.90  3441,456.26 191,959,701.72 - 10,500,328,131.06

Note 1: KION, a subsidiary of the Company, issued medium-term notes with total 1 ARABZFRAAKION - B2017F2H21 8%
par value of EUR1,010 million on 21 February 2017, which will mature in TERBBEEI10.1EBTTHTHEE - 55
May 2022, April 2024 and April 2027, at floating interest rate based on 2022458 + 202464 AM2027F 4 A%
EURIBOR (Euro Interbank Offered Rate). 5 - FI= A LAEURIBOR (BRI SR 1T R E AR (£

&) BEEMTHFIE -

Note 2:  KION, a subsidiary of the Company, issued medium-term notes with total 21 ANABZFARKION * R2018F6 AHITE
par value of EUR200 million in June 2018 with bond period of 7 years. HAEA2EBRTHTHREER EFHRA7
Nominal amount of EUR100 million of such notes are at floating interest F ZEEPVEBTTEFENERLAEURIBOR
rate based on EURIBOR while the other nominal amount of EUR100 (BRTSRTTRIZEIFIEFIR) B EENZHF|
million are at fixed interest rate. . BIEBUTEEN X BEENE -

Note 3: KION, a subsidiary of the Company, issued medium-term notes with total 3 ANABZFARBKION - R2019F4AHTE
par value of EUR120.5 million in April 2019 with bond period of 7 years, HMBEAI1205ER TP HER - 58
at floating interest rate based on EURIBOR. fRA7F + FIEAELAEURIBOR(BUCIRTTR 3

WREFER) REEMFEBFE -
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1 January to 30 June 2020

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial

37.

38.
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Statements (Continued) (%)

Lease liabilities 37. HE&AE
Item 30 June 2020
1HH 20206 A30H
Lease liabilities HEaR 10,667,098,524.60
Less: Lease liabilities taken to W ETA—ERESNIERE

non-current liabilities due within BEMNHEEERE

one year (Note V.33) (FFET ~ 33) 2,502,027,038.25
Total TSR 8,165,071,486.35
Long-term payables 38. REAFE(TRK
Item 30 June 2020
1HH 20206 A30H
Government grants for national debt projects B8 B BUF B 5,500,000.00
Balance of indirect lease guarantee HEHEERHE 1,033,879,324.73
Special payables HIHEMNR 29,860,643.94
Financial liabilities related to sale and leaseback E%TARHESREE 4,689,483,334.27

Total

BEF 5,758,723,302.94

G ORI B AR R IEH H R R

RMB

AR

31 December 2019
2019%12A31H

12,741,973,630.35

3,798,393,534.74

8,943,580,095.61

RMB
ARET

31 December 2019
20194 12831H

5,500,000.00
660,847,418.00
28,889,197.98
3,962,969,321.08

4,658,205,937.06

193
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2020

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial

Statements (Continued)

38. Long-term payables (Continued)

The change in special payables is as follows:

RS i = B 5 (48D
20201 81HZ6H30H 1F 5

£Vi?%%ﬁﬁigﬁﬁﬁﬁ
(‘“ﬂ*)
38. REAEAR(E)
HEE A ROEB T

RMB
ARBTT

Increase during

Decrease during

ltem 31 December 2019 this period this period 30 June 2020
R 2019%12A318 KEEM AHED 20206 A30H
Interest subsidy for liquid fund LR
granted by provindial finance office TREELERYS 23,000,000.00 - 23,000,000.00
Compensation for relocation KBEED 5,513,797.98 971,445.96 6,485,243.94
R&D projects grants BB AR 375,400.00 - 375,400.00
Total = 28,889,197.98 971,445.96 29,860,643.94
39. Long-term payroll payable 39. K HiFE {4 B T E M
RMB
AR®T
[tem 30 June 2020 31 December 2019
IBH 20206 H30H 201912 A31H
Defined benefit obligations REXmET e R R 10,994,858,481.19
Long-term severance benefits REIBHR @A) 397,019,703.71 348,758,860.11
Cash-settled share-based payments IR & S E WD X 113,117,849.00 142,851,709.00
Other long-term payroll payable H £ BB T %5 B 567,103,591.24 469,599,837.20
Subtotal 7|Nef 12,950,682,655.14 11,956,068,887.50
Less: Long-term payroll payable due B —FREHRN RS
within one year JRE A<F 58 T 35
Among which: Severance benefits Hrb o BURAEF 123,389,767.32 181,311,504.27

Cash-settled share-based

AR & A E BB 2

32,170,401.00 43,344,763.00

67,299,135.00
222,859,303.32

64,407,535.50
289,063,802.77

payments
Other long-term payroll H b = HA B T %57 B
payable
Subtotal NEE
Total A&t

12,727,823,351.82

11,667,005,084.73
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1 January to 30 June 2020

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial

Statements (Continued) (%)

39. Long-term payroll payable (Continued) 39. REAEFRBE T %M (&)
Defined benefit obligations RIE X =1
The Group operates defined benefit schemes for its staff in some REB LD BINF AR AFTEIEHD
overseas subsidiaries who meet conditions. Under the scheme, staff ETEEETRESmATE - EZET
are entitled to enjoy retirement benefit provided for under defined ZTN BIAREZZREXHTELY
benefit of the plans. TEHRIKAE A -
The Group's defined benefit scheme is one requiring contribution REBMNRTESRTEI 2R ZENK
after termination of service. The scheme requires that contribution SEE ZFTEIEKABUERENE
be made to an independently administered fund. The scheme is CHEFER - Lt EAE R RERT
administered by an independent trustee in the legal form of a fund. XN THBIYSIEAETERERE  EF
The assets held under the fund is held separately with assets of the EMNEEHAEBRNEEER DA
Group. The trustee is responsible for the investment strategies of SIEABEREZTENRE R -

the scheme.

The trustee assesses the level of capital of the scheme. The
assessment includes asset-liabilities matching strategies and
investment risk management strategies. The trustee determines the

amount to be deployed based on the result of its annual assessment.

The scheme is exposed to interest rate risk, risk of change of
anticipated age of beneficiaries of the pension, and risks of the

securities market.

ERABEENERKY - ZER

BREE-ABCRERBENRERR
EERE o  IEARBFEERNE
RRERBIFHE -

S BEFIEAR RIS § At
BHESEDHARNEEDSER N
7z
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2020

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial

Statements (Continued) (%)

39. Long-term payroll payable (Continued) 39. REAEFRBE T H MM (48)
Defined benefit obligations (Continued) REXmEB(E)
The following table sets out the key actuarial assumptions used as TREEEABGBRBMEANTIER
at the balance sheet date: HiRE -

31 December 2019

30 June 2020

Key actuarial assumptions

ITERERBR 2020 6H30H 2019412 A31H
Discount rate (%) P R(%) 0.67-2.75 0.73-3.30
Expected growth rate of future FHARREREERERE(%)

pension expenses (%) 0.00-4.12 0.00-4.12
Expected rate of salary increment (%) EHHSER R (%) 0.00-3.20 0.00-3.20

Scheme recognized in the income statement is set out below:

ERBRPERNE@AENT -

RMB
AR
Incurred during Incurred in
[tem this period previous period
HAH AHRERE THiR A
Current period cost of service = HABR A5 Ak AN 209,583,608.10 158,338,094.05
Net interest MEFHE 70,928,073.72 83,719,002.47
Net amount of the cost of post- BEBS 12 B AR AN F 58
employment benefit 280,511,681.82 242,057,096.52
Taken to cost of sales FABERK AR 123,806,776.10 96,298,640.85
Taken to distribution and selling ATAHEER
expenses 34,764,936.50 26,747,364.80
Taken to general and administrative SAEEER
expenses 36,934,626.70 23,853,060.40
Taken to research and development SHATEER
expenses 14,077,268.80 11,439,028.00
Taken to finance expenses A ER 70,928,073.72 83,719,002.47

Total

At

280,511,681.82

242,057,096.52
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V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial # ~& 0F B % it 3% £ EIH H 51 B
Statements (Continued) (%)
39. Long-term payroll payable (Continued) 39. REAEFRBE T %M (&)
Defined benefit obligations (Continued) REX B (E)
REFHEBEDNHWEEL LB

The change in defined benefit obligations and the change in fair

value of assets under the scheme are as follows: BEEEHHMT -
RMB
AR KT
Net liabilities/
Present value of Fair value of (Net assets)

defined benefit

assets under

under defined

[tem scheme obligations the scheme benefit scheme
REZ@TE FEEE RES &at &
EH EBRE AREE  FEE/(FEE)
Opening balance HErE 17,650,362,811.68 (7,059,245,244.99)  10,591,117,566.69
Taken to profit or loss in FAEHER
the current period 346,030,543.92 (65,518,862.10) 280,511,681.82
Cost of services PR A 209,583,608.10 - 209,583,608.10
Net interest l)Shes: 136,446,935.82 (65,518,862.10) 70,928,073.72
Taken to other comprehensive income 5t A Efth#54 Uas 557,311,529.68 (47,791,586.02) 509,519,943.66
Actuarial gains or losses RERNGIBX 557,311,529.68 = 557,311,529.68
Return on assets under the scheme HEBERRGGEA

(net of amount included in net interest)  F S B ZEHIFR M) = (47,791,586.02) (47,791,586.02)
Adjustment for exchange differences EHEZHFE 99,681,005.83 115,623,746.98 215,304,752.81
Benefits paid B FrEF (219,397,946.59) 151,357,369.54 (68,040,577.05)
Contribution from employers BX&E - (15,820,103.74) (15,820,103.74)
Other changes HipEE) 24,401,637.40 (24,401,637.40) =
Closing balance HIRATE 18,458,389,581.92 (6,945,796,317.73) 11,512,593,264.19

Note: As of 30 June 2020, the assets under the scheme amounting in aggregate
to RMB360,848,247.00 (31 December 2019: RMB403,740,914.50) were
accounted for under other non-current assets.

£ M202066A30RFEIEES A £
AR#360,848,247.007T (2019412
HA318 : AR%403,740,914.5070)
EHEMIEREEEFZE -
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2020

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial

Statements (Continued) (%)
40. Accruals and provisions 40. FEAE
RMB
ARBT
Adjustment for
Increase during  Decrease during exchange
[tem 31 December 2019 this period this period differences 30 June 2020
HH 20195124310 KHEEM KEED EXRERRR 202056 H30H
Product quality assurance  EREBERES
deposit 147,556,640.00 22,300,082.75 (21,377,157.50) (17,091,221.25) 131,388,344.00
Pending litigation KR 54,763,208.50 2,129,827.50 (394,412.50) (3,677,388.50) 52,821,235.00
Others 2t 113,348,109.34 32,779,521.71 (37,066,886.75) 4,724,208.12 113,784,952.42
Total A& 315,667,957.84 57,209,431.96 (58,838,456.75) (16,044,401.63) 297,994,531.42
41. Deferred income 41. B W =
RMB
AR#T

[tem 30 June 2020
HH 20206 BA30H

31 December 2019
2019412 A831H

Government grant A # B 1,862,127,326.68 1,862,716,747.45

Deferred income of indirect

leasing business

PR R T 2 A Y2

2,208,542,445.98

436,312,158.20

Deferred income of sale and ERHDBEEHAEL 2
leaseback sub-leases IR E W =
Total &t

2,234,452,184.66

511,397,863.90

4,506,981,930.86

4,608,566,796.01




Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2020

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial

Statements (Continued)
41. Deferred income (Continued)

As at 30 June 2020, the items related to government grant are as

42.

Increase during

this period
AREN

18,273,396.00

60,641,600.00

7,690,000.00

8,415,458.49

follows:
Item 31 December 2019
EH 2019%12 8318
Land-related qovernment B+ 3R
grant BFES 895,657,699.02
Special funds for industy ~ E£RERNR
revitalization and WERES
technological renovation 656,725,021.77
Special assistance fund ERRyES
109,256,721.35
National debt special fund ~ EIEEIEE 4
3,984,405.59
Position-based allowances 158 AT B
for project teams i 2e % 194,890,107.40
Others i
2,202,79232
Total it 1,86,716,747.45

95,020,454.49

Other non-current liabilities
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Taken to

other income
during this period
PR

(11,998,451.22)

(24,902,144.84)

(7,362,332.02)

(996,101.40)

(49,360,170.04)

(51,570.54)

(94,670,770.06)

[tem

=

Asset securitization financing BEEHFLRE

Long-term liabilities of indirect MEHEEBcRABE
leasing business

Interest rate swap contracts FEERE L

Put options F AR

Others E

Total A&F

(%)

41. EE W5 ()

7®2020%6H30H

BRI

Other decreases

Ao

901,932,643.80

(939,105.20)

109,584,389.33

2,988,304.19

153,945,395.85

- 2,151,221.78

(939,105.20)

30 June 2020
2020%6A30A

691,525,371.73

G ORI B AR R IEH H R R

3 R R B &Y

RMB
AR

Related to
assetsfincome

HEE/WEAR

Related to assets
HEERE
Related to
assetsfincome
HEE/WERB
Related to
assetsfincome
HEE/ W iE
Related to assets

HEERE
Related to income
06y
Related to assets

HEERE

1,862,127,326.68

42. HtwERBHERB

30 June 2020
20206 H30H

4,343,704,703.00

337,395,141.00
117,735,229.00

38,905,407.00
356,186,104.04

5,193,926,584.04

RMB
AR

31 December 2019
2019412 A31H

3,254,303,860.50

311,338,258.00
89,174,855.00
38,194,348.50
218,886,963.35

3,911,898,285.35

199
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) RS 3% B G (4
1 January to 30 June 2020 20209 1 A1HZ6H30H 1 2R

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial #. ~& f I % it & £ IH H 51 #

Statements (Continued) (%)
43. Share capital 43. B

Increase

(decrease) of

shares in
31 December 2019 current period 30 June 2020
2019%12A31R KAL) R 20206 A30H
[tem No. of shares Proportion No. of shares Proportion
HE K& EEAI(%) K& ELAI(%)
I Restricted shares - BREKHRR 1,745,832,270.00 22.00 685,800.00  1,746,518,070.00 2201
State-owned legal person shares HEEAER 1,642,531,008.00 20.70 - 1,642,531,008.00 20.70
Other domestic shares EmERR 103,301,262.00 1.30 685,800.00 103,987,062.00 1.31
Incl: Domestic natural H: BRERA
person shares B 103,301,262.00 1.30 685,800.00 103,987,062.00 1.31
Il Non-resricted shares Z. EREKERR 6,188,041,625.00 (685,800.00)  6,187,355,825.00
RMB ordinary Shares AREEBER 4,245,001,625.00 (685,800.00)  4,244,315,825.00
Qverseas listed foreign shares O E TR ANVE R 1,943,040,000.00 - 1,943,040,000.00

lIl. Total no. of shares PREEE: 7,933,873,895.00 7,933,873,895.00




Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

1 January to 30 June 2020

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial
Statements (Continued)

44. Capital reserve

Item

HH

Share premium (Notes 1, 3) BRAEE (- 3)
Wholly state-owned capital reserve BBZEALE
Other capital reserve (Note 2) HtERAHE(G2)
Total it

31 December 2019
2019%12 8318

2,406,847.88
77,000,000.00
39,489,878.77

118,896,726.65

Note 1:KION, a subsidiary of the Company, made an equity-settled share-
based payment, (for details please refer to Note XI) and employees
made the payment for subscribing shares, leading to an increase of

RMB1,190,694.41 in capital reserve during the period.

Note 2:KION, a subsidiary of the Company, made an equity-settled share-based
payment, leading to an increase of RMB1,942,883.58 in capital reserve.

Note 3:During the period, the Company acquired 0.23% minority interests
of KION GROUP AG in the secondary market through Weichai Power
(Luxembourg) Holding S.a r.l. (“Weichai Lux”). The above equity
transaction led to a decrease of RMB3,597,542.29 in the share premium
and a decrease of RMB41,529,369.29 in the retained earnings.
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(%)

44. EXRNTE

Increase during

this period
AR H 2 i

1,190,694.41

1,942,883.58

3,133,577.99

w2 ¢

w3

RMB
AR# T
Decrease during
30 June 2020
2020%6H30H

this period
KD

(3,597,542.29) -
= 77,000,000.00
- 41,432,762.35

(3,597,542.29) 118,432,762.35

¢ KRARZFRABIKIONE i — T8 A1

HEEOROIH(FBE2RME
+—) REBETHMRKRKSIEE
ANTEREIARE1,190,694.417T °

RRAZFRAKIONARS EHH
B RERAEEMARE
1,942,883.587T °

KEARARBBAELB N (ERE)E
BREMRAR([HEERE DR _FEH
58 B KION GROUP AG 0.23%H) 2
FARAE - b 3 5 R R AR AN i
BARY3,597,542.297¢ * HE KD
BB A R#41,529,369.297T ©
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) RS 3% B G (4
1 January to 30 June 2020 20209 1 A1HZ6H30H 1 2R

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial #. ~& f I % it 3% £ HIH H 51 &

Statements (Continued) (%)

45. Other comprehensive income 45. Hibm Sz
Other comprehensive income, on a cumulative basis, attributable AHEEARETRBREATNE
to shareholders of parent company as shown in the consolidated s A s BateasE

balance sheet is as follows:

RMB
ARET
Incurred during this period
58348
Less: Amount
recognized
in other
comprehensive
income in
Amount before previous period Attributable to
Balance as at income tax and recognized Less: Attributable to minority Balance as at
1January incurred for the in profit orloss Income tax parent company interests 30 June
Item 200 current period incurrent period expenses affer tax after tax 2020
W0 RRHERA 5 : ik HARRH 005
58 1R1B5E it L i FRHRR FERELE HEBRR 6A30BHE
| Those other comprehensiv ncome not to berecassfiedinto pofitorloss —~ T BB BRAERGANE
Change arsin from re-measuring of defined beneft plan ENHERRRANIAGE (936,835,187.38) (509,519,943.66) - (136,182,294.53) (165,032,896.28) (208,304,752.85) (1,101,868,083.66)
(Other comprehensiie income not to be recasifed into
profit or loss using the equity method BRETASEBRRNEREARE (159,298,652.32) (20,512,044.60) - - 11,509,465.23 (32,021,509.83) (147,789,187.09)
Change infairvale o ivestment i other equiy stuments EhERTARELABRRD 425,026,942.34 116,004,942.63 - 19,339,195 103,773,200.63 (7,107,386.55) 528,800,151.97
1. ther comprehensiv income tobe recassfied nto proft oross ZCBERBERGNARGANE
Other comprehensie income to be reclssfied nto
proft orlos using the eqity method ERETTERRN ARSI 36,683,605.76 4,856,475.60 - - 2,185,41402 2,671,061.58 38,869,019.78
Cashfiow hedging reene REREZHER (54,454,552.10) 76,671,167.11 (26,140,906.52) 15,595,599.01 51,933,276.56 35,283,198.06 (2.521,275.54)
Exchange diferences on forein curency tanslaton SEHBRATEEE (589,152,792.88) (126,201,388.69) - - (103,417,044.61) (22,784,344.08) (692,569,837.49)
Total other comprehensive income AfiAREA (1,278,030,636.58) (458,700,791.61) (26,140,906.52) (101,247,575.97) (99,048,575.45) (232,263,73367)  (1,377,019,212.03)
46. Special reserve 46. EEGFHE
RMB
AR T
Increase during Decrease during
[tem 31 December 2019 this period this period 30 June 2020
EH 20195124318 A KHES  202056A30R

Safety funds ZEEEE 193,099,471.45 47,970,378.73 (24,856,073.62) 216,213,776.56




Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2020

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial

Statements (Continued)
47. Surplus reserve

Item

EH

31 December 2019
2019%12 8318

Statutory surplus reserve

EERHDNE

973,728,220.76

48. Retained earnings

ltem
HH
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47, BRAR

RMB
AR

Increase during

Decrease during
30 June 2020
2020%6H30H

this period
AR H 2 i

this period
KD

973,728,220.76

48. K7 BRI

RMB
ARET

Incurred during Incurred in
this period

AEBAERE

previous period

LA

Retained earnings at the beginning of
period

Net profit attributable to shareholders
of the parent

Less: Dividend payable on ordinary
shares in cash

Acquisition of minority interests in
subsidiaries (Note V. 44 Note 3)

Retained earnings at the end of period

HI R B A E

=
5%

BRE AR
F R

B R ERRR S A

BETARLDBBRREE

(F - 445%3)
HBRR 2Kk o BL A1

37,282,373,385.43 32,324,975,192.29

4,680,231,806.93

5,287,488,377.89
1,079,006,849.72 2,221,484,690.60

41,529,369.29 =
40,842,068,973.35 35,390,978,879.58

On 29 June 2020, the Company’s 2019 profit distribution proposal

was considered and approved at the Company’s 2019 annual

general meeting. Based on the total share capital of 7,933,873,895

shares, the Company distributed to all shareholders a cash
dividend of RMB1.36 (including tax) for every 10 shares held,

without any capitalisation of reserve. Cash dividend amounting to

RMB1,079,006,849.72 were distributed.

M2020F6 A298 - AR 72019
FERRAFAEEZAEIBT2019
FEFBEIEAR  AARNER
77,933,873,895 K AE & A2
ERFEFSIORREREFRSALFNAR
136 (BR)  TEHBIAES
EIRA - HRBERESRIARE
1,079,006,849.727T °
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) RS 3% B G (4
1 January to 30 June 2020 2020917 1H26H30H 1 7

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial #. ~& f I % it & £ IH H 51 #
Statements (Continued) (74)
49. Minority interests 49. LR RER

RMB
AR

Item 30 June 2020 31 December 2019
EAR 20206 A30H 2019%12H31H

Minority interest attributable to ordinary share holders 2B @R D BR R A= 20,298,021,264.69 19,497,507,126.08
Minority interests — perpetual bonds DEREER - KER 5,053,277,241.69 5,053,277,241.69

Total EHl 25,351,298,506.38 24,550,784,367.77

On 14 September 2017, Weichai International Hong Kong Energy R2017F9F148 + KRRFZFAHA
Group Co., Limited, a subsidiary of the Company, issued perpetual MR (BB ) REEAR AT
bond of par value of USD775 million, nominal interest rate of 3.75% TEBEAERT.JSERT EEAME
and with interest payable every six months. Total net proceeds after #3.75% M ESEE R6E A 8 k&
deduction of issue expenses amounted to RMB5,053,277,241.69. B HMBRETERERESEESBER

ANER#ES5 053,277,241.697T °

The perpetual bonds were issued with the guarantee provided ZEXKEBEBERAARR A TRARIMER
by the Company for its subsidiary Weichai International Hong B (EE)EREEBR A FREER
Kong Energy Group Co., Limited, without maturity date, without 1T EEHA  BERE - BHK
conversion right, and dividend distribution may be deferred for BREFTHAEEMNBLE  BETER
an indefinite number of times at the discretion of the Group. The HRH - NEEFEMN2022F9714
Group is entitled to redeem such perpetual bonds on 14 September HE R ZEKEE o

2022.



Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2020

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial
Statements (Continued)
50. Revenue and Cost of Sales

(1)

Revenue and cost of sales
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(%)

50. EEWARKA

(1)

Incurred during this period

AHREE

Revenue

/0N

91,070,191,344.94
3,424,367,748.75

94,494,559,093.69

[tem

EH

Revenue from principal operations 4% 7%

Other revenue LS

Total Rt

Reporting segment

[tem

R

Major regions of operation: T BAL % -

Mainland China AR

Other countries and regions A EIR A&

Total CE

Time for recognition WA TERESF -
of revenue:

Transferred at a certain

point of time
Provided over a certain

period of time

Subtotal of revenue arising from
contracts with customers

Revenue under the Standard

on Lease

ERX-EBHEE

ERX-BRARE

BEFZRANAREL

AN
BEEATHA

Total

Engines

B0

21,160,783,988.27
1,211,440,504.08

22,372,224,492.35

22,334,410,963.01

21,969,808.39

22,356,380,771.40

15,843,720.95

22,372,224,492.35

BA

72,839,210,382.86
3,150,432,799.38

75,989,643,182.24

(2)

Automobiles and
automobile
components
RER
RESHHE

40,070,236,919.33
1,969,602,504.87

42,039,839,424.20

41,983,159,545.74

30,070,494.99

42,013,230,040.73

26,609,383.47

42,039,839,424.20

Revenue

LON

EERBAMERKAITR

RMB
ARBT

Incurred in previous period

LRELR

Cost
KA

89,130,194,179.44
1,732,302,341.04

69,563,891,661.86
1,537,250,791.27

90,862,496,520.48

71,101,142,453.13

HE DB

oKk

Intelligent

logistics

BRAR

1,767,784,589.23
28,314,710,587.91

30,082,495,177.14

16,628,654,649.53

10,357,165,927.05

26,985,820,576.58

3,096,674,600.56

30,082,495,177.14

RMB
AR

62,998,805,496.83
31,495,753,596.86

94,494,559,093.69

80,946,225,158.28

10,409,206,230.43

91,355,431,388.71

3,139,127,704.98

94,494,559,093.69
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2020

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial
Statements (Continued)
50. Revenue and Cost of Sales (Continued)

3)

Performance of obligations

The supply chain solution services provided by the Group
belong to the performance obligation satisfied over a certain
period of time. The performance costs actually incurred on
a cumulative basis as a percentage of estimated total costs
is used to ascertain progress of performance of supply chain
solution services contracts. As at 30 June 2020, some of the
Group's supply chain solution services contracts were still in
the process of performance, the transaction price allocated
to the outstanding (or partially unperformed) performance
obligations is related to the performance progress of each
supply chain solution services contract, and will be recognized
as revenue in the future performance period of each supply
chain solution services contracts based on the performance

progress.

51. Taxes and Surcharges

RS i = B 5 (48D
2020F 14 1HZ6H30H 1 5iE

G OF B R R IEH H R R

(%)

50. ERWARKA (&)

(3)

JB 495 5 1) 554 R
REBREOEEREBERT R
BEBREX —BEANBITH
BHER  RBRTERELE
BB AR ARG TE AT R AR B
Bl HIEEB AT ZRBEA
RIMBAEE - BIE202056
A308 ' AEBEIH HIEGEER
ARARREHEBITHBIZEFR
DEEHRBIT(XBORE
TIRHABRBHR S EREEE
HPE SR AR R 7 RIR A B 40
[EAERE - WA R SRR
R RRIEE R RBLHNIE
BAEEERBUA o

51. B & XM

RMB
ARBTT

Incurred in

Incurred during

this period
AHIBRAER

previous period

LHIEARR

133,928,314.59
98,313,548.74
76,149,490.37
44,442,522.00
79,794,302.80

[tem

1HAE

City maintenance and construction tax 32
Educational surtax A BN
Property tax FEED
Stamp duty ENFERL
Others At

Total A&F

114,008,675.23
83,063,488.76
68,987,198.89
40,327,806.66
68,633,243.73

432,628,178.50

375,020,413.27




Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

1 January to 30 June 2020

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial
Statements (Continued)

52. Distribution and selling expenses

53.
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(%)
52. SHEEH

Incurred during

this period
AEBER

2,302,334,424.14
638,422,453.63
595,448,989.53
451,314,802.66
344,073,017.85
119,788,603.81
49,358,679.71
48,230,860.85
763,530,967.73

[tem

EH

Staff costs 8 TR
Freight and packaging BEBRARESE
After-sales and repair fee —BRkERREER
Marketing expenses % A E A
Depreciation and amortization & K 8
Travel expenses ERE

Lease expenses HE®

Office expenses MAER
Others Eh

Total A&t

5,312,502,799.91

General and administrative expenses

53. EEEA

Incurred during
this period
AHIBRAERE

1,853,104,518.90
328,667,234.24
242,502,434.12
171,490,641.49
42,095,349.89
34,877,409.92
28,712,600.50
695,945,983.48

[tem

HH

Staff costs BIA
Depreciation and amortization TEREH
External support fee ENIEE ST
Office expenses /N
Travel expenses ERE
Repair expenses BEE
Lease expenses HES
Others Eth

Total i

3,397,396,172.54

RMB
AR
Incurred in

previous period

EHIZARR

2,273,973,893.28
739,740,716.54
739,125,641.37
319,311,011.83
390,796,213.23
195,964,648.61
31,045,306.23
53,286,722.92
626,492,223.61

5,369,736,377.62

RMB
ARET

Incurred in
previous period

LA

1,852,780,984.62
319,497,567.00
324,580,912.10
168,247,006.82
63,846,597.86
35,826,796.97
35,871,494.70
480,504,345.83

3,281,155,705.90
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

1 January to 30 June 2020

HRBORHAERDE

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial
Statements (Continued)
54. Research & development expenses

55.

S5 ik SR W R (A

20201 81HZ6H30H 1F 5

G OF B R R IEH H R R

(%)
54, T8 A

Incurred during

this period
AHEBER

1,115,919,896.78
486,953,141.70
359,897,464.90

252,000,372.03
118,887,255.75
58,815,216.80
19,280,020.35
170,554,164.26

2,582,307,532.57

55. % EHA

Incurred during
this period
AHIBRAERE

587,977,422.15

619,198,001.23
153,774,657.13
43,641,220.80

[tem

HH

Staff costs 8IMKAR

Technology development costs KirR B

Testing costs ERSas

External intellectual property and HNEB A Rk EE E K
published documents licensing costs i i S8R 15 R &

Depreciation and amortization e R

Fuels and utility fees WRKL R EhEe

Travel expenses ERE

Others Eth

Total A&t

Finance expenses

[tem

1HAE

Interest expenses (Note) FE X (5E)

Less: interest income o FEBA

Exchange gains and losses ME X B

Handling fees and others FEERHAM

Total A&t

166,195,298.85

Note: Among which, interest expenses of lease liabilities during the period was

RMB270,100,306.99.

RMB
AR
Incurred in

previous period
FHiR A

1,207,098,272.02
550,633,200.80
142,175,445.46

152,813,547.65
145,034,935.23
57,159,867.13
44,428,907.94
98,397,660.03

2,397,741,836.26

RMB
ARET

Incurred in
previous period

LA

596,873,003.86
479,664,629.04
1,832,049.75
22,302,146.64

141,342,571.21

i HERAHEERENMNEERAAAR
#270,100,306.997T °



Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2020

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial

Statements (Continued)
56. Other income
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56.

H b W 55

57.

Government grants charged to profit or loss for the current period

are presented as follows:

Incurred during

[tem this period
BE AOREE
Income of financial subsidies IR ON 34,670,987.78
Government support fund BFHkEE 7,653,639.69
Amortization of deferred income ERRM S 94,670,770.06
Others Hith 2,148,679.60
Total At 139,144,077.13

FAEHBEEMBF/EEmT

Incurred in
previous period

LTHRLR

36,163,573.52
16,842,500.00

36,865,308.50

249,110.55

90,120,492.57

Related to
assets/income
HEE/
2 15 B

Related to income
W1
Related to income
W1
Related to
assetsfincome
HEE/WEiHE
Related to income

Ll gl

57. REW =

Incurred during

Investment income

[tem

]S

Gain on long-term equity investments #2855 4Z E 1) & BRI #E
under the equity method " E W=

Investment income during the period RN EMEERBHMH
in which the financial assets held for AT E kS

trading were held

Gain on interest rate swap and exchange 3 X &1 5 # | K| & 5

gains and losses realized in cross ABHFEERNF L
currency swap and interest rate 1= BRI s AN EE H 18 %8
swap contracts

Investment income arising from disposal & & K B ERE E A B
of long-term equity investments & W=

Investment income arising from the
exercise of warrants

Others Hib

RBERTRELNRE RS

this period
AH LR

RMB
ARBT

Extraordinary
profit and loss
taken as incurred
during this period
SEARHBREEN
FREMBR

34,670,987.78
7,653,639.69

94,670,770.06

2,148,679.60

139,144,077.13

RMB
AR KT
Incurred in

previous period

A

144,700,622.61

78,889,136.87

51,391,050.74

Total A&t

(3,143,888.47)

123,724,757.92

95,532,597.95

50,355,931.50

71,491,942.98

7,859,123.54
23,734,147.45

271,836,921.75

372,698,501.34
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2020

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial
Statements (Continued)
58. Profit or loss on change of fair value

[tem
BH

RS i = B 5 (48D
20201 81HZ6H30H 1F 5

B ORI B AR R IEH H AR R

(%)
58. A REELZE RS

RMB
ARBTT

Incurred in

Incurred during

this period
AHAE AR

previous period
FHiR A

Cross currency swap and interestrate AR AR EETE B HEF)
swap instruments at fair value through 5t A& BB REIZ X,
profit or loss for the current period

Structured deposit EBMETR

Forward foreign exchange contracts at
fair value through profit or loss

for the current period

EREHBENEEHTA

UNARnBEAEEEZSH A
EHBEANEHRINESL

100,138,247.02
21,055,998.12

100,735,766.07
6,153,301.20

8,481,318.62 (81,382,032.49)

Total =

129,675,563.76 25,507,034.78

59. Impairment loss of credit 59. ERARERX
RMB
AR
Incurred during Incurred in
[tem this period previous period
HE AHRERE LHAE AR
Impairment loss of credit from U BR FUE FURE IR K
accounts receivable (351,283,979.37) (184,095,318.45)
Impairment loss of credit from o fE RS AR E I K
other receivables (7,335,252.84) (81,937.69)
Total CH (358,619,232.21) (184,177,256.14)
60. Impairment loss of assets 60. EEREERX

RMB
ARHBTT

Incurred during Incurred in
this period

R

previous period

LHAZ AR

(197,811,017.02)
(1,242,593.15)

(267,082,096.40)
(171,114.26)

[tem

BH

Loss due to decline in value of FEBKEBEL
inventories

Impairment loss of fixed assets EE&EERBEEX

Total A

(199,053,610.17)

(267,253,210.66)
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V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial #. ~& f I % it & 3 IH H 51 &

Statements (Continued) (%)
61. Non-operating income 61. EEIMIA
RMB
AR T

Extraordinary profit

and loss taken

Incurred during Incurred in as incurred
ltem this period previous period during this period
STARHBEEMN
ER rHBLEHE FHEAR FEEEER
Reversal of provision for HEpaEREED
other liabilities 12,550,458.89 = 12,550,458.89
Others Hit 114,282,304.48 103,809,834.47 114,282,304.48
Total Bt 126,832,763.37 103,809,834.47 126,832,763.37
62. Non-operating expenses 62. BEIHMZH
RMB
AR #T
Extraordinary profit
and loss taken
Incurred during Incurred in as incurred during
[tem this period previous period this period
TASH B LB
EH THRER FEAREE FREMBR
Donation expenditure HHMERE 2,160,790.00 1,461,800.00 2,160,790.00
Others Hi 43,845,369.00 28,930,026.11 43,845,369.00
Total Bt 46,006,159.00 30,391,826.11 46,006,159.00
63. Income Tax Expenses 63. IEHEHN
RMB
AR T
Incurred during Incurred in
[tem this period previous period
HH AHAEB AL FHAE A
Current tax expenses 2 HSHER 1,932,214,146.17 1,997,495,904.63
Deferred tax expenses BEFBHER (929,457,396.18) (539,673,784.19)

Total

AEr 1,002,756,749.99 1,457,822,120.44
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2020

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial

RS i = B 5 (48D
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G OF B R R IEH H R R

Statements (Continued) (48)
63. Income Tax Expenses (Continued) 63. FTEBER(E)
The relationship between income tax expenses and the total profit is FEMEBRETF BHEmENEZY R
listed as follows: T
RMB
AR #¥T
Incurred during Incurred in
[tem this period previous period
EH AHRER LHBER
Total profit plpekate 6,704,590,954.85 8,350,642,426.58
Tax at statutory tax rate REEREHENTHIE Notel 51 1,676,147,738.71 2,087,660,606.64
Effect of different tax rates applicable to ARARELFARIEA Note2 72
the Company and some subsidiaries TR EME (684,883,163.22) (555,183,529.15)
Effect of tax rate change on opening HERSB U EEIT
balance of deferred income tax FEHBENTE (8,028,073.49) 7,922,837.31
Effect of adjustments to income tax HEA BRI ETRN 2
of previous periods (17,349,765.33) (38,866,974.83)
Profits and losses attributable to SERBENAEENER
associates and joint ventures (21,602,451.59) (16,507,683.30)
Income not subject to tax EBNTI A (39,095,451.57) (53,916,269.33)
Expenses not deductible for tax TAENNER 67,464,398.56 29,887,877.37
Tax incentives on eligible expenditures BEEENTEATKES (206,771,432.11) (162,565,171.33)
Utilization of deductible losses from prior years — FI|F LARTEE [ &Y AL A 18 (4,383,035.85) (5,063,633.00)
Unrecognized deductible losses AR AEEE 201,427,965.99 131,369,715.68
Effect of unrecognized deductible AEROAENEREZEN
temporary difference -7 37,777,444.71 23,288,166.22
Others Hit 2,052,575.18 9,796,178.16

Tax expense at the Group's

effective tax rate

BASEERHEFER
FRkER

1,002,756,749.99

1,457,822,120.44

Note 1:The Company is subject to a statutory tax rate of 25%.

Note 2:The PRC income tax of the Group is calculated based on the estimated
taxable income gained in the PRC and applicable tax rate. Tax arising from
the taxable income in other regions is calculated at applicable tax rate
according to existing laws, interpretations and practices of the country in
which the Group operates.

No provision for Hong Kong profit tax has been made as the Group

had no taxable profits arising in Hong Kong for the period.

71 ARREEBEF25% °

H2: AKREERBEEAMSHZBREMNG
AHEMBASERERBERE R
REMBEEATAFORBBRES
SEEEMEBRNRITERE  BE
AEMEG  RREAHEAFE -

HRAEERARER B EEHA
B BMRIEL BB HABE -
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V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial #. ~& f I % it 3% £ HIH H 51 #

Statements (Continued) (%)
64. Earnings Per Share (EPS) 64. R W=
The basic EPS is calculated by dividing the net profit of the current EXGRKZEBREBRAAR LR
period attributable to the ordinary shareholders of the Company by REAS R B S HFE A - R LA TT RSN
the weighted average number of outstanding ordinary shares. LA I EETE -
The calculation of basic EPS is detailed as follows: EARGRKmHERBTENT
RMB
AT
Incurred during Incurred in
[tem this period previous period
HH AHA AR FERE AR
Earnings Wz
Net profit of the current period FEBRARREBER
attributable to ordinary shareholders A% R A& F % FE
of the Company 4,680,231,806.93 5,287,488,377.89
Shares g
Weighted average number of the RRARBEITIEINE B
ordinary shares outstanding of the B N4 15 8L
Company 7,933,873,895.00 7,933,873,895.00
Basic EPS (RMB/share) HEARFRW (T, &) 0.59 0.67
The Group holds no potential shares that are significantly dilutive. AEFBESAHELELR -
65. Notes to items in cash flow statement 65. AEMEBREEIE
Other cash received relating to operating activities U BI| B b B 4% 2E B) 5 E HY IR
AN
=
RMB
AR #oT
Incurred during Incurred in
[tem this period previous period
HE RE R FHI A
Interest income F) 2 WA 357,767,141.46 418,479,686.35
Government grants I 4 B 130,792,795.55 113,088,156.54
Others Hith 214,913,247.50 373,675,808.11

Total =0 703,473,184.51

905,243,651.00
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2020

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial

Statements (Continued)

65. Notes to items in cash flow statement (Continued)
Other cash paid relating to operating activities

RS i = B 5 (48D
20201 81HZ26H30H 1F 5

G OF B R R IEH H R R

(%)
65. REREKRER
3 A 248

ZRAL =
PN
=

Incurred during

this period
AHERER

At ()

mE AR

RMB
AR
Incurred in

previous period

LA

613,728,839.04
557,270,090.25
446,979,275.04
291,439,300.00
179,480,337.93
227,768,396.33
1,862,774,472.93

[tem

1HH

Freight and packaging BEERORE

Marketing and external support fee MSHEERINBLIFE
After-sales and repair fee =B REMRE

Cash settlement of confirmation business R B % KR & F A
Travel expenses ZIRE

Office expenses /N

Others EAh

Total &5t

("

739,740,716.54
643,891,923.93
739,125,641.37
701,955,397.30
304,240,154.42
221,533,729.74
524,271,580.95

4,179,440,711.52

Other cash paid relating to financing activities

[tem
ER

4,

874,759,144.25

XNEMEEETESEBHNIE

AN
sz

Incurred during
this period
RE AR

Lease liabilities
Handling fee for guarantee for

borrowings and letters of guarantee

HEaE
fERERRRETFEE

RMB
AR®T
Incurred in

previous period

LHAEE AR

527,293,890.70

346,861,838.61

81,552,693.67
57,048,754.70

Acquisition of minority interests in BEFRR DR
subsidiaries

Others EAh

Total &t

469,840,785.00

14,964,880.64

35,656,428.76

1,012,757,177.68

520,462,094.40
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V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial
Statements (Continued)
66. Supplement to cash flow statement

(1)

Supplement to cash flow statement

Item
=
Net profit & A
Add: Impairment loss of assets me BERERK
Impairment loss of credit ERRERXK
Increase in special reserve A RYE N
Depreciation of fixed assets, BEdE  REEFH
investment properties and ERGCREEERE
right-of-use assets
Amortization of intangible assets B A E
Amortization of long-term REGFEBREH
prepaid expenses
Gain on disposal and retirement BREMREETEE
of fixed assets, intangible assets A EME M K E
and other long-term assets AEMNRE
Finance expenses BBEMA
Investment income ®E W=
Gain on change of fair value AR EEEB K E

Increase in deferred tax assets

Increase in deferred

EEFTSTHE E M IE
EEFEHAENE N

tax liabilities
Increase in inventories A== 0p: Pl
Increase in operating receivables 4 R IE B B8 N
Increase in operating payables £ e A TE B A3 0
Net cash flow from operating LEEHEANE
7

activities

MEFER

(%)

G ORI B AR R IEH H R R

66. REREBRBRER
(1) ReERERMAEH

Incurred during

this period
AHA A

5,701,834,204.86
199,053,610.17
358,619,232.21
32,038,541.70

3,228,082,045.90
1,033,842,085.35

28,449,078.35

(26,504,662.73)
655,726,127.17
(271,836,921.75)
(129,675,563.76)
(1,063,311,015.54)

133,853,619.36
(1,670,064,593.31)
(13,346,721,816.78)

9,172,464,519.57

4,035,848,490.77

RMB
ARET

Incurred in
previous period

LA

6,892,820,306.14
267,253,210.66
184,177,256.14
30,110,860.61

3,059,362,652.83
873,651,635.51

30,079,729.44

(43,695,373.75)
593,228,998.73
(372,698,501.34)

(25,507,034.78)
(695,444,522.91)

155,770,738.72
(3,396,172,604.90)
(11,418,720,383.36)
9,292,229,019.94

5,426,445,987.68
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2020

V.

Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial

Statements (Continued)

66. Supplement to cash flow statement

(Continued)

(1)  Supplement to cash flow statement (Continued)

Non-cash payment of material investment and financing

activities:

Item
EH

RS i = B 5 (48D
20201 81HZ26H30H 1F 5

* ~é;4ﬁﬁji%$ﬁi%igiﬁ H iR
(%)
66. RERBREBAEN(H)

(1) ReRExmaiant(E)
FTHRRASHEARENEE

S
RMB
ARET
Incurred during Incurred in
this period previous period
AHE AR -t g

Acquisition of long-term assets from

HERMM - EHBEHBEIIN

the endorsement of bank acceptance R{TEHEZHE

bills received from the sale of goods

and provision of services

ltem
zRE|

Net change in cash and cash
equivalents:

The closing balance of cash
and cash equivalents

Less: The opening balance of

EEBERMEE
708,949,348.25 3,715,783,425.89
RMB
AR T
Incurred during Incurred in
this period previous period
AH AL HAZE AR
ReRRCEEMFED :
BeRkBReEEMH
HR 8RR ERICEECES PRI 34,620,877,495.59

B ReRREEBYNH

42,285,584,925.16 34,379,938,275.41

cash and cash equivalents EES S
Net (decrease) increase in cash and ReMAEEEYMF
cash equivalents ORi )38 hn%a

(3,331,618,795.28) 240,939,220.18




Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2020

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial
Statements (Continued)
66. Supplement to cash flow statement
(Continued)
(2) Information related to acquisition or disposal of
major subsidiaries and other business units
Information relating to acquisition of major subsidiaries and

other business units

Interim Report 2020 FHEAZRE

RS i 2 BT 5 (48
2020F 1 H1HZ6A30H 15

* ‘é‘zﬁﬁ,ﬁ\a‘%iﬁﬁigiﬁﬁﬁi%
(%)
66. RERBREBAEN(H)

2) MBHBREETZTRAIN
HibZ2REUES
MEXTEFRAIRHEMBERE

(VAESS)

RMB

AT

Incurred during Incurred in

[tem this period previous period

HH AH LR LHAEt AR
Consideration for acquisition of WMEFARREME BN

subsidiaries and other business units B &

Cash and cash equivalents paid BEFRRIREME EEMN
for acquisition of subsidiaries and TRNREMEESEY

other business units

978,977,835.50 =

889,905,867.90 =

Less: Amount of cash and cash W BT AR REAME

equivalents in subsidiaries and BUFENHESHM

other business units acquired BEEEBY 86,373,577.16 -
Net cash paid for acquisition of 15 ECS VNI EE i 3-vd

subsidiaries and other business units X -t A IR & JF%E

803,532,290.74 =
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2020

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial

Statements (Continued)

66. Supplement to cash flow statement

(Continued)
(3) Cash and cash equivalents

RS i = B 5 (48D
20201 81HZ26H30H 1F 5

* ~é;4ﬁﬁji%$ﬁi%igiﬁ H iR
(%)
66. RERBREBAEN(H)

3) MENBEEEDY

RMB
ARET
[tem 30 June 2020 31 December 2019
HH 20206 A30H 20196128318
Cash B4 38,953,966,129.88 42,285,584,925.16
Incl: Cash at bank Hoh : EFHRS 12,789,391.16 2,828,793.63
Bank deposits on demand A] BB A X A5
B ERTT R EERCTN R [ N  42,231,897,155.05
Other cash equivalents on A BE R R X A
demand WEMEBES 39,610,674.68 50,858,976.48
Cash and cash equivalents HARBESRIRSEEWHEE
at end of period BN PRI  42,285,584,925.16
RMB
A R#T
[tem 30 June 2020 31 December 2019
HH 20206 H30H 2019412 A31H
Cash and cash equivalents HiR 5 #K 8 & ah%E

at end of period
Less: Balance of restricted cash and
cash equivalents

B AR EIR S8
ERESHE

45,768,528,852.10 48,817,622,206.26

6,814,562,722.22 6,532,037,281.10

Closing balance of cash and
cash equivalents at end of period

HRREEAE
EEMHE

38,953,966,129.88

42,285,584,925.16
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V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial #. ~& f I % it 3% £ HIH H 51 #

Statements (Continued) (%)
67. Assets with restrictions in titles or use rights 67. TERJFEHAEZZRH
WEE
RMB
AR T
[tem 30 June 2020 Reasons for restrictions
A 20206 H30R ZRERRA
Cash and cash equivalents 6,814,562,722.22 Used in security monies for special accounts such as
EEEs letter of guarantee, bank acceptance bills and
letter of credit and fixed deposits for pledges etc.
FARIRRE - RITARRER - EAIZEERPM
RIFORESMANERNTERFES
Bills receivable 11,218,574,135.51 Used in pledging issued notes payable
JEW SR IE EhiSERHIEG R AN S
Financings receivable 2,830,447,026.53 Used in pledging issued notes payable
JE W R IE R & b SER IR AN S
Accounts receivable 51,057,178.92 Used in pledge to secure bank borrowings
JRE W BR 7R ARERERGRITER
Fixed assets 606,038,473.12 Used in securing bank borrowings and pledge
EFEEE to guarantee the obligations under

the staff retirement benefit
FRBSIRTTEFFE 8 TRINEN T e
RHER
Intangible assets 346,065,559.45 Used as security to secure bank borrowings
B AE AR EIRERSIRT TR

Total 21,866,745,095.75

At
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2020

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial #. ~& 0F B % it 3% £ EIEH H 51 B

Statements (Continued) (%)

68. Hedges 68. EHf
Cash flow hedging fﬁﬁ?ﬁ%%ﬁﬂ
KION, a subsidiary of the Company, conducted cash flow hedging N EIKION 3= Hi S E & [F 48 7€ %
on forward currency contracts designated to the exchange rate risk %EHH%% T8 HABR B LA K e S R R Y
of forecast sale, forecast purchase and firm commitment. The total ZEBEKIIERBRETREREE
cash flow of the hedged item amounted to RMB3,272,671,568.00 B -wEHRBEERSREAENE

(EUR411,088,000.00), of which the amount due within 1 year was
RMB2,927,418,920.00 (EUR367,720,000.00), and the remaining
portion will become due in 2022. The hedged items would affect
the profit and loss for the period of 2020 to 2022. There was
no material invalid hedge for the current period. From 1 January
to 30 June 2020, the gain arising from changes in fair value
of the hedging instrument recognized as other comprehensive
income was RMB58,451,193.20 (EUR7,466,000.00), and the
loss amount recognized in profit or loss in current period was
RMB16,335,972.00 (EUR2,052,000.00).

KION, a subsidiary of the Company, conducted cash flow hedging
on interest rate swap contracts designated to the interest rate
risk of the floating-rate borrowings for acquiring Dematic Group,
a subsidiary of the Company, which will become due in 2027.
There was no material invalid hedge for the current period. From
1 January to 30 June 2020, the gain arising from changes in fair
value of the hedging instrument recognized as other comprehensive
income was RMB4,959,703.00 (EUR623,000.00). No amount was

taken to profit or loss for current period.

A ANRE3,272,671,568.007T (BT
411,088,000.00) + H /14 4 E| 5
memAARE?2927,418,920.00
7t ( B Jt 367,720,000.00 ) - ¥
BEE D #2022 FF B H o w E HA
HEEHEEERMNEMER2020
FE2022F - A BERENE
WA EE D - 202081 A1HZ6A
30R I-EAfE  ZEBHITAG AR
tiEERa AR EBEEEY KA
A AN R #58,451,193.20 7T ( B 7T
7,466,000.00) * EHIE HEEEH
BREEAARYK16,335,972.007T
(Br7c2,052,000.00) °

FRAIKIONKHEE G L6 TE &
I B 7 A FlDematic GroupH;Z B
MEEFOFERRETRESRE
EH - BR2027F 58 - AEESE
AEHELHNE S - 20206118
E6A30R LHM c ZEHIT A
AHMEEREH AR EBZEBHK
&= A AR % 4,959,703.00 7T (BT
623,000.00) * EEIEE AR
B o
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V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial T -~ 0 B % i 3% 3 2H H 1 &
Statements (Continued) (748)
68. Hedges (Continued) 68. EHH(%E)

Cash flow hedging (Continued)

On 1 July 2016, Weichai International Hong Kong Energy Group
Co., Limited (“Hong Kong Energy"”), a subsidiary of the Company,
used the cross currency interest rate swap instruments as hedging
instrument, and conducted cash flow hedging on the foreign
currency bond amounting to USD400 million against the cash
flow fluctuation incurred by change in exchange rates. The total
cash flow of the hedged items amounted to an equivalent of
RMB2,890,205,875.00 (EUR363,045,581.59), all of which were
due within 1 year. The hedged items would affect the profit and
loss for the period of 2020. There was no material invalid hedge
for the current period. From 1 January to 30 June 2020, the gain
arising from changes in fair value of the hedging instrument
recognized as other comprehensive income was RMB22,188,320.08
(EUR3,252,885.09), and the loss amount recognized in profit or loss
in current period was RMB9,804,934.51 (EUR1,305,643.60).

On 15 January 2020, Weichai Power (Hong Kong) International
Development Co., Ltd. (“Hong Kong Power”), a subsidiary of the
Company used the interest rate swap instruments as hedging
instrument, and conducted cash flow hedging on the floating-rate
borrowings amounting to EUR241 million against the cash flow
fluctuation incurred by change in interest rates. The hedged items
would affect the profit and loss for the period of 2020 to 2024.
There was no material invalid hedge for the current period. From 1
January to 30 June 2020, the loss arising from changes in fair value
of the hedging instrument recognized as other comprehensive
income was RMB8,928,049.17 (EUR1,132,889.36). No amount was

taken to profit or loss for current period.

ﬂimu%%gﬂm )
2016 F7 418 » FRAIHMEERE
EBEREEARAR(IB B
BRI BRXRXEEMNEFE®RT AE
BREBMIAR BEEH4EETHIH
MESFBHREXZSHSLENRE
5/7\{%7\)32@?&?75%&7%%%%"7&
EHEENReRELABENER
A R #2,890,205,875.00 7T ( B 7T
363,045,581.59) + B A1 F A
I o WEHBEXEBERENE
/202045 - REARmEREHE
M EE S - 202081 A1 HZ6A
30R I ZEBHITAG AR
e a2 EBEEH KR
A AR % 22,188,320.08 7T ( B 7T
3,252,885.09) F EHIE T EEEH
BREHERAARYI804,934.51 7T
(BT 1,305,643.60) °

20201 A158 + FRAIHLEE S
(BB )BBRERARAB([HHH
DDEHMEEH®RTEEAESHTA
HEEH2 41ERUTHE B I X B K H
RA RSB S| HEANIRESRE R SHETT
ReneEd WwEHEHABHZE
B A EEA2020F £2024%F - A
HEEXREHEXNIS - 202061
A1BZE6H30B8 LEA - ZEHT
Bt AHMZEE RGN AR BEEZS
BARAEARES,928,049.17 70 (BT
1,132,889.36) * E MM ABm
HEHE o
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2020

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial

Statements (Continued) (7)
68. Hedges (Continued) 68. EH (&)
Fair value hedging AREEEH

On 31 December 2018, KION, a subsidiary of the Group, signed
interest rate swap contracts to conduct fair value hedging on
the interest rate risk of fixed-rate medium-term notes issued
this period of par value of EUR100,000,000.00. As at 30 June
2020, the aforesaid hedged items of the Group were presented
as bonds payable in the financial statement with a book value of
RMB716,943,777.00 (EUR90,057,000.00). During the period from
1 January to 30 June 2020, the book value of the changes and
adjustments of fair value of hedged items accrued to hedged items
was RMB9,646,977.90 (EUR1,239,000.00). There was no material
invalid hedge for the current period.

20184128318 » AEEF A A
KIONZE TR EEBREL - fBEEH
%’fﬁéﬁﬁ@ﬁ@xmooooooooo
REEF EFIEENFEER

TAREEES- Mzozoﬁeﬂm
A A&EE LW ERBEECHH
BREFPIRAENES  REEE
B ANER716,943,777.00 T (B 7T
90,057,000.00) * 2020F1A1BE
6A30B ILHIMKEMBEE AREE
BHAENTF AR ENEENERE

BEASARY646,977.907T (BT
1,239,000.00) - AEAEEREHE
BEYEB D

VI. Change in Scope of Consolidation N A O i Y s )
1. Consolidation of businesses involving entities 1. ¥R-—EZEHTEESH
not under common control

(1) Material consolidation of businesses involving (1) NEABRENEEI R —=F
entities not under common control during the BTN E¥ES G
period
RMB
AR #T
Revenue of the Nt profit of the
acquiree from ~ acquiree from
Determination the acquisition ~ the acquisition
Time of equity Acquisition ~ Shareholding Wy of basis for the datetotheend  date to the end
Name of acquiree acquisition cost (%)  acquisition  Acquisition date acquisition date of the period of the period
¢ ] BE RERE RE BEREHAR HEREHAR
hafran nERY BEsx W%  BERA  BER RERBENGE BERNUA  BERNEARE
Digital Applications International 2March2020  852,041,047.20 100%  Acquision 2 March 2020 The Company acquired 53,322,525.00 7,247,106.00
Limited (“DAI") (Note) 2000E3A28 e 2000E3A28 control over the acquiree
Digital Applications International on the acquisition date.
Limited (5{ 5% [DAIl ) (30) FAANEERERS
Hirattn g
Other Information: HazieA -
Note: Pursuant to the Equity Transfer Agreement entered into by £ BEARDAFZFRFKION
the KION, a subsidiary of the Company, with the original HDAIK R KRR ZE B NCK
shareholders of DAI, KION acquired 100% equity interest in DAI BEEHE)  KIONMKAR

# 852,041,047.20 ;¢ ( BX 7T
110,348,000.00) &) ¥ {& U 8
DAl 100% #) % # o KION R
20203 A2 HEUE T HDAIG
RS EBOR S REES T
Hl4E - BEE HERA2020F3
A2H - DAlﬂqﬁJzi%KlomﬁFE
ﬁs@ﬁﬁaﬁ%%i«% 7 — &

* #ERDematic GroupHJEX
Wﬁﬁf%ﬂé\. o

at a consideration of RMB852,041,047.20 (EUR110,348,000.00).
KION obtained the control right over relevant activities such as
financial and operational policies of DAI on 2 March 2020 and
the acquisition date is determined to be 2 March 2020. DAI will
become a part of KION's supply chain solutions business segment
and expand the software investment portfolio of Dematic Group.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) RS i R B 5 (48
1 January to 30 June 2020 2020F 1 H1HZ6A30H 1+ FfF

VL. Change in Scope of Consolidation 7N ~& 1 #i [ % % B (%)
(Continued)

1. Consolidation of businesses involving entities 1. k@ —#BH THES B
not under common control (Continued) (&)
(2)  Acquisition cost and goodwill (2) AU 2
RMB
AR BT
Amount
Acquisition cost and goodwill (provisional value)
B R R SHE(EHEE)
Cash
B& 674,726,817.60
Fair value of liabilities assumed
EEBKH AL EBE 177,314,229.60
Total of acquisition cost
N 852,041,047.20
Less: share of fair value of identifiable net assets acquired
W BB RRFEEAABENSE 297,937,940.40
Goodwill

EES 554,103,106.80
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2020

VI. Change in Scope of Consolidation
(Continued)
1. Consolidation of businesses involving entities
not under common control (Continued)
(3) Identifiable assets and liabilities of the acquiree as at

S5 R A R (D)

20201 81HZ26H30H 1F 5
7N~ A o A R (A
1. k@ —EHTEESH

(&)

(3) WEEITRBEEBRAHR

the acquisition date

BE 8F

DAl

DAI
Fair value as at the
acquisition date

RMB
ARET

Carrying amount
as at the

[tem (provisional value) acquisition date
BERAAREE

BERE| (EREE) HEERREEBE

Assets BE
Cash and cash equivalents B¥ES 67,670,349.60 67,670,349.60
Accounts receivable JE W BR IR 44,259,064.80 44,259,064.80
Fixed assets EEEE 6,192,562.80 6,192,562.80
Right-of-use assets FREEE 80,858,500.80 80,858,500.80
Intangible assets mpEE 256,906,420.80 =
Deferred tax assets BEEMIHEE 33,680,746.80 -
Other non-current assets HiIERHEE 210,670,677.60 33,356,448.00
Liabilities =R
Other current liabilities HtnBHa G 171,384,194.40 87,877,253.40
Deferred tax liabilities RIEFEMAR 48,814,690.80 =
Other non-current liabilities HiIERSHAE 93,807,288.60 =
Lease liabilities HEGE 80,858,500.80 80,858,500.80
Other liabilities Hth &g 7,435,708.20 7,435,708.20

Net assets FEE 297,937,940.40 56,165,463.60

Less: Minority interests

W BB

Net assets acquired

BBHFEE

297,937,940.40

The Group has recognized and measured the business combination
based on the provisional values so determined, and will make
adjustments to such provisional values of those identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities within 12 months from the

acquisition date.

AEBUFBRENERSEEIERY
ZEEEHETTHRIMGE - &
BEE RER121E A R E A PR3
E BEkIFAENEREEEE

FE
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) Wb 15 ¥ 25 BT 5E (48
1 January to 30 June 2020 2020F 1 H1HZ6A30H 1+ FfF
VIl Interest in Other Entities L~ AE At T i RE S
1. Interest in subsidiaries 1. EFLRIHPHER
Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Company are AABEEFRENERAT :
presented as follows:
Place of key Place of Nature of Registered Percentage of
Item operation registration business capital  shareholding (%)
Lk TEREH i EBME EMER FR (%)
Direct Indirect
B 5t
Subsidiaries acquired through establishment or investment
BRRUAREESARGNTLA
(1) Weichai Power (Weifang) Casting Shandong Shandong  Manufacturing RMB460,150,000.00  100.00 -
Co., Ltd. WE LR industry AE#460,150,000.00
HEBH () ERERD A RER
2 Weichai Power (Shanghai) Technology Shanghai Shanghai Manufacturing RMB650,000,000.00  100.00 -
Development Co., Ltd. i i industry AR650,000,000.00
BB N(LE)NEERERAR RER
3) Weichai Power Yangzhou Diesel Jiangsu Jiangsu Manufacturing RMB953,885,379.17 - 71.06
Engine Co., Ltd. STE TH industry AR953,885,379.17
REBNENERRERERARR RER
() Weichai Power (Beijing) International Beijing Beijing Project RMB300,000,000.00  100.00 -
Resources Investment Co., Ltd. St 5t Investment AR%300,000,000.00
HEBH(HR)BERERREARLA BRKE
(5) Weichai Lux Luxembourg Luxembourg Project EUR100,000.00 - 100.00
HEERR EHE EAZR Investment E£7100,000.00
BERE
(6) Weichai Power (Hong Kong) International Hong Kong Hong Kong Services USD336,242,497.00  100.00 -
Development Co., Ltd. B BE industry %71336,242,497.00
B N(BR)ERERERAR k%
@) Shandong Heavy Industry India Private India India Manufacturing Rupee823,889,270.00 - 97.68
Limited 515 0E industry [£14:823,889,270.00

WRETHEARRERT RiEX
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) Fob 5 ik R B 5 (48
1 January to 30 June 2020 2020917 1H26H30H 1 57
VIILInterest in Other Entities (Continued) L e H AL PR RERS ()

1. Interest in subsidiaries (Continued) 1. EFRAIPHER(E)
Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Company are ARREEBFRAMNBERAOT ¢
presented as follows: (Continued) (&)

Place of key Place of Nature of Registered Percentage of
Item operation registration business capital  shareholding (%)
ER TELEY it E 33 EMER B A(%)
Direct Indirect
Ef Rk
Subsidiaries acquired through business combinations involving entities not under common control
FR—FH T REAHREHTLE
® Shandong Huadong Casting Co., Ltd. Shandong Shandong  Manufacturing RMB450,150,000.00 - 100.00
WREHEEERAR IWE LR industry AR450,150,000.00
9) Shaanxi Heavy-duty Motor Co., Ltd. Shaanxi Shaanxi  Manufacturing RMB3,706,330,000.00  51.00 -
BEEHTEERAR B it industry  AR3,706,330,000.00
(100 Hande Axle Shaanxi Shaanxi  Manufacturing RMB320,000,000.00 3.06 94.00
EEHE g i industry AE#320,000,000.00
(1) Shaanxi Jinding Casting Co., Ltd. Shaanxi Shaanxi Manufacturing RMB593,360,000.00 - 100.00
RS REEERAR PR BRED industry AR593,360,000.00
(12)  Shaanxi Fast Gear Co., Ltd. Shaanxi Shaanxi  Manufacturing RMB256,790,000.00  51.00 -
RAZLEERERRTAH i PR industry AR#256,790,000.00
(13)  Zhuzhou Gear Co., Ltd. Hunan Hunan  Manufacturing RMB531,314,951.00  86.37 -
rHERERETLA ks il industry ARH531,314,951.00
(14)  Zhuzhou Torch Sparkplugs Co., Ltd. Hunan Hunan Manufacturing RMB282,480,000.00  100.00 -
HNRREAEEEREALR Vil il industry AR%282,480,000.00
(150 Weichai (Chongging) Automotive Chongging Chongging  Manufacturing RMB3,707,684,720.14  100.00 -
Co., Ltd. £ ] industry  AK%3,707,684,720.14
HE(EE)ABEBR AR HiEx
(16)  Société International des Moteurs France France  Manufacturing EUR47,311,180.00 - 100.00
Baudouin EE AE industry Bi7t47,311,180.00
ZEEH LB NEBRERAR BEx
(17)  KION Germany Germany  Manufacturing EUR118,090,000.00 - 45.23
KION BH =8 industry B17£.118,090,000.00
(18)  Weichai America Corp. USA U.S.A Manufacturing USD89,452,784.00  100.00 -
BEDNIZERAF %H %H industry %789,452,784.00

REF



Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2020

Vll.Interest in Other Entities (Continued)
Interest in subsidiaries (Continued)

Changes in paid-in capital of principal subsidiaries for the period are

1.

detailed as follows:

Name of subsidiary FRAREH
Weichai (Chongaing) Automotive HE(ER)
Co., Ltd. (RMB) RERRAR
(ARETT)
KION (EUR) KION(E7t)

Subsidiaries with material interests of minority shareholders are as
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{:Eﬁ@£¥¢%%§%®
EF AT TR ()
EETAREREARBE EE (LA
HEIT

31 December Increase during Decrease during 30 June

2019 this period this period 2020
2019%12A318 b h -y y ) 20206 A30H

3,319,684,720.14 187,000,000.00 - 3,506,684,720.14

117,959,000.00 ,000. 117,967,000.00

FEERLEBRRESNTAAMN

follows: T
RMB
AR¥T
Percentage of Accumulated
shareholding of Attributable Dividends paid ~ minority interests
minority to minority to minority at the end
shareholders interests shareholders of period
PHURE BB ALHRE HRZ Gt
Name of subsidiary FRRLEHE Rl BRES SR LERFER
KION KION 54.77% 20,556,687.79 - 10,819,879,937.24
Shaanxi Heavy-duty Motor Co., Ltd. REENTEERLA 4900%  454,695,529.21 - 4,082,950,555.16

Shaanxi Fast Gear Co., Ltd.

RELZLEERARALAR

49.00%  435,588527.84

5437,291,635.77

Total

it

910,840,744.84

20,340,122,128.17
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VIILInterest in Other Entities (Continued) + Eﬁf@ﬂiﬁﬁ A RERS (4)

1. Interest in subsidiaries (Continued) EFARIHRMER(E)
TRIWRT EFiF R EZEHEE
BoghkFERAEBAZTEELH
MEEEERTNSEE

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2020

The following table illustrates the key financial information of the
above subsidiaries. The amounts disclosed are before any inter-

company eliminations:

RMB
AR T
Shaanxi Heavy-duty Shaanxi Fast
[tem Motor Co., Ltd. Gear Co., Ltd.
REERSE BEELEES
JEH BRAF BEREEAT
30 June 2020 2020%6A30H
Current assets TEEE 26,258,116,584.00 40,402,836,585.42 14,943,518,670.44
Non-current assets EnBEE 74,848,970,782.96 6,035,321,473.35 3,321,968,458.06
Total assets EEAG 101,107,087,366.96 46,438,158,058.77 18,265,487,128.50
Current liabilities nBEE 32,904,668,428.87 35,731,681,194.14 7,126,188,684.48
Non-current liabilities ErREaE 50,466,305,822.58 2,428,360,414.29 357,130,338.33
Total liabilities BEA: 83,370,974,251.45 38,160,041,608.43 7,483,319,022.81
Incurred during the period AHEER
Revenue HEWA 30,158,049,772.81 32,478,594,903.01 9,211,068,149.38
Net profit byl 58,642,391.30 905,894,695.59 881,268,951.30
Total comprehensive income RANGEEE (428,512,990.22) 905,894,695.59 879,953,625.56
Net cash flows from operating MEEHEEM
activities ReheRs (20,602,020.60) 5,735,148,788.49 312,333,348.05
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) RS i R B 5 (48
1 January to 30 June 2020 2020F 1 H1HZ6A30H 1+ FfF
VIl Interest in Other Entities (Continued) e H Ab R A RE SR (4)
2. Interest in joint ventures and associates 2. EEELENBELES
Ay 25
Particulars of the principal joint venture and associates of the RARTEEZAEPEMBEPENS
Company are presented as follows: NI
Place of key Place of Nature of Percentage of Accounting
Item operation registration business Registered capital shareholding (%) treatment
%8 IEEER i RHME it 1SIREBI) EiRE
Direct Indiirect
E% B
Joint venture
aEdE
4] Xi'an FC Shaanxi Shaanxi  Manufacturing RMB500,000,000.00 - 51.00 Equity method
e & B B industry  AF&¥500,000,000.00 Bk
g
Associates
Betx
4 Shanzhong Finance Leasing Co., Ltd. Beijing Beijing  Finance lease  RMBI,100,000,000.00 19.565 19.565 Equity method
LERERERRAT LR LR BEME  ARH1,100,000000.00 Bk
1) Shandong Heavy Industry Group Shandong Shandong Finance  RMB1,600,000,000.00 31.25 6.25 Equity method
Finance Co., Ltd. 1T I company  AK1,600,000,000.00 Bak

LRETREMHERAT HHRE
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

1 January to 30 June 2020

VIl.Interest in Other Entities (Continued)
2.

HRBORHAERDE

RS i = B 5 (48D
20201 81HZ26H30H 1F 5

Interest in joint ventures and associates

(Continued)

Key financial information of principal joint venture:

The following table illustrates the financial information of Xi‘an FC:

ltem

I5H

Current assets MEVEE
Non-current assets EREEE
Total assets BEAR
Current liabilities mBNEE
Total liabilities BEAE

Shareholders’ equity attributable

to the parent

BENE QAR RER

Share of net assets based on

percentage of shareholding

BERRLAIZENFEENE

Adjustments FEEIE

— Others —HAtt
Carrying value of investment HERREEE
[tem
=
Revenue EERA
Finance expenses M%ER
Net profit b I
Total comprehensive income bRe W 4 EE

7 F At S R P R B 2R (A

HEEELEMBEREF
Ky (&)

BEERECENTIBEYHBKER
TRIRTAZERHUBES

RMB
ARET

30 June 2020
20206 H30H

31 December 2019
2019412 A831H

260,775,367.45
205,363,551.12

221,108,848.52
219,116,438.87

466,138,918.57 440,225,287.39

227,054,200.95 229,369,186.76

227,054,200.95 229,369,186.76

239,084,717.62 210,856,100.63

121,933,205.99 107,536,611.32

(7,530,888.88) (7,767,465.53)

114,402,317.11 99,769,145.79

RMB

AR T

Incurred during Incurred in
this period previous period
AHRER HAE AR
180,566,395.87 153,580,592.47
1,789,504.47 2,000,910.64
28,275,885.33 163,812.55
28,275,885.33 163,812.55




Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2020

VII. Interest in Other Entities (Continued)

2.

Interest in joint ventures and associates
(Continued)

Key financial information of principal associates:

The Group holds 37.50% equity interest of Shandong Heavy
Industry Group Finance Co., Ltd. (“Shandong Heavy Industry
Finance Co."), which provides the Group with services of deposits,
credit lending, settlement and other financial services. It is a key
associate of the Group and is accounted for using equity method in

the Group’s accounts.

The following table illustrates the financial information of Shandong
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+ Tﬁ{&iﬁﬂqﬂ%%ﬁ(%ﬁ)

EEELEMBEREF
Ky ()

BEEBRECENTIEYBHER

AEEFELRETEEUBAERA
AI(TIUREIMB AT L)37.50% K
- LREIMBARANEERME
FH- 28 #ERAEMESHRE
RASEEEMNBELE  AEEY
ZMECERAEREARE -

TRINRTIWRELH B R AN

Heavy Industry Finance Co.:

ltem

I5H

Current assets MENEE
Non-current assets EREEE
Total assets BEAR
Current liabilities VEIR=RI
Non-current liabilities FERBEE
Total liabilities BESE

Shareholders’ equity attributable

to the parent

FENG QR RRER

Share of net assets based on

percentage of shareholding

BRERLAIZENFEENE

Adjustments AR
— Others — HAh
Carrying value of investment HERNREEE

= .
B/o

30 June 2020
20206 A30H

26,590,191,229.94
6,609,462,057.43

33,199,653,287.37

30,229,062,081.27
3,968,456.96

30,233,030,538.23

2,966,622,749.14

1,112,483,530.93

35,699,565.01

1,148,183,095.94

RMB
ARET

31 December 2019
2019412 A831H

24,569,360,777.74
7,581,575,756.44

32,150,936,534.18

29,379,303,637.82
3,968,456.96

29,383,272,094.78

2,767,664,439.40

1,037,874,164.78

35,793,070.01

1,073,667,234.79
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2020

VII. Interest in Other Entities (Continued)

2.

Interest in joint ventures and associates
(Continued)

Key financial information of principal associates: (Continued)

The following table illustrates the financial information of Shandong

Heavy Industry Finance Co.: (Continued)

[tem

EH

Revenue EERA
Income tax expenses Fris i & A
Net profit b I

Total comprehensive income RE W T8

The Group holds 39.13% equity interests of Shanzhong Finance
Leasing Co., Ltd. (“Shanzhong Finance Leasing”), which provides
the Group and its distributors with finance leasing services. It is
a key associate of the Group and is accounted for using equity

method in the Group’s accounts.

RS i = B 5 (48D
2020F141HZ6H30H 1 EE

+ Eﬁﬂﬁi‘&ﬁqﬂﬂﬁfrﬁﬁé(%ﬁ)

EEECRNBELES
MR ()
EEMECENEBUBEL  (B)

TRIRTIWRETIH B R R
=8 (&)

RMB
ARBTT

Incurred in

Incurred during

this period
AHE AR

previous period

LA

288,507,108.68
(66,319,436.58)
198,958,309.74
198,958,309.74

285,514,573.34
(66,401,391.29)
199,204,173.87
199,204,173.87

AEERALUERERERRAA
(TWEREMEE])39.13% Mm% - 1
EREHERAKRERAKEMNKH
ARt EHEXBRE - %$%@
EENBELE  AEEHZRHBE
EERAESERE -
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1 January to 30 June 2020

Vll.Interest in Other Entities (Continued)
2.
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Interest in joint ventures and associates

(Continued)

Key financial information of principal associates: (Continued)

The following table illustrates the financial information of

Shanzhong Finance Leasing:

ltem

HE

Current assets REEE
Non-current assets ERBNE E
Total assets BEAG
Current liabilities mERE
Non-current liabilities ERBAE
Total liabilities BEAR

Shareholders’ equity attributable

to the parent

BENES QAR ERER

Share of net assets based on

percentage of shareholding

BERRLAIZENFEENE

Adjustments FEEIE

- Others —HAh
Carrying value of investment REMEREEEB
[tem
==
Revenue EE SN
Income tax expenses Frisfi & A
Net profit b I
Total comprehensive income e S

+ fﬁf@fﬁﬂqﬂﬂﬁfrﬁﬁ(%ﬁ)

EEELEMBEREF

Ky ()

EEMELENTIZUBKES - (B)

TRIRTWUWERERE

=

TN

30 June 2020
202066 H30H

4,005,462,922.20
2,601,295,222.25

6,606,758,144.45

3,349,271,557.08
1,942,455,517.00

5,291,727,074.08

1,315,031,070.37

514,571,657.84

(VAWPR:D)]

514,500,428.99

Incurred during
this period
AHRER

183,597,089.35

(11,379,444.53)
34,137,833.58
34,137,833.58

BT R

RMB

AR T

31 December 2019
2019412 A31H

3,613,666,154.48
2,197,374,049.21

5,811,040,203.69

3,074,375,022.58
1,455,798,632.20

4,530,173,654.78

1,280,866,548.91

501,203,080.59

(62,554.47)

501,140,526.12

RMB
AR
Incurred in

previous period

CHEAE

183,277,893.50
(10,696,023.23)
33,588,069.66
33,588,069.66
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2020

Vll.Interest in Other Entities (Continued)

RS i = B 5 (48D
2020F141HZ6H30H 1 EE

+ Tﬁﬂﬁf‘&ﬁqﬂﬂﬁfrﬁﬁé(%ﬁ)

2.

Interest in joint ventures and associates
(Continued)

Key financial information of principal associates: (Continued)

The following table illustrates the combined financial information
of the joint ventures and associates which, individually, are not

significant to the Group:

ltem
BH

RERmEES

Total carrying value of investments

2,878,137,024.60

The total amount of the following calculation based on the

percentage of shareholding:

[tem
HE

HEEELEMBEREF
Ky (&)

EEMELENTIZUBKES - (B)

TRIRTHAKBEEBEIAEEZNG
EMBECENEFMBER

RMB
ARBTT

31 December 2019
2019412 A831H

30 June 2020
20206 A30H

3,036,567,626.31

THIRERFRLPIGFERN AT -

RMB
AR

Net profit 3 A
Other comprehensive income (including  H 4R & Wz
foreign currency translation difference) (& 9MNERERITEEZ4)

Total comprehensive income bRe W T8

Incurred during
this period
AHRAERE

42,191,687.27

31,664,994.19
73,856,681.46

Incurred in
previous period

LHIEAR

32,927,057.45

(5,905,759.65)
27,021,297.80

As the Group takes no responsibility for additional losses incurred by
Shaanxi Eurostar Auto Co., Ltd., in recognizing its share of the net
losses incurred by Shaanxi Eurostar Auto Co., Ltd., the writing-off
of carrying values of long-term equity investments and other long-
term interests constituting effectively net investments in Shaanxi
Eurostar Auto Co., Ltd. is limited to zero. The Group’s unrecognized
investment losses, for the period and on an accumulative basis,
amounted to RMB6,170,893.62 and RMB95,177,807.81 (2019:
RMB4,707,338.83 and RMB89,006,914.19) respectively.

AR EEE R S TERDE
RARITEABREBEIINEBRER
B bk 7 T 7R JE 43 HEBR P R AT 4 )R BB AR
MBERABZEAENFEER  URH
BRELENEMEEBARRIMES F
KPR AT R /R E R D AR A Al
FRENRBERRLEZT AR -
AEBRHRZFAARABBRNKRER
KXeBEOH ABARYG,170,893.62
JCAI AR ¥95,177,807.8170(2019
F: ANR#4,707,338.83 TMAR
#89,006,914.197T) °
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2020

VIl.Interest in Other Entities (Continued)

2. Interestin joint ventures and associates
(Continued)

Key financial information of principal associates: (Continued)

As the Group takes no responsibility for additional losses incurred
by Baoding Shangi Tianma Automobile Co., Ltd., in recognizing
its share of the net losses incurred by Baoding Shangi Tianma
Automobile Co., Ltd., the writing-off of the carrying values of long-
term equity investments and other long-term interests constituting
effectively net investments in Baoding Shangi Tianma Automobile
Co., Ltd. is limited to zero. The Group’s has no unrecognised
investment losses for the period, while unrecognised investment
losses on an accumulative basis amounted to RMB7,750,155.68
(2019: RMB358,574.37 and RMB7,750,155.68).

VIIL. Transfers of Financial Assets

Transferred financial assets that had been
derecognised in their entirety but continuously
involved

As at 30 June 2020, the Group had outstanding endorsed or discounted
acceptance bills with a carrying amount of RMB18,074,097,072.79 (31
December 2019: RMB23,456,803,940.66). As at 30 June 2020, they were
due in 1 to 12 months. If acceptance banks dishonor the bills, endorsees
shall have the right to turn to the Group for recourse (“Continuing
Involvement”) according to the Law of Negotiable Instruments.

The Group considered substantially all risk and reward of the
abovementioned bills have been transferred. Therefore, the Group
derecognized the bills and the book values of related accounts payable
that have been settled. The maximum loss and undiscounted cash flow of
continuing involvement and repurchase were equal to the book value of
the bills. The Group considers the fair value of continuing involvement not
significant.

The Group did not recognize any significant profit or loss at the date of
transfer for the period. The Group had no current or accumulated gain or
expense arising from the continuing involvement in financial assets which
had been derecognized. The endorsement and discount were incurred
evenly throughout the period.

~AE LA T 8 P AR 2 (AF)
2.

EFEELENBELESD
YRR (48)
SERLLENETERBES (B

HRAEEHREMRARERES
RABTBAEARERIIMNEBRET
AUt EHRESERERAXRE R
BAERARBENFEERR UK
HREEENERAEENREME
EEERERERARERAEAR
ARAFRENRAEZIRLTET A
R AEEXRBERERNKRER
K EFAERNBREEXRSE
A AN R ¥ 7,750,155.68 Jt ( 2019
F: ARW¥358,57437 T MARE
7,750,155.687T) °

I\~ il R A

CERLLBRITEEEI AN
CEBSHEE

202066 A308  AEBEBKRIHHE
EXURNEALEZNRABHEAA
R #18,074,097,072.797t (20194F 12 B
318 : AR#23,456,803,940.66 7T ) °
R2020F6 A308 - EEHBAE1E12E
R RB(EBEIVEARE - BELIBRT
ERNRE  ERFBEABRRAAREEER
-+ 27N

Iﬂ% 77

AERERR  AKEERER T L RE
EIAMRBRMRE - Bt - & IEFER
HESE BN EAERNERRNEREE
B - BESARBDBENZKBRMANTR
ReRESNEKEERE AKERS
BESANDABELTERX -

AHAREEREER BERNFFHEKX
WARER - AEEERBED ASK LT
REMEEZHMBFERN WAL E
A EEMMBRERNPABGHHL -
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

1 January to 30 June 2020

IX. Disclosure of Fair Value
1. Assets and liabilities measured at fair value 1.

FR 5 R BT 5T (48)
2020F141HZ6H30H 1 EE

Ju -~ SO AR fE B 9 2
=R

URAREBEFENEEN

RMB
AR T
Inputs used in the measurement of fair value
MRABEFEEANBAE

Quoted prices in Key observable  Key unobservable

active markets inputs inputs

ERTEE EZFABE

ERTSEE BAE BAE
[tem (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
BB (BB (B=EX) (B=EN) it
Receivable Financing RFERE - 10,123,170313.68 - 10,123,170,313.68
Finandial assets held for trading RHUEREE - 9,828,239,349.19 - 9,828,239,349.19
Investments in other equity instruments E {t % T B2 & 156,092,759.00  1,897,361,788.33  165,991,641.98  2,219,446,189.31
Other non-current finandial assets HtFRPEREE - 750,376,774.21 48,744,000.00  799,120,774.21
Financial liabilities held for trading THMeBEE - 100,032,983.46 - 100,032,983.46
Other non-current liabilities HipFRBARE - 117,735,229.00 38,905,407.00  156,640,636.00
2. Fair value of financial assets and financial 2. FHUAREBEFENEA
liabilities not measured at fair value EENESRABEBENAAE

EFR

The management of the Group considers that the carrying values of REEERERR  MEHMKRF AHE

financial assets and financial liabilities measured at amortized cost

in the financial statements approximate the fair values of those assets

and liabilities.

EfE -

BRAGENEREERETBRARD
FHEERIZEFEENBENAAR



Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2020

IX. Disclosure of Fair Value (Continued)

3.

Estimation of fair value

Fair value of financial assets/liabilities

The finance team of the Group is led by the head of finance
department who is responsible for formulating policies and
procedures applicable to the measurement of the fair value of
financial instruments. The finance team directly reports to the Chief
Financial Officer and the Audit Committee. On each balance sheet
date, the finance team analyzes the change in value of financial
instruments and ascertain the key inputs which apply to the
valuation. The result of valuation is subject to approval by the Chief

Financial Officer.

Financial assets/liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include
the forward exchange contracts, cross currency swap and interest
rate swap instruments, some structured deposits and other debt
instrument investments of subsidiaries. The Group believes that the
fair value estimated using valuation techniques is reasonable and

the most appropriate value as of the balance sheet date.

The fair values of listed equity instruments are determined according
to quote prices on the market. For listed equity instruments for
which circulation is restricted, fair values are determined based on
quoted prices on the market with necessary adjustments. The fair
values of investments in non-listed equity instruments are estimated
using the valuating model of market comparison approach, and the
assumptions adopted are not supported by observable market price
or interest rate. The Group needs to estimate unobservable market
parameters such as price—to—book ratio. The Group believes that
the fair value and its changes estimated using valuation techniques is
reasonable and the most appropriate value as of the balance sheet
date.
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2 SR AE R B B (4)

Ju -

3.

NAEBEME

TREE/ ¢RBEANEER

KE@E'JW%%.%EEQM‘%E‘F 15 A
CBAEVEEMIAAREE

E‘l‘EE’\JB( RAIET - EKEER

BEEVBENEGZEgHmE - G

BEEABGBERRA UBEBSTEHT

AEEYY  REAEEANEZER

ANE - HELEREEREVBE Bt
/o
UNAARBEFELEZEH T ALZHIE
AN EMEAE/SRHBERETET
NAKERBINERL INE¥FH
KAEGHTA  BL&BUEERR
HmtEBTAKE - XEEMBE - U
HERMETORRE Aﬁ%'
WTETRREEBBERAREENE
@ o

LETHERTE  UHSHRERER

ABE - FMEERBXRNERT
B A5 mE R KE ML EREE
WEARBE -FELMOERTAR
B RAMSHEUR R EER G A
REBE  RANBRRILIFFEHAHERED
SEBRIAEXF - AEEFEHRT
SFEREDAEBITIS L BUER M -
REBRE - AGERMNEFNRR
BEIESE 268N LATE
REEABRAZABENEE -
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2020

IX. Disclosure of Fair Value (Continued)

4. Unobservable inputs 4. FAUBE@AER
The key unobservable inputs of Level 3 of the measurements of fair MTRE=ZBRARBEAENEE
value are summarized as follows: A E R E A B

RMB
ARET
Fair value as at Fair value as at the Range (weighted
ltem the end of period beginning of period Valuation technique Unabservable inputs average)
HEER
12H HNRAEE  BERNE ATEZRAE (HniEF1(E)
Financial assets
tHEE
Xiamen Fengtai Bus and Coach 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 Income approach Cash flow
International Co., Ltd. gk Beng
EMERERN YR EERAA
Huarong Xiangjiang Bank 40,552,440.00 40,552,440.00 Market comparison Price-to-Book ratio 1.0
ERRIRT approach g
mHHERE
Zhejiang EP Equipment Co., Ltd 87,021,691.00 86,966,553.30 Income approach Cash flow
Zhejiang EP Equipment Co., Ltd gk Reng
Contingent consideration from 48,744,000.00 48,744,000.00 Monte Carlo simulation Revenue from principal
business combinations method business
CEAHARHE FRTAREE TERHBUA
Real estate call option 257911.50 Binomial options Forward price of
THEERHE pricing model real estate
B ERY AEEEHBER
Others 33,417,510.98 32,716,942.98
Hif
Financial liabilities
SRAE
Put option 38,905,407.00 38,194,348.50 Binomial options pricing Volatility of equity value
Bk model REREREE

— e ERY
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IX. Disclosure of Fair Value (Continued) Ju A REERBE(E)

5. Adjustments for fair value measurement 5. AREBHETTENALHS
The adjustments for the continuous Level 3 measurement of fair BENE-EBXARBEFENALN
value are as follows: EEWT :
RMB
AR T
Total current profitloss Acquisition, issuance, sale and settement
EHflsaEREE BE & LEAEE
Changes of
unreglized current gain/
Recognized loss of assets/iabltes
Recognized  through other Foreign held at the end of period
Transferito~ Transferout ~ through profit ~ comprehensive exchange recognized through
Item 1 January 2020 Level3 of Level 3 orloss income  Acquisition Issuance Sale Settlement gainfloss 30 June 2020 profitloss
BRnENEE/
ARETARRH
AR EERTEEY
%8 WNEIRIE BASZER  BEEZEX tARE faka BE ¥ bt L EXEE 200567308 BRNEY
Financial assets held for trading HELRER 257,911.50 - - (257,91150) - - - - - - -
Investment in equity instruments BRIARE 165,235,936.28 - - - 75570570 - - - - - 165,991,641.98
Other non-curtent financil assets HfpEHesEE  48744,000.00 - - - - - - - - - 48744,000.00
Other non-curtent financil ibiites EHERHOHER 3819434850 - - 71,05850 - - - - - - 38,905,407.00
0 q 4 S
6. The level change in the fair value 6. AABEEXER
From 1 January to 30 June 2020, there were neither transfers 2020F1A1EE6A30R IFH8If -
between Level 1 and Level 2 for the measurement of fair value of AEBEVTHESHEENESREELAR
financial assets and liabilities, nor transfer into or out of Level 3 (1 BEFEEEF—EBANE_ErzME
January to 30 June 2019: nil). WY TEEANEHE=ZERD

BN (20191 A1BE6 A30H 1L
R M) o
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2020

X.

Related Party Relationships and

The related parties defined in these financial statements included the

related parties under Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises and

S5 R A R (D)

2020F 14 1HZ6H30H 1 5iE

Transactions | ~Bi B J5 B 18 M H A2 5
R BREFREOEE O LS
HEBIh AR - baEhEER

related parties under the information disclosure requirements of China EBERZEe([BEE HMRINBSLR
Securities Regulatory Commission (the “CSRC”) and Shenzhen Stock SFEEERERERAENBEH S -
Exchange.
1. Parent 1. §2AF
Proportion of Proportion of
ownership voting
interest in powerin
Company Place of registration Nature of business Registered capital the Company the Company
HALT HARRE
A7 itfh ABUE EREA KR RAELA
(%) (%)
Weichai Group Holdings Limited Weifang City, External investment financial quarantee investment RMB1,200,000,000.00 17.12 17.12
HAEREEERAR Shandong Province advisory planning and organization/coordination AR %11,200,000,000.007

WREHST

Shandong Heavy Industry Group Co., Ltd. is the ultimate controller

of the Company.

2. Subsidiaries

Details of subsidiaries are set out in Note VII.1.

3. Associates and joint ventures

Details of associates and joint ventures are set

and management of production operating

activities of corporates under the Group
HRBEEERRE S AREER/

A REEMRLF LEREED

2. FRFH

FREGEEHRMEL 1.

3. BMELENSELE

AATHREERATALEETE
BERAT -

out in Note VII.2. BMECEMALLEHAMEL -

20
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X. Related Party Relationships and Transactions
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(Continued)

4. Particulars of other related parties which 4.
entered into material transactions with the
Group
Company Related party relationships
A E] B S BR

+ B B 5 B AR B A2 5 (A1)

BASEBLEEARIH
Hitb A H B

Referred to as

R

Weichai Group Holdings Limited
SRR R B AR A A

Shandong Weichai Import and Export Co., Ltd.
IR N OB R A F

Weichai Heavy-duty Machinery Co., Ltd.
HRERRIDBR AR

Weichai Electric Equipment Co., Ltd

HEENZEERAF

Yangzhou Yaxing Coach Co., Ltd.

HBMNEERERMNARAA

Weichai (Yangzhou) Yaxing New Energy Commercial
Vehicles Co., Ltd.

OGN EE2HMEREAEER AT

Weichai (Yangzhou) Special Vehicles Co., Ltd.

MR BN HEEBRAQF

Dezhou Degong Machinery Co., Ltd.

EMEIEWER AR

Shantui Construction Machinery Co., Ltd.

L TARMmAR D B IR A F)

Shanzhong Jianji Co., Ltd.

ILEZEBRAF]

Shandong Automobile Manufacturing Co., Ltd.

IWERTERERR A A

Beiqi Foton Motor Co., Ltd.
ARERERN AR AR
Shaanxi Automotive Group Co., Ltd.
PREEAEEEEREEAN R

Shaanxi Fast Gear Automotive Transmission Co., Ltd.

REELHAEEHEEERET AR

Shaanxi Automobile Industry Co., Ltd.
PR AEEEBR AR

Parent

SUNG|

Common control by parent
RIS
Common control by parent

RESA A

Common control by parent
EEL=INGFL
Common control by parent
BELEGEL
Common control by parent
GESEGEL]

Common control by parent
R AR 2

Same ultimate controller

[ — & ARER A A
Same ultimate controller
Al — & ARER A A
Same ultimate controller

[ — & ARER A A
Same ultimate controller

Al — S A&AE A A

Same key management personnel

F—REREEAR

Minority shareholders of
subsidiary(ies)

FARAZLHBR

Minority shareholders of
subsidiary(ies)

FTRAEIZ DHIRE

Related party of substantial
shareholders of subsidiary(ies)

FRBAEZMRR Z BB AL

Weichai Group Holdings

WS

Weichai Import and Export

Mg O

Weichai Heavy-duty
Machinery

ML B

Weichai Electric

LT

Yangzhou Yaxing

BN E

New Energy Commercial
Vehicles

MeeREAE

Yangzhou Special Vehicles

HM SR

Dezhou Degong

EMET

Shantui Construction

W T A2

Shanzhong Jianji

IT==g=2/7

Shandong Automobile
Manufacture

R E RE

Beigi Foton

BIAAT il

Shaanxi Automotive

pRiq 5 E

Fast Gear Transmission

ELTEER

Shaanxi Industry

PROTE X
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2020

X. Related Party Relationships and Transactions  ~Bi i 7 B 18 R A2 5 (4])
(Continued)
4. Particulars of other related parties which 4, RAEBEBEBEARZIN
entered into material transactions with the HEEASER (&)

Group (Continued)

Company

D F

Related party relationships
S B R

Referred to as

a8

Shaanxi Wanfang Vehicle Parts and Components

Co. Ltd.
BB R AETHUHBRAT

Shaanxi Huazhen Vehicle Parts Co., Ltd.

RO EZEMIBFERA A

Shaanxi Wanfang Tianyun Vehicle Equipment Co. Ltd.

BT REAEERARDA

Shaanxi Huazhen Vehicle Component Parts Co., Ltd.

RAAEZTETEH M AERAR

Shaanxi Tongli Special Purpose Vehicle Co., Ltd.

BRAENERIERREEAR

Shaanxi Lantong Transmission Axle Co., Ltd.

ROEBREHHAR DA

Shaanxi Automotive Group Commercial Vehicles

Co., Ltd.
PRAEBEEAEAR AR

Shaanxi Fangyuan Automobile Standard Components

Co. Ltd.
BRAa 7T BT EREMHFR AR
Shaanxi Deyin Leasing Co., Ltd
ERmEHERR AR

Shaanxi Huazhen Industry and
Trading Services Co.,Ltd.
PRAAZESZRTEREERA A

Shaanxi Dongming Automobile System Co., Ltd

PR EMASRDAERA R

Related party of substantial
shareholders of subsidiary(ies)
FRAIEERR 2B A L
Related party of substantial
shareholders of subsidiary(ies)
FRAEERR 2 BmALT
Related party of substantial
shareholders of subsidiary(ies)
FRAEERE < BB AT
Related party of substantial
shareholders of subsidiary(ies)
FRAEZERR 2B AT
Related party of substantial
shareholders of subsidiary(ies)
FRAAIEEZRR 2B A LT
Related party of substantial
shareholders of subsidiary(ies)
FRAEERR < FBA L
Related party of substantial
shareholders of subsidiary(ies)
FRAIEERR 2 @A LT
Related party of substantial
shareholders of subsidiary(ies)
FREIEERR 2 Bl AL
Related party of substantial
shareholders of subsidiary(ies)
FRARIEEZRR 2 BRA L
Related party of substantial
shareholders of subsidiary(ies)
FRAIEERR 2 BEA LT
Related party of substantial
shareholders of subsidiary(ies)

FRAEERR BB AL

Shaanxi Wanfang
PR S 75

Huazhen Parts

EHERM

Wanfang Tianyun
BHKRE

Huazhen Component

EHET

Tongli Special Purpose
BHEA

Lantong Transmission

EREywH

Shaanxi Automotive

Commercial Vehicles
PR A B
Fangyuan Automobile
HEARE

Deyin Leasing
RIREE

Huazhen Services

EHR

Dongming Automobile

REEEH



Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2020

X. Related Party Relationships and Transactions

(Continued)

4.

Particulars of other related parties which 4.
entered into material transactions with the

Group (Continued)

Company

A F

S 5 R B G
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Related party relationships
S R

+ B G 5 B AR e 22 B (B)

BEASEBEEARSN
HAibBAME S B ()

Referred to as

1ok

Shaanxi Huazhen Automobile Filtration System

Co., Ltd.
PRAEZTBERERAERAA

Shaanxi Yuanxing Supply Chain Management

Co., Ltd.
PREERITHEREEGRA A
J. Eberspaecher (Xi'an) GmbH & Co. KG
®REMHEREM(FEL)BRAF

Xi'an Deshi Vehicle Components Co., Ltd.

TR B AE R AR EERT

Xi'an Oude Rubber and Plastic Technology Co., Ltd.

AZBIERERMBR AR

Shaanxi Heavy-duty Special Vehicles Co., Ltd.

RAEAERTEARATA

Shaanxi Tianxingjian Vehicle Networking

Information Technology Co., Ltd.
PRARITRERBRERRMER AT
Xi'an Cummics Engine Co., Ltd.

AREREEBHER DA

CIMC-SHAC (Xi'an) Special Vehicles Co., Ltd.

HERTER(AR)ERAEARAA
Ballard Power Systems Inc.
BRESHNERBERAF

Shaanxi Eurostar Auto Co., Ltd.

PR ER AT R T EE AR B IR A A

Shaanxi Automobile Wuhai Special Vehicles Co., Ltd.

RASBERTIEERAA

Weichai Power Westport New Energy Engine Co., Ltd.

HEERTEFEERB W AR A A

Shaanxi Tonghui Automotive Transportation Co., Ltd.

BP9 BESEYRER DA

Related party of substantial
shareholders of subsidiary(ies)
FRAIEERR 2B A LT
Related party of substantial
shareholders of subsidiary(ies)
FRAEERR 2 BmALT
Related party of substantial
shareholders of subsidiary(ies)
FRAEEMRE < B A T
Related party of substantial
shareholders of subsidiary(ies)
FRAIEZERR 2B AT
Related party of substantial
shareholders of subsidiary(ies)
FRAIEEZRR 2 BRA LT
Related party of substantial
shareholders of subsidiary(ies)
FRAEERR 2 BRAL
Related party of substantial
shareholders of subsidiary(ies)
FRAAIEERR 2 @A LT
Associate of subsidiary(ies)
TRAEIZEE R
Associate of subsidiary(ies)
FRAZE LR
Associate of subsidiary(ies)
FRARIZE LR
Associate of subsidiary(ies)
FRARZE LR
Associate of subsidiary(ies)
FREIZEEREE
Associate of parent
BRAZ SR
Associate of subsidiary(ies)
TREIZE SR

Huazhen Filtration

ERRB

Shaanxi Yuanxing Supply
Chain

PR E T e

J. Eberspaecher

% B i

Deshi Components
EATEM

Oude Rubber
BR =g 28

Shaanxi Heavy-duty Special
BETHEM

Tianxingjian Vehicle
Networking

RIT R =B

Xi'an Cummics

P2 FREA AT

CIMC-SHAC

hESER

Ballard Power

BREE N

Eurostar

R ET 4

Shaanxi Wuhai

PR SE

Westport New Energy

AR

Tonghui Transportation

BER
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1 January to 30 June 2020

X. Related Party Relationships and Transactions
(Continued)
5. Major transactions between the Group and its
related parties

(1

Transaction of goods and services with related
parties
Purchase of goods from related parties

S5 ik SR W R (A

20201 81HZ6H30H 1F 5

+ B Bk 5 B AR e A2 5 ()
5. AKREERBELINEER

2

(1) BEIARNSEHERS

A F% 75 R B

Incurred during

this period
AHEBERE

Company

N

Fast Gear Transmission ETREE
Shaanxi Wuhai RAEE
Westport New Energy AR
Shaanxi Automotive Commercial Vehicles Bt/ R &
Shaanxi Wanfang PREEE 7
Weichai Import and Export HESEE O
Wanfang Tianyun BHKRE
Shaanxi Heavy-duty Special RESER
Xi‘an Cummics PE% R AR
Tongli Special Purpose BOEA
Deshi Components mAETIMH
Huazhen Component EBRT I
CIMC-SHAC hEER
Weichai Group Holdings SRR
Ballard Power ERfEE)h
Oude Rubber ERfE 1% 28
Tianxingjian Vehicle Networking RITIRE
Weichai Heavy-duty Machinery S B
Lantong Transmission LR E e
Fangyuan Automobile FESE
Dongming Automobile R ERE R
Huazhen Parts EEA
Others HAh

3,179,492,714.11
1,879,652,332.69
1,833,606,864.13
1,661,213,915.40
699,283,938.89
489,054,158.01
419,836,584.23
415,145,885.74
396,986,815.59
386,984,734.10
371,585,256.85
310,561,407.59
289,408,053.10
210,151,898.15
185,451,964.79
177,027,555.49
165,640,268.14
158,512,935.39
97,872,541.68
37,794,911.99
36,399,007.76
31,418,575.02
541,359,675.58

Total EEr

13,974,441,994.42

RMB
AR
Incurred in

previous period

EHIZARR

2,642,232,203.22
1,368,965,777.17
1,457,056,386.56
1,802,791,415.07
819,489,800.78
414,585,930.78
337,080,101.17
115,876,926.83
281,709,018.43
478,611,471.74
319,805,358.07
362,266,313.43
451,858,360.94
216,969,719.93
41,960,416.66
191,918,634.72
95,057,901.29
187,949,692.98
127,407,347.64
51,498,723.64
17,313,238.06
50,817,168.46
826,664,700.26

12,659,886,607.83




Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2020

X. Related Party Relationships and Transactions

(Continued)

5.

Major transactions between the Group and its

related parties (Continued)

(1)

Transaction of goods and services with related

parties (Continued)
Sales of goods to related parties

Interim Report 2020 FHEAZRE

RS i 2 BT 5 (48
20201 81HZ26H30H 1F 7R

-+~ Bk Oy B AR e AR 5 ()
5. AKEEERBELINEER

5 (&)
(1) BB B m
(%)

] B8 B 75 35 & B m

Incurred during

this period
AEBER

RMB
ARE T
Incurred in

previous period

EHIZARR

1,306,500,886.34 1,

1,291,853,112.70
931,680,257.09
683,100,133.10
613,518,236.86
567,104,439.13
431,192,412.33
331,743,297.32
186,507,492.55
185,723,974.81
171,697,895.33
144,110,117.12
134,809,165.03
121,775,137.44
113,302,182.91
104,793,722.92
87,314,876.86
81,634,541.94
46,748,073.09
46,587,990.12
37,665,234.94
34,712,061.72
907,281,347.19

Company

NG|

Fast Gear Transmission ETREE
Shaanxi Wuhai RAEE
Shaanxi Automotive Commercial Vehicles Bt ;5 & F 22
Shaanxi Automotive pRAEE
Weichai Import and Export HELEHE O
Westport New Energy FaA TR
Beiqi Foton A% H
Shaanxi Heavy-duty Special REAER
Shaanxi Wanfang BREEE H
Shandong Automobile Manufacture LR E B R
Shantui Construction 3 T2
Wanfang Tianyun BHRNE
Weichai Electric HELELE
Yangzhou Yaxing HINEE
Weichai Heavy-duty Machinery HESE B
Yangzhou Special Vehicles HINERE
Oude Rubber B
Huazhen Component EHRT M
Dezhou Degong mNET
Shanzhong Jianji INEeg=y
Tongli Special Purpose BOEA
Huazhen Services EERDG
Others HAh

Total A&t

086,518,542.50
919,024,475.15
423,888,018.92
149,591,099.54
533,100,166.96
74,641,608.27
221,727,449.40
263,037,853.94
180,971,853.85
385,568.98
105,952,146.35
129,890,513.47
162,490,748.68
247,047,499.93
88,752,468.51
58,607,479.22
105,777,501.36
93,933,287.47
54,815,620.84
28,833,739.64
95,376,783.86
34,492,078.07
748,434,097.42

8,561,356,588.84 5

807,290,602.33
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2020

X. Related Party Relationships and Transactions
(Continued)

5. Major transactions between the Group and its
related parties (Continued)

(1

Transaction of goods and services with related

parties (Continued)

Receiving services from related parties

S5 ik SR W R (A

20201 81HZ6H30H 1F 5

+ B Bk 5 B AR e A2 5 ()

5.

Company

A 7]

Tonghui Transportation BEYR
Weichai Heavy-duty Machinery ML B
Shaanxi Industry Oa-
Ballard Power BREEh
Weichai Group Holdings HESEERR
Others EHAth
Total a5t
Rendering services to related parties

Item

A

Others HAth

The prices for the Group's sale of goods and rendering

services to related parties as well as purchase of goods and

receiving services from related parties were determined with

reference to market rates.

AEEHEBBHINTIER
2 (&)

(1) EBIEmNMEBERS

(&)

RMB

ARE T

Incurred during Incurred in

this period previous period

AHEBERE FEREE AR

180,414,010.41
44,861,790.29

44,848,720.03
29,355,865.00
14,693,915.61
62,313,086.74

376,487,388.08

190,368,169.61
14,746,068.74
68,610,899.60
13,890,089.35
32,715,236.67

320,330,463.97

5] B8 B 75 1 1 85 7

Incurred during

this period

R

18,680,304.96

RMB
AR
Incurred in

previous period

LHIEARR

23,699,719.49

AEERBEBOHEERR '
HEH KBEARMREISH
MERSEMISZERRE -
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) RS i R B 5 (48
1 January to 30 June 2020 202041/ 1H26H30H 1F 7R

X. Related Party Relationships and Transactions  ~Bi 5 7 B8 X HAZ 5 (4)
(Continued)

5. Major transactions between the Group and its 5. XEBHEBBINIER
related parties (Continued) 2 (48)
(2) Leasing with related parties (2) BEAHMEE
RMB
AR BT
Lease revenue for Lease revenue for
[tem Type of leased property {45 olsidlele | the previous period
THH HEZERA AHHE WA FHBREKRA
As lessor Buildings, equipment & land
EREEA e ] 18,229,872.03 13,589,799.11
The prices for the Group's leasing with related parties were AEBEHEBEHAHEXBER
determined with reference to market rates. BEMIGEBRRE o
(3) Transfer of assets with related parties (3) BBt EEEE
RMB
AR
Incurred during Incurred in
[tem Particulars of transaction this period previous period
HH RHBAR AHRERE FERE AR
Others Purchase of fixed assets
i) BEEEEE 171,287.23 7,340,111.01
Others Sale of fixed assets
i) HEBTEE 124,923.04 1,612,994.97
The price for the Group’s purchase and sale of fixed assets AREE BB THEEBNEES
from and to related parties were determined with reference EBEER2EMSBERRE -

to market rates.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2020

X. Related Party Relationships and Transactions
(Continued)
5. Major transactions between the Group and its
related parties (Continued)

(4)
(@)

(b)

Other related party transactions

Deyin Leasing provides Shaanxi Heavy-duty Motor Co.,
Ltd., a subsidiary of the Company, with services of
financial leasing. It was agreed among Deyin Leasing
and third-party distributors that for the vehicle monies
of related business to be receivable by the Group from
distributors, Deyin Leasing may take up the payment
obligation on behalf of the distributors. The amount of
vehicle sales through this business mode amounted to
RMB1,594,781,400.00 for the period (previous period:
RMB1,351,288,300.00).

Shanzhong Finance Leasing provides distributors and
ultimate customers of Shaanxi Heavy-duty Motor Co.,
Ltd., a subsidiary of the Company, with services of
financial leasing. The amount of outright vehicle sales
in cash to distributors through this business mode
amounted to RMB3,297,095,848.00 for the period
(previous period: RMB2,686,952,218.00). For details,
see Note XII.3.

S5 R A R (D)

2020F 14 1HZ6H30H 1 5iE

+ BRI O B AR R AR 5 (4
5. AKEERBELINEER

2 (&)
(4)
(a)

Hi B X5

BIRAEARARBZ TR
AIRRAFELNAEERA
AR R ER A
ERY  ERAEMSE
ZH AR BEHRAE
[ FE My A% 5K 7 A AR BE 2
BHER  ATHERA
EREHEEAENTRSE
%o AHmIBZIEELE
ABEENEWSEAA
R # 1,594,781,400.00
T (EH : AR
1,351,288,300.007T) °

LWEREREARANR A
ZFRRAIRAER K
ERARIMCEHE RE
BmEPREMERSE
X% ANEBBAZEE
BRARSHEEEHG
KEANERSERA
R ¥ 3,297,095,848.00
T (k8 : AR®
2,686,952,218.007T ) °
BRER2AMaEt+=
3o



Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2020

X. Related Party Relationships and Transactions
(Continued)
5. Major transactions between the Group and its
related parties (Continued)
(4) Other related party transactions (Continued)

()

On 30 March 2016, the Group entered into the
Financial Services Agreement with Shandong Heavy
Industry Finance Co.. Pursuant to the agreement,
Shandong Heavy Industry Finance Company provided
deposit, credit lending and clearing services as well
as other financial services to the Company and its
controlling subsidiaries. The interest rates for credit
relating to financial services as well as fee rates
are determined according to the Financial Services
Agreement and based upon the relevant requirements
of the People’s Bank of China’s under which the
lending rate shall not exceed the minimum level
permitted under the interest rates and fee rates for
money lending of similar types and categories available
to the Group from other major commercial banks in
the PRC.

Shandong Heavy Industry Finance Co. provides
distributors of Shaanxi Heavy-duty Motor Co.,
Ltd., a subsidiary of the Company, with credit line
to apply for establishing bank acceptance bills for
the purchase of products from Shaanxi Heavy-duty
Motor Co., Ltd.. In 2020, the credit line amounted to
RMB3,000,000,000.00 (2019: RMB3,000,000,000.00).
Shaanxi Heavy-duty Motor Co., Ltd. assumes security
obligation in favour of the distributors for the
difference between amount of notes and guarantee
money. As at 30 June 2020, open position of
outstanding acceptance bill was RMB666,262,310.00
(31 December 2019: RMB658,341,770.00). For details,
see Note XII.2.
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S S R MY AT (A

20201 H1HZ26H30H 1-HifE

T ~BRBE TS B AR S H AL 5 ()
5. AEEEEHSNIEX

5 (&)

(4) HibBAR TS (&)

(0)

AEEBRNREBTMBR
AR 2016463 A30H %
FERRBHZE) - RE
W& IWREBIFBHRAF
RARE REBR T RRHE
HER - FE BELH
e BEES  EHSH
RBEENEMERRE
(ERRBH# )R e+ =R
ARBITERERN XM
B TEHER TS RA
SEREEMTEBRATE
R RTEUSREARE
RIEENERBE AR
RAEKFRETE o

IWREBTHBRABAERR
AlZ FARIPRAELR RE
ERD A LRI
EREE + iR IRITA
HEZRANEBERAE
AAEERAQAE®R -
20200V ERERA
R ¥ 3,000,000,000.00
7T (2019F : AR ¥
3,000,000,000.007T) °
PRAEER AEHRRA A
REHBARHER SR
HRFSZEEZENER
HREBEEMT - BLE2020
F6H30H + WK EH
A REZ®RAOEARA
R ¥ 666,262,310.00
6 (2019F 12 A31H
A E ¥ 658,341,770.00
L) o AEERL2 R
+=-2-
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) RS 3% B G (4
1 January to 30 June 2020 2020917 1H26H30H 1 7

X. Related Party Relationships and Transactions  ~Bi 5 7 B8 L HAZ 5 (5)

(Continued)
5. Major transactions between the Group and its 5. XEBHEBBINIER
related parties (Continued) 2 (&)

(4) Other related party transactions (Continued) (4) HM@EE SRS (&)
Amounts of transactions with Shandong Heavy Industry AEEE|NRETHBEA R
Finance Co. are as follows: ERNREXSHEET ¢

RMB
AR #T
Incurred during Incurred in
[tem this period previous period
15 H RERERE FHiR A
Bank deposit placed TFHRITIE R ELNTAREY VLRV 55 767,512,903.45
Interest income FEWA 101,955,748.42 129,606,533.75
Interest expenses FEZH 7,501,365.36 6,052,878.37
Acquisition of short-term borrowings HBEEHER 45,000,000.00 =
Acquisition of long-term borrowings S REIER - 103,400,000.00
Repayment of long-term borrowings EEREER 199,630,000.00 -
Establishment of bank acceptance bills B B $R17& X [EZ= 1,743,553,154.95 2,024,557,623.02
Balances of accounts with Shandong Heavy Industry Finance AEFRNRETIHBHALAN
Co. are as follows: FIRMERERFEAOT ¢
RMB
AR #T
[tem e(ONIEpIsloplol s 31 December 2019
HAE POPIESYZENI=IN 2019612 A31H
Cash and cash equivalents placed THREBTHNEBES
with related parties PEWL I REP ML YA 24,322,456,355.51
Interest receivable FEWLF B 101,357,412.70 24,268,278.47
Balance of short-term borrowings RAE KRR 65,000,000.00 20,000,000.00
Balance of long-term borrowings KA R eREE 266,767,751.45 466,397,751.45
Balance of bank acceptance F A BV ER1T A K [E R ERER

bills established 2,026,944,953.69 3,461,859,096.77
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2020

X. Related Party Relationships and Transactions

At

1,714,708,451.79

38,164,754.03

968,535,342.60

(Continued)
6. Amounts due from/to related parties 6. BAEELEWENRIEGREE
RMB
AR
30 June 2020 31 December 2019
2020%6A30H 20194128318
Gross carrying Provision for Gross carrying Provision for
[tem amount credit losses amount credit losses
HE RERE FHEXAXES IREf#E  ERBRER
Accounts receivable
FE W BR X
Weichai Import and Export
S O 429,412,316.98 5 e elsteh s | 110,659,375.88 1,099,877.91
Shaanxi Automotive Commercial Vehicles
BRAmAE 287,938,653.42 St ek | 192,684,496.25 =
Yangzhou Yaxing
BMNEE 187,144,407.12 EvlelEssclel | 70,014,901.68 2,242,476.09
Shaanxi Wuhai
= i! 145,726,643.10 78,074,725.76 =
Yangzhou Special Vehicles
BN FiEE 106,977,617.65 1,468,928.38 910,150.18 0.00
Shandong Automobile Manufacture
INESap=-E:1 5 27,250,739.73 681,016.85 5,986,832.00 119,736.64
Shantui Construction
Ly T 72 26,905,124.18 LYAWAVAE 8,402,496.73 168,044.07
Huazhen Component
HEBT 22,660,596.73 12,177,225.31 -
Beiqi Foton
b5 EH 22,225,756.61 (REERCEL RO 01,251,341.21 1,945,738.96
Tongli Special Purpose
BHEA 19,885,461.87 4,595,096.09 =
Westport New Energy
mA R 18,867,437.44 Sele el () | 16,164,686.09 94,108.88
Xi'an FC
A &R 17,788,613.42 SlOSIERVACPAY  11,949,328.47 238,986.57
Weichai Heavy-duty Machinery
S BB 14,651,522.58 273,987.77 2,687,475.85 25,584.00
Weichai Electric
HELEE ) 12,576,141.90 ST orA)s | 66,936,962.46 1,338,635.85
Eurostar
B AT 4 12,129,459.02  12,129,459.02 [IRENyXIpRY 14,067,992.31
Others
HAth 362,567,960.04 Sl eflelEls | 281,972,256.33 6,821,480.92
Total

28,162,662.20
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2020

RS i = B 5 (48D
20201 81HZ6H30H 1F 5

X. Related Party Relationships and Transactions  ~Bi%i i B8 L HAZ 5 (4)

(Continued)
6. Amounts due from/to related parties 6. BABAERWENRIERE
(Continued) (%)
RMB
ARBT
30 June 2020 31 December 2019
202096 H30H 2019412 A31H
Gross carrying Provision for Gross carrying Provision for
[tem amount credit losses amount credit losses
1A FREEE EREXER FREfE  (ERIRNER

Other receivables
8 EN

Others

HAt,

[tem
BH

220,267,082.12 UEREIOPASEPRCIONY 124,994,121.77 13,781,240.01

RMB
ARET

30 June 2020 31 December 2019
2020%6H30H 2019412 A831H

Notes receivable
Bl RE
Shantui Construction
T2
Weichai Heavy-duty Machinery
HESeE
Yangzhou Yaxing
HINEE
Shandong Automobile Manufacture
B B Bl
Dezhou Degong
fEMET
Shanzhong Jianji

INEEg=y
Others

Hity

228,452,802.84 146,947,390.01

204,500,000.00 339,612,368.69

138,467,384.00 278,154,000.00

134,688,690.77 =

56,190,000.00 74,301,358.24

36,561,966.66 20,208,517.00

19,746,624.31 57,576,178.03

Total

Bt

818,607,468.58 916,799,811.97
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1 January to 30 June 2020

X. Related Party Relationships and Transactions
(Continued)
6. Amounts due from/to related parties
(Continued)

ltem
HH
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-+~ Bk Oy B AR e AR 5 ()
6. BAME T MEW B RIHRE

(%)

30 June 2020
20206 A30H

Receivable Financing
WA R &
Deyin Leasing
=REE
Shaanxi Automotive Commercial Vehicles
PRSI A E
Shaanxi Wuhai
BRASE
Dongming Automobile
REFER
Tongli Special Purpose
BHER
Shantui Construction
L3 T2
Weichai Heavy-duty Machinery
WS B
Yangzhou Yaxing
HINEE
Yangzhou Special Vehicles
HINEREE
Others
HA

229,860,600.42

229,000,000.00

193,180,000.00

24,250,000.00

10,307,468.88

5,472,141.04

3,463,114.16

1,216,270.17

776,475.00

40,829,402.82

Total

Akt

738,355,472.49

RMB
ARBT

31 December 2019
2019412 A831H

153,000,000.00

29,450,000.00

110,667,390.00

2,860,000.00

9,917,445.59

19,388,188.24

12,650,007.89

48,412,298.00

54,412,400.00

15,200,153.97

455,957,883.69




254  \Weichai Power Co., Ltd.  #SeE HIRD AR AT

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2020

X. Related Party Relationships and Transactions
(Continued)

6.

Amounts due from/to related parties
(Continued)

[tem
HH

S5 ik SR W R (A

20201 81HZ6H30H 1F 5

+ B B 5 B AR e R 5 ()
6. BAME T MEWE N RIHRE

(%)

30 June 2020
20206 A30H

Prepayments
BNRE
Ballard Power
BREEN
Weichai Import and Export
ML O
Huazhen Services
EZRIRTS
Others
A

39,298,608.79

30,738,717.68

29,965,982.33

51,040,390.68

Total

At

151,043,699.48

RMB
ARBT

31 December 2019
2019412 A831H

42,560,370.00

75,176,413.60

43,146,129.56

44,853,751.74

205,736,664.90
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2020

X. Related Party Relationships and Transactions + ~Bi ¥ 5 B8 L HAZ 5 (4)
(Continued)

6. Amounts due from/to related parties 6. BABE T EEWENRIBERE
(Continued) (#8)

RMB

AR T

[tem 30 June 2020 31 December 2019

HE 2020568308 [EPIIEERPEEN:

Accounts payable

EFERK
Shaanxi Automotive Commercial Vehicles
BROAE R E 912,606,808.94 762,088,776.30
Shaanxi Wuhai
P! 563,101,459.48 286,984,556.93
Shaanxi Wanfang
BREE R 540,134,191.30 245,348,067.02
Westport New Energy
mA R 376,514,735.69 318,271,447.84
Weichai Import and Export
ML O 292,862,716.17 224,075,034.42
Fast Gear Transmission
ETREE 284,344,209.40 346,979,138.43
Xi'an Cummics
oz FRAAHR 279,311,398.51 179,775,989.91
Tongli Special Purpose
BIERA 266,627,786.38 229,100,179.48
Deshi Components
AT 235,415,361.89 201,473,981.41
Wanfang Tianyun
BHRE 196,490,950.39 137,116,971.42
Huazhen Component
EHRT M 179,763,248.09 147,448,583.10
Tonghui Transportation
MEYR 126,135,745.10 88,329,212.51
Xi'an FC
Ptk 35 118,340,067.40 73,531,242.38
Shaanxi Heavy-duty Special
rERHEA 117,815,970.86 79,824,954.86
Oude Rubber
Bl=iR 2 94,387,369.87 71,975,306.12
Lantong Transmission
EimES 85,949,867.39 57,690,604.79
Tianxingjian Vehicle Networking
RAITHEE B 51,054,004.92 57,853,838.88
Others
HAh 331,236,542.43 327,696,784.98
Total

o~

5,052,092,434.21

3,835,564,670.78
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2020

X. Related Party Relationships and Transactions
(Continued)
6. Amounts due from/to related parties
(Continued)

[tem
HH

Notes payable

ENREE
Westport New Energy
EEFRE R
Shaanxi Wuhai
PRASE
Fast Gear Transmission
ETEEE
Huazhen Component
ERTE M
Tongli Special Purpose
BHER
Shaanxi Automotive Commercial Vehicles
BRIS A E
Deshi Components
EAE MY
Tonghui Transportation
REYR
Shaanxi Wanfang
DFiR=-]
Others
A

Total

At

RS i = B 5 (48D
20201 81HZ6H30H 1F 5

+ B B 5 B AR e R 5 ()

B8 B¢ 75 BB WL FE {9 SR TH 6R BE
(%)

RMB

AT

30 June 2020
20206 A30H

1,019,215,655.13

262,000,000.00

135,000,000.00

122,512,000.00

28,272,308.08

26,500,000.00

16,080,000.00

13,882,883.43

47,863,470.41

1,671,326,317.05

31 December 2019
2019412 A831H

922,140,371.81

385,000,000.00

115,300,000.00

114,390,000.00

27,006,319.48

101,500,000.00

64,200,000.00

9,840,085.62

171,366,000.00

37,332,574.02

1,948,075,350.93
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1 January to 30 June 2020

X. Related Party Relationships and Transactions
(Continued)
6. Amounts due from/to related parties
(Continued)

ltem
HH
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6. BAME T MEWE N RIHRE

(#%&)

30 June 2020
20206 A30H

Contract liabilities
AEAE
Shaanxi Automotive
BOREE
Others
A

1,461,735,884.49

4,304,152.65

Total

At

1,466,040,037.14

[tem
BH

30 June 2020
20206 AH30H

Other payables
Hfth FE 1K
Shaanxi Industry
B E
Others
At

60,706,259.13

115,205,490.84

Total

At

175,911,749.97

RMB
ARBT

31 December 2019
2019412 A831H

517,094,874.40

8,545,379.38

525,640,253.78

RMB
ARET

31 December 2019
2019412 A831H

64,063,346.62

115,182,073.98

179,245,420.60
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2020

X. Related Party Relationships and Transactions
(Continued)
6. Amounts due from/to related parties
(Continued)

[tem
HH

RS i = B 5 (48D
20201 81HZ6H30H 1F 5

+ B B 5 B AR e R 5 ()

6. BETEWENREKRE
(%)

RMB
ARBT

30 June 2020 31 December 2019
20206 HA30H 2019412 A831H

Dividends payable

EMRF
Weichai Group Holdings
HESETE IR 191,229,600.00 27,993,120.35
Fast Gear Transmission
ETREE 109,529,743.16
Shaanxi Automotive
[ 9at-=] 106,658,826.01
Total
AFt 191,229,600.00 244,181,689.52
RMB
AR T
[tem 30 June 2020 31 December 2019
5 H 20206 A30H 2019412 831H
Lease liabilities
HESE
Shaanxi Industry
pRAE 115,774.48 347,323.44
Fast Gear Transmission
ETREE 13,722,851.47
Total

At

115,774.48 14,070,174.91
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) RS i R B 5 (48
1 January to 30 June 2020 202041/ 1H26H30H 1F 7R

X. Related Party Relationships and Transactions + ~Bi ¥ 5 B8 L HAZ 5 (4)
(Continued)

6. Amounts due from/to related parties 6. BABE T EEWENRIBERE
(Continued) (#&)

RMB

AR T

ltem 30 June 2020 31 December 2019
BH 20206 H30H 2019412 A831H

Long-term payables

REEMAR
Other immaterial associates
HAthIEE KB L % 409,537,723.00 394,940,661.50
RMB
AR#T
[tem 30 June 2020 31 December 2019
HE 20206 A30H 2019412 A31H
Non-current liabilities due within one year
—FREFNERBERS
Other immaterial associates
Hih3FEABE B E 201,469,027.00 179,154,706.50
Other than long-term payables and non-current liabilities due within BREBEMNZ  —FRIEHRERS
one year, amounts due from/to related parties were non-interest BESN - U FE R 5 FRIEY
bearing and unsecured, of which the terms of repayment for DEFAIE - ST - Ep - BHEK
amounts of trading nature will follow the requirement of terms of MERHRENEBESKIIRTE EESH
trading, while amounts of non-trading nature have no fixed terms R E E B R o

of repayment.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2020

XI. Share-based Payment +—

Share-based Payment Project Applicable to Staff
Members of KION

As at 30 June 2020, the number of bonus shares issued by KION
amounted to 53,040 shares (31 December 2019: 53,776 shares). The
number of shares decreased as compared to previous year as 736 shares
(2019: 537 shares) have lapsed. The total costs in respect of equity-
settled share-based payments related to such project was recognized
as EUR446,000.00, equivalent to RMB3,481,151.82 (previous period:
EUR351,000.00, equivalent to RMB2,670,231.01) for the period.

Share Incentive Scheme Applicable to KION
Managers

As part of the cash-settled Share Incentive Scheme of KION, managers
were granted virtual shares over a fixed period of time (3 years). In
2020, a share incentive scheme operated by KION became applicable to
managers from 1 January 2020, for a term of three years (“KION Senior
Management Long-term Incentive Scheme 2020”). On 1 January 2020,
252,645 (2019: 274,460) virtual shares with specific fair value were
granted to managers. Such virtual shares were apportioned in proportion
to the total annual remuneration of the respective managers who were

granted such shares.

The cash-settled share-based payment granted in 2017 is subject to
appraisal for business performance during a period ending 31 December
2019, and has been settled in March 2020.

KIONEIR#®BX{SEE

HZE2020F6 4308 * KIONEEITIEINRIAL A
53,0400% (2019412 A318 : 53,776/%) -
BREEEFRORAREFT7I6RE XK
(2019%F : 537/%) - A EREE:ZT8 B AR A LA
BaftEORNEINBRNERAELSR
7T 446,000.00 * #T1& A K ¥ 3,481,151.82

L (£ 88+ Byr351,000.00 1A AR
2,670,231.017T) °

KION &R 12 B R B B 51 &1

YE B BAIR & 45 & ) KION X HE %5 B 51 21 &Y
*%n'ﬁ@ﬁ*ﬁﬁm%%%ﬁ@ﬁ)

WHRTFESBRG ° £20204F © KIONH &
BEE®RE2020F1A1HRAHP=ZFHN
B% #E BB 5T 8] (KION2020F B B K #1 &
BhatEl) - 20201818 KEFEETF
252,645 EBHEA A BENEERRSG
(20194 : 274,46010) * ZE# (7 ILE

BUABEETROKBEABETNHEE
BT DR ©

2017 R FHNB S EENRMD I E
EERHE2019F12A8431B&R T 2
MR2020F3 AT -
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XI. Share-based Payment (Continued) F— By AT (5)

Share Incentive Scheme Applicable to KION
Managers (Continued)

As at 30 June 2020, accumulated liabilities incurred from the cash-settled
share-based payments amounted to EUR11,498,000.00, equivalent to
RMB91,535,578.00 (31 December 2019: EUR12,519,000.00, equivalent
to RMB97,842,244.50). In particular, nil belonged to the 2017 tranche (31
December 2019: EUR3,729,000.00, equivalent to RMB29,143,999.50),
and EUR4,041,000.00 belonged to the 2018 tranche, which was
equivalent to RMB32,170,401.00 (31 December 2019: EUR4,409,000.00,
which was equivalent to RMB34,458,539.50). EUR5,593,000.00 belonged
to the 2019 tranche, which was equivalent to RMB44,525,873.00
(31 December 2019: EUR4,381,000.00, which was equivalent to
RMB34,239,705.50), and EUR1,864,000.00 belonged to the 2020
tranche, which was equivalent to RMB14,839,304.00.

Share Incentive Scheme Applicable to KION
Executive Board

As part of the cash-settled Share Incentive Scheme of KION, members
of the Executive Board were granted virtual shares over a fixed period
of time (3 years). The remuneration component measured over the long
term of members of the Executive Board is on the same basis of the Share
Incentive Scheme Applicable to KION Managers above. On 1 January
2020, i.e. the beginning of the period subject to appraisal, 76,656 virtual
shares (2019: 111,544 shares) with specified fair value were granted
to members of the Executive Committee by KION and apportioned in
ways stipulated in the service contract of each member of the Executive
Committee.

The cash-settled share-based payment granted in 2017 is subject to
appraisal for business performance during a period ending 31 December
2019, and has been settled in March 2020.

As at 30 June 2020, accumulated liabilities incurred from the cash-
settled share-based payments amounted to EUR2,711,000.00, equivalent
to RMB21,582,271.00 (31 December 2019: EUR5,759,000.00,
equivalent to RMB45,009,464.50). In particular, nil belonged to the
2017 tranche (31 December 2019: EUR1,817,000.00, equivalent to
RMB14,200,763.50), and nil belonged to the 2018 tranche (31 December
2019: EUR1,990,000.00, which was equivalent to RMB15,552,845.00).
EUR2,113,000.00 belonged to the 2019 tranche, which was equivalent
to RMB16,821,593.00 (31 December 2019: EUR1,952,000.00, which was
equivalent to RMB15,255,856.00), and EUR598,000.00 belonged to the
2020 tranche, which was equivalent to RMB4,760,678.00.

KIONAL 3 Iz e B B =1 81 (4]

HZE202066 A30H r UWBREEEN
BEhTXHNEENRFEESHE AR T
11,498,000.00 * #T& AR ¥91,535,578.00
JC(2019% 12 A31H : BUT12,519,000.00 °
A ARBEIT7,842,244.507T) + He » 2017
FRTHUBRSHEENROINEENR
HEBESEAZT(2019F12A318 : BT
3,729,000.00 - #T & A R ¥ 29,143,999.50
JT) ' 2018F R FHIAR & &£ E A X+
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2020

XII. Commitments and Contingencies
1. Significant commitments

[tem
BHH

Capital commitments

BAEGH

2. Exposure to confirmation risks
Shaanxi Heavy-duty Motor Co., Ltd., a subsidiary of the Company,
entered into a tri-party cooperation agreement with distributors
and endorsing bank. Distributors will deposit guarantee money
of no lower than 30% to the bank and apply for establishment
of bank acceptance bill for the purchase of products of Shaanxi
Heavy-duty Motor Co., Ltd. according to the amount of credit
facility provided by the bank. Shaanxi Heavy-duty Motor Co.,
Ltd. assumes security obligation in favour of the distributors
for the difference between amount of notes and guarantee
money. Products are delivered to distributors and revenue is
recognized when Shaanxi Heavy-duty Motor Co., Ltd. receives
the amount representing the aforementioned difference from the
distributors. As at 30 June 2020, open position of outstanding
acceptance bills was RMB3,852,558,747,50 (31 December 2019:
RMB2,643,365,360.00). Further, pursuant to the tri-party indemnity
agreement entered into among Shaanxi Heavy-duty Motor Co.,
Ltd., the distributors and the guarantors of the distributors, the
distributors shall indemnify Shaanxi Heavy-duty Motor Co., Ltd. in
respect of the aforesaid security obligation for the said difference
in amount or losses suffered, and their guarantors shall be jointly
liable for the same. To date, distributors under this arrangement
have hardly had any default. The Group is of the view that the risk
exposure related to the provision of these security obligations is

minimal, and thus no accruals and provisions have been made.

FR 5 R BT 5T (48)
2020F 14 1HZ6H30H 1 5iE

T2 A& R BRI

EERWBE
RMB
AR T

30 June 2020 31 December 2019
20206 A30H 2019412 A831H

3,368,614,470.91 3,088,297,118.51

REE B O R
RABZFRARASZAEFRA
AIELAGIETE c AHRIT=AEI=A
S IEWZE - LHEERRITFEATER
30% MIRFESR - RBRITHETH—
EEABEE #AERAUVRITEALE
ERARBERAERNREARA A
Em RAERTEERDA ALK
HERHEReHEAREFECHEE
EHERREEML RAFEAR
ERAGEWIILHEEA Ltz
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ERUKA - HZE202066 5308 -
WA EASEZHOELSAR
#3,852,558,747,50 7L (20194 12
A318 : AR#2,643,365,360.00
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2020

XII. Commitments and Contingencies (Continued)

3.

Business related to finance lease company

Regarding the outright product sales to distributors in cash by
Shaanxi Heavy-duty Motor Co., Ltd., a subsidiary of the Company,
Shaanxi Heavy-duty Motor Co., Ltd. entered into a cooperation
agreement with Shanzhong Finance Leasing Co., Ltd.. It is agreed
by and between the two parties that Shanzhong Finance Leasing
Co., Ltd. shall provide finance lease service to distributors or
ultimate customers of Shaanxi Heavy-duty Motor Co., Ltd. Shaanxi
Heavy-duty Motor Co., Ltd. shall jointly guarantee repurchase
of physical assets upon presentation in respect of the leasee’s
(ultimate customers’) failure to pay the instalment payments and
interests under the finance lease, on condition that product quality
required by Shaanxi Heavy-duty Motor Co., Ltd. is satisfied. As at

30 June 2020, risk exposure in respect of possible guarantee for

joint liabilities was RMB3,376,750,000.00 (31 December 2019:

RMB2,733,717,589.42). To date, the Group had not received any
request for repurchase under this sort of business. The Group is
of the view that the risk exposure related to the provision of these
guarantees for joint liabilities is minimal, and thus no accruals and

provisions have been made.

XIIl. Subsequent Events

L

Profit distribution

Distribution of interim dividend for year 2020

On 27 August 2019, under the authority granted by the
shareholders of the Company, the Board considered and approved
the distribution to all shareholders of a cash dividend of RMB1.50
(including tax) for every 10 shares held, based on the total number
of shares of the Company of 7,933,873,895 shares, without any

capitalisation of reserve.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2020

XIV. Other Significant Events
1. Leases
As the lessor
Finance leases: As at 30 June 2020, the balance of unrealized
finance income was RMB1,058,144,276.00 (31 December 2019:
RMB1,069,566,806.00) and was apportioned over the lease periods
based on fixed periodic interest rate. Pursuant to the leasing
contract signed with the lessee, the minimum lease receivables

under non-cancellable leases are as follows:

RS i = B 5 (48D
20201 81HZ6H30H 1F 5

M3
1.

ftb 7 2L = T
HE
YEREMEA
FhEFE - ®2020F6 8308 ¢
AEAMEWNZNHERARKE
1,058,144,276.00 7L (20194 12 A
31 B : AR # 1,069,566,806.00
) REEEMEABRUEREERE
HN S @M ST - RIFEAR
AFIMHEESAR - T HHEBEER
REBAERZBERAT

RMB
AR

Lease period

e

Within (and inclusive of) 1 year 1FEUAR(E1F)
1 to (and inclusive of) 2 years 1EB2F(E25)
2 to (and inclusive of) 3 years 2FEE3IF(F3F)
3 to (and inclusive of) 4 years 3FERLF(E4F)
4 to (and inclusive of) 5 years AFESF(F5F)
Over 5 years S5FIE

Total At

For fixed assets leased out under operating lease, refer to Note V.17.

30 June 2020
202066 H30H

3,254,586,628.46
2,879,439,620.14
2,448,807,292.71
2,009,893,574.37
1,379,108,309.98

929,172,060.34

12,901,007,486.00

31 December 2019
2019412 A31H

3,071,491,500.00
2,717,449,350.00
2,311,043,350.00
1,896,821,850.00
1,301,523,030.50

876,899,100.00

12,175,228,180.50

REMHBEEEE 2RMER -

17 @



Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2020

XIV. Other Significant Events (Continued)

2.

Segment reporting

Operating segments

The Group organizes and manages its operating business in
accordance with the nature of business and provision of products
and services. Each operating segment of the Group is one operating
group, providing products and services with risks and rewards

different from those of other operating segments.

The details of operating segments are as follows:

(@ manufacturing and sale of engines and related parts

(“Engines”);

(b)  manufacturing and sale of automobiles and automobile
components other than Engines (“Automobiles and

automobile components”);

(c)  Forklift trucks production, warehousing technology and

supply chain solution services (“Intelligent logistics”).

Management monitors the results of operating segments separately
for the purpose of making decisions about resources allocation and
performance assessment. Segment performance is evaluated based
on reported segment profit, which is a measure of adjusted total
profits. The adjusted total profits are measured consistently with
the Group’s total profits, except that finance expenses, investment
income, gains from changes in fair value of financial instruments as

well as head office expenses are excluded from such measurement.

Segment assets exclude equity investments at FVTPL, derivative
instruments, dividends receivable, interests receivable, equity
investments at FVTOCI, deferred tax assets and other unallocated

head office assets.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2020

XIV. Other Significant Events (Continued)

2.

Segment reporting (Continued)
Operating segments (Continued)

Segment liabilities exclude derivative instruments, borrowings,

income tax payable, deferred tax liabilities and other unallocated

head office liabilities.

Inter-segment transfers are transacted with reference to the prices

used in the transactions carried out with third parties.

As the internal management structure had changed in the second
half of 2019, the comparative data of operating segments have

been restated for the purpose of information comparison.

2 EHmE (&)

b (8E)
AHEABTREMETA  B% &
ZFEB  REHEHE B KA
RAMNMIBALRE -

DEENEREE  2RAE=F
IR B AMERGE

H2019F TH+FRNFEELEBE
FoHRERALNZE  ARAE
MTEEDEOLEER -

RMB
AR

Automobiles

and automobile

Item Engines components  Intelligent logistics

RER
&R B REZHH
Incurred during the period THEER
Segment revenue: AHRA -
Sale to external customers NIEPHE 03122044935  42,039,83942420  30,082,495,177.14  94,494,559,093.69
Inter-segment sale PHREE 8,890,816,976.96 620,341,480.78 75,554,595.67 9,586,713,053.41
Total A&t 31,263,041,469.31 42,660,180,904.98 30,158,049,772.81  104,081,272,147.10
Adjustment: HE:
Elimination of inter-segment sale BHEOUMEE (9,586,713,053.41)
Revenue WA 94,494,559,093.69
Segment results DEES 1,538,888,249.51 531,331,647.36 6,769,435,946.31
Adjustment: HE
Elimination of inter-segment results BHEIIRES (380,988,782.49)
Interest income Bl 619,198,001.23
Dividend income and unallocated income RERARAS Bl 528,345,248.88
Corporate and other unallocated expenses PEREBRIERS (46,006,159.00)
Finance expenses BBRA (785,393,300.08)
Profit before tax RaifE 6,704,590,954.85
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XIV. Other Significant Events (Continued) T Al R BE SR (4

2 EHE (&)

REDE(E)

M=

2. Segment reporting (Continued) 2.
Operating segments (Continued)

RMB

Automobiles

and automobile

AR®T

tem Engines components  Intelligent logistics

RER
&R EL ] RESRH
30 June 2020 2020667308
Segment assets AHEE 57,641,168,390.71 62,481,917,585.73  95,090,328516.88 215,213 414,493.32
Adustment: FE
Elimination of inter-segment assets BHEIBREE (18,336,290,929.72)
Corporate and other unallocated assets tERABRAREE 64,100,534,011.07
Total assets BEE 260,977,657,574.67
Seqment liabilties AHakE 45,505,082,47437  55,204,507,242.91  145,229,694,600.27
Adjustment: HE
Elimination of inter-segment liabilities BHEIIRAR (10,597,624,895.09)
Corporate and other unallocated liabiltes PEREMRARAR 52,287,050,947.12
Total lbliies BafE 186,919,120,652.30
Incurred during the period THELE
Other segment information: A7 g5 -

Share of profit and loss from:

EETIRAMNERER -

Gain/{oss) from associates and joint ventures BENAEL SN/ (BX) (3,882,329.33) 92,634,694.04 55,948,257.90 144,700,622.61
Reversal{loss) of impairment of inventories GEREER/ (BX) 3,668,906.96 (100,805,146.76)  (100674777.22)  (197,811,017.02)
Loss of credit impairment of accounts receivable EUFENEBRERK (97,160,396.80) (196,101,953.91) (65,356,381.50) (358,619,232.21)
Loss of impairment of non-current assets FROEERBRX (208,658.57) - (1,033,934.58) (1,242,593.15)
Depreciation and amortization NEREH (555,524,141.58) (638,790,690.30)  (3,096,058,377.72)  (4,290,373,209.60)
Gain from disposal of fixed assets BREERETNR 4,184,819.3 4,256,923.71 18,452,958.20 26,894,701.14
Investment in assodiates and joint ventures REENAE0EMRE 2,979,626,513.21 886,029,694.00 789,566,659.43 4,655,222,866.64
Capital expenditure EXH% 1,750,849,647.03 90945006757 445786148010 7,118,161,194.70
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) RS ik R B 5 (48
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XIV. Other Significant Events (Continued) T Al R B SR (4
2. Segment reporting (Continued) 2. 7EbHRE (&)
Operating segments (Continued) KESE(LE)

RMB
AR

Automobiles
and automobile Intelligent
tem Engines components logistics
RER

EH B3 RESHH
Incurred in previous period LBRER
Seqment revenue: AHYA -
Sale o external customers NIEPHE 18,962,743,29950  39,147,820,26757 3275193295341  90,862,496,520.48
Inter-segment sale PHREE 7,786,648,693.10 652,413,888.49 112,32442654  8,551,387,008.13
Total A&t 26,749,391,992.60 39,800,234,156.06 32,864,257,379.95 99,413,883,528.61
Adjustment: PE
Elimination of inter-segment sale BEIDHEE - - - (8,551,387,008.13)
Revenue WA 90,862,496,520.48
Segment resuts R 475575302087 169754107540 199559158417 8,448,885,680.44
Adjustment: FE
Elimination of inter-segment results B#EIIRER (428,524,236.13)
Interest income FISIA 479,664,629.04
Dividend income and unallocated income RERARAS Bl 502,015,370.59
Corporate and other unallocated expenses PEREM AP RRT (30,391,826.11)
Finance expenses BBRA (621,007,200.25)
Profit before tax AT 8,350,642,426.58
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1 January to 30 June 2020 2020%F 1 A1HZ6H30H 1R

XIV. Other Significant Events (Continued) T Al R BE SR (4
2. Segment reporting (Continued) 2. DE®EE)

Operating segments (Continued)

tem

%R

31 December 2019 2019812A318
Segment assefs PHEE

Adjustment: FE:

Elimination of inter-seqment assets B¥PIREE
Corporate and other unallocated assets TERABRAREE
Total assets BEE

Segment labilies AHak

Adjustment: HE

Elimination of inter-segment liabilities BEHYmat
Corporate and other unallocated liabiltes PEREBAIRAE
Total liabiliies aafk

Incurred in previous period HREER

Other segment information: A5 IEH -

Share of profit and loss from:

Gainf{oss) from associates and joint ventures
Loss of impairment of inventories

Loss of credit impairment of accounts receivable
Loss of impairment of non-current assets
Depreciation and amortization

Gainf{loss) from disposal of fixed assets
Investment in associates and joint ventures

Capital expenditure

EETIRAMNERER :
Bena st RUam/(BX)

FERERX
BYGENERAERR
FRBAERERR
RERES
EERERENRIEX)
REENRELRNERE
EXRR

VIES

Gl

44,882,937,469.75

38,985,866,513.29

(1,855,243.40)
(15,517,989.09)
(52,674,844.34)

(16,729.52)
(406,043,701.88)
(3,302,619.81)
3,05,233,822.31
1,507,376,706.69

@ A 3
g EL(

Automobiles
and automobile
components
RER
RESHH

56,775,622,050.61

37,633,986,684.29

46,053,276.98
(164,515,086.91)
(82,163,311.60)
(154,384.74)
(646,134,265.15)
24,364,337.30
788,263,117.41
1,399,281,909.41

=)

M=

Intelligent

logistics

91,424,104,386.93

55,142,312,441.21

79,526,724.34
(87,049,020.40)
(49,339,100.20)

(2,910,916,050.75)
22,909,975.75
717,647,593.29
4,443,548,005.60

RMB
AR

193,082,663,907.29

(16,700,068,299.89)
60,449,078,938.77

236,831,674,546.17

131,762,165,644.79

(9,161,739,879.50)
44,456,523,350.40

167,056,949,115.69

123,724,151.92
(267,082,096.40)
(184,177,256.14)
(171,114.26)
(3,963,094,017.78)
43,971,693.24
4,711,144,533.01
7,350,206,621.70
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2020

XIV. Other Significant Events (Continued)

2. Segment reporting (Continued) oM E (&)
Group information SEBER
Information about products and services Em B EE
Revenue from external transactions HINZ HIA

RMB

ARET

Incurred during Incurred in

[tem this period previous period
EH AHEBER FHIE A

Powertrain, complete vehicles and

machines and key components

BHEK  BEEERR
BT A

54,115,941,632.71

49,840,061,101.56

Other components H i = 365 5,826,633,860.21 5,838,628,524.31

Intelligent logistics Baen EVOEP R CLRVIAVEN 32,751,932,953.41

Others HAt 4,469,488,423.63 2,431,873,941.20

Total At 94,494,559,093.69 90,862,496,520.48

Geographic information {55

Revenue from external transactions HINZHHWA

RMB

AR#¥T

Incurred during Incurred in

[tem this period previous period

= AHAB AR FHAZE A

Mainland China AR B K R 62,998,805,496.83 55,447,227,495.42

Other countries and regions H i B R fih & 31,495,753,596.86 35,415,269,025.06

Total SEr 94,494,559,093.69 90,862,496,520.48

Revenues from external transactions are classified according to the

areas where customers are located.

HINRHWARBEFEREED -
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1 January to 30 June 2020 202041/ 1H26H30H 1F 7R
XIV. Other Significant Events (Continued) T Al R BE SR (4
2. Segment reporting (Continued) 2. DWHwE(E)
Group information (Continued) SEER(E)
Geographic information (Continued) (58 (&)
Total non-current assets FERBEELTE

RMB

AR®T

[tem 30 June 2020 31 December 2019
HE 20206 H30H 201912 A31H
Mainland China oK RE 22,844,348,892.36 21,580,951,912.91
Other countries and regions Eoth B K i = VUSRI EEESE Y 72,844,041,606.24
Total &5t 97,741,820,669.94 94,424,993,519.15
Non-current assets are classified according to the areas where the IRBEEREEMEREES S - T

assets are located, excluding financial assets and deferred tax assets. BECHEENECHESHEE -
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2020

XV.Notes to Key Items of the Company Financial
Statements
1. Notes receivable
Classification of notes receivable

RS i 26 BT 5 (48
20201 81HZ6H30H 1F 5

IEAVAES JUp £ NS R

1. EREE
FE U Z 15 5 4
RMB
AR® T

30 June 2020 31 December 2019
20206 H30H 2019412 A831H

[tem
1HH
Bank acceptance bills HRITHEH ER

28,174,439,600.85 19,031,065,273.37

Notes receivable pledged by the Company at period end

HIRAR W ERER

RMB
ARET

30 June 2020 31 December 2019
20206 H30H 2019412 A831H

[tem
1HH
Bank acceptance bills RITERAESR

11,218,574,135.51 12,147,538,825.61

Notes receivable endorsed or discounted by the Company
at period end and not yet expired as at the balance sheet

HRAFRCDEEXRRAAES
EBEXRARKRIBANRRER

date 3
RMB
AT
30 June 2020 31 December 2019
202066 H30H 2019412 HA31H
Item Derecognised Derecognised
IHH RIERR R IETER
Bank acceptance bills RITERLESR 32,795,397.41 3,658,307,945.85

As at 30 June 2020, the Company had not transferred any notes
into accounts receivable due to issuers’ failure in performance (31
December 2019: nil).

The Company considered that the credit rating of the bank
acceptance bills was relatively high and there was no significant

credit risk. Therefore, no provision for losses was made.

H2020F6A30H ' AR REREE
AENBAMBGZEE SEKERY
Z4% (20194128318 : )

ARBRBBAFENRITELERD
FRBITERAFTERS  TFEEK
MERRER - Bt RETRIBRER -



Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2020

XV.Notes to Key Items of the Company Financial
Statements (Continued)

2.

Accounts receivable

The Company trades with its customers primarily on credit terms,
and generally requires prepayments or cash on delivery for new
customers. Credit period for credit customers is generally one to six

months. Accounts receivable is non-interest bearing.

An aging analysis of accounts receivable based on invoice dates is

presented as follows:

Interim Report 2020 FHEAZRE

RS i 2 BT 5 (48
20201 81HZ26H30H 1F 7R

T ﬁgﬂ)i%ﬂjiﬁiﬁﬁiﬁ H iR

2.

Age

BRER

Within 1 year 1R
1 to 2 years 16224
2 to 3 years 2FEE3F
Over 3 years 3FAE
Total at original amount REEE

Less: Provision for credit loss in respect & : FEUBR ZR1E 1B K&

of accounts receivable

Total at net amount EEAE

FE W B K
ARBEEFPHIE S EFIAEAR
HRE  A—REIHEFLEM KK
RBER N ET  RETPH
ERRBERIZ6EA - BRI
W AFHE ©

BIEFERE - EURERRER ST
™

RMB

AR

30 June 2020 31 December 2019
20206 H30H 2019412 A31H

3,563,020,947.47 965,049,698.84

182,410.44 9,052,213.29
4,618,995.30 -
1,336,684.00 1,336,684.00

3,569,159,037.21 975,438,596.13

85,871,624.27 14,214,114.93

3,483,287,412.94 961,224,481.20
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2020

XV.Notes to Key Items of the Company Financial
Statements (Continued)
2. Accounts receivable (Continued)
Disclosure by category of provision for credit losses

RS i 26 BT 5 (48
20201 81HZ6H30H 1F 5

i E R B BRI H RERE
(%)
2. FEWERR(E)
RIEMBERFIRTED ARE
RMB
ARET
30 June 2020
20206 HA30H

Provision for

Gross carrying

amount  Proportion credit losses  Percentage
Item R E B FR LE 1 ERBXERS sT 4% £ Bl
1HE (%) (%)
ltems assessed for expected 3% 15 FA A& £
credit losses by group 44 T HTE R
with distinctive credit risk EHEX

characteristics 3,569,159,037.21 100.00 85,871,624.27

M2020F6 5308 @ AR A HAERE
DT AT IR{E R IB R EHAE IR

As at 30 June 2020, the Company’s accounts receivable for which

credit losses are provided for using aging analysis are presented as

follows: :%5){ ;ZD—F .
RMB
ARET
30 June 2020
20206 H30H
Carrying amount Expected Lifetime
estimated to credit loss expected
be in default rate (%) credit loss
R REEREY BEHEHAR EEFED
B B T BR ER K*E FEHEREX
Age AR & (%)
Within 1 year 1FEARN 1,669,855,334.84 3.44 57,415,966.64
1 to 2 years 1824F 182,410.44 15.00 27,361.57
2 to 3 years 2E3F 4,618,995.30 30.00 1,385,698.59
Over 3 years 3FLAE 1,336,684.00 100.00 1,336,684.00

Total a5

1,675,993,424.58

3.59 60,165,710.80




Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2020

XV.Key Notes to the Company Financial
Statements (Continued) (%4
2. .

Accounts receivable (Continued) 2
As at 30 June 2020, provisions for credit losses for the Company’s

accounts receivable with good credit history are presented as
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T W) R BRI H kR

)

FEURBRAR (&)

MR2020F 68308 © AR Az ALk
BEMERFEALAGTIREAIBARE

follows: HEERAT
RMB
AR
30 June 2020
20206 H30H
Carrying amount Expected Lifetime
estimated to credit loss expected
be in default rate (%) credit loss
R REEY BHER EEFED
HY AR E &R 58 BL=E EHEREX
Item HA (%)
Accounts receivable with good ERESEENE
credit history W IEE A 1,893,165,612.63 . 25,705,913.47

As at 30 June 2020, the top five balances in respect of accounts
receivable had a sum of closing balance of RMB1,607,048,022.00
(31 December 2019: RMB277,316,746.54), accounting for 45.03%
(31 December 2019: 28.43%) of the total of closing balance of
accounts receivable. The closing balance in respect of credit losses
provided for the top five amounted to RMB29,030,616.26 (31
December 2019: RMB4,567,752.63).

202066 A30H © BREAMAEZH
FERERNEARETD#HRESTAA
R #1,607,048,022.00 7T ( 2019 4F
12A318 : AR#277,316,746.54
TL) GRS RERE AR S &
HH B A45.03% (2019412 A 31
H :28.43%) ' ZAIAZMBEIR
MiERAERERHARBBEARAARYE
29,030,616.26 7t (2019 4F 12 A 31
B : AR®4,567,752.637C) °
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) RS ik R B 5 (48
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XV.Key Notes to the Company Financial +i A% FZEB&ERFHEH 3B

Statements (Continued) (%)
2. Accounts receivable (Continued) 2. FEWRRF(E)
Movements in provision for credit losses of accounts receivable: JEUMBRERE AR EFHEEIBFN ¢

Lifetime Lifetime

expected credit expected credit

loss (without loss (with
impairment impairment
of credit) of credit)
EEFEY BEFES
AHEREA AHEREX
(REE (B84
Provision for credit losses EREXER ERRE) ERRE) CE
Balance as at 31 December 2019 20191231848 14,214,114.93 14,214,114.93
Balance as at 31 December 2019 201912831848
for the current period ERE
- Transferred to receivables with impairment -BABERLERRE
of credit
- Transferred to receivables without impairment —BORELERRNE
of credit = =
Provision for the period ANEIEHR 71,657,509.34 71,657,509.34
Reversal during the period AHEE = =
Balance as at 30 June 2020 202066 A30H #% 85,871,624.27 85,871,624.27
As at 30 June 2020, no accounts receivable had been pledged to M20205F6 A308 « AA G ER
secure bank borrowings of the Company (31 December 2019: nil). BRFX(2019F 124318 : &)L A

REUSIRITRERAIER



Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2020

XV.Key Notes to the Company Financial

Statements (Continued)
3. Other receivables
Presented by categories

Interim Report 2020 FHEAZRE

S5 R WA R (A

20201 81HZ26H30H 1F 7R

ltem 30 June 2020
HH 20206 A30H
Interest receivable & UG B 98,317,556.20
Dividend receivable FE U AR I 27,375,427.85
Other receivables o 4th JE YR 297,449,619.76
Total =hEr 423,142,603.81
Interest receivable FEU A B

ltem 30 June 2020
5 H 20206 A30H
Fixed deposits TEHATE 3K 98,317,556.20

Dividend receivable

Investee entity

BB B

& 5 B R

30 June 2020
20206 H30H

Zhuzhou Torch Sparkplugs Co., Ltd.

Weichai Digital Technology Co., Ltd.
Shaanxi Heavy-duty Motor Co., Ltd.
Shaanxi Fast Gear Co., Ltd.

Hande Axle

RN NAE KTEE

BREERAFA 27,079,944.92
HEH TR R AR 295,482.93
PR E A S EH AR A A

REEELHEREREEAR
RIBER

Total

Att

27,375,427.85

+14 ﬁg%%ﬂa‘%*ﬁﬁlﬁ Hil B
3. HUEKH

D RFR

RMB
ARBTT

31 December 2019
2019412 A831H

22,430,107.62
262,092,592.40
210,661,238.24

495,183,938.26

RMB
ARET

31 December 2019
2019412 831H

22,430,107.62

RMB
ARET

31 December 2019
2019412 A831H

37,080,000.00
100,302,247.48
114,000,344.92
10,710,000.00

262,092,592.40
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XV.Key Notes to the Company Financial

S5 i R WA (A
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T2 H) R R BRI H kR

Statements (Continued) (78)
3. Other receivables (Continued) 3. EMEWRR(E)
Other receivables B b e K

An aging analysis of other receivables is presented as follows:

[tem 30 June 2020
ER 20206 H30H
Within 1 year 1F A 107,521,042.70
1 to 2 years 1226 2,833,000.21
2 to 3 years 2E3F 187,800,398.51
3 to 4 years 3E4F 2,099,096.18
Over 5 years 5 E 2,222,004.85
Total at original amount REEE 302,475,542.45

Less: Provision for credit loss in respect

of other receivables

B B EAGRIE BB KRR
5,025,922.69

Total at net amount

297,449,619.76

Classification of other receivables by nature at carrying amount:

W

[tem 30 June 2020
IHH 20206 H30H
Reserve fund HRE 3,580,844.33
Deposits B 820,114.00
Others Hip 298,074,584.12
Total &5t 302,475,542.45

H s YR EBR B D AT T

RMB

AR

31 December 2019
2019412 A31H

19,687,863.21
189,361,384.62
3,579,364.56
2,222,004.85
214,850,617.24

4,189,379.00

210,661,238.24

H & UK AR T SR R IR R IE E 5 4R

RMB

AR T

31 December 2019
2019412 A31H

6,893,216.17
1,456,296.01
206,501,105.06

214,850,617.24




Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2020

XV.Key Notes to the Company Financial

Statements (Continued)
Other receivables (Continued)
Other receivables (Continued)

3.
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(
3

Change in the provision for bad debts in respect of other receivables

based on 12-month expected credit losses and lifetime expected

credit losses is as follows:

Item

EH

Balance as at 31 December 2019
Balance as at 31 December 2019
for the current period
- Transferred to Stage 2
- Transferred to Stage 3
- Reversed to Stage 2
- Reversed to Stage 1
Provided for the period
Reversed during the period
Written off or eliminated

during the period

201912 3148
20195128318 8%E

ERE
-BAZZRE
~BABZRE
-BEE-EE
-BRE-RE
REER
RHER
RERHAER

Balance as at 30 June 2020

2020F6A30B 4%

Stage 1

Expected credit

loss for the

next 12 months

F-K&
FR1218 A
REEREX

136,835.73

836,543.69

973,379.42

Stage 2
Lifetime
expected
credit loss

(individually)

FoRE
BEFED
BAGRRA
(EIEFTMh)

+E§Si%%%ﬁ%ﬁﬁ%%

H Wk (4]
Hofth FE UK (AR )

H it FE MR R R 1208 A TR 15 AR 9E
5 R BET MMM BEX RS
EREXERNEHNT -

RMB
AR

Stage 3
Stage 2 Financial
Lifetime assets with
expected incurred
credit loss credit loss
(by group) (lifetime)
EZRB
F-ER  BRLERER
BEFES HESH
RHERBX EE(RZ(E
(AEH) 3 ) CH

4,052,543.27 4,189,379.00

836,543.69

4,052,543.27 5,025,922.69
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2020

XV.Key Notes to the Company Financial

Statements (Continued) (%)
3. Other receivables (Continued) 3. HibEEWK(E)
Other receivables (Continued) Hfth fE W TR (48 )
As at 30 June 2020, the top 5 other receivables are presented as M2020F6A308 - EMERZSE
follows: AIAEZIT :
RMB
AR T
Percentage Closing balance
of total other of provision
Customer Closing balance  receivables (%)  Nature for credit losses
e
BESHY ERBXER
EF MR io)sdt] R MR R
(%)
First place £-% 188,036,939.77 62.17  Advance to subsidiaries Within 3 years
FRAEER 3ENUA
Second place £-4 72,131,286.28 23.85  After-sales compensation claim ~ Within 1 year
=BREH 1EIAR
Third place $=% 5,226,080.98 173 Taxrefund Within 1 year 261,304.05
BB (BN
Fourth place Ui 1,740,954.85 0.58  Advance to subsidiaries Over 5 years 1,740,954.85
FRAEREH SEN E
Fifth place ERiES 768,558.26 0.25 Others Within 1 year 38,427.91
At (BN
Total At 267,903,820.14 2,040,686.81

Long-term equity investments

4., RIRERSE

RMB
AR

31 December 2019
2019412 A31H

[tem 30 June 2020
HH 202056 A30H

Non-listed investment under cost method 3E 18 &K A% 14,727,757,120.48 14,446,407,120.48

Non-listed investment under equity FEEMTEERERE
method 1,424,759,822.42 1,341,901,807.75
Total at original amount RES:T 16,152,516,942.90 15,788,308,928.23

B REIBER ERE LR

Less: Provision for impairment of

long-term equity investments 200,000,000.00 200,000,000.00

15,952,516,942.90

Total at net amount FEAR 15,588,308,928.23
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) RS i R B 5 (48
1 January to 30 June 2020 2020%F 1 A1HZ6H30H 1R

XV.Key Notes to the Company Financial 1% -2 2 BB EHREEH B

Statements (Continued) (%)
4. Long-term equity investments (Continued) 4. RERERE(E)
As at 30 June 2020, the breakdown of long-term equity investments M2020F6 A30H @ A EZENR
under cost method was as follows: HAfR IR BRI T ¢
RMB
AR

Changes during this period
K589

Opening carrying Increase in Other Closing carrying Distribution

amount investment increases  Other decreases amount of dividend

Investee entity HREER BOREEE EN%E At At  BRREEE BHERA

Weichai Power (Hong Kong) International BE T (Eh)BEXEERAT 2,07,069,782.12 2,087,069,782.12

Development Co, Ltd.
Shaani Heavy-duty Motor Co, Ltd REENBERAR 1,992,116,000.85 1,992,116,000.85
Huzhou Yingcan Investment Partnership LLP BHERRERBLE(ERAT) 1,138,365,000.00 1,138,365,000.00
Shaani Fast Gear Co, Lid. RELIHEREREALT 1,082,558,680.59 1,082,558,680.59
Weichal America Corp Weichai America Corp 143,099,228,57 743,099,22857
Tsintel Technology FERK 611,256,000.00 611,256,000.00
Weichai Power (Shanghai) Technology BEHN( LB RHERERDA 650,000,000.00 650,000,000.00

Development Co,, Ltd.
Thuzhou Gear Co, Lid HERARREAT 532,334,431 532,334,431 -
Weichal Power (Weifang) Casting Co, Ltd. EEN (45 2RERAA 460,150,000.00 460,150,000.00 8,240339.38
Weichai Power (eijing)Inemational EFBN 0t ERERREARAA 300,000,000.00 300,000,000.00 82380432

Resource Investment Co,, Ltd.

Weichal Balard Hycrogen Energy Technology EABHETEHRERAR 25017500000 94,350,000.00 345,525,000.00

Company Limited
Zhuzhou Torch Sparkplugs Co,, Ltd. HFNANEATEEREEAR 245,574,85840 205,574,858.40 =
Weichal (Weifang) Medium-duty DieselEngine Co, Ltd. 55 (435) R &I ER AR 2471247583 471247583 1,560,886.77
Weichai Power (Qingzhou) Drive Control H587 (B BRRITARAT 150,000,000.00 150,000,000.00 -

Technology Co, Ltd.
Weifang Weichai Power Technology Co, Ltd AN NRERERLR 140,70,000.00 140,770,000.00 -
Zhuzhou Torch Machinery Manufacturing Co,, Ltd. EHRA RS AREAAT 130,898,993.14 130,898,993.14 -
Weichal Power (Weifang) Reconstructon Co,, Ltd. H587 (84 ERERRAT 122,000,000.00 12200000000 22,455,146.86
Shandong Synergy Ol Co, Ltd. LR EARARAR 109,509,458.68 10950945868 87,521,45054
Weichai Power Freshen Ai Technology Co, Lid. EFUNERRIHEARDA 100,000,000.00 - 100,000,00000  383,292,878.72
Other subsidares £ 727 315481689949 187,000,000.00 - 334181689949 7,778,565.03

Total A 14,246407,12048  281,350,000.00 14521,751,12048  516,673,071.62




282  Weichai Power Co., Ltd.

HRBORHAERDE

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2020
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Statements (Continued)

4,
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Long-term equity investments (Continued) 4. RERERE(E)

As at 30 June 2020, breakdown of long-term equity investments

under equity method was as follows:

Investee entity HREEQ

Shandong Heavy Industry Group LREISEHBEERAA
Finance Co., L1td.

Shanzhong Finance Leasing Co,, Ltd. LERERERRAR

Other associates and joint ventures ]

Total At

Revenue and cost of sales
(1) Revenue and cost of sales:

M2020FE6A30H @ FERENE

HBEIRERANT

Changes during this period

K528

Investment gains

and losses
Opening Increase in underthe  Other equity
balance investment equity method changes
ERAET Afy
BIBE Emk& Regs BE29

874,991,244.30 62,174471.79
250,590,366.30 = 6,680,767.46
216,320,197.15 12,668,858.22 1,333,917.20

1,341,901,807.75 12,668,858.22 70,189,156.45

Declaration

RMB
AR

Closing

ofcassh  Disposed and arrying

dividend transferred out amount

EERERA

S
REEY REEE

937,165,716.09

257,211,133.76
230,322.9712.57

1,424,759,822.8

5. ERWARKE

(1)

Incurred during this period

FHBER

Revenue

ON BA

SEWAMESEKRNER :
RMB
AR #T
Incurred in previous period
FHELER
Revenue Cost
WA A

28,037,462,474.89  21,637,685,653.44
512,013,429.31 390,642,657.80

[tem

BH

Principal operations FTEEL
Other revenue Hi %%
Total A

24,089,726,331.93
318,836,879.08

17,371,414,536.67
227,724,301.54

28,549,475,904.20  22,028,328,311.24

24,408,563,211.01

17,599,138,838.21
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XV.Key Notes to the Company Financial +i A& FZEB&ERFHEH 3B

Statements (Continued) (%)
5. Revenue and cost of sales (Continued) 5. EEWARKAK(E)
(2) Other information of revenue: (2) EERAMEMEE
RMB
AR #T
[tem Total
HH &t
Major regions of operation: FELEME
Mainland China LAEiPN 23 28,549,475,904.20
Time for recognition of revenue: WA FEREER -
Goods (transferred at a certain HR(EE—RiEE)
point of time) 28,478,125,114.60
Leases e 71,350,789.60
Total =T 28,549,475,904.20
6. Investment income 6. HREWH
RMB
AR#T
[tem Incurred during Incurred in
this period previous period
THH AR FHAZ AR
Gain on long-term equity investments Az E B R B
under the equity method ®E W= 70,189,156.45 60,137,591.48
Gain on long-term equity investments PR AN A A% B #) &= B AR
under the cost method RE W 516,673,071.62 479,839,074.70
Investment income arising from disposal R & REREREES
of long-term equity investments K% & U 70,909,153.25

Total &5t 586,862,228.07 610,885,819.43
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Supplemental Information 1 70 & R

1. Schedule of Extraordinary Profit and Loss 1~ FERH HE A5 W AR

RMB
ARET
Incurred during
Item this period
BH ANHABE A HE
Gains or losses from disposal of non-current assets FMBEEREER 26,894,701.14
Government grants charged in profit or loss for the current ATAZHBENBAME(HES
period, except for those closely related to the ordinary REEBZYERE - FEEK
operation and gained constantly at a fixed amount or BRIRTE ~ R —EREF K
quantity according to certain standard based on state EEFRBZZHNBUNHBIRIN
policies 139,144,077.13

Profit and loss on the changes in fair value generated from BRRERAIES&EEFHBNE R
financial assets and financial liabilities held for trading and EMREEBN  BEXHER
investment income received from disposal of financial assets BMEE RHIMSHEBEEEAD
held for trading, financial liabilities held for trading and NABBEETERD  UREER
investment in other equity instruments, other than effective SHEHEE RXHZUEREE
hedging business relating to ordinary operating business of MEMEZ T ARERSHRE

the Company Wz 256,811,862.90
Non-operating income and expenses other than the above R bt 5538 7 HNEY B Ath 2 S ANIE A
items M H 80,826,604.37

Tax effect Fistiz B8 (57,224,353.59)
Effect on minority interests LHBRRIBRTEH (59,500,513.42)

Total a&t 386,952,378.53

The Group recognized extraordinary profit and loss items in accordance RNEFEHIERE B ZETE B MERKB(A
with the provisions in Explanatory Announcement on Information BT BAN AR EEREREE AL S
Disclosure for Companies Offering their Securities to the Public No. 1 — o — IR BB ) (BE® A 45[2008]43

Extraordinary Items (CSRC Announcement [2008] No. 43). 583 E 1T o
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Supplemental Information (Continued)

2. Return on Net Assets (“RONA”) and 2 - B&EEWSEME RIS
Earnings Per Share (“EPS”)

2020F1HA1HE6A30H Lt

From 1 January to 30 June 2020
HA S

RMB
ARBTT

Weighted
average RONA
hnREF
FEERSEE
ltem (%) Diluted
HE L=

Net profit attributable to the
Company's ordinary shareholders

Net profit attributable to the
Company’s ordinary shareholders
after extraordinary profit and loss

HERAREBRR
P SR 5% I

BRI E IR 1R
BENART AR
PR A A

From 1 January to 30 June 2019

2019F1A1HE6A30A Lt
e

RMB
AR #T
Weighted
average RONA EPS
TS
FEEW G E B
[tem (%) Basic Diluted
HH E- N Wi
Net profit attributable to the FEN A R Y AR A
Company’s ordinary shareholders S 7 12.49 0.67 0.67
Net profit attributable to the MR ENERERE
Company’s ordinary shareholders AR A wAR IR R AT
after extraordinary profit and loss ) E 11.72 0.62 0.62

The Group holds no potential ordinary shares that are significantly dilutive.

The Group presents RONA and EPS in accordance with Compilation Rules
No. 9 for Information Disclosure by Companies Offering Securities to the
Public — Calculation and Disclosure of Return on Net Assets and Earnings
per Share (Revised in 2010) of the CSRC.

AEBESABEBLEEEBR -

AL BT E E W E R ME R 5 &R
KRIEEFES(ARABTELSNARER
BERBMRANEIR —FEERSEZMNEK
W ETE R EE ) (2010FERTRRE -
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Other Information

Directors’” and Supervisors’ Interests in Shares
and Underlying Shares

As at 30 June 2020, the interests and short position (if any) of the directors,
the chief executive and the supervisors in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company and its associated corporations (within the meaning

of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")), as recorded in

oA &R

g e B R A B tH B ik A
R £

RZZEZZEFAA=+H EF SHEEAE
NREERARARHEBEZEZE(EERES LB
BIEOI(TE 7 REEERA ) EXVE) B ARG - 18
Bk RESFT  HEBRBEESFLMHAERIE

the register maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO,

or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange

321 MEART

RIAFENE LML kiR
BETRBEFETEFRHNRESTA([1RE

pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed  SFRI B EEME AR NE B IO X
Companies (the “Model Code”), were as follows: EE(mA)IT
Percentage of
the issued
Number of Number of share capital of
Name of Director Capacity “A" shares held “H" shares held the Company
HEAFE
EEgA &% FEETAl RBEBE & [H] REB BITRABEDL
Tan Xuguang Beneficial owner 58,842,596 (Note 1) - 0.74%
EE EnEA A (PRFEET)
Zhang Quan Beneficial owner 13,684,324 (Note 1) - 0.17%
3R AR EnER A (PRFEET)
Xu Xinyu Beneficial owner 13,684,324 (Note 1) - 0.17%
1w E BE=REEA (PRFEET)
Sun Shaojun Beneficial owner 13,684,324 (Note 1) - 0.17%
BAOE EnEA A (PRFEET)
Yuan Hongming Beneficial owner 1,000,440 - 0.013%
REH EnEA A
Interest held by spouse 444 — 0.000006%
BRA 2w
1,000,884 - 0.013%
Yan Jianbo Beneficial owner 1,097,904 - 0.014%
EREE A BB A
Wen Daocai Beneficial owner 21,940 - 0.0003%
BEA EEEAA
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Other Information (Continued) HoAth R} (48)

Directors” and Supervisors’ Interests in Shares # % ¢ B 55 7 A0 Kb BH A

and Underlying Shares (Continued) HIRE R (78)
Percentage of
the issued
Number of Number of share capital of
Name of Supervisor Capacity “A" shares held “H" shares held the Company
HEAFE
EEpE =7 i TAl BRBE Bk [H] BREA BITRABE DL
Lu Wenwu Beneficial owner 600,000 - 0.0076%
BXR EmBEBA
Wu Hongwei Beneficial owner 4,789,516 - 0.06%
RtE EmBEBA
Notes: B sE
1. These shares were derived from the previous domestic shares of the Company. The 1. ZERMZABERRNER - RERABARR R
domestic shares were ordinary shares issued by the Company, with a Renminbi- THEAR - AARKIIE  SREEARK1.00
denominated par value of RMB1.00 each, which were subscribed for and paid up in T MARBRBRARIARIBHR - 2FK
Renminbi or credited as fully paid up. These shares became “A” shares of the Company MRARAARERINERFRR S ETERAER
upon the “A” share listing of the Company on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange. AIZ AR °
2. All the shareholding interests listed in the above table are “long” position. 2. LRI FABREERSRIFR -
3. The percentage shareholding is calculated on the basis of 7,933,873,895 issued shares 3. FRESLEDIREARR —ZETZFTF XA
of the Company as at 30 June 2020 (comprising 5,990,833,895 “A" shares and =+ H #7,933,873,895 Hx E 5" TRH(BE
1,943,040,000 "H" shares). 5,990,833,895A% AR% K 1,943,040,000 8 HA% ) 7+ &

Bl -
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Other Information (Continued)

Interests in the shares of associated corporations
of the Company

HoAt E R (2)

TP A 7 ) AH B 325 1 M oy ) i

a

)3

Approximate

Class and percentage

number of interest in the

securities entire issued

interested share capital

Name of associated or deemed of associated

Name of Director corporation Nature of interest to be interested corporation

BEERDER HEEEE 2 ER

REEREEN ERITRAN

BEEpns HEEE AR ERtE BEERREE BEHEENEIL

Gordon Riske (Note) KION Group AG (“KION") Beneficial owner 144,060 ordinary shares 0.12%
(M) BmEAA e

Interest held by spouse 93,940 ordinary shares 0.08%
M B RE R AR AR

238,000 ordinary shares 0.20%

Note: Gordon Riske, a non-executive Director, was the beneficial owner of 144,060 ordinary
shares in KION and he was also deemed to be interested in 93,940 shares in KION which
were beneficially held by his wife, Ms. Benita Riske.

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 June 2020, none of the Directors, the chief
executive nor the supervisors had an interest or short position in the shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations that was recorded in the register required to be kept pursuant to
Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company pursuant to
the Model Code.

& &R

Mzt : JEFTTE E=Gordon Riske ZKIONH) 144,0600% i {5
E=lEA A - WHE BN EZ FBenita Riskez
BRXFEH93,940KIONB D R iF AR -

B EXETHBEEIN R

MBEE &S1TRA
A AEEOE BB - 18F

fn#ﬁ'&ﬁsﬁlaffwmaﬁssﬂ
1F B MR M AR RER &
Bl ZE A& A A B R 55 504

W » W@E”ﬁll

TFENA=+H
RARRHEE
BT RIE
TRC BRI A% IR 11 P

C RARIBIRE ST
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Other Information (Continued) HoAth R} (48)

Details of Changes in Share Capital and B 7<% Bl A = 25 B o K5 4 Ut
Substantial Shareholders” Shareholdings

() Changes in share capital () BAEEHER

Changes in share capital (as at 30 June 2020) AR ESFERNR(BE_E_FF X
A=+AH)
Before the movement Increase/decrease in the movement (+,-) After the movement
AREHH KREHER (+-) FREH%
Percentage  New shares (Capitalisation Percentage
No. of shares (%) issued ~ Bonus issue of reserve Others Subtotal  No. of shares (%)
$8  HAI%) Rk ¥R DREER it it g8 A%
. Resticted circulaing shares - EREEHRD 1705830210 2200% = = = 685,800 685800 1746518070 22.01%
1. State-owned shares 1. BxER = = = = = = = = =
2. State-owned legal person shares 2 BREARR 1,642,531,008 20.70% - - - - - 1642531008 20.70%
3. Shares held by other domestic entities 3 EHAERR 103,301,262 130% = = = 685,800 685800 103,987,062 131%
including: Shares held by domestic non-state-owned E BREEE - - - - - - - - -
legal persons EARR

Shares held by domestic natural persons RRERARR 103301,262 130% = S < 685,800 685800 103987062 131%
4. Shares held by foreiqn entities 4. IERR = = = = = = = = =
including: Shares held by overseas legal persons b BNEARR = = = = = = = = =
Shares held by overseas natural persons EHERARR - - - - - - - - -
I Nonestricted circulating shares Z EREHRRD 6,188,041,625 78.00% - - - (685,800) (685,800 6,187,355,825 77.99%
1. RMBordinary shares 1. AREEER 4,245,001,625 5351% = = = (685,800) (685,800)  4,244,315,825 53.50%
2. Domestic isted foreign shares 2. BRETHINER = = = = = = = = =
3. Overseas lsted foreign shares 3. BMETHINER  1,943,040,000 24.49% - - - - - 1,943,040,000 24.49%
4. Others 4 Hf - - - - - - - - -

[Il. Total number of shares

[
=2
=
B
g

7,933,873,895 100% - N H - - 79338738% 100%
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Other Information (Continued)

Details of Changes in Share Capital and Substantial

HRBORHAERDE

Shareholders’ Shareholdings (Continued)

(1) Shareholdings of the Substantial Shareholders (as

HoAt E R (2)

B A< 53 Bl i 2 B R 4 B DU

at 30 June 2020)

Total number of Shareholders

The number of shareholders is
183,187 among which 182,936 are
shareholders of “A" shares and 251

are shareholders of “H" shares.

Shareholdings of the top ten shareholders

(%)

() FERRERER(R=Z==%
F£XA=1+8)
RERAAE H*183,187F » EFFARK

182,936 ' HIERE 251
ﬁ °

A 1048 IR K B

Approximate
percentage of Number of Number of
sharesheld  Total number of restricted  shares pledged
Name of shareholder Type of Shareholder (%) shares held shares held or frozen
BRENEI ARERS ERFREN
RREH RR#UE (%) BREY SR hio#e
HKSCC Nominees Limited Foreign shareholder 24.43% 1,938,424,316 N/A
EENREEREAGRAF MERR A
Weichai Group Holdings Limited State-owned legal person 17.72% 1,406,100,000 1,345,905,600 -
ERERERER AT BBEA
Hong Kong Securities Clearing Company Limited Overseas legal person 7.71% 611,939,409 -
BEPREEERAT BINEA
Weifang Investment Group Company Limited State-owned legal person 3.74% 296,625,408 296,625,408 -
BT RARERRAA BAEA
China Securities Finance Corporation Limited Domestic non-state-owned legal person 2.06% 163,608,906 -
PEESCRKNERAT BRFERFEA
IVM Technical Consultants Wien Gesellschaft m.b.H. ~ Overseas legal person 151% 119,618,700 -
B RIVMR A A RBRAF BINEA
Central Huijin Assets Management Company Limited ~ State-owned legal person 1.37% 108,492,800 -
hRESEEERAREMLT CEEIN
Shandong Enterprise Trust Operation Domestic non-state-owned legal person 0.85% 67,211,460 -
Company Limited BRFERFEA
WREPETELERNERAR
Tan Xuguang Domestic natural person 0.74% 58,842,59% 44,131,947 -
b EAAEEIN
Bank of Communications - Rongtong Industry Funds and wealth management 0.61% 48,677,878 -

Prosperous Securities Investment Fund
QBRIT-BBTERRESREES

products etc.
£ BMERE



Other Information (Continued)

Details of Changes in Share Capital and Substantial

Shareholders” Shareholdings (Continued)

(1) Shareholdings of the Substantial Shareholders (as
at 30 June 2020) (Continued)

Shareholdings of the top ten non-restricted shareholders

Interim Report 2020 Hf#Rs 291

HoAt R (2)

JBE A 528 B A 2 2B A B 1 D
(#)
(I EERRFRER(R=2=F

FXA=1TRH) (&)
A 104 £ R BRI IR ARIF R

Number of the
non-restricted

Name of shareholder shares held Types of shares
RER AR BEEREFREROVBE ROESE
HKSCC Nominees Limited 1,938,424,316 Overseas listed foreign shares
EREPREEREAGRAA BN EHINE AR
Hong Kong Securities Clearing Company Limited 611,939,409 RMB ordinary shares
ERRREFTERDF ARKELBER
China Securities Finance Corporation Limited 163,608,906 RMB ordinary shares
HEESSRROBRAF AR T B
IVM Technical Consultants Wien Gesellschaft m.b.H. 119,618,700 RMB ordinary shares
B FIVMEL T & S 4 th AN B BR 2 A AR ERRK
Central Huijin Assets Management Company Limited 108,492,800 RMB ordinary shares
FRESEEEEARETAA AR EBR
Shandong Enterprise Trust Operation Company Limited 67,211,460 RMB ordinary shares
WREREFEELLEROHEBERAA ARKELBER
Weichai Group Holdings Limited 60,194,400 RMB ordinary shares
HREREEAR A A AR T B
Bank of Communications — Rongtong Industry Prosperous 48,677,878 RMB ordinary shares
Securities Investment Fund AR E @R
TRBIT-BBTERIAZTFREELS
Hu Zhongxiang 44,466,545 RMB ordinary shares
FAAE AR EBR
China AMC — Agricultural Bank of China — China AMC China 33,002,800 RMB ordinary shares

Securities and Financial Assets Management Plan

EFEES -RERT-EETECREEEEE

Notes:

1. Among the aforesaid shareholders, Mr. Tan Xuguang is the chairman of Weichai Group
Holdings Limited. It is not certain whether there is any connected relationship among the
top ten shareholders and the other top ten non-restricted shareholders or whether there is
any acting in concert relationship among them.

2. No earmarked repurchase transaction has been conducted by the top ten shareholders
and the top ten non-restricted shareholders of the Company during the reporting period.

AR ERBR

IAERRER G - BBREERMLIEREEBR AR
BER - ARAARAMEMA T RRRREMLA 5
BEREGTRR HREFEBEBER  bRME
EEBRN—BITHAL -

R AR+ R BRR R BT+ B RS R B AR R
BEPARETOERELRS °
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Other Information (Continued)

Substantial Shareholders

The register of substantial shareholders maintained by the Company pursuant
to Section 336 of the SFO (including interests filed with the Hong Kong Stock

Exchange) shows that as at 30 June 2020, the following persons (other than the

directors, chief executive and supervisors) had the following interests and the

short positions (if any) in the shares and underlying shares of the Company:

HoAt E R (2)

FEEBER

RRARRECEF LB GEIE3361E)FENT
ERRELCM(BAEMBBEZMARDME)
R M-ZTZFXRA=+TH " FTIAL(E
£ RREEABREFHRINEARRRND R
HEROTEE TR RER (INE) ¢

Percentage of Percentage of Percentage of

share capital share capital total

Long/Short Number of comprising Number of comprising issued

Name Capacity position Ashares  only A sharest Hshares  only H shares share capital

FEARKAK HEEARA

£ Ly #E/ %A ARHE BAl HREE HHRREEAL agoat

Weichai Group Holdings Limited Beneficial owner Long 1,406,100,000 2347% = = 17.72%
ERAREEARLA ERERA e

Shandong Heavy Industry Group Co., Ltd. (Note 1) Interest of corporation controlled byyou ~ Long 1,406,100,000 2347% - - 17.72%
LWRETERARAR (M) (RErERIEEERS i)

Brandes Investment Partners, LP (Note 3) Investment manager Long - - 78,578,612 16.18% 3.96%
(R3E3) RAmR i

Lazard Emerging Markets Equity Portfolio (Note 4) Investment manager Long - - 23,707,500 5.86% 143%
(Hf3z4) RERE e

Barclays PLC (Note 3) Person having a Security interest in shares ~ Long - - 525,552 0.11% 0.03%
(B33) RRRROREERNA i

Interest of corporation controlled byyou ~ Long - - 25,453,050 5.24% 1.28%
(RErEmIEEE RS e

25,978,602 5.35% 131%

Interest of corporation controlled byyou  Short - - 24,102,475 4.96% 122%
(R EEER e
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Other Information (Continued) HoAth R} (48)

Substantial Shareholders (Continued) F R R (4)

Percentage of Percentage of Percentage of

share capital share capital total

Long/Short Number of comprising Number of comprising issued

Name Capacity position Ashares  only A sharest Hshares  only H shares share capital

FARKRAK HERARA

1 5 e/ %8 ARZE [RipA HREE EHRREABAL agEst

Morgan Stanley (Note 2) Interest of corporation controlled byyou ~ Long - - 49,335,508 5.08% 1.24%
(PH2) {Renasl A B S g

Interest of corporation controlled byyou  Short - - 42,078,545 433% 1.06%
{REE e E RS e

Lazard Asset Management LLC Investment manager Long - - 328,810,940 16.92% 414%
REmR g

BlackRock, Inc. Interest of corporation controlled byyou ~ Long - - 100,958,902 5.20% 1.27%
{RErfR A B RS e

Interest of corporation controlled byyou ~ Short - - 2,357,000 0.12% 0.03%
{REEHEEENES e

Citigroup Inc. Interest of corporation controlled byyou ~ Long - - 231729 0.12% 0.03%
{RenfRR A B RS e

Person having a Security interest in shares ~ Long - - 484,844 0.02% 0.00%
FERDOHRIERMNA g

Approved lending agent Long - - 133,206,006 6.85% 1.68%
BERLREA e

136,008,149 6.99% 1.71%

Interest of corporation controlled byyou ~ Short - - 17,156 0.00% 0.00%
ligasabAka) 3 e
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Other Information (Continued)

Substantial Shareholders (Continued)

HoAt E R (2)

FEEBR ()

Percentage of Percentage of Percentage of
share capital share capital total
Long/Short Number of comprising Number of comprising issued
Name Capacity position Ashares  only A sharest Hshares  only H shares share capital
FARKRA HERARA
1 5 e/ %8 AR%E BAR HREE EHRRABAL agEst
Brown Brothers Harriman & Co. Agent Long - 116,949,106 6.02% 1.47%
REA g
The Bank of New York Mellon Corporation Interest of corporation controlled by you  Long - 66,693,372 343% 0.84%
i) 3 e
Approved lending agent Long - 48814334 251% 0.62%
BERLREA g
115,507,706 5.94% 1.46%
Interest of corporation controlled byyou ~ Short - 64,595,640 3.32% 0.81%
{Renasl A B RS e
Notes: Bt s

Shandong Heavy Industry Group Co., Ltd., being a subsidiary of the State-owned Assets
Supervision and Administration Commission of Shandong Province, held the entire share
capital of Weichai Group Holdings Limited (formerly known as Weifang Diesel Engine
Works).

The number of H shares (and the relevant shareholding percentages) reported above
by the relevant substantial shareholder does not take into consideration the Company’s
bonus share issuance on 21 July 2017 as there is no disclosure of interest obligation
under the SFO where there is no change in percentage of shareholdings for a substantial
shareholder.

The number of H shares (and the relevant shareholding percentages) reported above
by the relevant substantial shareholder does not take into consideration the Company’s
bonus share issuance on 21 July 2017 and 20 August 2015 as there is no disclosure of
interest obligation under the SFO where there is no change in percentage of shareholdings
for a substantial shareholder.

The number of H shares (and the relevant shareholding percentages) reported above
by the relevant substantial shareholder does not take into consideration the Company’s
bonus share issuance on 21 July 2017, 20 August 2015 and 17 August 2012 as there is
no disclosure of interest obligation under the SFO where there is no change in percentage
of shareholdings for a substantial shareholder.

Save as disclosed above, the Company had not been notified of any other

relevant interests or short positions in the issued share capital of the Company as
at 30 June 2020.

WRBEEZOHBRARAILRETIEMERIAFA
SRR BAR AR (1AM SRR H 2
BBARA o

EREF A EERER A R E (RAEER
RED L)L RARAR T FLA=+—
BEOAL IR B 1T 8 bt TY el 3 IR R 38 5 B 0
Pl EBREZREE A LA EED - AIBAR
B -

252 HEERRREE 2HREE (KRR
REDL)YEARARAR_E—tFLA=+—
AR-ZE-—AFNA-TENAKRIKIETE - Ut
HRREEFRPREGD  HEERRZBERS
LEr B E) - BIBAR TR o

250 E RRREE 2HREE (RAERK
BEDL)YEARARAR_E—tF LA = +—
H - —E—aSN \A-tBEE-_ZE—-—FN\A+t
AMARIKETS  HITHRREESRBE K
Pl MEBRRZBEES LI EEE) - BIHAR

TS -

BREXEBEEN  R-F_FTFA=+BAR
B B EMAEAR RS BITRAFBOEREA
HEEDIORR -



Other Information (Continued)

Emolument Policy
The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up by the
Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit, qualifications and

competence.

The emoluments of the directors of the Company are decided by the
Remuneration Committee, having regard to the Group's operating results,

individual performance and comparable market statistics.

Arrangements to Purchase Shares or Debentures
At no time during the Period was the Company and any of its subsidiaries a
party to any arrangements to enable the directors of the Company to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the

Company or any other body corporate.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of Securities of the
Company
During the Period, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,

sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities.

Pre-emptive Rights
There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company'’s articles of
association or the laws of the PRC, which would oblige the Company to offer

new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

Audit Committee

The audit committee of the Company (the “Audit Committee”) comprises five
independent non-executive Directors of the Company. The Chairman of the
Audit Committee is Ms. Jiang Yan, an independent non-executive Director.
Ms. Jiang has appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related
financial management expertise as required under Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing
Rules for the purpose of this appointment. During the Period, the Audit
Committee discharged its responsibilities, reviewed and discussed the financial
results and internal control matters of the Company. In accordance with the
requirements of Appendix 16 to the Listing Rules, the Audit Committee has
reviewed with the Company’s auditors the reviewed consolidated financial

statements for the Period.

Interim Report 2020 FHEAZRE

HoAt R (2)

0t T R
A EE R 0 HHIIE R HIE B RIRIEES
B - BRI ek -

AAREENFHHFNEZESLEEBARNEEL
BERE  AARREABLRTISHABIRERR

.
E °

Ji S Moty AR 7 B K B

AR TR BB A TR AR R -
L RTUEARNVEFBBRHEAR ARER
Hoft kA B8 IR 1 o8 55 LA RS 26 B0 22 o

iﬁ*&%ﬁ%@ﬁ&ﬂ%%

RAHE - ARrETARBRRMERE
HEXBEERARBA LHES

15 o i R
RARMABIERFPEERGBEII LG HESL
BERG  RERNRRAERL ARG REE
B -

BEMEHEE
ARRERZEE([ERZEEDAARARA
FZEUFNTEEFENX - BERZERETFERBL
HERTEERBERL - BRLTABLTRAUE
3N0QQGEHEZEEMBRZEENEEER -
HEBEENEFTHXAENVBERER - RA
HEAN  BERZEERITERE @ B RAmA
REAWNPBRERANBERZEE - RELETRA
M8+ NMRE  BERZEGEARTARHED
BEHABRE 2 RBHA G BERE -

295



296  Weichai Power Co., Ltd.

HRBORHAERDE

Other Information (Continued)

Compliance With Corporate Governance
Code in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules
Throughout the Period, other than the roles of the Chairman and the Chief
Executive Officer being performed by Mr. Tan Xuguang (“Mr. Tan”), and that
certain directors of the Company did not attend the Company’s annual general
meeting held during the Period due to other essential business engagements,
the Company has complied with all the code provisions of the Corporate

Governance Code as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules.

Mr. Tan is in charge of the overall management of the Company. The Company
considers that the combination of the roles of the Chairman and the Chief
Executive Officer can promote the efficient formulation and implementation
of the Company’s strategies which will enable the Group to grasp business
opportunities efficiently and promptly. The Company considers that through the
supervision of its board and its independent non-executive Directors, there is

adequate balance of power and authority in place.

Compliance with the Model Code

During the Period, the Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding
securities transactions by Directors on terms no less exacting than the required
standard set out in the Model Code. Having made specific enquiry of all
Directors, the Directors have confirmed that they have complied with the
required standard set out in the Model Code and the aforementioned code of

conduct of the Company for the Period.

Sufficiency of Public Float
Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the directors of the Company, the Company has maintained

the prescribed public float under the Listing Rules as at the date of this report.

Approval of the Financial Statements
The reviewed consolidated financial statements for the Period were approved by
the Board on 27 August 2020.

Publication of the Interim Report on
the Websites of the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange and the Company

The 2020 interim report will be despatched to the shareholders as well as made
available on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange’s website at www.hkexnews.hk

and the Company’s website at www.weichaipower.com in due course.
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WEICHAI POWER CO.,.LTD.

#, 4t DIUERE T BRI E SRR R ERERA1975R R
E & : +86-536-8197777 (##%)

= = : +86-536-8197073

ECU : 261061

Bk 75 #h 4R 1400 618 3066

EFERH . weichai@weichai.com

# HE . http://www.weichaipower.com

Address : Section A 197, Fu Shou East Street, High Technology Industrial Development Zone, Weifang, Shandong Province
Tel 1 +86-536-8197777 (Gen)

Fax 1 +86-536-8197073

P.C. 1 261061

Service hotline : 400 618 3066

E-mail : weichai@weichai.com

Website : http://www.weichaipower.com
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